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ProfileProfileProfileProfileProfile
Reliance Capital Ltd. is a part of the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani
Group, India’s third largest business house.

Reliance Capital, incorporated in 1986, is one of India’s leading and fastest
growing private sector financial services companies, and ranks among the
top 3 private sector financial services and banking companies, in terms of
networth.

Reliance Capital has interests in asset management, mutual funds, pension
funds, life and general insurance, private equity and proprietary investments,
stock broking and depository services, investment banking, wealth
management, home and consumer finance, financial products distribution,
venture capital, exchanges, asset reconstruction and other activities in
financial services.

MMMMMission: Exiss ion: Exiss ion: Exiss ion: Exiss ion: Exccccce le le le le llllllencencencencence in fe in fe in fe in fe in financialinancialinancialinancialinancial s s s s se re re re re rv icv icv icv icv iceseseseses

To attain global best practices and become a world-class financial
services enterprise – guided by its purpose to move towards greater
degree of sophistication and maturity.

To work with vigour, dedication and innovation to achieve excellence
in service, quality, reliability, safety and customer care as the ultimate
goal.

To earn the trust and confidence of all stakeholders, exceeding their
expectations and make the Company a respected household name.

To consistently achieve high growth with the highest levels of
productivity.

To be a technology driven, efficient and financially sound organisation.

To contribute towards community development and nation building.

To be a responsible corporate citizen nurturing human values and
concern for society, the environment and above all the people.

To promote a work culture that fosters individual growth, team spirit
and creativity to overcome challenges and attain goals.

To encourage ideas, talent and value systems.

To uphold the guiding principles of trust, integrity and transparency in
all aspects of interactions and dealings.

This Report is printed on environmental friendly paper.
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Letter to ShareownersLetter to ShareownersLetter to ShareownersLetter to ShareownersLetter to Shareowners

MMMMMy Dey Dey Dey Dey Deararararar f f f f felelelelellllllooooow Sharw Sharw Sharw Sharw Shareoeoeoeoeownerwnerwnerwnerwners,s,s,s,s,

It gives me great pleasure to share with you the highlights of
our Company's performance during the year 2009-10.

It was our founder, late Shri Dhirubhai Ambani's lifelong dream
to bring the fruits of financial empowerment to millions of
ordinary Indians, and, in the process, enable Reliance Capital
to emerge as one of India's leading financial services players.

Today, we are well on our way to translating that dream into
reality. Reliance Capital is now India's fastest-growing financial
services company, serving over 20 million customers.

Our Company is amongst the leading private sector banking
and finance companies on all major parameters. We have
interests in asset management, mutual funds, pension funds,
life and general insurance, private equity, venture capital, stock
broking and depository services, investment banking, wealth
management, home and consumer finance, financial products
distribution, exchanges, asset reconstruction and other activities
in financial services.

Our customer base, amongst the largest in India in financial
services, is spread across five thousand towns and cities, served
by over six thousand distribution outlets and half a million
business partners.

Reliance Mutual Fund is the country's largest mutual fund for
the third year in a row. We continue to be amongst the fastest
growing private sector players in the insurance industry. We
have emerged as the third largest private sector life insurer and
are amongst the leading private sector general insurers in the
country.

PPPPPerererererffffformancormancormancormancormance Re Re Re Re Reeeeevievievievieviewwwww

The key financial highlights on a consolidated basis are:

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal inc inc inc inc income ome ome ome ome of Rs.6,141 crRs.6,141 crRs.6,141 crRs.6,141 crRs.6,141 crorororororeeeee (US $ 1.4 billion), against
Rs.6,019 crore (US $ 1.2 billion) in the corresponding
previous period, an increase of two per centan increase of two per centan increase of two per centan increase of two per centan increase of two per cent

Net profit Net profit Net profit Net profit Net profit of Rs.435 crore Rs.435 crore Rs.435 crore Rs.435 crore Rs.435 crore (US $ 96.4 million), against
Rs.1,016 crore (US $ 199.4 million) in the corresponding
previous period

Earnings per share (EPS) Earnings per share (EPS) Earnings per share (EPS) Earnings per share (EPS) Earnings per share (EPS) of Rs.17.64Rs.17.64Rs.17.64Rs.17.64Rs.17.64 (US $ 0.39), against
Rs.41.35 (US $ 0.81) in the corresponding previous period

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal     AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss of the Company stood at Rs.26,033 crRs.26,033 crRs.26,033 crRs.26,033 crRs.26,033 crorororororeeeee
(US $ 5.8 billion), against Rs.24,081 crore (US $ 4.7
billion) in the corresponding previous period, an increasean increasean increasean increasean increase
of eight per centof eight per centof eight per centof eight per centof eight per cent

“We are not just about scale and size
we are also about the pursuit of excellence,
the integrity of our values and the quality of our services.”

- Anil Dhirubhai Ambani- Anil Dhirubhai Ambani- Anil Dhirubhai Ambani- Anil Dhirubhai Ambani- Anil Dhirubhai Ambani

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal net w net w net w net w net worororororth th th th th was Rs.7,712 crRs.7,712 crRs.7,712 crRs.7,712 crRs.7,712 crorororororeeeee (US $ 1.7 billion) as
against Rs.7,424 crore (US $ 1.5 bil l ion) in the
corresponding previous period, an incran incran incran incran increeeeeasasasasase ofe ofe ofe ofe of f f f f fourourourourour per per per per per
centcentcentcentcent

You will be happy to learn that during the year, our Company
achieved significant improvement in its financial and operational
performance across its businesses. The businesses of asset
management and consumer finance have increased their
contribution towards revenues and profitability. In the financial
year ended 2010, the decrease in absolute profits was on
account of lower capital gains realized, as the thrust is on
increasing contribution in profitability from the operating
businesses. Over time, there will also be substantial gains for
Reliance Capital from planned unlocking of value by way of
partial stake sales in some of our businesses.
The year 2009-10 saw the emergence of a new set of
regulatory changes in some financial services sectors that affected
industry growth. We used these changing times to swiftly move
towards leaner cost structures, stringent risk management
practices and improved operating efficiencies. Our earlier strategy
of being amongst the top players in each of our operating
businesses was judiciously calibrated to align with a renewed
focus on profitability.

 I am very happy to inform you that our efforts in this direction
have paid off. Our asset management and consumer finance
businesses have increased their profitability while our life
insurance business has brought down its capital requirement by
a substantial 81 per cent, and is well on course to break even
in the current financial year.

Highest credit ratingsHighest credit ratingsHighest credit ratingsHighest credit ratingsHighest credit ratings
Our Company's short term borrowing program is assigned a
rating of "A1+" by ICRA, the highest credit rating given by
ICRA. Another credit rating agency, Fitch, assigned the borrowing
program a rating of "F1+", which stands for the highest credit
quality and indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment
of "financial commitment" - a resounding re-affirmation of
our unwavering and long-standing commitment to financial
prudence and conservatism.

A third agency, CARE. assigned the long term debt program a
rating of "CARE AAA". Instruments with this rating are considered
to be of the best credit quality, offering highest safety for
timely servicing of debt obligations. Such instruments carry
minimal credit risk.

These robust financial numbers have enabled us to maintain,
subject to confirmation at the AGM, the dividend at Rs.6.50 a
share.
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Letter to ShareownersLetter to ShareownersLetter to ShareownersLetter to ShareownersLetter to Shareowners

Achievements during the year across some of our keyAchievements during the year across some of our keyAchievements during the year across some of our keyAchievements during the year across some of our keyAchievements during the year across some of our key
operating businesses:operating businesses:operating businesses:operating businesses:operating businesses:

The year under review has seen our operating businesses grow
from strength to strength despite the continual regulatory
changes in some financial services' sectors.

Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM) managed nearly
Rs.1,50,000 crore (US $ 33.2 billion) across its mutual fund,
pension funds, managed accounts and hedge funds, a year on
year increase of 32 per cent. RCAM's profit after tax increased
by 46 per cent at Rs.184 crore (US $ 40.8 million) as against
Rs.126 crore (US $ 24.7 million) in the corresponding previous
period.

RMF continued to be India's No.1 Mutual Fund with a market
share of 14.8 per cent. The average assets under management
(AAUM) for Reliance Mutual Fund (RMF) increased from
Rs.80,963 crore (US$ 15.9 billion) to Rs.1,10,412 crore
(US $ 24.5 billion), an increase of 36 per cent. The number of
investor folios have remained steady at 75 lakh despite recent
changes in the regulatory environment.

RCAM was appointed as one of the fund managers by the
Employees Provident Fund Organization (EPFO). A highly
prestigious account, EPFO has entrusted Rs.34,837 crore (US
$ 7.7 billion) to RCAM, for investment management. Reliance
Capital Pension Fund Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of RCAM
was also appointed as one of the six asset managers by the
Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (PFRDA)
to manage money under the New Pension Scheme (NPS).

Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Reliance Capital Asset Management Ltd.
It currently manages six India dedicated funds. The AUMs as
on March 31, 2010 end stood at US $ 202 million as against
US $ 127 million as on March 31, 2009, a growth of 59 per
cent.

RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Life Life Life Life Life Insure Insure Insure Insure Insurancancancancance (RLe (RLe (RLe (RLe (RLI)I)I)I)I) emerged as the third largest
private sector life insurer (in terms of weighted received
premium) at Rs.3,660 crore (US $ 810.8 million), a year on
year increase of 17 per cent, as against the industry average in
the private sector of 13 per cent. RLI has maintained its position
amongst the top four (in terms of monthly new business
premium) private sector life insurance companies in India with
a market share of 10.2 per cent. RLI garnered new business
premium of Rs.3,921 crore (US $ 868.6 million) for the year
as compared to Rs.3,514 crore (US $ 689.7 million) in the
previous year, an increase of 12 per cent - in line with private
sector industry growth. The total funds under management
increased by 117 per cent to Rs.13,661 crore (US $ 3.0 billion).

Reliance General InsuranceReliance General InsuranceReliance General InsuranceReliance General InsuranceReliance General Insurance has maintained its position amongst
the top three (in terms of monthly gross written premium)
private sector general insurance companies in India with a
market share of 14 per cent. Reliance General Insurance's gross
written premium for the year ended March 31, 2010 was up
by 3 per cent at Rs.1,980 crore (US $ 438.6 million) as
against Rs.1,915 crore (US $ 375.9 million) in the corresponding
previous period.

RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Ce Ce Ce Ce Consumeronsumeronsumeronsumeronsumer F F F F Financinancinancinancinance e e e e offers a wide range of products
which include Home loans, Loans against property, SME loans,

Commercial Vehicle loans, loans for Construction equipment,
etc Reliance Consumer Finance has emerged as one of the
leading lenders in the Indian non banking space with 47 per
cent increase in disbursements at Rs.5,776 crore (US $ 1.3
billion). Backed by our long-standing conservative approach,
Reliance Consumer Finance has developed stringent in-house
credit risk management systems to ensure the highest quality
of credit. The outstanding loan book grew by 7 per cent to
Rs.9,170 crore (US $ 2.0 billion) as on March 31, 2010,
compared to Rs.8,576 crore (US $ 1.7 billion) as on March
31, 2009. This loan book is spread across 1,17,955 customers
from top 16 Indian metros. The profit before tax grew 48 per
cent at Rs.135 crore (US $ 29.9 million) as against Rs.92
crore (US $ 18.1 million) for the corresponding previous period.

FFFFFutututututururururure Ple Ple Ple Ple Plansansansansans

We have drawn up exciting growth plans for the next three to
five years:

Increase our customer base - from twenty million to fifty
million.

Increase the distribution reach - from five thousand to
twenty thousand cities and towns.

Increase number of business partners - from half a million
to one million.

Evaluate opportunities to enter the banking sector, in
accordance with the evolving regulatory framework.

Together, these initiatives will further accelerate our growth
and lead to substantial value creation for each of us.

CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernanceeeee

We have adopted the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group
Corporate Governance Policies and Code of Conduct, which has
prescribed a set of systems, processes and principles conforming
to the best international standards and aimed at promoting
the interests of all our stakeholders.

SocialSocialSocialSocialSocial C C C C Commitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentsssss

The Company continued to contribute actively to community
welfare activities and took up several initiatives and measures
related to education and healthcare.

OurOurOurOurOur C C C C Commitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitment

Our founder, the legendary Shri Dhirubhai Ambani, gave us a
simple mantra: to aspire to the highest global standards of
quality, efficiency, operational performance and customer care.

We remain committed to upholding that vision.

Dhirubhai exhorted us to think big. With your continued support,
we will think bigger. Indeed not just bigger but better, creating
ever greater value for all our stakeholders.

Anil Dhirubhai AmbaniAnil Dhirubhai AmbaniAnil Dhirubhai AmbaniAnil Dhirubhai AmbaniAnil Dhirubhai Ambani
Chairman
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Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)

(Rs. in crore)

YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende ended Md Md Md Md Marararararch 31ch 31ch 31ch 31ch 31 20102010201020102010 20092009200920092009 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 088888 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 077777 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 066666 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 055555 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 044444 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 033333 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 022222 2 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 02 0 011111

Turnover 2 389.88 3 014.45 2 079.79 883.80 52.02 295.69 356.79 458.78 548.59 492.20

Earnings Before
Depreciation, Interest &
Tax (EBDIT) 1 706.09 2 335.17 1 596.68 782.88 619.00 290.06 348.27 447.09 529.83 475.06

Depreciation 18.16 21.22 17.09 7.07 23.19 27.77 42.09 91.65 55.18 71.97

Profit after Tax 339.42 968.02 1 025.45 646.18 537.61 105.81 105.79 102.63 101.22 93.45

Equity Dividend % 65.00 65.00 55.00 35.00 32.00 30.00 29.00 29.00 29.00 29.00

Dividend Payout 186.80 186.80 158.04 100.58 81.32 38.19 36.92 36.92 36.92 36.96

Equity Share Capital 246.16 246.16 246.16 246.16 223.40 127.84 127.97 127.83 127.83 127.83

Reserves and Surplus 6 712.90 6 560.28 5 779.07 4 915.07 3 849.50 1 310.08 1 271.84 1 208.50 1 147.99 1 901.91

Net Worth 6 885.69 6 697.43 5 927.50 5 161.23 4 122.46 1 437.92 1 399.81 1 336.33 1 275.82 2 039.74

Total Assets 20 028.30 21 135.17 15 374,31 6 573.19 4 364.35 2 809.94 2 751.47 3 106.78 3 710.70 4 356.51

Market Capitalisation 18 536.68 8 684.35 30 168.62 16 415.64 11 568.99 2 272.42 1 675.35 618.69 670.24 796.22

Number of Employees 54 48 216 196 140 21 27 30 29 34

KEYKEYKEYKEYKEY INDIC INDIC INDIC INDIC INDICAAAAATTTTTORSORSORSORSORS

YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende ended Md Md Md Md Marararararch 31ch 31ch 31ch 31ch 31 20102010201020102010 20092009200920092009 20020020020020088888 20020020020020077777 20020020020020066666 20020020020020055555 20020020020020044444 20020020020020033333 20020020020020022222 20020020020020011111

EBDIT/Gross Turnover % 71.39 77.47 73.91 88.58 94.94 98.10 97.61 97.45 96.58 96.52

Net Profit Margin % 14.20 32.11 49.31 73.11 82.45 35.78 29.65 22.37 18.45 18.99

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 13.82 39.41 41.75 28.39 24.64 8.31 8.31 8.06 7.91 7.33

Book Value
Per Share (Rs.) 280.32 272.66 245.29 210.12 184.97 112.95 109.96 104.97 100.22 160.24

Debt : Equity Ratio 1.57:1 2:1 1.5:1 0.28:1 0.06:1 0.05:1 0.42:1 0.33:1 1.91:1 1.81.:1
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Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)Highlights – at a glance (Standalone)

Net Net Net Net Net WWWWWorororororth (th (th (th (th (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.in crin crin crin crin crororororore)e)e)e)e) BookBookBookBookBook     VVVVValalalalalue Pue Pue Pue Pue Pererererer Shar Shar Shar Shar Share (e (e (e (e (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.)))))

Dividend PDividend PDividend PDividend PDividend Paaaaayyyyyout (out (out (out (out (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.in crin crin crin crin crororororore)e)e)e)e) TTTTToooootttttalalalalal     AAAAAssetssetssetssetssets (s (s (s (s (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.in crin crin crin crin crororororore)e)e)e)e)
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NoticeNoticeNoticeNoticeNotice

Notice is hereby given that the twenty fourth Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Reliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital Limited will be
held on Tuesday, September 28, 2010 at 12.00 noon or soon
after conclusion of the annual general meeting of Reliance
Power Limited convened on the same day, whichever is later,
at Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg,
New Marine Lines, Mumbai 400 020, to transact the following
business:

Ordinary BusinessOrdinary BusinessOrdinary BusinessOrdinary BusinessOrdinary Business

1. To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2010, Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares.

3. To appoint a director in place of Shri Rajendra P. Chitale
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:Ordinary Resolution:Ordinary Resolution:Ordinary Resolution:Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration. No. 101720W) and
M/s. B S R & Co., Char tered Accountants (Firm
Registration. No. 101248W), be and are hereby appointed
as the Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company, on such remuneration as shall be fixed by the
Board of Directors.”

Special BusinessSpecial BusinessSpecial BusinessSpecial BusinessSpecial Business

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution as an OrOrOrOrOrdinardinardinardinardinaryyyyy
ResolutionResolutionResolutionResolutionResolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal, who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
pursuant to Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956
and Article 135 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and who holds office upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section
257 of the Companies Act, 1956, proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire
by rotation.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution as an OrOrOrOrOrdinardinardinardinardinaryyyyy
ResolutionResolutionResolutionResolutionResolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri V. N. Kaul, who was appointed as
an Additional Director of the Company pursuant to Section
260 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Article 135 of the
Articles of Association of the Company and who holds
office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and
in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956,

proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution as a SpecialSpecialSpecialSpecialSpecial
Resolution:Resolution:Resolution:Resolution:Resolution:

a) "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 81(1A) and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
(Act) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force) and enabling provisions
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, the Listing Agreements entered into with the
Stock Exchanges and subject to the provisions of Chapter
VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 ("SEBI ICDR"), the provisions of the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and the Foreign Exchange
Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person
Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2000, applicable rules,
regulations, guidelines or laws and/or any approval,
consent, permission or sanction of the Central Government,
Reserve Bank of India and any other appropriate
authorities, institutions or bodies (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "appropriate authorities"), and subject
to such conditions as may be prescribed by any one of
them while granting any such approval, consent, permission
and/or sanction (hereinafter referred to as the "requisite
approvals"), which may be agreed to by the Board of
Directors of the Company (hereinafter called the "Board"
which term shall be deemed to include any committee
which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter
constitute to exercise its powers including the power
conferred by this resolution), the Board be and is hereby
authorised to issue, offer and allot equity shares/fully
convertible debentures/partly convertible debentures/non
convertible debentures with warrants/any other securities
(other than warrants), which are convertible into or
exchangeable with equity shares on such date as may
be determined by the Board but not later than 60 months
from the date of allotment (collectively referred to as
"QIP Securities" or “Securities”), to the Qualified Institutional
Buyers (QIBs) as per the SEBI ICDR, whether or not such
QIBs are Members of the Company, on the basis of
placement document(s), at such time or times in one or
more tranche or tranches, at par or at such price or prices,
and on such terms and conditions and in such manner as
the Board may, in its absolute discretion determine, in
consultation with the Lead Managers, Advisors or other
intermediaries, provided however that the aggregate
amount raised by issue of QIP Securities as above shall
not result in increase of the issued and subscribed equity
share capital of the Company by more than 15% of the
then issued and subscribed equity shares of the Company.

b) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the relevant date for the
determination of applicable price for the issue of the QIP
Securities shall be the date on which the Board of the
Company decide to open the proposed issue, or the date
on which the holder of the securities which are convertible
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into or exchangeable with equity shares at a later date
becomes entitled to apply for the said shares, as the case
may be ("Relevant Date").

c) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorised to issue and allot such number of equity shares
as may be required to be issued and allotted upon
conversion of any Securities referred to in paragraph (a)
above or as may be necessary in accordance with the
terms of the offering, all such shares being pari passu with
the then existing shares of the Company in all respects,
as may be provided under the terms of the issue and in
the offering document.

d) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such of these Securities to be
issued as are not subscribed may be disposed of by the
Board to such persons and in such manner and on such
terms as the Board in its absolute discretion thinks fit in
accordance with the provisions of law.

e) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the issue to the holders of
the Securities with equity shares underlying such Securities
shall be inter alia, subject to suitable adjustment in the
number of shares, the price and the time period etc., in
the event of any change in the equity capital structure of
the Company consequent upon any merger,
amalgamation, takeover or any other re-organisation or
restructuring in the Company.

f) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect
to any issue or allotment of Securities or instruments
representing the same, as described in paragraph (a) above,
the Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the
Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
as it may at its absolute discretion, deem necessary or
desirable for such purpose, including without limitation
the entering into of underwriting, marketing and institution/
trustees/agents and similar agreements/and to
remunerate the Managers, underwriters and all other
agencies/intermediaries by way of commission, brokerage,
fees and the like as may be involved or connected in such
offerings of Securities, with power on behalf of the
Company to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts
that may arise in regard to any such issue or allotment as
it may in its absolute discretion deem fit.

g) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose aforesaid, the
Board be and is hereby authorised to settle all questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the issue,
offer or allotment of Securities and utilisation of the issue
proceeds including but without limitation to the creation
of such mor tgage/hypothecation/charge on the
Company's assets under Section 293(1)(a) of the said
act in respect of the aforesaid Securities either on pari
passu basis or otherwise or in the borrowing of loans as it
may in its absolute discretion deem fit without being
required to seek any further consent or approval of the
Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the
Members shall be deemed to have given their approval
thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

h) RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein

NoticeNoticeNoticeNoticeNotice

conferred to any Committee of Directors or any other
Officer(s)/ Authorised Representative(s) of the Company
to give effect to the aforesaid resolution."

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution as a SpecialSpecialSpecialSpecialSpecial
ResolutionResolutionResolutionResolutionResolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 198, 309, 310
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 1956 (Act) (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and
subject to all permissions, sanctions and approvals as may
be necessary, approval of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for the payment of commission upto 3% of the
net profits of the company, every year, computed in the
manner specified in the Act to the Director(s) of the
Company who is/are neither in the whole time employment
nor managing director(s), in accordance with the provisions
of Section 309(4) of the Act, for a period of 5 (five) years
from the financial year commencing April 1, 2011, in such
manner and upto such extent as the Board/Nomination/
Remuneration Committee of the Board may, from time to
time, determine.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect
to this resolution, the Board and/or Nomination/
Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board be and
are hereby authorised to take all actions and do all such
deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion
deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard."

9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution as an OrOrOrOrOrdinardinardinardinardinaryyyyy
ResolutionResolutionResolutionResolutionResolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 198, 269, 387 read with Schedule XIII and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
1956 (Act) (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject
to all such sanctions, as may be necessary, the consent of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
reappointment of Shri V. R. Mohan as the Manager of the
Company, designated as President, Company Secretary &
Manager for a period of 5 (five) years commencing from
March 7, 2011 on the terms and conditions including
remuneration set out in the Agreement to be entered into
between the Company and Shri V. R. Mohan, a draft
whereof was placed before this meeting which Agreement
is hereby specifically sanctioned with liberty to the Board
of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "Board" which term
shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board
constituted to exercise its powers including powers conferred
by this resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions
including remuneration of the said re-appointment and/or
Agreement, as may be agreed to between the Board and
Shri V. R. Mohan, so as not to exceed the limits specified in
Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956 or any
amendments thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or
inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency
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of tenure of Shri V. R. Mohan, as Manager, the remuneration
and perquisites set out as aforesaid be paid or granted to
him as minimum remuneration and perquisites provided
that the total remuneration by way of salary, perquisites
and other allowances shall not exceed the applicable ceiling
limit in terms of Schedule XIII to the said Act as may be
amended from time to time or any equivalent statutory
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and
is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

By Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of Directors

VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan
CCCCCompanompanompanompanompany Secry Secry Secry Secry Secretetetetetararararary & My & My & My & My & Managanaganaganaganagererererer

Registered Office:
H Block, 1st Floor,
Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400 710.
August 9, 2010

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
1.1.1.1.1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AnnualA member entitled to attend and vote at the AnnualA member entitled to attend and vote at the AnnualA member entitled to attend and vote at the AnnualA member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual

General Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to appoint aGeneral Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to appoint aGeneral Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to appoint aGeneral Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to appoint aGeneral Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself/proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself/proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself/proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself/proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself/
herself and the proxy need not be a member of theherself and the proxy need not be a member of theherself and the proxy need not be a member of theherself and the proxy need not be a member of theherself and the proxy need not be a member of the
CCCCCompanompanompanompanompanyyyyy. . . . . The instrument appointing prThe instrument appointing prThe instrument appointing prThe instrument appointing prThe instrument appointing proooooxxxxxy should,y should,y should,y should,y should,
hohohohohowwwwweeeeevvvvvererererer, be deposit, be deposit, be deposit, be deposit, be depositeeeeed at the Rd at the Rd at the Rd at the Rd at the Registegistegistegistegistererererereeeeed Ofd Ofd Ofd Ofd Offfffficicicicice ofe ofe ofe ofe of the the the the the
CCCCCompanompanompanompanompany noy noy noy noy not lt lt lt lt less than fess than fess than fess than fess than forororororttttty eight houry eight houry eight houry eight houry eight hours befs befs befs befs befororororore thee thee thee thee the
cccccommencommencommencommencommencement ofement ofement ofement ofement of the M the M the M the M the Meetingeetingeetingeetingeeting.....

2. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified
copy of the Board Resolution authoris ing their
representatives to attend and vote at the Meeting.

3. Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for
attending the Meeting and bring their Attendance Slip
along with their copy of the annual report to the Meeting.

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote.

5. Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested
to write their Client ID and DP ID numbers and those
who hold shares in physical form are requested to write
their Folio number in the Attendance Slip for attending
the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at
the Meeting.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying
Notice are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days,
except Saturday between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up
to the date of the Meeting. The certificate from the
Auditors of the Company in terms of the SEBI (Employees
Stock Option Scheme and Employees Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 for the Company’s ESOS Plans
will be available for inspection at the Meeting.

7. (a) The Company has notified closure of Register of
Members and Transfer Books thereof from
Wednesday, September 15, 2010 to Tuesday,

September 28, 2010 for determining the names of
members eligible for dividend, if approved, on equity
shares for the year ended March 31, 2010. In respect
of shares held in electronic form, the dividend will
be paid on the basis of particulars of beneficial
ownership furnished by the Depositories for this
purpose.

(b) The dividend on equity shares, as recommended by
the Board of Directors, if declared at the Meeting,
will be paid after the Meeting.

(c) Members may please note that the dividend warrants
shall be payable at par at the designated branches
of the Bank for an initial period of three months
only. Thereafter, the dividend warrants on revalidation
shall be payable only at Ltd. centres / branches of
the said Bank. The members are therefore, advised
to encash dividend warrants within the initial validity
period.

8. Non-resident Indian members are requested to inform
M/s. Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd. immediately on:
a. the change in the residential status on return to India

for permanent settlement.
b. the particulars of the bank accounts maintained in

India with complete name, branch, account type,
account number and address of the bank, if not
furnished earlier.

9. Re-appointment / Appointment of Directors:
a. In terms of Article 154 of the Articles of Association

of the Company, Shri Rajendra P. Chitale, Director
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

b. Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul, Additional
Directors hold office upto the date of this Meeting
and are proposed to be appointed as Directors under
Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956.

c. Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be
appointed, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas, names of companies in which they
hold directorship, membership and chairmanship of
board committees, shareholding and relationships
between directors inter-se, as stipulated under
Clause 49 of the listing agreement with the Stock
Exchanges are furnished in the Report on Corporate
Governance forming part of the Report.

10. Members are advised to refer to the section titled “Investor
Information” provided in this Annual Report.

11. Pursuant to Circular No.SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/2/2007/26/
4 dated April 26, 2007, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, the statement containing the
salient features of Balance sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Auditors’ Report (Abridged Financial Statements), is
sent to the members, along with the Abridged
Consolidated Financial Statements. Any member
interested in obtaining a copy of the full Annual Report
may write to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the
Company.

12. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 173(2)
of the Companies Act, 1956, relating to special businesses
to be transacted at the Meeting are annexed hereto.

NoticeNoticeNoticeNoticeNotice
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ExplExplExplExplExplanatanatanatanatanatororororory Sty Sty Sty Sty Statatatatatement purement purement purement purement pursuant tsuant tsuant tsuant tsuant to Seco Seco Seco Seco Section 173(2) oftion 173(2) oftion 173(2) oftion 173(2) oftion 173(2) of the C the C the C the C the Companies ompanies ompanies ompanies ompanies AAAAAccccct, 1956 tt, 1956 tt, 1956 tt, 1956 tt, 1956 to the aco the aco the aco the aco the accccccompanompanompanompanompanying Noying Noying Noying Noying Noticticticticticeeeee
dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.

high and low of the closing prices of the related shares quoted
on the stock exchanges during the two weeks preceding the
Relevant Date. The Relevant Date for the determination of
applicable price for the issue of the QIP Securities shall be the
date of the meeting in which the Board of the Company
decide to open the proposed issue or in case of securities which
are convertible into or exchangeable with equity shares at a
later date, the date on which the holder of such securities
becomes entitled to apply for the said shares, as the case
may be. For reasons aforesaid, an enabling resolution is therefore
proposed to be passed to give adequate flexibility and discretion
to the Board to finalise the terms of the issue. The equity
shares issued pursuant to the offering would be listed on the
Indian stock exchanges.
The proposed issue of Securities as above may be made in one
or more tranches such that the Securities to be issued shall not
result in increasing the then issued and subscribed equity shares
of the Company by more than 15 % of the then issued and
subscribed equity shares of the Company.
The Securities issued under QIP issue pursuant to offer may, if
necessary, be secured by way of mortgage/hypothecation on
the Company's assets as may be finalised by the Board of
Directors in consultation with the Security Holders/Trustees in
favour of Security Holders/Trustees for the holders of the said
securities. As the documents to be executed between the
Security Holders/Trustees for the holders of the said securities
and the Company may contain the power to take over the
assets or undertaking or management of the Company in certain
events, enabling approval is also sought under Section 293
(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956.
Section 81(1A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and listing
agreement entered with the stock exchanges, provide, inter
alia, that where it is proposed to increase the subscribed share
capital of the Company by allotment of further shares, such
further shares shall be offered to the persons who on the date
of the offer are holders of the equity shares of the Company,
in proportion to the capital paid-up on those shares as of that
date unless the Members decide otherwise. The Special
Resolution seeks the consent and authorisation of the Members
to the Board of Directors to make the proposed issue of
securities, in consultation with the Lead Managers, Legal
Advisors and other intermediaries and in the event it is decided
to issue securities convertible into equity shares, to issue to the
holders of such convertible Securities in such manner and such
number of equity shares on conversion as may be required to
be issued in accordance with the terms of the issue, keeping in
view the then prevailing market conditions and in accordance
with the applicable provisions of rules, regulations or guidelines.
Your Directors therefore recommend the said resolution for your
approval.
None of the Directors and Manager of the Company is, in any
way, concerned or interested in the said resolution.
Item No.8Item No.8Item No.8Item No.8Item No.8 PPPPPaaaaayment ofyment ofyment ofyment ofyment of C C C C Commission tommission tommission tommission tommission to Non Exo Non Exo Non Exo Non Exo Non Executivecutivecutivecutivecutiveeeee

DirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectors
The shareholders, through Postal Ballot, result of which was
declared on July 22, 2006 had approved payment of
commission upto 3% p.a. to non executive directors, who are
not in the whole time employment of the Company, under
the provisions of Section 309(4) of the Companies Act, 1956
(Act), computed in the manner specified in the Act, for a
period of 5 years from the financial year commencing April 1,
2006. The (five) Company had obtained approval from the
Central Government vide letter No.12/255/2007-CL.VII dated

Item No.5 & 6Item No.5 & 6Item No.5 & 6Item No.5 & 6Item No.5 & 6 Appointment of DirectorsAppointment of DirectorsAppointment of DirectorsAppointment of DirectorsAppointment of Directors
Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul were appointed as
Additional Directors with effect from October 30, 2009 and
April 30, 2010 respectively in accordance with the provisions
of Section 260 of the Companies Act 1956 and Article 135
of the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to
Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956, Dr. Bidhubhusan
Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul hold office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received
notices in writing from members of the Company, along with
deposits of Rs.500/- each, as per the provisions of
Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 proposing their
candidature for the office of Director.
Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul are not disqualified
from being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 274(1)
(g) of the Act. The Company has received the requisite Form
‘DD-A’ from Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul, in
terms of the Companies (Disqualifications of Directors under
Section 274 (1) (g) of the Companies Act, 1956) Rules, 2003,
confirming their eligibility for such appointment.
Profile of Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul is given
in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the
Report. Keeping in view the experience and qualification in
their respective fields, your Directors considered it to be in the
interest of the Company, if Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and
Shri V. N. Kaul are appointed as Directors of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956.
Your Directors therefore recommend the said resolutions for
your approval.
The aforesaid Directors may be deemed to be concerned or
interested in the resolution relating to their respective
appointments.
None of the other Directors or Manager of the Company is in
any way concerned or interested in the said resolutions.
Item No.7Item No.7Item No.7Item No.7Item No.7 Issue of equity shares to the Qual if iedIssue of equity shares to the Qual if iedIssue of equity shares to the Qual if iedIssue of equity shares to the Qual if iedIssue of equity shares to the Qual if ied

Institutional Buyers.Institutional Buyers.Institutional Buyers.Institutional Buyers.Institutional Buyers.
The Company, in order to enhance its global competitiveness,
and the ability to compete with the peer group in domestic
and international markets, needs to strengthen its financial
position and net worth by augmenting long term resources.
For this purpose and for general corporate purposes as may be
decided by the Board from time to time, it is proposed to seek
the enabling authorisation of the members of the Company
to the Board of Directors (Board), without the need of any
further approval from the Members, to undertake the Qualified
Institutional Placement ("QIP") with the Qualified Institutional
Buyers ("QIB"), in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
VIII of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 ("SEBI ICDR"), as set out in the Resolution
at item No.7.
Pursuant to the above, the Board may, in one or more tranches,
issue and allot equity shares/fully convertible debentures/partly
convertible debentures/non conver tible debentures with
warrants/any other securities (other than warrants), which are
convertible into or exchangeable with equity shares on such
date as may be determined by the Board but not later than
60 months from the date of allotment (collectively referred
to as "QIP Securities" or “Securities”).
The said QIP by the Board shall be subject to the provisions of
the SEBI ICDR (as amended from time to time) including the
pricing, which will not be less than the average of the weekly
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April 19, 2007 for payment of Commission to non executive
directors upto a limit of 3% of the profits of the Company for
a period of 5 years from the financial year commencing April
1, 2006 i.e. upto financial year ending March 31, 2011.
The Chairman and the non executive Directors are required to
devote more time and attention, more so with the requirements
of the revised Corporate Governance Policies. The Board
therefore recognizes the need to suitably remunerate the
Director(s) of the Company, who are neither in the whole
time employment nor managing director(s) with such
commission based on the net profits of the Company.
As per provisions of Section 309 of the Act, a company can
pay Commission to the Directors who are neither in the whole
time employment of the Company nor Managing Director
upto a ceiling of 1%, if the Company has a managing or
whole time director or manager, or 3%, if the Company has
no managing or whole time director or manager, of the net
profits of the Company, every year, computed in the manner
specified in the Act. The Company has appointed a Manager.
The Company can pay remuneration exceeding 1% or 3% of
its net profits, or such other limit as may be approved by the
Central Government.
The quantum of the said commission will be apportioned
amongst the non executive Directors commensurate with their
respective performance, which will be adjudged by the
Nomination/Remuneration Committee of the Board, based
on predefined qualitative and quantitative parameters.
Your Directors therefore recommend the said resolution for your
approval.
All the Directors of the Company, may be deemed to be
concerned or interested in this resolution to the extent of
commission that may be payable to them from time to time.
Manager of the Company is not, in any way concerned or
interested in the said resolution.
Item No.9Item No.9Item No.9Item No.9Item No.9 Re-appointment of ManagerRe-appointment of ManagerRe-appointment of ManagerRe-appointment of ManagerRe-appointment of Manager
Shri V. R. Mohan was appointed as the Manager of the Company
for a period of 5 (five) years commencing from March 7, 2006,
i.e. upto March 6, 2011 as approved by the members in Annual
General Meeting (AGM) held on June 9, 2006.
The Nomination/Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meetings held on
April 30, 2010, have, subject to the approval of the Members
in the general meeting and the Central Government, if
required, re-appoint Shri V. R. Mohan as the Manager of the
Company, designated as President, Company Secretary
& Manager for a period of 5 (five) years commencing from
March 7, 2011 on the remuneration determined by the
Nomination / Remuneration Committee / Board of Directors.
Shri V. R. Mohan aged 57 years is a law graduate and a
fellow member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. He has over two and half decades of experience in
corporate secretarial, legal, finance and managerial functions.
He is also the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of
the Company.
The remuneration payable to and the terms of appointment
of Shri V. R. Mohan as Manager of the Company during the
tenure of his appointment will comprise salary, allowances
and other perquisites, the aggregate monetary value of such
salary, allowances and perquisites being limited to Rs.64.40
lakh (Rupees sixty four lakh fourty thousand) per annum, plus
discretionary Bonus not exceeding in any year the annual
remuneration for that year as may be decided by the
Nomination/Remuneration Committee/Board from time to
time.

The perquisites and allowances payable to Shri V. R. Mohan
will include Company owned/Leased Accommodation
(furnished or otherwise) or House Rent allowance in lieu thereof,
house maintenance allowance together with reimbursement
of expenses and/or allowances for utilisation of gas, electricity,
water, furnishing and repairs, medical reimbursements, leave
travel concession for self and his family including dependants;
medical insurance and such other perquisites and/or allowances
within the amount specified above. The said perquisites and
allowances shall be eavaluated, wherever applicable, as per
the Income Tax Act, 1961 or any Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof,
for the time being in force). However Company's contribution
to Provident Fund, Superannuation or Annuity Fund to the
extent these singly or together are not taxable under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and Gratuity payable and encashment
of leave at the end of the tenure, as per the rules of the
Company, shall not be included in the computation of limits
for the remuneration. In addit ion to the above,
Shri V. R. Mohan shall also be eligible to an annual increment
not exceeding 25% on the last drawn salary, perquisites and
allowances during his tenure as Manager. Shri V. R. Mohan
fulfils the conditions for eligibility contained in Part I of Schedule
XIII of the Companies Act, 1956. The terms and conditions of
appointment and payment of remuneration are set out in the
Agreement to be entered into between the Company and
Shri V. R. Mohan. The Board or any Committee thereof, subject
to requisite approval(s), if necessary, is entitled and authorised
to revise at any time, the salary, allowances and perquisites
payable to the Manager of the Company such that the overall
remuneration payable to the Manager of the Company shall
not exceed the limits specified above. Either party may
terminate the aforesaid Agreement by giving one month prior
notice of termination in writing to the other party.
The terms and conditions setout for appointment and payment
of remuneration herein and/or in the agreement may be
altered and varied from time to time by the Board/Nomination/
Remuneration Committee as it may, at its discretion, deem fit
within the overall ceiling fixed herein.
The draft Agreement to be entered into between the Company
and Shri V. R. Mohan is available for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays
between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. upto the date of the
Meeting. The terms and conditions mentioned herein may also
be treated as an abstract under Section 302 of the Companies
Act, 1956.
Your Directors therefore recommend the said resolution for your
approval.
Shri V. R. Mohan, Manager may deemed to be concerned or
interested in the resolution. None of the Directors of the
Company is, in any way, concerned or interested in the said
resolution.

By Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of DirectorsBy Order of the Board of Directors

VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan
CCCCCompanompanompanompanompany Secry Secry Secry Secry Secretetetetetararararary & My & My & My & My & Managanaganaganaganagererererer

Registered Office:
H Block, 1st Floor,
Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400 710.
August 9, 2010

ExplExplExplExplExplanatanatanatanatanatororororory Sty Sty Sty Sty Statatatatatement purement purement purement purement pursuant tsuant tsuant tsuant tsuant to Seco Seco Seco Seco Section 173(2) oftion 173(2) oftion 173(2) oftion 173(2) oftion 173(2) of the C the C the C the C the Companies ompanies ompanies ompanies ompanies AAAAAccccct, 1956 tt, 1956 tt, 1956 tt, 1956 tt, 1956 to the aco the aco the aco the aco the accccccompanompanompanompanompanying Noying Noying Noying Noying Noticticticticticeeeee
dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.dated August 9, 2010.
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Dear Shareowners,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the twenty fourth Annual Report, together with the audited statement of accounts of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2010.
Financial ResultsFinancial ResultsFinancial ResultsFinancial ResultsFinancial Results

The standalone performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2010 is summarised below:

FFFFFinancialinancialinancialinancialinancial     YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende endeddddd Financial     Year ended
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009#

(((((Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.     in crore)in crore)in crore)in crore)in crore) (US$ (US$ (US$ (US$ (US$ iiiiin n n n n millionmillionmillionmillionmillion*****))))) (Rs. in crore) (US$ in million**)

Gross Income 2 389.882 389.882 389.882 389.882 389.88 529.44529.44529.44529.44529.44  3 014.45  591.65

Gross Profit 446.49446.49446.49446.49446.49 98.9198.9198.9198.9198.91  1 098.42  215.59

Less: Depreciation 18.1618.1618.1618.1618.16 4.024.024.024.024.02  21.22  4.16

Profit before Tax 428.33428.33428.33428.33428.33 94.8994.8994.8994.8994.89  1 077.20  211.42

Provision for Taxation 88.9188.9188.9188.9188.91 19.7019.7019.7019.7019.70  109.18  21.43

Net Profit 339.42339.42339.42339.42339.42 75.1975.1975.1975.1975.19  968.02  189.99

Add: Profit brought forward from the previous year 1 920.521 920.521 920.521 920.521 920.52 425.46425.46425.46425.46425.46  1 429.72  280.61

Profit available for Appropriation 2 259.942 259.942 259.942 259.942 259.94 500.65500.65500.65500.65500.65  2 397.74  470.61

Dividend including Dividend Tax 186.80186.80186.80186.80186.80 41.3841.3841.3841.3841.38  186.80  36.66

Transfer to General Reserve 33.9433.9433.9433.9433.94 7.527.527.527.527.52  96.81  19.00

Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund 67.8867.8867.8867.8867.88 15.0415.0415.0415.0415.04  193.61  38.00

Balance carried forward 1 971.321 971.321 971.321 971.321 971.32 436.71436.71436.71436.71436.71  1 920.52  376.94

*1 US$ = Rs.45.14 ** 1 US$ = Rs.50.95
#Figures of previous year have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever required

FFFFFinancialinancialinancialinancialinancial P P P P Perererererffffformancormancormancormancormanceeeee

The Company’s gross income for the financial year ended March
31, 2010 decreased to Rs.2,389.88 crore, from Rs.3,014.45
crore in the previous year, a decline of 26 per cent. The
operating profit (PBDIT) of the Company decreased by 36.87
per cent to Rs.1,706.09 crore during the year, from Rs.2,335.17
crore, in the previous year. Interest expenses for the year
increased by 1.81 per cent to Rs.1,259.60 crore, from
Rs.1,236.75 crore, in the previous year. Depreciation was at
Rs.18.16 crore as against Rs.21.22 crore in the previous year.
The provision for taxation during the year was Rs.88.91 crore.
The net profit for the year decreased by 185 per cent to
Rs.339.42 crore from Rs.968.02 crore, in the previous year.
An amount of Rs.67.88 crore was transferred to the Statutory
Reserve Fund pursuant to section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, and an amount of Rs.33.94 crore was
transferred to the General Reserve during the year under review.
The Company’s Net worth as on March 31, 2010, stood at
Rs.6,885.69 crore.

DividendDividendDividendDividendDividend

Your directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of
Rs.6.50 (65 per cent) per equity share on 24,56,32,800
equity shares of Rs.10 each aggregating to Rs.186.80 crore
(inclusive of dividend tax) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2010, which, if approved at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, will be paid to (i) all those equity shareholders
whose names appear in the Register of Members as on
September 14, 2010 and (ii) to those whose names as
beneficial owners, are furnished by the National Securities
Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. for

the purpose. The dividend payout as proposed is in accordance
with the Company’s policy of paying, sustainable dividend linked
to long term performance, keeping in view the capital needs
for the Company’s growth plans and the desire to achieve
optimal financing of such plans through internal accruals.

Management Discussion and Analysis ReportManagement Discussion and Analysis ReportManagement Discussion and Analysis ReportManagement Discussion and Analysis ReportManagement Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year
under review, as stipulated under Clause 49 of the listing
agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India, is presented in
a separate section which forms, part of the Annual Report.
The Company has entered into various contracts in the areas
of financial services business. While benefits from such contracts
will accrue in the future years, their progress is periodically
reviewed.

Resources and LiquidityResources and LiquidityResources and LiquidityResources and LiquidityResources and Liquidity

The Company has raised Rs.11,958.15 crore during the financial
year 2009-10 by issuance of Commercial Paper,
Non Conver tible Debentures (NCDs) and other money
market instruments. The Company’s NCDs amounting to
Rs.3,575 crore are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. as
on March 31, 2010. The funds were mainly deployed in
providing consumer finance. RCL’s debt equity ratio as on March
31, 2010 stood at 1.57:1.

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries

During the year, Reliance Asset Management (Malaysia) SDN
BHD became subsidiary of the Company.
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In terms of the approval granted by the Central Government
under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, copies of
the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Report of the
Board of Directors and Auditors of the subsisting subsidiaries
have not been attached with the Balance Sheet of the
Company. However, these documents will be made available
upon request to any member of the Company interested in
obtaining the same. As directed by the Central Government,
the financial data of the subsidiaries has been furnished under
‘Financial Information of Subsidiary Companies’, which forms
part of the Annual Report. The annual accounts of the
Company including that of subsidiaries will be kept for inspection
by any member. Further, pursuant to Accounting Standard-21
(AS-21) as notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, the Consolidated Financial Statements presented
by the Company include the financial information about its
subsidiary Companies.

Fixed DepositsFixed DepositsFixed DepositsFixed DepositsFixed Deposits

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed
deposits during the year. There are no unclaimed deposits,
unclaimed / unpaid interest due to the deposit holders or to
be deposited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as
on March 31, 2010.

Capital Adequacy RatioCapital Adequacy RatioCapital Adequacy RatioCapital Adequacy RatioCapital Adequacy Ratio

Your Company’s Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) calculated
in line with the Non Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting
or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2007 (“RBI Directions”) stood at 28.03%, well
above the regulatory minimum of 12%. Your Company’s asset
size is Rs.20,028 crore. The Company has received a certificate
from the Auditors M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Char tered
Accountants and M/s. B S R & Co., Chartered Accountants, of
the Company, pursuant to Non Banking Financial Companies
Auditors’ Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2008, confirming
compliance of the conditions with respect to NBFCs-ND-SI.

DirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectors

In terms of Article 154 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Shri Rajendra P. Chitale, Director of the Company,
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal and Shri V. N. Kaul were appointed as
additional directors w.e.f. October 30, 2009 and April 30,
2010 respectively. They would hold office till the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received notice in
writing from a member proposing their candidature, for the
office of Director.

A brief resume of the Director retiring by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and of the additional directors whose

candidature has been proposed by a member, nature of their
expertise in specific functional areas and names of Companies
in which they hold directorship and/or membership/chairmanship
of Committees of the Board, as stipulated under Clause 49 of
the listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges, is given in
the section on Corporate Governance elsewhere in the Annual
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility StatementDirectors’ Responsibility StatementDirectors’ Responsibility StatementDirectors’ Responsibility StatementDirectors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2010, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed alongwith proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2010 and of the profit of the Company
for the year ended on that date;

(iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the
financial year ended March 31, 2010 on a ‘going concern’
basis.

GroupGroupGroupGroupGroup

Pursuant to an intimation from the Promoters, the names of
the Promoters and entities comprising ‘group’ as defined under
the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices (“MRTP”) Act,
1969 are disclosed in the Annual Report for the purpose of
the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 1997.

Employees Stock Option SchemeEmployees Stock Option SchemeEmployees Stock Option SchemeEmployees Stock Option SchemeEmployees Stock Option Scheme

Your Company had obtained Members’ approval through Postal
Ballot on January 8, 2007 for the introduction and
implementation of Employees Stock Option Scheme.

Employees Stock Option Scheme was approved and
implemented by the Company and Options were granted to
employees in accordance with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (‘the SEBI
Guidelines’). The Employees Stock Compensation Committee,
constituted in accordance with the SEBI Guidelines, administers
and monitors the Scheme. The applicable disclosures as
stipulated under the SEBI Guidelines as at March 31, 2010
are given below:
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PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss ESOS Plan AESOS Plan AESOS Plan AESOS Plan AESOS Plan A ESOS Plan BESOS Plan BESOS Plan BESOS Plan BESOS Plan B

a) Total Options granted 3,99,900 3,97,000
b) No of Options surrendered Nil Nil
c) Pricing formula decided by ESOS Compensation Committee The options were granted at

the market price i.e. Rs.800.
The options were granted at
the market price i.e. Rs.800.

d) Options vested Nil Nil
e) Options exercised Nil Nil
f) Total number of equity shares arising as a result of exercise

of Options
Nil Nil

g) Options lapsed during the year Nil Nil
h) Variation of terms of Options None None
i) Money realised by exercise of Options during the year Nil Nil

j) Total number of Options in force at the end of the year 3,99,900 3,97,000

k) Employee wise details of Options granted to:
i. Senior managerial personnel (i.e. Managing Director/

Wholetime Director/Manager)
ii. Employee who receives grant in any one year of option

amounting to 5% or more of option granted during the
year

iii. Identified employees who were granted options, during
any one year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued
capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the company at the time of grant

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

l) Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of shares
on exercise of Options calculated in accordance with
Accounting Standard - 20 (AS - 20)

N.A. There would not be any
fresh issue of equity shares of
the Company upon exercise
of Options by employees.

N.A. There would not be any
fresh issue of equity shares of
the Company upon exercise
of Options by employees.

m) The difference between employee compensation cost using
intrinsic value method and fair value of the Options and impact
of this difference on Profit; and

EPS of the Company Rs.13.73 Rs.13.73

n) Weighted-average exercise prices of Options granted during
the year where exercise price is less than market price

Rs.800 Rs.800

o) Weighted-average fair values of Options granted during the
year where exercise price is less than market price

Rs.536 Rs.546

p) Significant assumptions made in computation of fair value
i) risk-free interest rate
ii) expected life (years)
iii) expected volatility
iv) expected dividends (yield), and
v) the price of the underlying share in market at the time

of option grant

base: Black Scholes model base: Black Scholes model

7.01% to 7.27% p.a. 7.01% to 7.34% p.a.
5.5 to 7.0 5.5 to 7.5
61.23% to 64.04% 59.56% to 64.04%
0.62% 0.62%
Rs.805 per share Rs.805 per share

No difference as the exercise
would be made at the market
price prevailing as on date of
the grant plus applicable
taxes as may be levied on
the Company. However, if the
fair value of the options using
the Black Scholes model was
used, considering the
assumptions as of the date
of grant, the compensation
cost (net) would have been
Rs.1.47 crore.

No difference as the exercise
would be made at the market
price prevailing as on date of
the grant plus applicable
taxes as may be levied on
the Company. However, if the
fair value of the options using
the Black Scholes model was
used, considering the
assumptions as of the date
of grant, the compensation
cost (net) would have been
Rs.1.06 crore.

Nil



18

Reliance Capital Limited

DirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectors’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ReportReportReportReportReport

The Company has received a certificate from the Auditors of
the Company M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants
and M/s. B S R & Co., Chartered Accountants, that the Scheme
and ESOS Plan A and B have been implemented in accordance
with the SEBI Guidelines and as per the resolution passed
through Postal Ballot on January 8, 2007.

CCCCConsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatateeeeed Fd Fd Fd Fd Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, based on the
Financial Statements received from subsidiaries, associates and
partnership firms, as approved by their respective Board of
Directors and Managing Committee, have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standard-21 (AS-21) on
Consolidated Financial Statements read with Accounting
Standard-23 (AS-23) on the Accounting for Investments in
Associates.

Auditors and Auditors’ ReportAuditors and Auditors’ ReportAuditors and Auditors’ ReportAuditors and Auditors’ ReportAuditors and Auditors’ Report

M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Char tered Accountants and
M/s. B S R & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors
of the Company, hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment.

The Company has received letters from M/s. Chaturvedi &
Shah, Chartered Accountants and M/s. B S R & Co., Chartered
Accountants, to the effect that their appointment, if made,
would be within the prescribed limits under Section 224(1B)
of the Companies Act, 1956, and that they are not disqualified
for such appointment within the meaning of Section 226 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

The observations and comments given by Auditors in this report
read together with notes to Accounts are self explanatory
and hence do not call for any further comments under Section
217 of the Companies Act, 1956.

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararars ofs ofs ofs ofs of Empl Empl Empl Empl Emploooooyyyyyeeseeseeseesees

In terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975, the names and other particulars of the
employees are set out in the Annexure to the Directors’ Report.
However, having regard to the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv)
of the said Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid
information is being sent to all the Members of the Company
and others entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining
such particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registered Office of the Company.

Energy CEnergy CEnergy CEnergy CEnergy Consonsonsonsonsererererervvvvvation, ation, ation, ation, ation, TTTTTechnolechnolechnolechnolechnolooooogy gy gy gy gy AbAbAbAbAbsorpsorpsorpsorpsorption and Ftion and Ftion and Ftion and Ftion and Forororororeigneigneigneigneign
Exchange Earnings and OutgoExchange Earnings and OutgoExchange Earnings and OutgoExchange Earnings and OutgoExchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars required to be furnished under the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988, are as under:

(1) Part A and B pertaining to conservation of energy and
technology absorption are not applicable to the Company.

(2) Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

Earnings - Rs.Nil
Outgo - Rs.14.52 crore

TTTTTrrrrransfansfansfansfansfererererer of of of of of uncl uncl uncl uncl unclaimeaimeaimeaimeaimed dividend td dividend td dividend td dividend td dividend to Ino Ino Ino Ino Invvvvvestestestestestororororor Educ Educ Educ Educ Education andation andation andation andation and
PPPPPrrrrroooootttttececececection Ftion Ftion Ftion Ftion Fund (IEPF)und (IEPF)und (IEPF)und (IEPF)und (IEPF)
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205(A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, the declared dividend which remained unclaimed
for a period of 7 years has been transferred by the Company
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established
by the Central Government pursuant to Section 205C of the
said Act.

CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernanceeeee

The Company has adopted the “Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani
Group – Corporate Governance Policies and Code of Conduct”
which has set out the systems, processes and policies conforming
to International Standards and corporate governance guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of India for Non Banking Financial
Companies. The corporate governance framework in the
Company is based on an effective independent Board, the
separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive
management and the constitution of Board Committees,
generally comprising a majority of independent Directors and
chaired by an independent Director, to oversee critical areas.
This Code is also available on the website of the Company
www.reliancecapital.co.in.

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a confirmation
from the Company Secretary & Manager of the Company
regarding compliance with the Code by all the Directors and
senior management is annexed to this Report.

The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause
49 of the listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges, forms
part of the Annual Report. A Certificate from the Auditors of
the Company M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants
and M/s. B S R & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming
compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under the aforesaid Clause 49, is annexed to this
Report.
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FFFFForororororwwwwwararararard ld ld ld ld looking stooking stooking stooking stooking statatatatatementementementementementsssss
These financial statements have been prepared in compliance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India.
However, readers are cautioned that this discussion may contain
"forward-looking statements" by Reliance Capital Limited
("RCL") that are not historical in nature. These forward looking
statements, which may include statements relating to future
results of operations, financial condition, business prospects,
plans and objectives, are based on the current belief,
assumptions, expectations, estimates, and projections of the
directors and management of RCL about the business, industry
and markets in which RCL operates. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and are subject to known
and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors, some of
which are beyond RCL's control and difficult to predict, that
could cause actual results, performance or achievements to
differ materially from those in the forward looking statements.
Such statements are not, and should not be construed, as a
representation as to future performance or achievements of
RCL. In particular, such statements should not be regarded as
a projection of future performance of RCL. It should be noted
that the actual performance or achievements of RCL may
vary significantly from such statements.
The following discussions on our financial condition and result
of operations should be read together with our audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes to these
statements included in the annual report.
Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires,
all references herein to "we", "us", "our", "the Company",
"Reliance", "RCL" or "Reliance Capital" are to Reliance Capital
Limited and its subsidiaries and associates.
Macroeconomic OverviewMacroeconomic OverviewMacroeconomic OverviewMacroeconomic OverviewMacroeconomic Overview
Resilient Indian EconomyResilient Indian EconomyResilient Indian EconomyResilient Indian EconomyResilient Indian Economy
The Indian economy continued to show resilience in financial
year 2009-10, thanks to proactive measures taken by the
policymakers. In concert with similar action by central banks
across the world, the RBI reduced key policy rates in 2008.
This together with fiscal stimulus announced by the Ministry
of Finance ensured that the impact of the global financial
crisis on the Indian economy was kept to the minimum.
Consequently, there was a quick turnaround in business
confidence and a rapid revival in capital inflows, leading to
higher resource mobilization, and a smart recovery in the stock
markets. This, in turn, helped sustain the growth momentum
in the economy.
Buoyant GDP GrowthBuoyant GDP GrowthBuoyant GDP GrowthBuoyant GDP GrowthBuoyant GDP Growth
The GDP growth improved in the first quarter of financial year
2009-10 (Apr-Jun'09) to 6.1 per cent from 5.8 per cent
recorded during the previous two quarters of financial year
2008-09. In the second Quarter of financial year 2009-10,
GDP further accelerated to 7.9 per cent. The sequential recovery
in growth in Q2 was driven by significant turnaround in industrial
output (9 per cent), and services sector (9 per cent), while
agriculture sector also clocked a modest positive growth despite
drought and floods in some parts of the country. The lower
growth in 3Q GDP is primarily due to decline in agricultural
output on account of a poor monsoon and a decline in
Community and Social Services resulting from significant slow-
down in government spending. In financial year 2009-10,

GDP of India is projected to have grown at 7.2 per cent,
driven mainly by industrial and service sector.
Robust Index of Industrial Production (IIP)Robust Index of Industrial Production (IIP)Robust Index of Industrial Production (IIP)Robust Index of Industrial Production (IIP)Robust Index of Industrial Production (IIP)
After moving into negative territory in Dec'08, IIP turned positive
in early 2009. Since the start of second half of financial year
2009-10, it has registered a spectacular V-shaped recovery
and clocked double digit growth driven mainly by manufacturing,
consumer durables and a lower base effect. The IIP registered
a 10 per cent growth during Apr-Feb as compared to a mere
3 per cent in the same period the previous year.
CCCCCrrrrreeeeedit gdit gdit gdit gdit grrrrrooooowwwwwth noth noth noth noth not onlt onlt onlt onlt only impry impry impry impry improoooovvvvves but surpasses but surpasses but surpasses but surpasses but surpasses RBI's tes RBI's tes RBI's tes RBI's tes RBI's targargargargargetetetetet
After growing at 18 per cent at the start of the financial year,
the rate of credit growth in the economy dropped to 9.7 per
cent in October 2009. As a result, RBI revised its target
downwards to 16 per cent. But there has since been a
resounding recovery in credit growth in the Jan-Mar 2010
quarter. A massive increase in loan disbursements in the last
month of the fiscal year ending March, 2010 helped banks
move back to a growth of 17 per cent, surpassed the RBI's
earlier Target.
In terms of outstanding credit to deposit ratio, the number
increased to 72.2 per cent as on March, 2010 from 69 per
cent in Sept'09. The most interesting point to note was the
incremental credit to deposit ratio in the last quarter in fiscal
2010 stood at 99 per cent.
Growing Inflationary concernsGrowing Inflationary concernsGrowing Inflationary concernsGrowing Inflationary concernsGrowing Inflationary concerns
Inflation measured by the Wholesale Price Index (WPI)
registered significant volatility in last one-and-a-half years.
From double digit growth in mid-2008 on account of high
global oil and commodity prices, it turned negative during
June-August 2009 primarily due to the statistical effect of a
high base.
Thereafter, WPI again started showing signs of upward
movement following a spurt in food prices (aggravated by the
drought in 2009) and increase in global commodity prices.
Inflation has now spread into manufactured products on the
back of a growing demand and the return of purchasing power
to manufacturers. Inflation touched 9.9 per cent year on year
in Mar'10 from 1.3 per cent in Oct'09, led by an increase in
the price of fuel and manufactured products and helped by a
low base effect.
Interest Rate/ Policy Rate normalization to continueInterest Rate/ Policy Rate normalization to continueInterest Rate/ Policy Rate normalization to continueInterest Rate/ Policy Rate normalization to continueInterest Rate/ Policy Rate normalization to continue
With the economy showing signs of revival, the RBI signaled
an exit from its easy monetary policy in Oct'09 policy meeting
as it withdrew all extraordinary measures (like various refinance
facilities) and raised Statutory Liquidity Ratio from 24 per cent
to 25 per cent. Rising inflation and inflationary expectations
further added to RBI's concerns. As a result, the Central Bank
raised the Cash Reserve Ratio by 75 bps in its January policy
meeting, followed by a hike in policy rates - repo and reverse
repo - by 25 bps each in March as well as April.
About Reliance CapitalAbout Reliance CapitalAbout Reliance CapitalAbout Reliance CapitalAbout Reliance Capital
Reliance Capital Limited (RCL) is a part of the Reliance Anil
Dhirubhai Ambani Group and is one of India's leading private
sector financial services companies, and ranks among the top
3 private sector financial services and banking groups, in terms
of net worth. It is a constituent of S&P CNX Nifty and MSCI
India.
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Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group is amongst India's top 3
business houses with a market cap in excess of Rs.1,25,000
crore (US $ 28 billion), and over 160 million customers. It has
a strong presence across a wide array of high growth consumer-
facing businesses such as Telecom, Financial Services, Energy,
Power, Infrastructure, Media and Entertainment.
Reliance Capital has interests in asset management, mutual
funds, pension funds, life and general insurance, private equity
and proprietary investments, retail stock broking and depository
services, investment banking, wealth management, home and
consumer finance, financial products distribution, venture capital,
exchanges, asset reconstruction, institutional broking and other
activities in financial services.
FFFFFinancialinancialinancialinancialinancial P P P P Perererererffffformancormancormancormancormance - Ove - Ove - Ove - Ove - Overerererervievievievieviewwwww
The Company's financial performance is discussed in detail under
the head "Financial Performance" in the Directors' report. The
consolidated performance of the Company is as under:

RCL's consolidated income from operations for the financial
year ended March 31, 2010 increased to Rs.6,140.60
crore (US $ 1.4 billion) from Rs.6,019.14 crore (US $
1.2 billion) in the previous year, registering a growth of 2
per cent. The increase in revenues was contributed by our
businesses of asset management, general insurance and
consumer finance demonstrating improved business
performance.
Staff costs for the year were Rs.535.35 crore (US $
118.6 million) as against Rs.554.07 crore (US $ 108.7
million) in the previous year, a decrease of 3 per cent.
Selling, administrative and other expenses in the year
were Rs.1,704.03 crore (US $ 377.5 million) as against
Rs.1,155.90 crore (US $ 226.9 million), an increase of
47 per cent.
Interest & finance charges for the year were Rs.1,332.40
crore (US $ 295.2 million) as against Rs.1,263.84 crore
(US $ 248.1 million) in the previous year, an increase of
5 per cent.
Depreciation for the year was Rs.67.63 crore (US $ 15.0
million) as against Rs.56.71 crore (US $ 11.1 million) in
the previous year, an increase of 19 per cent.
Profit before tax for the year was Rs.588.32 crore (US $
130.3 million) as against Rs.1,204.15 crore (US $ 236.3
million) in the previous year, a decrease of 51 per cent.
Provision for tax for the year was Rs.146.15 crore (US $
32.5 million) as against Rs.181.09 crore (US $ 35.5
million) in the previous year, a decrease of 19 per cent.
Profit after tax, minority interest and share of profit of
associates for the year was Rs.434.53 crore (US $ 96.3
million) as against Rs.1,015.67 crore (US $ 199.3 million)
in the previous year, a decrease of 57 per cent.
The decrease in absolute profits is on account of lower
capital gains realized in the year as the thrust is on
increasing contribution from the operating businesses
towards profitability and also substantial gains will accrue
to Reliance Capital from planned stake sales in operating
businesses.

Resources and LiquidityResources and LiquidityResources and LiquidityResources and LiquidityResources and Liquidity
As on March 31, 2010, the consolidated net worth of
the company stood at Rs.7,711.82 crore (US $ 1.7 billion)

as against Rs.7,423.6 crore (US $ 1.5 billion), an increase
of 4 per cent.
The Company has raised Rs.11,958.15 crore (US $ 2.7
billion) during the financial year 2009-10 by issuance of
Commercial Paper, Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
and other money market instruments. As on March 31,
2010, the Company had a net debt equity ratio of 1.6:1.
As on March 31, 2010, the consolidated total assets
were Rs.26,033.13 (US $ 5.8 bill ion) as against
Rs.24,084.06 crore (US $ 4.7 billion), an increase of 8
per cent.

CCCCCrrrrreeeeedit Rdit Rdit Rdit Rdit Ratingatingatingatingating
RCL's short term debt programme has been assigned a rating
of "A1+" by ICRA Ltd., the highest credit quality rating assigned
by the agency to short-term debt instruments. Instruments
rated in this category carry the lowest credit risk in the short
term. Fitch assigned the short term borrowing program a rating
of "F1+", which stands for the highest credit quality and
indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of "financial
commitment" - a resounding re-affirmation of our unwavering
and long-standing commitment to financial prudence and
conservatism. CARE Ltd. assigned the long term debt
programme a rating of "CARE AAA". Instruments with this
rating are considered to be of the best credit quality, offering
highest safety for timely servicing of debt obligations. Such
instruments carry minimal credit risk.
Finance & InvestmentsFinance & InvestmentsFinance & InvestmentsFinance & InvestmentsFinance & Investments
The Investment portfolio of quoted investments as on March
31, 2010 amounted to Rs.3,904.03 crore (US $ 864.87
million), at cost.
Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Management (RCAM)

Reliance Capital Asset Management managed
Rs.1,47,927.55 crore (US $ 33 billion) as on March 31,
2010, across mutual funds, pension funds, managed
accounts and hedge funds, as against Rs.1,12,014.19
crore (US $ 22 billion) as on March 31, 2009, an increase
of 32 per cent.
RCAM's income from its operations for the year ended
March 31, 2010 was at Rs.681.68 crore (US $ 151.0
million) as against Rs.454.69 crore (US $ 89.2 million)
in the corresponding previous period, an increase of 50
per cent.
Profit after tax for the year ended March 31, 2010 was
Rs.183.86 crore (US $ 40.7 million) as against Rs.125.71
crore (US $ 24.7 million) in the corresponding previous
period, an increase of 46 per cent.
RCAM has received approvals from regulatory authorities
in United Kingdom and Malaysia to commence investment
advisory and asset management operations in these
countries.

RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Me Me Me Me Mutututututualualualualual F F F F Fundundundundund
Reliance Mutual Fund (RMF) has maintained its leadership
position in the country, with a market share of 14.8 per
cent at the end of March 2010.
The Industry average assets under management (AAUM)
for March, 2010, touched Rs.7,47,338.63 crore (US $
165.6 billion) from Rs.4,90,826.66 crore (US $ 96.3
billion) in March, 2009, an increase of 52 per cent.
The AAUM of RMF for March, 2010 stood at
Rs.1,10,412.39 crore (US $ 24.5 billion), an increase of
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36 per cent from Rs.80,962.93 crore (US $ 15.9 billion)
as of March, 2009.

The number of investor folios in RMF stood at 74.8 lakh
at the end of March 31, 2010 as against 75.6 lakh
investor folios at the end of March 31, 2009, serviced
across 246 locations in India, despite changing regulatory
environment in the Indian mutual fund industry.
The number of Systematic Investment Plan Investors in
RMF is 10.9 Lakh.
As on March 31, 2010, RMF had a total of 36 schemes
- 17 equity-oriented schemes, 17 debt-oriented schemes
and 2 exchange-traded schemes.
During the year, RMF launched a new product feature -
'Reliance Smart Step'. It was the first fund house to launch
a unique facility to invest across all debt/ liquid & equity
schemes based on a scientific model.
In the month of May 2009, RMF launched a new fund
- Reliance Infrastructure Fund.
o The fund collected around Rs.2,300 crore (US $

509.5 million) from over 4,20,000 investors, which
is twice the aggregate amount collected by all Equity
NFOs in the Indian mutual fund industry in the
preceding 12 months.

o In terms of amount mobilized, ranks 8th amongst
the top 10 Equity NFOs in the industry in past 5
years - In fact 5 of the top 10 Equity NFOs are
RMF NFOs.

During the year, RMF won several prestigious awards.
o The Highly acclaimed international award - 'Asia

Risk Award for Asset Manager of the Year 2009', for
its robust risk management practices. RCAM is the
only Indian asset management company to be
awarded this prestigious award.

o The Lipper award for "Best Equity India Fund" to
Reliance Growth Fund in the "5 years" category and
"Best Fund" to Reliance Regular Savings Fund -
Balanced Plan, in the "3 years" category.

o 'CRISIL Fund House Level 1' Rating from CRISIL for
its robust processes and corporate governance
practices.

o "Mutual Fund House of the Year" by CNBC TV18 -
CRISIL Awards 2009.

o The Reliance Smart Step Scheme was nominated
as the "Most Innovative Fund/ Feature of the year"
at CNBC TV18- CRISIL Awards 2009.

o The Morning Star Award in the India Moderate
Allocation category to Reliance Regular Savings -
Balanced Growth.

PPPPPororororortftftftftfolio Molio Molio Molio Molio Managanaganaganaganagement Serement Serement Serement Serement Servicvicvicvicviceseseseses
Reliance Portfolio Management Services is a premium
financial service for select investors from the portfolio
management divis ion of Rel iance Capital Asset

Management Ltd. It creates customized portfolios for high
net-worth individuals keeping in mind their risk-return
preferences, and endeavors to generate superior returns.
The AUM of our portfolio management services as on
March 31, 2010 increased to Rs.36,602 crore (US $ 8.1
billion) from Rs.30,480 crore (US $ 6.0 billion) as on
March 31, 2009, registering a growth of 20 per cent.

RCAM has been appointed as one of the fund managers
by the Employees Provident Fund Organization (EPFO).
A hugely prestigious account, EPFO has entrusted
Rs.34,837 crore (US $ 7.7 bill ion) to RCAM, for
investment management.
Reliance Capital Pension Fund Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of RCAM, was also appointed as one of the six
asset managers by the Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority (PFRDA) to manage money under
the new pension scheme. The new pension scheme will
be a government regulated pension plan on the lines of
the '401K retirement plan' in the US (a defined contribution
plan) and can be availed of by the general public in
India.

Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte Ltd is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Capital Asset
Management Limited. It currently manages 6 India
dedicated funds viz. - India Equity Growth Fund, India
Equity Long Term Fund, India Equity Derivative Fund, India
Multi Strategy Fund, Lawrence India Mauritius Fund and
WIOF India Performance Fund.
The AUM as on March 31, 2010 stood at Rs.9,118
crore (US $ 2.0 billion) as against Rs.6,471 crore (US $
1.3 billion) on March 31, 2009, a growth of 41 per
cent.

RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Life Life Life Life Life Insure Insure Insure Insure Insurancancancancance (RLe (RLe (RLe (RLe (RLI)I)I)I)I)
Reliance Capital has 100 per cent economic interest in
Reliance Life Insurance.
Reliance Life Insurance currently offers a total of 47
products that fulfill the savings and protection needs of
customers. Of these, 39 are targeted at individuals and 8
at group businesses. Reliance Life is committed to
emerging as a transnational Life Insurer of international
scale and stature and attaining leadership ranking in the
industry in the next few years.
During the year, the Indian life insurance industry recorded
new business premium of Rs.1,09,290.37 crore (US $
24.2 billion) as against Rs.87,107.62 crore (US $ 17.1
billion) in the previous year, an increase of 25 per cent.
During the year, the Indian private sector life insurance
industry recorded new business premium of Rs.38,399.32
crore (US $ 8.5 billion) as against Rs.34,153.71 crore
(US $ 6.7 billion) in the previous year, an increase of 12
per cent (Source: YTD March, 2010 data, Insurance
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Regulatory and Development Authority of India website).
RLI continues to be among the top 4 private sector players
in terms of new business premium, with a market share
of 10.2 per cent of the total new premium generated
by the private sector.
RLI moved up industry rankings to emerge as the third
largest private sector insurer in terms of weighted received
premium at Rs.3,659.86 crore (US $ 810.8 million).
Total Premium for the year Rs.6,588.34 crore (US $ 1.5
billion ) as against Rs.4,915.34 crore (US $ 1.0 billion)
for the corresponding previous period - an increase of 34
per cent.

For the year ended March 31, 2010, Renewal Premium
amounted to Rs.2,684.12 crore (US $ 594.6 million) as
against Rs.1,418.56 crore (US $ 278.4 million) for the
corresponding previous period - an increase of 89 per
cent. New Business Premium Income for the year ended
March 31, 2010 was Rs 3,920.77 crore (US $ 868.8
million) as against Rs 3,513.98 crore (US $ 689.7 million)
in the corresponding previous period, an increase of 12
per cent - in line with the private sector industry growth.
The Weighted Received Premium (WRP) for the year
was Rs.3,659.86 crore (US $ 810.8 million) as against
Rs 3,116.32 crore (US $ 611.6 mill ion) for the
corresponding previous period - an increase of 17 per
cent. The private sector industry growth for the same
period was 13 per cent.
The operating costs excluding commissions for the year
stood at at Rs.1,640.92 crore (US $ 363.5 million) as
against Rs.1,931.19 crore (US $ 379.0 million) for the
corresponding previous period - a decrease of 15 per cent.
The ratio of operating costs to total premium decreased
to 25 per cent for the year from 39 per cent in the
corresponding previous period.
The total funds under management were at
Rs.13,660.82 crore (US $ 3.0 billion) as on March 31,
2010 against Rs.6,289.75 crore (US $ 1.2 billion) as on
March 31, 2009 - an increase of 117per cent

The policyholders' funds under management amounted
to Rs.13,291.51 crore (US $ 2.9 billion) as on March
31, 2010 against Rs.5,879.00 crore (US $ 1.2 billion)
as on March 31, 2009 - an increase of 126 per cent.
During the year, Rs.231 crore (US $ 51.2 million) was
infused into the business as against Rs.1,229 crore (US $
241.2 million) for the corresponding previous period - 81
per cent reduction in capital infusion, reflecting successful
steps taken towards achieving profitability. RLI targets to
breakeven in the next financial year. The total capital
invested till date in this business, is Rs.2,974 crore (US $
658.8 million).
In financial year 2009-10, RLI sold the largest number
of policies in the private sector life insurance industry. The
number of policies sold during the year were 23,26,154
as against 22,19,678 for financial year 2008-09 - an
increase of 5 per cent, as against a decrease of 4 per
cent by the private sector life insurance industry.
The distribution network has been increased to 1,247
branches at the end of March 31, 2010, as against 1,145
branches at the end of March 31, 2009.

The numbers of agents at the end of March 31, 2010
were at 1,95,565 as against 1,49,613 in the
corresponding previous period - an increase of 31 per
cent.
During financial year 2009-10, five new life insurance
policies were launched, viz. Reliance Jan Samriddhi Plan,
Reliance Traditional Group Gratuity Plan, Reliance
Traditional Super Invest Assure Plan, Reliance Life Highest
NAV Guarantee Plan and Reliance Life Super Golden Years
Senior Citizen Term 10 Plan.
During the year, RLI reached newer heights.
Rated 'Excellent' with customer satisfaction index of 87+
for 2 consecutive years, meeting all key process indicator
benchmarks of survey conducted by Neilsen.
Benchmarked service levels to be at par with the best in
industry.
o 86 per cent of RLI's policies are issued in three days.
o 100 per cent of claims are resolved within three

days of complete documentation.
o Introduced self-help servicing options, empowering

customers and channel partners to resolve queries.
Currently 41 per cent of all customer requests are
processed are through the self-help channel.

o Automated underwriting processes to enable faster
usage. Over 85 per cent of policies are auto-
underwritten.

Management Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and Analysis
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only recently has received approval from IRDA to re-
price its health products. The Company has significantly
reduced its exposure to Group Mediclaim products that
were largely unprofitable. This will enable the Company
to improve its combined ratio and achieve breakeven in
the current financial year.
During the year, Rs.210 crore (US $ 46.5 million.) of
capital was infused into the general insurance business,
taking the total capital invested till date to Rs.1,007
crore (US $ 223.1 million).
The distribution network composed of 200 branches and
4,641 intermediaries at the end of March 31, 2010.

RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Ce Ce Ce Ce Consumeronsumeronsumeronsumeronsumer F F F F Financinancinancinancinance (RCF)e (RCF)e (RCF)e (RCF)e (RCF)
Reliance Consumer Finance (RCF) offers a wide range of
products which include Home loans, Loans against property,
SME loans, Commercial Vehicle loans, loans for Construction
equipment and loans against Securities.
The focus in this business is not just on the growth of
credit per se but also on the quality of credit. Backed by
its long-standing conservative approach, RCF has developed
stringent in-house credit risk management systems to
ensure the highest quality of credit.
RCF has emerged to be amongst the leading lenders in
the Indian non banking finance sector.
The disbursements for the year ended March 31, 2010
were Rs.5,776.24 crore (US $ 1.3 billion) as against
Rs.3,927.76 crore (US $ 770.9 million) for corresponding
previous period - increase of 47 per cent.
As on March 31, 2010, the assets under management
(including securitized portfolio) was Rs.11,041.74 crore
(US $ 2.4 billion) as against Rs.8,576.09 crore (US $
1.7 billion) as on March 31, 2009 - increase of 29 per
cent.
As on March 31, 2010 the outstanding loan book was
Rs.9,169.51 crore (US $ 2.0 bil l ion) as against
Rs.8,576.08 crore (US $ 1.7 billion) as on March 31,
2009 - an increase of 7 per cent. This loan book is
spread across 1,17,955 customers from top 16 Indian
metros.

During the year, the Company securitized loans of
Rs.2,504.74 crore (US $ 554.9 million).
Reliance Consumer Finance generated revenues of
Rs.1,286.81 crore (US $ 285.1 million) for the year
ended March 31, 2010, as against Rs.1,200.19 crore
(US $ 235.6 million) for the corresponding previous period
- an increase of 7 per cent.
For the year ended March 2010, RCF achieved a profit
before tax of Rs.135.01 crore (US $ 29.9 million) as
against Rs.91.65 crore (US $ 18.0 million)- an increase
of 48 per cent.

o Used technology as an enabler to business. RLI was
recognized for its achievements in using technology
and was amongst top 100 companies globally by
Chief Information Officer (Global CIO) publication.

Reliance General InsuranceReliance General InsuranceReliance General InsuranceReliance General InsuranceReliance General Insurance
Reliance General Insurance (RGI) offers proper ty,
engineering, auto, health, travel, marine and commercial
insurance It also offers other specialty insurance products.
During the period from April, 2009 to March, 2010, the
Gross Written Premium of the entire Indian general
insurance fund industry increased by 14 per cent from
Rs.30,641.90 crore (US $ 6.0 billion) of the corresponding
previous period, to Rs.34,755.21 crore (US $ 7.7 billion).
(Source: Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
of India).
During the period from April, 2009 to March, 2010, the
Gross Written Premium of the Private Indian general
insurance fund industry increased by 13 per cent from
Rs.12,610.60 crore (US $ 2.5 billion) of the corresponding
previous period, to Rs.14,226.74, crore (US $ 3.2 billion).
(Source: Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
of India).
Reliance General Insurance has maintained its position
amongst the top three (in terms of monthly gross written
premium) private sector General insurance companies in
India, with a market share of 6 per cent of the general
insurance market in India and 14 per cent market share
of the private sector general /insurers.
RGI's Gross Written Premium for the year ended March
31, 2010 was at Rs.1,979.65 crore (US $ 438.6 million)
as against Rs.1,914.88 crore (US $ 375.8 million)in the
corresponding previous period, increased by 3 per cent.
(Source:YTD March, 2010 data, Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India).

Net Written Premium (NWP) for the year ended March
31, 2010 was Rs.1,428.72 crore (US $ 316.5 million)
as against Rs.1,399.56 crore (US $ 274.7 million) for
the corresponding previous period - an increase of 2 per
cent.
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2010 was Rs.50.43
crore (US $ 11.2 million) as against Rs.52.32 crore (US
$ 10.3 million) for the corresponding previous period.
Combined ratio (including third party motor pool) for the
financial year ended March 31, 2010 was 117per cent
as against 114 per cent for the corresponding previous
period.
The increase in combined ratio and consequently the loss
was on account of high claims from health portfolio. RGI
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Reliance MoneyReliance MoneyReliance MoneyReliance MoneyReliance Money
Reliance Money is one of the leading retail brokerage
houses and distributor of financial products in India.
Reliance Money is a comprehensive financial services and
solutions provider, providing customers with access to
equities, equity options and commodities futures, wealth
management, mutual funds, IPOs, life and general
insurance products, offshore investments, investment
banking, money transfer and gold coins.
The Company went through a significant re-structuring
process - across all its lines of businesses. The focus across
all businesses was on profitability through changes in pricing
& leaner cost structures & moving towards a more robust
& sustainable business model. This exercise is now
complete.
Going ahead, the focus will be on the key business verticals
of broking, distribution (third party and in-house), wealth
management and investment banking.
As on March 31, 2010, Reliance Money has a pan India
distribution network of over 5,000 outlets.
Broking.
It had 6,40,000 retail broking accounts at the end of
March 31, 2010.
Reliance Money daily average stock exchange turnover
stood at Rs.2,200 crore (US $ 487.4 million) at the end
of March 31, 2010.
Commodities broking daily turnover was at Rs.250 crore
(US $ 55.4 million).
In the distribution business vertical, Reliance Money has
two distinct arms - third party and in-house.
In the third party distribution, Reliance Money is
manufacturer agnostic and distributes mutual funds, life
& general insurance products, loans and precious metal
retailing.
o It is amongst the leading Mutual fund distributors of

the country distributing products of 20 AMCs, with a
customer base of over 5,00,000. It is the largest
private sector partner for Western Union Money
Transfer in India.

o Reliance Money has tied up with India Post and
World Gold Council to sell gold coins through the
post office network across the country.

The in-house distribution leverages on the cross sell
opportunity.
o Customer base has grown over 200 per cent year on

year to 1,50,000 customers.
o Created strong presence through 75 locations across

48 cities in India.
o This division is the largest distributor for Reliance

General Insurance and is amongst the top five for
Reliance Life Insurance.

Wealth Management and Investment Banking are two
new initiatives of Reliance Money.
In Wealth Management, Reliance Money will assess and

create financial investment opportunities for HNIs. It
will create customized individual portfolios based on
their diverse investment needs and risk profiles. The
team is now in place and the AUM as on March 31,
2010 increased to Rs.90 crore (US $ 19.9 million).
In Investment Banking, Reliance Money will address
the capital requirements of enterprises through various
instruments- IPOs, private placements, mergers &
acquisitions.

The Company is in advanced stages of finalizing its
investment banking plan.
Reliance Money achieved revenues of Rs.258.54
crore (US $ 57.3 million) for the year ended March
31, 2010 as against Rs.352.04 crore (US $ 69.1
million) for the year ended March 31, 2009.

The business achieved a profit before tax of Rs.14.94
crore (US $ 3.3 million) for the year ended March 31,
2010, as against Rs.58.07 crore (US $ 11.4 million) for
the year ended March 31, 2009.

Reliance Asset ReconstructionReliance Asset ReconstructionReliance Asset ReconstructionReliance Asset ReconstructionReliance Asset Reconstruction
Reliance Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd. (Reliance
ARC) is in the business of acquisition, management and
resolution of distressed debt/ assets. It formally
commenced business operations in the first half of financial
year 09. The other sponsors / shareholders of Reliance
ARC are Corporation Bank, Indian Bank, GIC of India,
Dacecroft and Blue Ridge.
As on March 31, 2010; the asset base was over Rs.17
crore (US $ 3.8 million).

Reliance Equities InternationalReliance Equities InternationalReliance Equities InternationalReliance Equities InternationalReliance Equities International
Reliance Equities International Private Limited (REIPL) is
the institutional stock broking subsidiary of Reliance Capital.
REIPL has been set up to complement Reliance Capital's
current financial services businesses.
It aims is to add value to the clients' investment decision
making process with thematic and differentiated research,
access to corporate managements and lateral input
providers, and highest standards of client servicing.
In the institutional broking space, Reliance Capital plans
to acquire a majority stake in Quant Capital Group.
Reliance Equity International (institutional broking arm of
Reliance Capital) and Quant Capital will integrate and
increase their scale of operations through business synergies
and cost optimization. This proposed transaction is subject
to necessary regulatory approvals.
Quant Capital focuses primarily on the institutional cash
equities and equity derivatives business. Apart from
traditional fundamental research, it also combines
quantitative and behavioral research to forecast trends
and inflection for global currencies, commodities, and
equities. Quant Capital has built and implemented state
of the art trading, risk and operational platforms. The firm
employs over 100 professionals with diverse skills sets.

Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited (REAL)Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited (REAL)Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited (REAL)Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited (REAL)Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited (REAL)
Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited which was set up
with the objective of raising a third party, sector agnostic
private equity fund.
The fund has received excellent commitments from
institutional investors as well as HNIs, including many
first-time PE investors who have willingly adopted the
fund into their investment portfolios. The fund, whose
primary focus is on growth and consolidation capital in
India has made its first investment and is in advanced
discussions to close its second.
Fundraising will commence shortly for the international
fund, the Reliance Alternative Investment Fund 1 LLC
which will co-invest along with the domestic fund. The
focus will be on garnering commitments from International
LPs, and from members of the non-resident Indian
community that believes in the India growth story, and
would like to participate in returns from high growth
companies in the Indian context.
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While the fund raising effort continues, REAL will continue
to evaluate investment opportunities in unlisted/privately
held companies in the high-growth sectors.The Company
having made its first investment in the promising sector of
education, is also evaluating a few attractive investment
opportunities in other sectors and intend to complete 3-
4 investments in the current financial year.

Reliance Spot Exchange (RSX)Reliance Spot Exchange (RSX)Reliance Spot Exchange (RSX)Reliance Spot Exchange (RSX)Reliance Spot Exchange (RSX)
Reliance Spot Exchange is a new initiative of Reliance
Capital in the exchange space by setting up modern
exchanges, in various segments.
The Company commenced operations by launching
Reliance Spot Exchange (RSX) in the month of October
2009. The first contract on the e-auction platform being
metals, subsequently also added spices in the month of
December 2009. RSX has successfully completed three
auctions in metals & pepper.
RSX aims to bring different markets together on a national
electronic platform thereby creating transparency,
efficiency and infrastructure for spot markets across India.

RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance e e e e VVVVVentententententururururure e e e e AAAAAsssssssssset Met Met Met Met Managanaganaganaganagement (Rement (Rement (Rement (Rement (RVVVVVAM)AM)AM)AM)AM)
Reliance Venture Asset Management, wholly owned
subsidiary of Reliance Capital, is the venture capital arm
of the Reliance ADA Group with an investment mandate
to incubate or invest into high-growth, new business ideas
and is stage, sector and geography agnostic.
Ranked 30th in the reputed list of US-based, Red Herring
Top 100 Global Venture Capital firms in 2009 out of
1,800 global VC firms, from 32 countries, and across 12
benchmarks, Reliance Venture is the only Indian Corporate
Venture Capital firm to feature in the ranking.
RVAM is also a recipient of the "Excellence Award" from
India's Institute of Economic Studies, a quasi-government
agency started by Members of the Indian Parliament,
industry leaders, economists and educational leaders.
RVAM currently manages assets of Rs.116 crore (US $
25.7 million).
RVAM's portfolio companies are considered as category
creators and industry leaders. It has spawned companies
including household names such as India's largest online
travel website 'Yatra.com', 'Suvidhaa' - India's leading
service commerce company, 'Stoke, Inc.' - a leader in
multi access convergence network, 'Tessolve' - a leading
semi-conductor testing company amongst many others.
The Company has fostered relations with global premier
institutions and is the exclusive India partner for MIT and
Stanford University for their entrepreneurship and business
competitions. RVAM has also funded two start-ups from
MIT.
RVAM endeavors to be the preferred choice and premier
partner of all its portfolio companies and assures its full
commitment to them over an unlimited period of time.

RRRRRisks and Cisks and Cisks and Cisks and Cisks and Conconconconconcernsernsernsernserns
RCL is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its
businesses and the environment within which it operates,
including market risk, competition risk, interest rate volatility,
human resource risk, execution risk and economic cycle.
Market riskMarket riskMarket riskMarket riskMarket risk
The Company has significant quoted investments which are
exposed to fluctuations in stock prices. These investments
represent a substantial portion of the Company's business and
are vulnerable to fluctuations in the stock markets. Any decline

in the price of the Company's quoted investments may severely
affect its financial position and results of operations. Even though
RCL is exposed to the systematic risk or beta, it has a well
diversified portfolio of stock to mitigate stock specific risk. RCL
continuously monitors market exposure and, in appropriate
cases, also uses various derivative instruments as a hedging
mechanism to limit volatility in its asset returns.
CCCCCompetition riskompetition riskompetition riskompetition riskompetition risk
The financial sector industry is becoming increasingly competitive
and the Company's growth will depend on its ability to compete
effectively. The Company's main competitors are Indian
nonbanking financial companies, life and non-life insurance
companies, both in the public and private sector, mutual funds,
depository participants and other financial services providers.
Foreign banks also operate in India through non-banking finance
companies. Further liberalization of the Indian financial sector
could lead to a greater presence or entry of new foreign banks
and financial services companies offering a wider range of
products and services. This could significantly toughen our
competitive environment. The Company's competitors may have
greater resources than it does and, in some cases, may be
able to raise debt in a more cost-efficient manner. The
Company's growth will depend on its ability to compete
effectively in this context. The Company's strong brand image,
wide distribution network, diversified product offering and depth
of management places it in a strong position to deal with
competition effectively.
CCCCCrrrrreeeeedit riskdit riskdit riskdit riskdit risk
Credit risk is a risk arising out of default or failure on the part of
borrowers in meeting their financial obligations towards
repayment of loans. Thus credit risk is a loss as a result of
non-recovery of funds lent both on principal and interest counts.
This risk is comprehensively addressed both at the strategic
level and at the client level. Extensive and strict norms have
been stipulated in identification of the borrower and evaluation
of credit proposals. All critical underwriting activities are
automated Extensive product programme guidelines have been
developed to suit various product requirements. Appropriate
delegation and deviation grids have been put in place. Each
credit proposal is evaluated on various lending parameters both
in qualitative and quantitative terms. Proper security, industry
norms and ceilings have been prescribed to ensure well spreading
out of risks and to avoid concentration risk. Cross references to
credit bureau data are made to assess the credit behaviour of
the prospective customers. The credit evaluation process is thus
standardized and institutionalized.
In our consumer and home finance businesses, we provide
various customized products to different segment of borrowers.
Borrowers are affected by economic and market changes and
government policies. Since most loans are secured against assets
which are valued by independent agencies and loan to value
ratio is restricted chances of non recoverability in case of default
are minimized. Any early signal of default is addressed on
priority to minimize/ prevent credit loss. The unsecured portfolio
has been reduced considerably and we expect it to be fully
wound down in the next 18 months. Regular portfolio risk
analysis is done extensively on various financial and policy
parameters for making required changes in the credit policy as
a proactive approach to risk management.
The Indian banking industry is highly competitive and we may
compete directly with large public and private sector banks,
which have larger retail customer bases, larger branch networks
and greater access to capital than we do. Large Indian banks
have made significant investments in retail credit in recent
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periods and currently have a larger market share in the retail
credit segment as compared to non-banking finance companies.
If we are unable to compete with other retail lenders in the
Indian banking sector, by reason of our inexperience in retail
lending or otherwise, our business, results of operations and
financial condition could be affected materially and adversely.
With the experience and market knowledge we have gained
over the years in lending business, we are well placed to be
the preferred provider of asset based finance in coming years.
Liquidity RiskLiquidity RiskLiquidity RiskLiquidity RiskLiquidity Risk
The Company is exposed to liquidity risk principally, as a result
of lending to its customers for periods which may differ from
those of its funding sources. RCL's treasury team actively
manages asset liability positions in accordance with the overall
guidelines laid down by the management in the Asset Liability
Management (ALM) framework.
Interest rate riskInterest rate riskInterest rate riskInterest rate riskInterest rate risk
The Company may be adversely impacted by volatility in interest
rates in India which could cause its margins to decline and
profitability to shrink. The success of the Company's business
depends heavily on interest income from its operations. It is
exposed to interest rate risk, principally, as a result of lending
to its customers at fixed interest rates and in amounts and for
periods which may differ from those of its funding sources.
Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond the
Company's control, including the monetary policies of the RBI,
deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and
international economic and political conditions and, inflation.
As a result, interest rates in India have historically experienced
a relatively high degree of volatility. The Company seeks to
match its interest rate positions of assets & liabilities to minimize
interest rate risk. However, there can be no assurance that
significant interest rate movements will not have an adverse
effect on its financial position.
With the growth of the Company's business, it will become
increasingly reliant on funding from the debt capital markets
and commercial borrowings. The market for such funds is
competitive and the Company's ability to obtain funds at
competitive rates will depend on various factors including its
credit ratings.
There can be no guarantee that the Company will be able to
raise debt on competitive terms, in the required quantum and
in a cost effective manner. Any failure to do so may adversely
impact the Company's business, its future financial performance
and the price of its shares. RCL's treasury team actively manages
Asset Liability positions as well as interest rate exposure in
accordance with the overall guidelines laid down by the
management in the Asset Liability Management (ALM)
framework. The Company is also hedged to some extent
against this risk through the variable interest clause in its
advances portfolio.
Human resource riskHuman resource riskHuman resource riskHuman resource riskHuman resource risk
The Company's success depends largely upon the quality and
competence of its management team and key personnel.
Attracting and retaining talented professionals is therefore a
key element of the Company's strategy and a significant source
of competitive advantage. While the Company has a salary
and incentive structure designed to encourage employee
retention, a failure to attract and retain talented professionals,
or the resignation or loss of key management personnel, may
have an adverse impact on the Company's business, its future
financial performance and the price of its equity shares.

Management Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and Analysis

Operational riskOperational riskOperational riskOperational riskOperational risk
The Company may encounter operational and control difficulties
when commencing businesses in new markets. The rapid
development and establishment of financial services businesses
in new markets may raise unanticipated operational or control
risks. Such risks could have a materially adverse effect on the
Company's financial position and the results of its operations.
An extensive system of internal controls is practiced by RCL to
ensure that all its assets are safeguarded and protected against
loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all its transactions
are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Audit
Committee of Directors periodically reviews the adequacy of
our internal controls. The Company has embarked on SAP
implementation for HR and Finance. With this initiative, we
believe that our overall control environment will be enhanced
and we will benefit from the inherent checks & balances that
come with SAP.
The Company is relentlessly focused on quality parameters
and has a dedicated quality team to proactively identify and
address operational issues. The mandate of the quality team
is also to work closely with various business teams to bring
about operational efficiencies and effectiveness through Six
Sigma initiatives.. It is pertinent to note that Reliance Life
Insurance, Reliance General Insurance, Reliance Mutual Fund
and Reliance Consumer Finance have obtained an ISO
9001:2008 certification. They are among the few companies
in their respective industries to be ISO certified.
Regulatory riskRegulatory riskRegulatory riskRegulatory riskRegulatory risk
As a non-deposit taking NBFC, the Company is subject to
regulations by Indian governmental authorities, including the
Reserve Bank of India, or RBI. Also as the Company operates
in various lines of businesses, it is governed by different Indian
regulators across these businesses.
Their laws and regulations impose numerous requirements on
the Company, including asset classifications and prescribed levels
of capital adequacy, cash reserves, solvency requirements and
liquid assets. There may be future changes in the regulatory
system or in the enforcement of the laws and regulations that
could adversely affect the Company.
Economic riskEconomic riskEconomic riskEconomic riskEconomic risk
A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause the
business of the Company to suffer. While the Indian economy
has shown sustained growth over the last several years, the
growth in industrial production has been variable. Any slowdown
in the Indian economy, and in particular in the demand for
housing and infrastructure, could adversely affect the Company's
business. Similarly, any sustained volatility in global commodity
prices, including a significant increase in the prices of oil and
petroleum products, could once again spark off a new
inflationary cycle, thereby curtailing the purchasing power of
the consumers. RCL manages these risks by maintaining a
conservative financial profile and following prudent business
and risk management practices.
IntIntIntIntInternalernalernalernalernal C C C C Controntrontrontrontrololololol S S S S Syyyyystststststemsemsemsemsems
The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed
to provide a high degree of assurance regarding the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of
safeguards for assets, the reliability of financial controls, and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The organization is well structured and the policy guidelines
are well documented with pre-defined authority. The Company
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AuditAuditAuditAuditAuditorororororsssss’ C’ C’ C’ C’ Cererererertiftiftiftiftificicicicicatatatatate on Ce on Ce on Ce on Ce on Corpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernance Re Re Re Re Reporeporeporeporeporttttt
TTTTTo,o,o,o,o,
The Members ofThe Members ofThe Members ofThe Members ofThe Members of
Reliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Ce Ce Ce Ce Capitapitapitapitapitalalalalal Limit Limit Limit Limit Limiteeeeeddddd ('the Company'), for
the year ended on March 31, 2010 as stipulated in Clause 49
of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock
Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been
limited to a review of the procedures and implementations
thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said
Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing
Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 101720W Firm Regn. No.: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

has also implemented suitable controls to ensure that all
resources are utilized optimally, financial transactions are reported
with accuracy and there is strict adherence to applicable laws
and regulations.
The Company has put in place adequate systems to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use
or disposition and that transactions are authorized, recorded
and reported. The Company also has an exhaustive budgetary
control system to monitor all expenditures against approved
budgets on an ongoing basis.
Recognizing the important role of internal scrutiny, the Company
has an internal audit function which is empowered to examine
the adequacy of, and compliance with, policies, plans and
statutory requirements. It is also responsible for assessing and
improving the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance process.
Continuous audit and verification of the systems enables the
various business groups to plug any shortcomings sooner rather
than later. It also evaluates the Company's strategic risk
management system and suggests risk mitigation measures
for all key operations. In addition, the top management and
the Audit committee of the Board periodically review the
findings and take any corrective measures that are required.
OpportunitiesOpportunitiesOpportunitiesOpportunitiesOpportunities

Low retail penetration of financial services/ products in
India.
Tremendous brand strength and extensive distribution
reach.
Opportunity to cross sell services.
Increasing per-capita GDP.
Changing demographic profile of the country in favor of
the young..

ThreatsThreatsThreatsThreatsThreats
Competition from local and multinational players.
Execution risk.
Regulatory changes.
Attraction and retention of human capital.

Human ResourcesHuman ResourcesHuman ResourcesHuman ResourcesHuman Resources
Across all its business operations, Reliance Capital had a
workforce of 22,617 people as on March 31, 2010. The
business wise break up of the workforce is given below:

Business OperationBusiness OperationBusiness OperationBusiness OperationBusiness Operation Number of peopleNumber of peopleNumber of peopleNumber of peopleNumber of people
Asset Management 1,024
General Insurance 1,803
Life Insurance 17,169
Reliance Money 1,582
Consumer Finance 833
Other businesses 152
Reliance Capital 54
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 22,61722,61722,61722,61722,617
Our workforce is young, with an average age of 33 years, and
highly qualified. Nearly 75 per cent of our workforce are
graduates, while 10 per cent are post-graduates and another
11 per cent management graduates and chartered
accountants.
CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Sociale Sociale Sociale Sociale Social R R R R Responsibilitesponsibilitesponsibilitesponsibilitesponsibilityyyyy
Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group is committed to being
an ideal corporate citizedn and doing more than its fair share
to support various deserving causes, in the field of medicine in
particular; setting up and operating Kokilaben Dhirubhai Ambani
Hospital. Reliance Capital supports this and other CSR ventures.
RCL is committed to being a socially responsible company. It
works with distressed individuals, disadvantaged groups, and
with civil society at large. Some of its constituent businesses
pay for critical medical support to needy citizens. Each of
Reliance Capital's different businesses vigorously implements
their own CSR initiatives. Indeed, their CSR efforts are counted
when calculating the business's performance for the year. Some
of the work done by them include Blood donation camps,
donation of old computers to various schools, donations are
given to NGOs working with children or the aged or to the
Missionaries of Charity across the country , Direct cash aid for
paying the medical expenses of life-threatening requirements
for some under-privileged people etc.
Other businesses work with self-help groups to provide them
with funding and other advice to function better. Some other
businesses have also worked with educational institutions to
promote financial literacy and financial inclusiveness.
This is in addition to supporting the charitable activities of the
Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group, both in healthcare and
in caring for older people - Silvers.
The company also follows an active program of energy
abatement and recycling of paper and water, to lower its
carbon footprint. This is not just in its corporate office, but also
in other large offices in big cities.
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In accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchanges in India and some of the best practices
on Corporate Governance, the report containing the details of
governance systems and processes at Reliance Capital Limited
is as under:
Reliance Capital Limited has maintained the highest standards
of corporate governance principles and best practices by adopting
the “R“R“R“R“Reliancelianceliancelianceliance e e e e AnilAnilAnilAnilAnil Dhirubhai  Dhirubhai  Dhirubhai  Dhirubhai  Dhirubhai Ambani GrAmbani GrAmbani GrAmbani GrAmbani Group – Coup – Coup – Coup – Coup – Corpororpororpororpororporatatatatateeeee
GoGoGoGoGovvvvvernancernancernancernancernance Pe Pe Pe Pe Policies and Colicies and Colicies and Colicies and Colicies and Code ofode ofode ofode ofode of C C C C Conduconduconduconduconducttttt””””” as is the norm for
all constituent companies in the group. These Policies and
Code prescribe a set of systems, processes and principles which
conform to the best international standards and are reviewed
periodically to ensure their continuing relevance, effectiveness
and responsiveness to the needs of investors both local and
global and all other stakeholders.
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages
the attainment of the highest levels of transparency,
accountability and equity, in all facets of its operations and in
all interactions with its stakeholders, including shareholders,
employees, the government, lenders and the society. The
Company believes that all its operations and actions must
serve the underlying goal of enhancing long-term shareholder
value. In our commitment to practice sound governance
principles, we are guided by the following core principles:

TTTTTrrrrransparansparansparansparansparencencencencencyyyyy
To maintain the highest standards of transparency in all
aspects of our interactions and dealings.
DisclosureDisclosureDisclosureDisclosureDisclosure
To ensure timely dissemination of all price sensitive
information and matters of interest to our stakeholders.
Empowerment and AccountabilityEmpowerment and AccountabilityEmpowerment and AccountabilityEmpowerment and AccountabilityEmpowerment and Accountability
To demonstrate the highest level s of personal
accountability and to ensure that employees consistently
pursue excellence in everything they do.
CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancomplianceeeee
To comply with all the laws and regulations applicable
to the company.
Ethical conductEthical conductEthical conductEthical conductEthical conduct
To conduct the affairs of the company in an ethical
manner.
Stakeholders’ interestsStakeholders’ interestsStakeholders’ interestsStakeholders’ interestsStakeholders’ interests
To promote the interests of all stakeholders including
customers, shareholders, employees, lenders, vendors and
the community.

Governance practices beyond regulatory requirementsGovernance practices beyond regulatory requirementsGovernance practices beyond regulatory requirementsGovernance practices beyond regulatory requirementsGovernance practices beyond regulatory requirements
Our governance practices go beyond the mere letter of statutory
and regulatory requirements. With this in mind, we have
formulated a number of policy documents and introduced the
following set of governance practices:
A.A.A.A.A. VVVVValalalalalues and cues and cues and cues and cues and commitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentsssss

We have set out and adopted a policy document on
‘values and commitments’ of Reliance Capital. We believe
that any business conduct can be ethical only when it
rests on the nine core values viz., honesty, integrity, respect,
fairness, purposefulness, trust, responsibility, citizenship and
caring.

B.B.B.B.B. CCCCCode ofode ofode ofode ofode of ethics ethics ethics ethics ethics
Our policy document on ‘code of ethics’ demands that
our employees conduct the business with impeccable
integrity and by excluding any consideration of personal
profit or advantage.

C.C.C.C.C. Business policyBusiness policyBusiness policyBusiness policyBusiness policy
Our "business policies" cover a comprehensive range of

issues such as fair market practices, inside information,
financial records and accounting integrity, external
communication, work ethics, personal conduct, policy on
prevention of sexual harassment, health, safety,
environment and quality.

D.D.D.D.D. SeparSeparSeparSeparSeparat ion ofat ion ofat ion ofat ion ofat ion of the Boar the Boar the Boar the Boar the Board’s superd’s superd’s superd’s superd’s supervisorvisorvisorvisorvisory ry ry ry ry ro lo lo lo lo le fe fe fe fe frrrrromomomomom
executive managementexecutive managementexecutive managementexecutive managementexecutive management
In line with the best global practices, we have adopted
the policy of separating the Board’s Supervisory role from
that of executive management. We have also split the
posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

E.E.E.E.E. Prohibition of insider trading policyProhibition of insider trading policyProhibition of insider trading policyProhibition of insider trading policyProhibition of insider trading policy
This document contains the policy on prohibiting trading
in the equity shares of the Company, based on insider or
privileged information.

FFFFF..... Prevention of sexual harassmentPrevention of sexual harassmentPrevention of sexual harassmentPrevention of sexual harassmentPrevention of sexual harassment
Our policy on prevention of sexual harassment aims at
promoting a productive work environment and protects
individual rights against sexual harassment.

G.G.G.G.G. Whistle blower policyWhistle blower policyWhistle blower policyWhistle blower policyWhistle blower policy
Our whistle blower policy encourages disclosure in good
faith of any wrongful conduct on a matter of general
concern and protects the whistle blower from any adverse
personnel action.

H.H.H.H.H. Environment policyEnvironment policyEnvironment policyEnvironment policyEnvironment policy
The Company is committed to achieving excellence in
environmental performance, preservation and promotion
of clean environment. These are the fundamental concern
in all our business activities.

I .I .I .I .I . Risk managementRisk managementRisk managementRisk managementRisk management
Our risk management procedures ensure that the
management controls various business related risks through
means of a properly defined framework.

J.J.J.J.J. Boardroom practicesBoardroom practicesBoardroom practicesBoardroom practicesBoardroom practices
i.i .i .i .i . ChairmanChairmanChairmanChairmanChairman

In line with the highest global standards of corporate
governance, the Board has separated the Chairman's
role from that of an executive in managing day-to-
day business affairs.

i i .i i .i i .i i .i i . Board charterBoard charterBoard charterBoard charterBoard charter
The Board of Directors has adopted a comprehensive
charter, which sets out clear and transparent guidelines
on matters relating to the composition of the Board,
the scope and function of various Board Committees,
etc.

i i i .i i i .i i i .i i i .i i i . BoarBoarBoarBoarBoard Cd Cd Cd Cd Commitommitommitommitommitttttteeseeseeseesees
The Board constituted Audit Committee, Nomination/
Remuneration Committee and Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievances Committee. The Board rotates
the Chairman of these Committees once in two years.

iviviviviv..... TTTTTenurenurenurenurenure ofe ofe ofe ofe of independent dir independent dir independent dir independent dir independent dirececececectttttorororororsssss
The tenure of independent directors on the Board of
the Company shall not exceed nine years, subject
to their re-appointment on retirement by rotation
as per statutory provisions.

vvvvv..... I ndependent  d i rec to r ’ s  i n te rac t ion  w i thIndependent  d i rec to r ’ s  i n te rac t ion  w i thIndependent  d i rec to r ’ s  i n te rac t ion  w i thIndependent  d i rec to r ’ s  i n te rac t ion  w i thIndependent  d i rec to r ’ s  i n te rac t ion  w i th
shareholdersshareholdersshareholdersshareholdersshareholders
Member(s) of the Shareholders' / Investors' Grievances
Committee interact with shareholders on their
suggestions and queries, if any, which are forwarded
to the Company Secretary.

vi.vi.vi.vi.vi. Lead independent directorLead independent directorLead independent directorLead independent directorLead independent director
Recognizing the need for a representative and
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spokesperson for the independent directors, the Board
has appointed an independent director as the lead
independent director. The lead independent director
performs the following roles in addition to the role
of a non-executive independent director:

preside over all executive sessions of the Board’s
independent directors;
work closely with the Chairman to finalize the
information flow, meeting agenda and meeting
schedules;
l ia ise between the Chairman and the
independent directors on the Board; and
take a lead role along with the Chairman in
the Board evaluation process.

The Board designated Shri Rajendra P. Chitale as
the lead independent director. The position of the
lead independent director is rotated once in two years.

vii.vii.vii.vii.vii. TTTTTrrrrraining ofaining ofaining ofaining ofaining of Boar Boar Boar Boar Board Md Md Md Md Memberemberemberemberembersssss
The Board members are periodically given formal
orientation and training with respect to the Company's
vision, strategic direction, core values including ethics,
corporate governance practices, financial matters and
business operations. The Directors are facilitated to
get familiar with the Company's functions at the
operational levels. Periodic presentations are made
at the Board and Committee Meetings, on business
and performance updates of the Company, global
business environment, business strategy and risks
involved. The Board members are also provided with
the necessary documents/brochures, reports and
internal policies to enable them to familiarize with
the Company's procedures and practices.
Periodic updates and training programs for Board
members are also conducted on relevant statutory
changes and landmark judicial pronouncements
encompassing important laws. In the current year
this included seminars on GST, Direct Tax Code, IFRS,
Companies Bill, Corporate Governance Guidelines, etc.

viii.vii i.vii i.vii i.vii i. Meeting of independent directors with operatingMeeting of independent directors with operatingMeeting of independent directors with operatingMeeting of independent directors with operatingMeeting of independent directors with operating
teamteamteamteamteam
The independent directors of the Company meet in
executive sessions with the various operating teams
as and when they deem necessary. These discussions
may include topics such as, operating policies and
procedures, risk management strategies, measures
to improve efficiencies, per formance and
compensation, strategic issues for Board consideration,
flow of information to directors, management
progression and succession and others as the
independent directors may determine. During these
executive sessions, the independent directors have
access to members of management and other
advisors, as the independent directors may determine
and deem fit.

ix.ix.ix.ix.ix. Monitoring of subsidiariesMonitoring of subsidiariesMonitoring of subsidiariesMonitoring of subsidiariesMonitoring of subsidiaries
The minutes of meetings of Boards of subsidiary
companies are periodically placed before the Board
of the Company.

x.x.x.x.x. CCCCCommitment ofommitment ofommitment ofommitment ofommitment of dir dir dir dir dirececececectttttorororororsssss
The meeting dates for the entire financial year are
scheduled in the beginning of the year and an annual
calendar of meetings of the Board and its Committees
is circulated to the directors. This enables the directors
to plan their commitments and facilitates attendance
at the meetings of the Board and its Committees.

K.K.K.K.K. GoGoGoGoGovvvvvernancernancernancernancernance pre pre pre pre pracacacacactictictictictices being fes being fes being fes being fes being fololololollllllooooowwwwweeeeed td td td td to pro pro pro pro promoomoomoomoomottttte thee thee thee thee the
interests of our stakeholdersinterests of our stakeholdersinterests of our stakeholdersinterests of our stakeholdersinterests of our stakeholders
We have introduced several trend setting governance
practices to improve stakeholders’ satisfaction. Some of
the major ones among them are:
i.i .i .i .i . CCCCCustustustustustomeromeromeromeromersssss

We have taken various initiatives towards customer
care by providing comprehensive online support across
businesses.

i i .i i .i i .i i .i i . EmployeesEmployeesEmployeesEmployeesEmployees
In our relentless pursuit of driving 'operational
excellence', and our resolve to make Reliance Capital
a "Great Place to Work, we focus on evolving efficient
and agile organization structures, relentlessly driving
capability, leadership and culture building and
acquiring, developing and retaining high quality talent.
We review and revise our HR policies constantly to
align to the Market and Industry benchmarks and
making them increasingly transparent and employee-
friendly. These policies have been extensively
communicated to employees and automated.
We have a dedicated service portal which offers
various online HR services and facilities to employees.
Some of these facilities are; details of current and
past salaries, income-tax computations, attendance
and leave management, goal setting with relevant
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), potential
assessment module, performance evaluation system,
feedback mechanism, reward and recognition policy,
grievance redressal system, exit interviews, training
and development module, etc.
We regularly conduct an employee engagement
survey through an independent external organization
aimed to identify the areas of strengths as well as
those which need improvement. The results of this
survey are communicated to all employees and
appropriate action is initiated to enhance employee
satisfaction based on their feedback. As a means of
providing accelerated career growth to high performing
talent, we have a pilot program of assessment
centers, wherein employees who have a proven track
record are put through a rigorous assessment program
for higher role.
We have institutionalised a leadership development
process, linked to Reliance DNA & leadership
competencies, which identifies high potential talent
on a periodic basis and provides necessary learning
interventions to help them take on larger
responsibilities and roles.

i i i .i i i .i i i .i i i .i i i . ShareholdersShareholdersShareholdersShareholdersShareholders
The Company recognizes the importance of two way
communication with shareholders and of giving a
balanced report of results and progress and responds
to questions and issues raised in a timely and
consistent manner. To ensure this, the Company's
corporate website; www.reliancecapital.co.in has
information for institutional and retail shareholders
alike. Shareholders seeking information may contact
the Company directly throughout the year. They also
have an opportunity to ask questions in person at
the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders can
contact the company via dedicated shareholders
contact points as provided in this report or through
any of Investor Service Centers of the Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents spread in more than
80 cities across India, details of which are available
on the Company's website.
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iviviviviv..... LendersLendersLendersLendersLenders
The Company has been prompt in honouring all debt
obligations to its lenders.

vvvvv..... SocietySocietySocietySocietySociety
The Company, in keeping with its Corporate Social
Responsibility policy, focuses on healthcare, education,
and other social initiatives.

L.L.L.L.L. RRRRRololololole ofe ofe ofe ofe of the C the C the C the C the Companompanompanompanompany Secry Secry Secry Secry Secretetetetetararararary in Goy in Goy in Goy in Goy in Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernance Pe Pe Pe Pe Prrrrrocococococessessessessess
The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that
the Board procedures are followed and regularly reviewed.
The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant
information, details and documents are made available
to the directors and senior management for effective
decision making at the meetings. The Company Secretary
is primarily responsible to ensure compliance with
applicable statutory requirements and is the interface
between the management and regulatory authorities for
governance matters. All the Directors of the Company
have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary.

M.M.M.M.M. Independent Statutory AuditorsIndependent Statutory AuditorsIndependent Statutory AuditorsIndependent Statutory AuditorsIndependent Statutory Auditors
The Company's accounts are audited by a panel of 2
leading independent audit firms as follows:

M/s. B S R & Co., Chartered Accountants.
M/s. Char turvedi & Shah (C&S), Char tered
Accountants.

CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancompliance with the ce with the ce with the ce with the ce with the code and rulode and rulode and rulode and rulode and rules ofes ofes ofes ofes of L L L L Luxuxuxuxuxembourg Stembourg Stembourg Stembourg Stembourg Stockockockockock
Exchange (LSE)Exchange (LSE)Exchange (LSE)Exchange (LSE)Exchange (LSE)
The Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) issued by the company
are listed on the LSE. The company has reviewed the code on
corporate governance of LSE, though the same is not applicable
to the company. However, the company’s corporate governance
practices substantially conform to these codes and rules.
CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancompliance with Cle with Cle with Cle with Cle with Clausausausausause 49 ofe 49 ofe 49 ofe 49 ofe 49 of the listing ag the listing ag the listing ag the listing ag the listing agrrrrreementeementeementeementeement
The Company is fully compliant with the mandatory
requirements of Clause 49 of the listing agreement formulated
by Securities and Exchange Board of India. We present our
report on compliance of governance conditions specified in
Clause 49 of the listing agreement.
I .I .I .I .I . Board of DirectorsBoard of DirectorsBoard of DirectorsBoard of DirectorsBoard of Directors
1.1.1.1.1. Board composition - Board strength andBoard composition - Board strength andBoard composition - Board strength andBoard composition - Board strength andBoard composition - Board strength and

representationrepresentationrepresentationrepresentationrepresentation
As at March 31, 2010, the Board consisted of five
Members. The composition of and the category of directors
on the Board of the company were as under:
CategoryCategoryCategoryCategoryCategory PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararars ofs ofs ofs ofs of dir dir dir dir dirececececectttttorororororsssss
Promoter, Non- Shri Anil D. Ambani, Chairman
executive, Non
independent Director
Non-executive, Non Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala,
independent Director Vice Chairman
Independent Directors Shri Rajendra P. Chitale

Shri C. P. Jain
Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal
Shri V. N. Kaul *

* Shri V. N. Kaul was appointed as an Additional Director
on April 30, 2010. The Board now comprises of six
members.
Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
a. None of the directors is related to any other director.

b. None of the directors has any business relationship
with the company.

c. None of the directors has received any loans and
advances from the company during the year.

All the independent Directors of the Company furnish a
declaration at the time of their appointment as also
annually that they qualify the conditions of their being
independent. All such declarations are placed before the
Board.
The Company has appointed Shri V. R. Mohan, Company
Secretary as the Manager of the Company in terms of
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for a period of
five years with effect from March 7, 2006.

2.2.2.2.2. CCCCConduconduconduconduconduct oft oft oft oft of Boar Boar Boar Boar Board prd prd prd prd procococococeeeeeeeeeedingdingdingdingdingsssss
The day to day business is conducted by the executives
and the business heads of the Company under the direction
of the Board led by the Chairman. The Board holds
minimum four meetings every year to review and discuss
the performance of the Company, its future plans,
strategies and other pertinent issues relating to the
Company.
The Board performs the following specific functions in
addition to overseeing the business and the management:

review, monitor and approve major financial and
business strategies and corporate actions;
assess critical risks facing the Company - review
options for their mitigation;
provide counsel on the selection, evaluation,
development and compensation of senior
management;
ensure that processes are in place for maintaining
the integrity of:
a) the Company
b) the financial statements
c) compliance with law
d) relationship with all the stakeholders
delegation of appropriate authority to the senior
executives of the Company for effective management
of operations.

3.3.3.3.3. Board meetingsBoard meetingsBoard meetingsBoard meetingsBoard meetings
The Board held five meetings during 2009-10 on April
30, 2009, July 31, 2009, October 30, 2009, January
30, 2010 and March 6, 2010. The maximum time gap
between any two meetings was 91 days and the
minimum gap was 34 days.
The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all
laws applicable to the Company.

4.4.4.4.4. Standards issued by ICSIStandards issued by ICSIStandards issued by ICSIStandards issued by ICSIStandards issued by ICSI
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) has
issued various ‘Secretarial Standards’ on key corporate
functions like Board meetings, General meetings, Payment
of Dividend, Maintenance of Registers and Records,
Minutes of Meetings, Transmission of Shares and
Debentures, Passing of Resolutions by Circulation, Affixing
of common Seal, Forfeiture of Shares and Board’s Report.
Although these standards are not mandatory, the Company
adheres to them voluntarily.

5.5.5.5.5. Attendance of directorsAttendance of directorsAttendance of directorsAttendance of directorsAttendance of directors
The overall attendance of directors was 91 per cent. It is
proposed to introduce tele-conferencing and video-
conferencing facilities immediately upon amendment to
the relevant statutes.
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Attendance of directors at the board meetings heldAttendance of directors at the board meetings heldAttendance of directors at the board meetings heldAttendance of directors at the board meetings heldAttendance of directors at the board meetings held
during 2009-2010 and the last Annual General Meetingduring 2009-2010 and the last Annual General Meetingduring 2009-2010 and the last Annual General Meetingduring 2009-2010 and the last Annual General Meetingduring 2009-2010 and the last Annual General Meeting
(AGM)(AGM)(AGM)(AGM)(AGM)
Name of theName of theName of theName of theName of the MeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetings MeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetings AAAAAttendancettendancettendancettendancettendance
DirectorDirectorDirectorDirectorDirector held duringheld duringheld duringheld duringheld during attendedattendedattendedattendedattended at the lastat the lastat the lastat the lastat the last

the tenurethe tenurethe tenurethe tenurethe tenure AGMAGMAGMAGMAGM
Shri Anil D. Ambani 5 5 Present
Shri Amitabh
Jhunjhunwala 5 5 Present
Shri Rajendra P. Chitale 5 4 Present
Shri C. P. Jain 5 5 Present
Shri P. N. Ghatalia* 2 1 Present
Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal** 2 2 -
*Shri P. N. Ghatalia upon demise ceased to be the Director
of the Company w.e.f August 12, 2009.
** Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal was appointed as Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f October 30, 2009.

6.6.6.6.6. Other directorshipsOther directorshipsOther directorshipsOther directorshipsOther directorships
None of the directors hold directorships in more than 15
public limited companies.
The details of directorships (calculation as per provisionsThe details of directorships (calculation as per provisionsThe details of directorships (calculation as per provisionsThe details of directorships (calculation as per provisionsThe details of directorships (calculation as per provisions
ofofofofof Sec Sec Sec Sec Section 275 & 278 oftion 275 & 278 oftion 275 & 278 oftion 275 & 278 oftion 275 & 278 of the C the C the C the C the Companies ompanies ompanies ompanies ompanies AAAAAccccct, 1956),t, 1956),t, 1956),t, 1956),t, 1956),
Chairmanships and the CChairmanships and the CChairmanships and the CChairmanships and the CChairmanships and the Commitommitommitommitommittttttee memberee memberee memberee memberee memberships heldships heldships heldships heldships held
by the directors as on March 31, 2010.by the directors as on March 31, 2010.by the directors as on March 31, 2010.by the directors as on March 31, 2010.by the directors as on March 31, 2010.
Name of theName of theName of theName of theName of the Number ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber of Committee(s)Committee(s)Committee(s)Committee(s)Committee(s)11111

DirectorDirectorDirectorDirectorDirector directorshipdirectorshipdirectorshipdirectorshipdirectorship membershipmembershipmembershipmembershipmembership22222

(including RCL)(including RCL)(including RCL)(including RCL)(including RCL) (including RCL)(including RCL)(including RCL)(including RCL)(including RCL)
MembershipMembershipMembershipMembershipMembership ChairmanshipChairmanshipChairmanshipChairmanshipChairmanship

Shri Anil D. Ambani 7 3 1
Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala 3 2 -
Shri Rajendra P. Chitale 10 8 2
Shri C. P. Jain 3 5 2
Shri P. N. Ghatalia* 9 5 5
Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal 13 10 4
*Shri P. N. Ghatalia upon demise ceased to be the Director
of the Company w.e.f. August 12, 2009.
1. The information provided above pertains to the

following Committees in accordance with the
provisions of Clause 49 of the listing agreement:
a. Audit Committee
b. Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee

2. Membership of Committees include chairmanship, if
any.

7.7.7.7.7. MMMMMemberemberemberemberembership ofship ofship ofship ofship of Boar Boar Boar Boar Board Cd Cd Cd Cd Commitommitommitommitommitttttteeseeseeseesees
No director holds membership of more than 10
Committees of Board, nor, any director is a Chairman of
more than 5 Committees of Board.

8.8.8.8.8. Details of DirectorsDetails of DirectorsDetails of DirectorsDetails of DirectorsDetails of Directors
The abbreviated resumes of all Directors are furnished
hereunder:
Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, regarded as one of the
foremost corporate leaders of contemporary India,
Shri Ambani, 51 is the Chairman of Rel iance
Communications Limited, Reliance Capital Limited,
Reliance Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Natural Resources
Limited and Reliance Power Limited. He is also on the
board of Reliance Infratel Limited and Reliance Anil
Dhirubhai Ambani Group Limited. He is the President of
the Dhirubhai Ambani Institute of Information and
Communication Technology, Gandhinagar, Gujarat.

An MBA from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, Shri Ambani is credited with pioneering
several path-breaking financial innovations in the Indian
capital markets. He spearheaded the country's first forays
into overseas capital markets with international public
offerings of global depository receipts, convertibles and
bonds. Under his Chairmanship, the constituent companies
of the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group have raised
nearly US$ 7 billion from global financial markets in a
period of less than 3 years.
Shri Ambani has been associated with a number of
prestigious academic institutions in India and abroad.
He is currently a member of:He is currently a member of:He is currently a member of:He is currently a member of:He is currently a member of:

Wharton Board of Overseers, The Wharton School,
USA.
Board of Governors, Indian Institute of Management
(IIM), Ahmedabad.
Executive Board, Indian School of Business (ISB),
Hyderabad.

In June 2004, Shri Ambani was elected as an Independent
member of the Rajya Sabha – Upper House, Parliament
of India, a position he chose to resign voluntarily on 29th
March, 2006.
Select Awards and AchievementsSelect Awards and AchievementsSelect Awards and AchievementsSelect Awards and AchievementsSelect Awards and Achievements

Awarded by Light Readings as the Person of the
Year – 2008 for outstanding achievements in the
communication industry.
Voted ‘the Businessman of the Year’ in a poll
conducted by The Times of India – TNS, December,
2006.
Voted the ‘Best role model’ among business leaders
in the biannual Mood of the Nation poll conducted
by India Today magazine, August 2006.
Conferred ‘the CEO of the Year 2004’ in the Platts
Global Energy Awards.
Conferred ‘The Entrepreneur of the Decade Award’
by the Bombay Management Association, October
2002.
Awarded the First Wharton Indian Alumni Award by
the Wharton India Economic Forum (WIEF) in
recognition of his contribution to the establishment
of Reliance as a global leader in many of its business
areas, December, 2001.

Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri AmitAmitAmitAmitAmitabh abh abh abh abh JhunjhunJhunjhunJhunjhunJhunjhunJhunjhunwwwwwalalalalala,a,a,a,a, 53, is a Fellow Chartered
Accountant with a proven record for evaluation of business
and investment opportunities. He possesses long spectrum
of exposure in developing, strategizing and overseeing
businesses in capital markets, financial services, power,
telecommunication and entertainment sectors. He has
the expertise in developing, diverisifying new financial
management strategies. Currently, he oversees and leads
businesses in financial services and entertainment sectors
of the Reliance ADA group. He has experience in the
areas of finance, commercial, banking, accounts, taxation,
legal, audit and general management. Shri Jhunjhunwala
is the Group Managing Director of the Reliance Anil
Dhirubhai Ambani Group. He is a Vice Chairman of Reliance
Capital Limited and also a director on the Board of Reliance
Equity Advisors (India) Limited, Reliance Anil Dhirubhai
Ambani Group Limited and Harmony Art Foundation.
Shri C. PShri C. PShri C. PShri C. PShri C. P. . . . . JJJJJain,ain,ain,ain,ain, 64, is the former Chairman and Managing
Director of NTPC Ltd. (National Thermal Power
Corporation). Shri Jain has an illustrious career spanning
over four decades of contribution in the fields of financial
management, general management, strategic
management and business leadership. He is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
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India with an advanced diploma in Management and is a
law graduate. Shri C. P. Jain joined the Board of NTPC in
1993 as Director (Finance), was elevated as Chairman &
Managing Director in September 2000 and superannuated
in March 2006. He is Chairman of the Global Studies
Committee of World Energy Council (WEC), one of the
world’s largest energy NGOs with nearly ninty four
member-nations. He has been on several important
committees of the Government of India, latest being the
‘Adhoc Group of Experts on Empowerment of CPSEs’ and
was also a member of the Audit Advisory Board of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. He was Chairman
of Standing Conference of Public Enterprises (SCOPE)
between April 2003 and March 2005. He is a Director
on the Board of IL & FS Infrastructure Development
Corporation Ltd. and PCI Ltd.
Shri Rajendra ChitaleShri Rajendra ChitaleShri Rajendra ChitaleShri Rajendra ChitaleShri Rajendra Chitale, 49, a law graduate and an eminent
Chartered Accountant, is a Managing Partner of M. P.
Chitale & Associates (India’s only boutique full service
structuring and tax advisory firm) and M. P. Chitale & Co.
(one of the India’s leading accounting and consulting
firms). He is a member of the Insurance Advisory
Committee of the Insurance and Regulatory Authority of
India (IRDA), and has served as a member of the Company
Law Advisory Committee, Government of India, the
Takeover Panel of the Securities & Exchange Board of
India, the Advisory Committee on Regulations of the
Competition Commission of India, and the Maharashtra
Board for Restructuring of State Enterprises, Government
of Maharashtra. He has served as a director on the boards
of Life Insurance Corporation of India, Unit Trust of India,
Small Industries Development Bank of India, National
Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Asset Reconstruction
Company (India) Ltd, SBI Capital Markets Ltd. He currently
serves as a director on the boards of several large
companies including National Securities Clearing Corporation
Ltd., Ambuja Cements Ltd., Ishaan Real Estate Plc, Hinduja
Ventures Ltd., Hinduja Global Solutions Ltd., IndusInd Media
and Communications Ltd., Reliance Life Insurance Company
Ltd., Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Limited and Reliance
General Insurance Company Ltd.
DrDrDrDrDr. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhusan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samal, 66, Master in Agriculture (Gold
Medalist) and doctorate in Economics from Kalyani
University, West Bengal. He is also a Post Graduate
Diploma holder in Bank Management from the National
Institute of Bank Management, Pune. He has more than
30 years of work experience in the field of Rural Banking,
Securities Markets and Industrial Finance. He has served
as Chairman and Managing Director of Allahabad Bank,
Chairman and Managing Director of Industrial Investment
Bank of India, Director of Agriculture Finance Corporation
Ltd., Chairman of IBA Working Group on Agriculture Credit
and as Member of the Securities Appellate Tribunal.
Presently, he is a member of the Task Force set up by the
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises and
Employment Mission set up by the Government of Orissa.
He is a Director on the Board of Surana Industries Ltd.,
Zicom Electronic Security Systems Ltd., Industrial
Investment Trust Ltd., Indo Green Projects Ltd., May Fair
Hotels and Resorts Ltd., ARSS Infrastrusture Projects Ltd.,
Shriram Life Insurance Company Ltd., IIT Investrust Ltd.,
Shrijee Foundation, Money Matters Financial Services Ltd.,
Jaiprakash Associates Ltd., Jaypee Infratech Ltd. and Jaypee
Karcham Hydro Corporation Ltd..
Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri VVVVV. N. N. N. N. N. Kaul. Kaul. Kaul. Kaul. Kaul, aged 67 has a Masters Degree in History
from St. Stephens’ College, Delhi and entered the Indian
Administrative Service in 1965. He is also a fellow of the
Economic Development Institute, World Bank and of the
ODC University of Manchester, UK. Shri Kaul has wide
experience of working in various capacities under both –

the State Government of Madhya Pradesh (MP), as well
as under the Government of India. His assignments under
the State Government included stints as Secretary in the
Departments of Commerce & Industry and Finance and
as Principal Secretary in the Home Department. He also
held various charges in parastatal organisations under the
State Government, including the charges of Chairman of
the MP State Industries Development Corporation, MP
State Export Corporation, MP State Finance Corporation
and the MP State Electronics Development Corporation.
Shri Kaul has held several senior positions under the
Government of India. These included two terms as Joint
Secretary in the Ministry of Commerce. He has served on
the Board of Governors of APEF and on the Board of
Central Public Sector Companies. His main area of
expertise is International Trade and Finance. As Secretary
to Government of India, Shri Kaul has served in the
Ministries of Coal, Chemicals and Fertilizers and Petroleum
and Natural Gas. As an International Civil Servant, Shri
Kaul was seconded to the United Nations in 1991 and
served for seven years as Advisor, Trade Policy for Asia-
Pacific Region, UN-ESCAP, Bangkok with jurisdiction over
the Asia-Pacific region. Shri Kaul was the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India between 2002 and 2008.

9.9.9.9.9. Insurance coverageInsurance coverageInsurance coverageInsurance coverageInsurance coverage
The Company has obtained directors and officers liability
insurance coverage in respect of any legal action that
might be initiated against directors.

II .II .II .II .II . Audit CAudit CAudit CAudit CAudit Commitommitommitommitommitttttteeeeeeeeee
In terms of Clause 49 of the listing agreement as well as
Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board
has constituted Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
at its meeting held on July 28, 2000. At present, the
Committee consists of two independent & non- executive
directors and one non- executive director of the Company.
viz; Shri C. P Jain, Chairman, Shri Rajendra P. Chitale and
Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala as members. Shri C. P. Jain
has wide experience on accounting, financial, business
policies and taxation issues. All other members of the
Committee are financially literate.
The Audit Committee, inter alia advises the management
on the areas where systems, processes, measures for
controlling and monitoring revenue assurance, internal
audit, risk management can be improved. The minutes
of the meetings of the Audit Committee are placed before
the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are in accordance with all the items listed in Clause
49(II)(D) and (E) of the listing agreement as follows:
i. Overseeing of the Company's financial reporting

process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial information is correct,
sufficient and credible;

ii. Recommending the appointment, reappointment and
replacement/removal of statutory auditor and
fixation of audit fee;

iii. Approving payment for any other services by statutory
auditors;

iv. Reviewing with management the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board, focusing
primarily on;
a. Matters required to be included in the Director's

Responsibility Statement included in the report
of the Board of Directors

b. Any changes in accounting policies and practices
and reasons thereof

c. Major accounting entries based on exercise of
judgment by management
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d. Qualifications in draft audit report
e. Significant adjustments arising out of audit
f. Compliance with l ist ing and other legal

requirements concerning financial statements
g. Disclosure of related party transactions

v. Reviewing with the management the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

vi. Reviewing with the management, the statement of
uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the
statement of funds utilised for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or
right issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

vii. Reviewing with the management, the performance
of the external and internal auditors, the adequacy
of internal control systems;

viii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

ix. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant
findings and follow up thereon;

x. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;

xi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences about nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

xii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debentureholders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

xiii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
mechanism;

xiv. To approve appointment of Chief Financial Officer
after assessing qualification, experience, and
background etc.

xv. Carrying out all other functions as is mentioned in
the terms of reference of the Audit committee;

xvi. Review the following information:
a. Management Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations
b. Internal audit reports relating to internal control

weaknesses
c. Management letters / letters of internal control

weaknesses issued by statutory auditors
d. Statement of signif icant related party

transactions and
e. The appointment, removal and terms of

remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.
The Audit Committee has the following powers:

i. to investigate any activity within its terms of reference;
ii. to seek any information from any employee;
iii. to obtain outside legal and professional advice;

iv. to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

Attendance at the meetings of the audit committee heldAttendance at the meetings of the audit committee heldAttendance at the meetings of the audit committee heldAttendance at the meetings of the audit committee heldAttendance at the meetings of the audit committee held
during 2009-2010during 2009-2010during 2009-2010during 2009-2010during 2009-2010
The Audit Committee held its meetings on April 30, 2009,
July 30, 2009, October 30, 2009 and January 30, 2010.
Minimum and maximum gap between any two meetings,
during the year under review was 90 days and 91 days
respectively.
Name of the memberName of the memberName of the memberName of the memberName of the member Number ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber of Number ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber of

Meetings heldMeetings heldMeetings heldMeetings heldMeetings held MeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetings
during theduring theduring theduring theduring the attendedattendedattendedattendedattended

tenuretenuretenuretenuretenure
Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala 4 4
Shri Rajendra P. Chitale 4 4
Shri C. P. Jain 4 4
Shri P. N. Ghatalia* 2 2
*Shri P. N. Ghatalia upon demise ceased to be the member of
the Audit Committee we.f August 12, 2009.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at
the last Annual General Meeting.
The meeting considered all the points in terms of its
reference at periodic intervals.
Shri V. R. Mohan, Company Secretary & Manager acts as
the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Committee discussed with the Company’s
auditors the overall scope and plans for the independent audit.
The Management represented to the Committee that the
Company’s financial statements were prepared in accordance
with prevailing laws and regulations. The Committee discussed
the Company’s audited financial statements, the rationality of
significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the
financial statements. Based on the review and discussions
conducted with the Management and the auditors, the audit
Committee believes that the Company’s financial statements
are fairly presented in conformity with prevailing laws and
regulations in all material aspects.
The Committee has also reviewed the internal controls put in
place to ensure that the accounts of the Company are properly
maintained and that the accounting transactions are in
accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations. In
conducting such reviews, the Committee found no material
discrepancy or weakness in the internal control systems of the
Company. The Committee also reviewed the financial policies
of the Company and expressed its satisfaction with the same.
The Committee, after review expressed its satisfaction on the
independence of both the internal and the statutory auditors.
Based on the Committee’s discussion with the Management
and the auditors and the Committee’s review of the
representations of the Management, the Committee has
recommended the following to the Board of Directors:
1. The audited annual financial statements of the Company

for the year ended March 31, 2010, be accepted by the
Board as a true and fair statement of the financial status
of the Company.

2. The audited abridged financial statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2010, be accepted by the
Board as a true and fair statement of the financial status
of the Company.

3. The audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended March
31, 2010, be accepted by the Board as a true and fair
statement of the financial status.
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III.III.III.III.III. NominaNominaNominaNominaNomination / Rtion / Rtion / Rtion / Rtion / Remuneremuneremuneremuneremuneration Cation Cation Cation Cation Commitommitommitommitommitttttteeeeeeeeee
The Nomination/Remuneration Committee of the Board
is constituted to formulate from time to time (a) process
for selection and appointment of new directors and
succession plans and (b) recommend to the Board from
time to time, a compensation structure for directors and
the manager. Presently, the Company has no executive
director.
During the year under review, Nomination / / / / /Remuneration
Committee met twice on April 30, 2009 and October
30, 2009, which was attended by all members.
The Nomination / Remuneration Committee of the Board
comprises of Shri C. P. Jain, Chairman, Shri Amitabh
Jhunjhunwala and Shri Rajendra P. Chitale, as its members.
Shri V. R. Mohan, Company Secretary & Manager acts as
the Secretary to the Nomination / Remuneration
Committee.
Equity shares held by DirectorsEquity shares held by DirectorsEquity shares held by DirectorsEquity shares held by DirectorsEquity shares held by Directors
Except Shri Anil D. Ambani who held 2,73,891 equity
shares and Shri Rajendra P. Chitale who held 8,500 equity
shares as at March 31, 2010, no other Director of the
company held any equity shares of the Company.
Managerial remuneration policyManagerial remuneration policyManagerial remuneration policyManagerial remuneration policyManagerial remuneration policy
The Nomination/Remuneration Committee determines
and recommends to the Board, the compensation of the
Directors and the Manager. The key components of the
Company's Remuneration Policy are:

Compensation will be a major driver of performance.
Compensation will be competitive and benchmarked
with a select group of companies from the service
sector.
Compensation will be transparent, fair and simple to
administer.
Compensation will be fully legal and tax compliant.

The Members had, through Postal Ballot on July 21,
2006, approved payment of commissions to non
executive directors, who are not in the whole time
employment, upto the limits laid down under the
provisions of Section 309(4) of the Companies Act, 1956,
computed in the manner specified in the Act or such
other limit as approved by the Central Government, for a
period of 5 years from the financial year commencing
April 1, 2006.
The Company had obtained approval from the Central
Government for payment of commission to non executive
directors upto a limit of 3% of the profits of the Company
each year for a period of 5 years from the financial year
commencing April 1, 2006.
The Board of Directors based on recommendation of
Nomination/ Remuneration Committee at their meeting
held on April 30, 2009 had approved payment of
commission of Rs.60 lacs to the Non Executive
Independent Directors of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2009 based on various parameters, which was
paid during the year 2009-10. Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani
had not taken commission for the year 2008-09.
CCCCCritritritritriteria feria feria feria feria fororororor making pa making pa making pa making pa making paymentymentymentymentyments ts ts ts ts to non-eo non-eo non-eo non-eo non-exxxxxecutivecutivecutivecutivecutive dire dire dire dire dirececececectttttorororororsssss
The remuneration to non executive directors is benchmarked
with the relevant market and performance oriented,
balanced between financial and sectored market,
comparative scales aligned to Corporate goals, role
assumed and number of meetings attended.

DetDetDetDetDetailailailailails ofs ofs ofs ofs of sit sit sit sit sitting fting fting fting fting fees and cees and cees and cees and cees and commission paid tommission paid tommission paid tommission paid tommission paid to diro diro diro diro dirececececectttttorororororsssss
in the year 2009-10in the year 2009-10in the year 2009-10in the year 2009-10in the year 2009-10

(Rs. in lakh)
Name of the DirectorName of the DirectorName of the DirectorName of the DirectorName of the Director SittingSittingSittingSittingSitting CCCCCommissionommissionommissionommissionommission

fffffeeseeseeseesees
Shri Anil D. Ambani 1.00 -
Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala 3.40 15.00
Shri Rajendra P. Chitale 3.20 15.00
Shri C. P. Jain 3.40 15.00
Shri P. N. Ghatalia* 0.60 15.00
Dr. Bidhubhusan Samal 0.40 -
* Shri P. N. Ghatalia upon demise ceased to be the

Director of the Company w.e.f August 12, 2009.
Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
a. There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions

of non-executive directors vis-à-vis the Company.
b. The Company has so far not issued any stock options to

its Directors.
c. Pursuant to the limits approved by the Board, all directors

being non executive, are paid sitting fees of Rs.20,000
for attending each meetings of the Board and its
Committees.

d. Pursuant to the approval of the Nomination /
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors a
provision for the payment of remuneration by way of
commission of Rs.60 lakh, to the non executive directors
for the year ended March 31, 2010 has been made. The
final payment shall be within the overall limits of the
profits as approved by the Members and the Central
Government in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.
The Nomination / Remuneration Committee and the Board
of Directors have also approved, subject to the approval
by the shareholders, the re-appointment of
Shri V. R. Mohan as Manager of the Company for a period
of 5 years commencing from March 7, 2011, on the
terms and conditions including remuneration as is described
in the notice convening the ensuing AGM

IIIIIVVVVV..... SharSharSharSharShareholdereholdereholdereholdereholdersssss’ / In’ / In’ / In’ / In’ / Invvvvvestestestestestorororororsssss’ Grie’ Grie’ Grie’ Grie’ Grievvvvvancancancancances Ces Ces Ces Ces Commitommitommitommitommitttttteeeeeeeeee
The Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee of the
Board currently comprises of Shri Rajendra P. Chitale,
Chairman, Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala, and Shri C. P. Jain
as members. The company has appointed M/s. Karvy
Computershare Pvt. Ltd. to act as Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent of the Company.
The Committee, inter alia, approves issue of duplicate
certificates and oversees and reviews all matters connected
with transfer of securities of the Company. The Committee
also monitors redressal of investors’ grievances. Particulars
of investors’ grievances received and redressed are furnished
in the investor information section of this report. The
Committee oversees performance of the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents of the Company and recommends
measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor
services. The Committee also monitors implementation
and compliance of the Company’s Code of Conduct for
Prohibition of Insider Trading in pursuance of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. The
Board has delegated the power of approving transfer of
securities to the Managing Director and / or the Company
Secretary.
The Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee held
its meetings on April 30, 2009, July 31, 2009, October
30, 2009 and January 30, 2010.
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IX.IX.IX.IX.IX. Postal BallotPostal BallotPostal BallotPostal BallotPostal Ballot
The Company had not conducted any Postal Ballot during
the year.
None of the businesses proposed to be transacted in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a special
resolution through postal ballot.

X.X.X.X.X. Means of communicationMeans of communicationMeans of communicationMeans of communicationMeans of communication
a.a.a.a.a. Quarterly Results:Quarterly Results:Quarterly Results:Quarterly Results:Quarterly Results: Quarterly Results are published in

Financial Express, English daily newspaper circulating
in the whole or substantially the whole of India and
in Navshakti, Marathi vernacular daily newspaper and
are also posted on the Company's website
www.reliancecapital.co.in.

b.b.b.b.b. Media Releases and Presentations: Media Releases and Presentations: Media Releases and Presentations: Media Releases and Presentations: Media Releases and Presentations: Official media
releases are sent to the Stock Exchanges before their
release to the media for wider dissemination.
Presentations made to media, analysts, institutional
investors, etc. are posted on the Company's website.

c.c.c.c.c. WWWWWebebebebebsitsitsitsitsite:e:e:e:e: The Company's website contains a separate
dedicated section on 'Investor Relations'. It contains
comprehensive database of information of interest to
our investors including the financial results and Annual

Minimum and maximum gap between any two meetings,
during the year under review was 90 days and 91 days
respectively.
Attendance of members at the meeting of theAttendance of members at the meeting of theAttendance of members at the meeting of theAttendance of members at the meeting of theAttendance of members at the meeting of the
SharSharSharSharShareholdereholdereholdereholdereholdersssss’/In’/In’/In’/In’/Invvvvvestestestestestorororororsssss’ Grie’ Grie’ Grie’ Grie’ Grievvvvvancancancancances Ces Ces Ces Ces Commitommitommitommitommittttttee heldee heldee heldee heldee held
during the year 2009-10during the year 2009-10during the year 2009-10during the year 2009-10during the year 2009-10
Name of the memberName of the memberName of the memberName of the memberName of the member MeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetings MeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetingsMeetings

held duringheld duringheld duringheld duringheld during attendedattendedattendedattendedattended
the tenurethe tenurethe tenurethe tenurethe tenure

Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala 4 4
Shri Rajendra P. Chitale 4 4
Shri C. P. Jain 4 4
Shri V. R. Mohan, Company Secretary & Manager acts as
the Secretary to the Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances
Committee

VVVVV..... CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancompliance Ofe Ofe Ofe Ofe Offfffficicicicicererererer
Shri V. R. Mohan, Company Secretary & Manager, is the
Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements
of SEBI Regulations and the Listing agreements with the
Stock Exchanges.
The total number of complaints received and replied to
the satisfaction of shareholders during the year under review
was 268. There were no complaints pending as on March
31, 2010. The details of period taken on transfer of
shares and nature of complaints are furnished in the
investor information section of this annual report.

CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernance Re Re Re Re Reporeporeporeporeporttttt

32 requests for transfer of 308 shares and 107 requests
for dematerialisation of 1,238 shares were pending for
approval as on March 31, 2010 which were approved,
processed and dispatched on or before April 5, 2010.

VI.VI.VI.VI.VI. EmplEmplEmplEmplEmploooooyyyyyees Stees Stees Stees Stees Stockockockockock Op Op Op Op Option Scheme (Etion Scheme (Etion Scheme (Etion Scheme (Etion Scheme (ESOS) CSOS) CSOS) CSOS) CSOS) Compensompensompensompensompensationationationationation
CCCCCommitommitommitommitommitttttteeeeeeeeee
The ESOS Compensation Committee comprises of three
directors i.e. Shri Rajendra P. Chitale as the Chairman,
Shri Amitabh Jhunjhunwala and Shri C. P. Jain as
members. Shri V. R. Mohan, Company Secretary &
Manager acts as the Secretary to the ESOS
Compensation Committee.
During the year under review ESOS Compensation
Committee met twice on July 31, 2009 and January
30, 2010, which were attended by all members.

VII.VII.VII.VII.VII. Employee Stock Option SchemeEmployee Stock Option SchemeEmployee Stock Option SchemeEmployee Stock Option SchemeEmployee Stock Option Scheme
In order to share the growth in value and reward the
employees for having participated in the success of the
Company. The Employee Stock Option Scheme (the
Scheme) has been implemented by the Company to
the eligible employees and its subsidiary companies based
on specified criteria, under Employee Stock Option Plans
A and B.
The Plans are prepared in due compliance of Scheme,
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 and other applicable laws.

Report of the Company in a downloadable form,
information on dividend declared by the Company,
any price sensitive information disclosed to the
regulatory authorities from time to time, business
activities and the services rendered/ facilities extended
by the Company to our investors, in a user-friendly
manner.

d.d.d.d.d. AnnualAnnualAnnualAnnualAnnual R R R R Reporeporeporeporeport:t:t:t:t: Annual Report containing, inter alia,
Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated Financial
Statements, Directors' Report, Auditors' Report and
other important information is circulated to members
and others entitled thereto. The Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of
the Annual Report and is displayed on the Company's
website.

e.e.e.e.e. ChairmanChairmanChairmanChairmanChairman's C's C's C's C's Communique:ommunique:ommunique:ommunique:ommunique: Printed copy of the
Chairman's Speech is distributed to the shareholders
at the Annual General Meetings. The same is also
posted on the website of the Company.

fffff..... CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Fe Fe Fe Fe Filing and Dissiling and Dissiling and Dissiling and Dissiling and Dissemination Semination Semination Semination Semination Syyyyystststststem (CFDS):em (CFDS):em (CFDS):em (CFDS):em (CFDS):
The CFDS portal jointly owned, managed and
maintained by BSE and NSE is a single source to view
information filed by listed companies. All disclosures

VIII.VIII.VIII.VIII.VIII. GenerGenerGenerGenerGeneralalalalal Bod Bod Bod Bod Body My My My My Meetingeetingeetingeetingeetings: s: s: s: s: The CThe CThe CThe CThe Companompanompanompanompany held ity held ity held ity held ity held its ls ls ls ls last thrast thrast thrast thrast three ee ee ee ee AnnualAnnualAnnualAnnualAnnual Gener Gener Gener Gener Generalalalalal M M M M Meetingeetingeetingeetingeetings as under:s as under:s as under:s as under:s as under:

YYYYYeeeeeararararar LocationLocationLocationLocationLocation DateDateDateDateDate TimeTimeTimeTimeTime Whether SpecialWhether SpecialWhether SpecialWhether SpecialWhether Special
Resolution passed orResolution passed orResolution passed orResolution passed orResolution passed or     notnotnotnotnot

2006-2007 Birla Matushri Sabhagar, July 03, 2007 11.00 a.m. No
19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg,
Mumbai 400 020.

2007-2008 Birla Matushri Sabhagar, September 16, 2008 11.00 a.m. No
19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg,
Mumbai 400 020.

2008-2009 Birla Matushri Sabhagar, July 21, 2009 11.00 a.m. Yes
19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg, special resolution passed
Mumbai 400 020. for Qualified Institutional

Placement (QIP)
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and communications to BSE & NSE are filed
electronically through the CFDS portal and hard copies
of the said disclosures and correspondence are also
filed with the stock exchanges.

ggggg..... Unique InUnique InUnique InUnique InUnique Invvvvvestestestestestororororor helpdesk: helpdesk: helpdesk: helpdesk: helpdesk: Exclusively for investor
servicing the Company has set up a unique investor
Help Desk with multiple access modes as under:
Toll free No. (India) : 1800 4250 999
Telephone Nos. : +91 40 4433 8100

+91 40 4030 8000
Fax No. : +91 40 2342 0859
Email : rclinvestor@karvy.com
Post your request : http://kcpl.karvy.com/adag

h.h.h.h.h. DesignatDesignatDesignatDesignatDesignateeeeed Exd Exd Exd Exd Exclclclclclusivusivusivusivusive email-id:e email-id:e email-id:e email-id:e email-id: The Company has
also designated the email-id rcl. investors@
relianceada.com exclusively for investor servicing.

i.i .i .i .i . Reminder to InvestorsReminder to InvestorsReminder to InvestorsReminder to InvestorsReminder to Investors
Reminder for unpaid/unclaimed dividend are sent to
the shareholders every year.

j .j .j .j .j . SharSharSharSharShareholdereholdereholdereholdereholders ' Fs' Fs' Fs' Fs' Feeeeeeeeeedbackdbackdbackdbackdback Sur Sur Sur Sur Survvvvveeeeey:y :y :y :y : The Company
regularly sent feedback form seeking shareholders' views
on various matters relating to investor services and
the Annual Report of the Company. The feedback
received from the shareholders was placed before the
Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee. The
feedback survey form as also been posted in the website
of the Company to facilitate their feedback.

XI.XI.XI.XI.XI. CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancompliance with oe with oe with oe with oe with othertherthertherther mand mand mand mand mandatatatatatororororory ry ry ry ry requirequirequirequirequirementementementementementsssss
1.1.1.1.1. Management discussion and analysisManagement discussion and analysisManagement discussion and analysisManagement discussion and analysisManagement discussion and analysis

A management discussion and analysis report forms
part of the annual report and includes discussions on
various matters specified under clause 49(IV)(F) of
the listing agreement.

2.2.2.2.2. SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries
Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd. (RGICL) is
a material non-listed Indian subsidiary company in
terms of Clause 49 (III) of the listing agreement.
Accordingly, Shri Rajendra P. Chitale, an Independent
Director of the Company has been appointed on the
Board of RGICL.
The Company monitors performance of subsidiary
companies, inter alia, by the following means:
(a) Financial statements, in particular the investments

made by unlisted subsidiary companies are
reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee of
the company.

(b) Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
of all subsidiary companies are placed before the
Company’s Board regularly.

(c) A statement containing all the significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by
the unlisted subsidiary companies is placed before
the company’s Board / Audit Committee.

(d) Quarterly review of Risk Management process
by the Risk Management Committee / Audit
Committee / Board.

3.3.3.3.3. DisclosuresDisclosuresDisclosuresDisclosuresDisclosures
a. There has been no instance of non-compliance

by the Company on any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years and hence
no penalties or strictures have been imposed on

the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or
any other statutory Authority..

b.b.b.b.b. Related party transactionsRelated party transactionsRelated party transactionsRelated party transactionsRelated party transactions
During the year 2009-10, no transactions of
material nature had been entered into by the
Company with the Promoters or Directors or
Management, their subsidiaries or their relatives
that may have a potential conflict with interest
of the Company. The related party transactions
with subsidiary companies and others are disclosed
in Notes to Accounts.

c.c.c.c.c. Accounting treatmentAccounting treatmentAccounting treatmentAccounting treatmentAccounting treatment
In the preparation of financial statements, the
Company has followed the Accounting Standards
as prescribed under Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006, as applicable. The
Accounting Policies followed by the Company,
to the extent relevant, are set out elsewhere in
this Annual Report.

d.d.d.d.d. Risk managementRisk managementRisk managementRisk managementRisk management
The Company has laid down a robust Risk
Management Policy, defining Risk profiles
involving Strategic, Technological, Operational,
Financial, Organisational, Legal and Regulatory
risks within a well defined framework. The Risk
Management Policy acts as an enabler of growth
for the Company by helping its businesses to
identify the inherent risks, assess, evaluate and
monitor these risks continuously and undertake
effective steps to manage these risks.
A Risk Management Committee (RMC)
comprising of senior executives of the company
periodically reviews the robustness of the Risk
Management Policy. The periodical update on
the risk management practices and mitigation
plan of the Company and subsidiaries are
presented to the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee and Board
periodically review such updates and findings and
suggest areas where internal controls and risk
management practices can be improved.
Additionally, we have Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO) in place comprising of senior
management executives that monitors the
liquidity and interest rate risks of the Company.
The functioning of ALCO is reviewed by the RMC
which meets on quarterly basis and reports to
Board of Directors.

e.e.e.e.e. Anti Money Laundering – Know your customerAnti Money Laundering – Know your customerAnti Money Laundering – Know your customerAnti Money Laundering – Know your customerAnti Money Laundering – Know your customer
policypolicypolicypolicypolicy
In keeping with specific requirements for NBFCs,
the Company has also formulated an Anti Money
Laundering and Know Your Customer Policy.

fffff..... CCCCCode ofode ofode ofode ofode of c c c c conduconduconduconduconducttttt
The Company has adopted the code of conduct
and ethics for directors and senior management.
The code has been circulated to all the members
of the Board and senior management and the
same has been posted on the company’s website.
The Board members and senior management
have affirmed their compliance with the code
and a declaration signed by the Manager of the
Company appointed in terms of the Companies
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Act, 1956 (i.e. the CEO within the meaning of
Clause 49-V of the listing agreement) is given
below:
“It is hereby declared that the company has
obtained from all members of the board and
senior management affirmation that they have
complied with the code of conduct for directors
and senior management of the company for the
year 2009-10”.

V. R. Mohan
Manager

ggggg..... CEO and CFO certificationCEO and CFO certificationCEO and CFO certificationCEO and CFO certificationCEO and CFO certification
Shri V. R. Mohan Company Secretary & Manager
being the CEO and Shri Amit Bapna, the CFO of
the Company give certification on financial
reporting and internal controls to the Board as
required under Clause 49(V) of the listing
agreement.

h.h.h.h.h. Review of Directors’ Responsibility StatementReview of Directors’ Responsibility StatementReview of Directors’ Responsibility StatementReview of Directors’ Responsibility StatementReview of Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board in its report has confirmed that
the annual account s for the year ended
March 31, 2010     have been prepared as per
applicable Accounting Standards and policies and
that sufficient care has been taken for
maintaining adequate accounting records.

XII.XII.XII.XII.XII. Policy on insider tradingPolicy on insider tradingPolicy on insider tradingPolicy on insider tradingPolicy on insider trading

The company has formulated a code of conduct for
prevention of insider trading (RCL Code) in accordance with
the guidelines specified under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992. The Board has appointed Shri V. R. Mohan, Company
Secretary & Manager as the Compliance Officer under the
RCL code responsible for complying with the procedures,
monitoring adherence to the rules for the preservation of
price sensitive information, pre-clearance of trade,
monitoring of trades and implementation of the code of
conduct under the overall supervision of the Board. The
RCL code, inter alia, prohibits purchase and/or sale of shares
of the company by an insider while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the
company during certain prohibited periods. The RCL code
is available on the company’s website.

XIII.XIII.XIII.XIII.XIII. CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancompliance with non-mande with non-mande with non-mande with non-mande with non-mandatatatatatororororory ry ry ry ry requirequirequirequirequirementementementementementsssss

1.1.1.1.1. TTTTTenurenurenurenurenure ofe ofe ofe ofe of independent dir independent dir independent dir independent dir independent dirececececectttttororororors on the Boars on the Boars on the Boars on the Boars on the Boarddddd

The tenure of independent directors on the Board of
the company shall not exceed nine years in aggregate.

2.2.2.2.2. Nomination / RNomination / RNomination / RNomination / RNomination / Remuneremuneremuneremuneremuneration Cation Cation Cation Cation Commitommitommitommitommitttttteeeeeeeeee

The Board has set up a Nomination / Remuneration
Committee, details whereof are furnished at Sr. No.
III of this report.

3.3.3.3.3. Shareholders’ rightsShareholders’ rightsShareholders’ rightsShareholders’ rightsShareholders’ rights
The quarterly financial results including summary of
the significant events of the relevant period are
published in newspapers and also posted on the
website of the company.

4.4.4.4.4. Audit qualificationsAudit qualificationsAudit qualificationsAudit qualificationsAudit qualifications
The financial statements of the company are
unqualified.

5.5.5.5.5. TTTTTrrrrraining ofaining ofaining ofaining ofaining of Boar Boar Boar Boar Board memberd memberd memberd memberd membersssss
A program has been devised to train Board members
in the business model of the company, risk profile of
the business parameters and their responsibilities as
directors.

6.6.6.6.6. Whistle blower policyWhistle blower policyWhistle blower policyWhistle blower policyWhistle blower policy
The Company has formulated a policy to prohibit
managerial personnel from taking adverse action
against employees, who are disclosing in good faith
alleged wrongful conduct on matters of public concern
involving violation of any law, mismanagement, gross
waste or misappropriation of public funds, substantial
and specific danger to public health and safety or an
abuse of authority. The policy also lays down the
mechanism for making enquiry into whistle blower
complaint received by the Company.
Employees aware of any alleged wrongful conduct
are encouraged to make a disclosure to the Audit
Committee. Employees knowingly making false
allegations of alleged wrongful conduct to the Audit
Committee shall be subject to disciplinary action. No
personnel of the Company have been denied access
to the grievance redressal mechanism of the Company.

XIXIXIXIXIVVVVV..... CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernance e e e e VVVVVolololololuntuntuntuntuntararararary Guidelines 2009y Guidelines 2009y Guidelines 2009y Guidelines 2009y Guidelines 2009
During the year the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
of India, has released the "Corporate Governance Voluntary
Guidelines 2009". These guidelines are intended to serve
as a benchmark for corporates to help them to adopt
highest standard of corporate governance. These guidelines
do not substitute any extant law or regulation but are
essential for voluntary adoption by the corporates. The
Company is already in compliance with most of the
requirements and has initiated action for appropriate
compliance.

XVXVXVXVXV..... GenerGenerGenerGenerGeneralalalalal shar shar shar shar shareholdereholdereholdereholdereholder inf inf inf inf informationormationormationormationormation
The mandatory and also various additional information of
interest to investors are voluntarily furnished in a separate
section on investor information elsewhere in this annual
report.
Auditors’ certificate on corporate governanceAuditors’ certificate on corporate governanceAuditors’ certificate on corporate governanceAuditors’ certificate on corporate governanceAuditors’ certificate on corporate governance
The Auditors’ certificate on compliance of Clause 49 of
the listing agreement relating to corporate governance report
is published elsewhere in this annual report.
Review of governance practicesReview of governance practicesReview of governance practicesReview of governance practicesReview of governance practices
We have in this report attempted to present the governance
practices and principles being followed at Reliance Capital,
as evolved over the years, and as best suited to the needs
of our business and stakeholders.
Our disclosures and governance practices are continually
revisited, reviewed and revised to respond to the dynamic
needs of our business and ensure that our standards are at
par with the globally recognised practices of governance,
so as to meet the expectations of all our stakeholders.

CCCCCorpororpororpororpororporatatatatate Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernancernancernancernancernance Re Re Re Re Reporeporeporeporeporttttt
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InInInInInvvvvvestestestestestororororor Inf Inf Inf Inf Informationormationormationormationormation

Annual General MeetingAnnual General MeetingAnnual General MeetingAnnual General MeetingAnnual General Meeting
The twenty fourth Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held
on Tuesday, September 28, 2010 at 12.00 noon or soon after
conclusion of the annual general meeting of Reliance Power
Limited. convened on the same day, whichever is later, at Birla
Matushri Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg, New
Marine Lines, Mumbai 400 020.
Financial year of the companyFinancial year of the companyFinancial year of the companyFinancial year of the companyFinancial year of the company
The financial year of the company is from April 1 to March 31
each year.
WWWWWebebebebebsitsitsitsitsiteeeee
The website of the company www.reliancecapital.co.in contains
a seprate section on Corporate Governance on Investor Relations.
It carries comprehensive information of interest to our investors
including on the results of the company, dividends declared by
the company, any price sensitive information disclosed to the
regulatory authorities from time to time, business activities of
the company and the services rendered/facilities extended by
the company to our investors.
DeDeDeDeDedicdicdicdicdicatatatatateeeeed emaild emaild emaild emaild email id f id f id f id f id fororororor in in in in invvvvvestestestestestorororororsssss
For the convenience of our investors, the Company has
designated an exclusive email id for investors i.e.
rcl.investor@relianceada.comrcl.investor@relianceada.comrcl.investor@relianceada.comrcl.investor@relianceada.comrcl.investor@relianceada.com
RRRRRegistregistregistregistregistrararararar and Shar and Shar and Shar and Shar and Share e e e e TTTTTrrrrransfansfansfansfansfererererer     AgAgAgAgAgententententents (Rs (Rs (Rs (Rs (RTTTTTA)A)A)A)A)
M/M/M/M/M/s. Kars. Kars. Kars. Kars. Karvy Cvy Cvy Cvy Cvy Computomputomputomputomputererererersharsharsharsharshare Pe Pe Pe Pe Privrivrivrivrivatatatatate Limite Limite Limite Limite Limiteeeeed,d,d,d,d,
Unit: Reliance Capital Limited
Madhura Estates, Municipal No. 1-9/13/C
Plot No. 13 & 13C, Madhapur Village
Hyderabad - 500081, Andhra Pradesh, India
E-mail: rclinvestor@karvy.com
Shareholders/investors are requested to forward share transfer
documents, dematerialisation requests (through their Depository
Participants) and other related correspondence directly to The
RTA at the above address for speedy response.
Dividend announcementsDividend announcementsDividend announcementsDividend announcementsDividend announcements
The Board of Directors of the Company have recommended a
dividend of Rs.6.50 (65%) per equity share of the company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2010, subject to the approval
by shareholders at the ensuing AGM. The dividend, if approved,
will be paid after the Meeting.
BookBookBookBookBook cl cl cl cl closurosurosurosurosure de de de de datatatatates fes fes fes fes fororororor the purpos the purpos the purpos the purpos the purpose ofe ofe ofe ofe of dividend and  dividend and  dividend and  dividend and  dividend and AAAAAGMGMGMGMGM
To determine the entitlement of shareholders to receive the
dividend, if any, for the year ended March 31, 2010, the Register
of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will
remain closed from Wednesday, September 15, 2010 to Tuesday,
September 28, 2010 (both days inclusive), as well as for the
purpose of AGM.
Dividend remittanceDividend remittanceDividend remittanceDividend remittanceDividend remittance
Dividend on Equity Shares as recommended by the Directors for
the financial year ended March 31, 2010, when declared at
the meeting, will be paid to:
(i) all those equity shareholders whose names appear in the

Register of Members as on September 14, 2010 and
(ii) those whose names as beneficial owners, at the end of

business hours of September 14, 2010 are furnished by
the National Securities Depository Limited and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited for the purpose.

Modes of payment of DividendModes of payment of DividendModes of payment of DividendModes of payment of DividendModes of payment of Dividend
The Dividend is paid under two modes viz:
(a) National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS)
(b) Physical despatch of Dividend Warrant

PPPPPaaaaayment ofyment ofyment ofyment ofyment of dividend thr dividend thr dividend thr dividend thr dividend through Nough Nough Nough Nough Nationalationalationalationalational El El El El Elececececectrtrtrtrtronic Clonic Clonic Clonic Clonic Cleeeeearingaringaringaringaring
SerSerSerSerServicvicvicvicvice (NECS) fe (NECS) fe (NECS) fe (NECS) fe (NECS) facilitacilitacilitacilitacilityyyyy
NECS facility is a centralised version of ECS facility. The NECS
system takes advantage of the centralized accounting system
in banks. Accordingly, the account of a bank that is submitting
or receiving payment instructions is debited or credited centrally
at Mumbai. The branches participating in NECS can, however,
be located anywhere across the length and breadth of the
country. NECS has no restriction of centres or of any geographical
area inside the country. Presently around 32,000 branches of
114 banks participate in NECS.
BenefBenefBenefBenefBenefititititits ofs ofs ofs ofs of NECS (pa NECS (pa NECS (pa NECS (pa NECS (payment thryment thryment thryment thryment through elough elough elough elough elececececectrtrtrtrtronic fonic fonic fonic fonic facilities)acilities)acilities)acilities)acilities)
Shareholders are advised to avail the payment of dividend
through NECS, which has the following advantages:
a. Shareholders need not make frequent visits to their bank

for depositing the physical paper instruments.
b. Prompt credit to the bank account of the investor through

electronic clearing.
c. Fraudulent encashment of warrants is avoided.
d. Exposure to delays / loss in postal service avoided.
e. As there can be no loss in transit of warrants, issue of

duplicate warrants is avoided.
HoHoHoHoHow tw tw tw tw to ao ao ao ao avvvvvailailailailail of of of of of NECS F NECS F NECS F NECS F NECS Facilitacilitacilitacilitacility?y?y?y?y?
Register NECS Mandate and furnish correct bank accountRegister NECS Mandate and furnish correct bank accountRegister NECS Mandate and furnish correct bank accountRegister NECS Mandate and furnish correct bank accountRegister NECS Mandate and furnish correct bank account
parparparparparticulticulticulticulticulararararars with Cs with Cs with Cs with Cs with Companompanompanompanompany/ Deposity/ Deposity/ Deposity/ Deposity/ Depositororororory Py Py Py Py Parararararticipantticipantticipantticipantticipant
Investors should provide a NECS mandate to the Company in
case of shares held in physical form and ensure that the correct
and updated particulars of their bank account are available
with the Depository Participant (DP) in case of shares held
in demat form. This would facilitate in receiving direct credits of
dividends, refunds etc., from companies and avoiding
postal delays and loss in transit. The NECS Mandate
Form may be downloaded from the Company's website
www.reliancecapital.co.in under the section "Investor Relations".
Investors must note that NECS essentially operates on the new
and unique bank account number, allotted by banks post
implementation of Core Banking Solutions (CBS) for centralized
processing of inward instructions and efficiency in handling bulk
transactions. In this regard shareholders are requested to furnish
the new Bank Account Number allotted by the banks post
implementation of CBS, along with a copy of cheque pertaining
to the concerned account, to the Registrar and Transfer Agent
of the Company in case the shares are held in physical form
and to the concerned depository participant in case shares are
held in demat form. In case shareholders do not provide their
new account number allotted after implementation of CBS,
the ECS to their old account may either be rejected or returned.
PPPPPaaaaayment ofyment ofyment ofyment ofyment of dividend thr dividend thr dividend thr dividend thr dividend through Dirough Dirough Dirough Dirough Dirececececect Ct Ct Ct Ct Crrrrreeeeeditditditditdit
The Company will be appointing one bank as its Dividend banker
for distribution of dividend. The said banker will carry out direct
credit to those investors who are maintaining accounts with the
said bank, provided the bank account details are registered with
the DP for dematerialised shares and / or registered with the
RTA prior to the payment of dividend for shares held in physical
form.
NECS FNECS FNECS FNECS FNECS Facilitacilitacilitacilitacility may may may may may be opy be opy be opy be opy be opttttteeeeed out bd out bd out bd out bd out by iny iny iny iny invvvvvestestestestestorororororsssss
Investors have a right to opt out from this mode of payment by
giving an advance notice of four weeks, prior to payment of
dividend, either to the Company's RTA or to the concerned DP,
as the case may be.
CCCCCompanompanompanompanompany cy cy cy cy can noan noan noan noan not tt tt tt tt takakakakake on re on re on re on re on recececececororororord the bankd the bankd the bankd the bankd the bank det det det det detailailailailails in cs in cs in cs in cs in casasasasase ofe ofe ofe ofe of
dematerialised sharesdematerialised sharesdematerialised sharesdematerialised sharesdematerialised shares
As per the Depository Regulations, the Company is obliged to
pay dividend on dematerialised shares as per the bank account
details furnished by the concerned Depository. Therefore, investors
are requested to keep their bank particulars updated with the
Depository Participants.
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CCCCCourourourourourssssse ofe ofe ofe ofe of ac ac ac ac action in ction in ction in ction in ction in casasasasase ofe ofe ofe ofe of non-r non-r non-r non-r non-recececececeipeipeipeipeipt oft oft oft oft of dividend, dividend, dividend, dividend, dividend,
revalidation of dividend warrant etc.revalidation of dividend warrant etc.revalidation of dividend warrant etc.revalidation of dividend warrant etc.revalidation of dividend warrant etc.
Shareholders may write to the Company's RTA, furnishing the
particulars of the dividend not received, and quoting the folio
number/DP ID and Client ID particulars (in case of dematerialised
shares). On expiry of the validity period, if the dividend warrant
is still shown as unpaid in records of the Company, duplicate
warrant will be issued. The Registrar & Transfer Agent would
request the concerned shareholder to execute an indemnity
before issuing the duplicate warrant. However, duplicate warrants
will not be issued against those shares wherein a 'stop transfer
indicator' has been instituted either by virtue of a complaint or
by law, unless the procedure for releasing the same has been
completed.
Shareholders are requested to note that they have to wait till
the expiry of the validity of the original warrant before a duplicate
warrant is issued to them, since the dividend warrants are payable
at par at several centres across the country and the banks do
not accept 'stop payment' instructions on the said warrants.
Unclaimed DividendsUnclaimed DividendsUnclaimed DividendsUnclaimed DividendsUnclaimed Dividends
(i)(i)(i)(i)(i) TTTTTrrrrransfansfansfansfansfererererer t t t t to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Centrentrentrentrentralalalalal Go Go Go Go Govvvvvernmenternmenternmenternmenternment

Pursuant to section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956,
unclaimed dividends upto and including for the
financial year 1994-95 have been transferred to
the General Revenue Account of the Central Government.
The shareholders who have not encashed their dividend
warrants relating to financial year(s) upto 1994-95
are requested to claim the amounts from the Registrar
of Companies, Maharashtra, CGO Complex, 2nd Floor, “A”
Wing, CBD – Belapur, Navi Mumbai 400 614, Telephone:
(022) 2757 6802 in the prescribed form which will be
furnished by the company on request.

(ii)(ii)(ii)(ii)(ii) TTTTTrrrrransfansfansfansfansfererererer t t t t to the Ino the Ino the Ino the Ino the Invvvvvestestestestestororororor Educ Educ Educ Educ Education and Pation and Pation and Pation and Pation and Prrrrroooootttttececececection Ftion Ftion Ftion Ftion Fundundundundund
The dividends for the year 1995-96 to 2001-2002
remaining unclaimed for 7 years from the date of declaration
have been transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund established by the Government of India
pursuant to section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956.
Consequently, no claim shall lie against the said Fund or
the company in respect of any amounts which were
unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven years from the
date they first become due for payment.

(iii)(iii)(iii)(iii)(iii) Dividends tDividends tDividends tDividends tDividends to be tro be tro be tro be tro be transfansfansfansfansferrerrerrerrerreeeeed td td td td to the Ino the Ino the Ino the Ino the Invvvvvestestestestestororororor Educ Educ Educ Educ Educationationationationation
and Pand Pand Pand Pand Prrrrroooootttttececececection Ftion Ftion Ftion Ftion Fund (IEPF)und (IEPF)und (IEPF)und (IEPF)und (IEPF)
The dividend for the following years remaining unclaimed
for 7 years from the date of declaration are required to be
transferred by the company to IEPF and the various dates
for transfer of such amounts are as under:

Financial yearFinancial yearFinancial yearFinancial yearFinancial year Date ofDate ofDate ofDate ofDate of Due fDue fDue fDue fDue fororororor
declarationdeclarationdeclarationdeclarationdeclaration trtrtrtrtransfansfansfansfansfererererer on on on on on

31-03-2003 28-06-2003 27-06-2010
31-03-2004 10-07-2004 09-07-2011
31-03-2005 17-08-2005 16-08-2012
31-03-2006 09-06-2006 08-06-2013
31-03-2007 03-07-2007 02-07-2014
31-03-2008 16-09-2008 15-09-2015
31-03-2009 21-07-2009 20-07-2016
Members who have so far not encashed their dividend
warrants or have not received the dividend warrants are
requested to seek issuance of duplicate warrants. The
company during the year 2009-10 has also individually
intimated the concerned members of non-encashment of
their dividend warrants. Such members may write to the
RTA of the company, for payment of unclaimed dividend
amounts.

BankBankBankBankBank det det det det detailailailailails fs fs fs fs fororororor ph ph ph ph phyyyyysicsicsicsicsicalalalalal shar shar shar shar shareholdingeholdingeholdingeholdingeholdingsssss
In order to provide protection against fraudulent encashment of
dividend warrants, members are requested to provide, if not
provided earlier, their bank account numbers, bank account type,
names and addresses of bank branches, quoting folio numbers,
to the RTA of the company to enable them to incorporate the
same on their dividend warrants. This is a mandatory requirement
in terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) circular
no. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-04/2001 dated November 13, 2001.
BankBankBankBankBank det det det det detailailailailails fs fs fs fs fororororor el el el el elececececectrtrtrtrtronic sharonic sharonic sharonic sharonic shareholdingeholdingeholdingeholdingeholdingsssss
While opening Accounts with depository participants (DPs), you
may have given your bank accounts details, which will be used
by the company for printing on dividend warrants for remittance
of dividend. SEBI vide its circular no. DCC/FITTCIR-3/2001
dated October 15, 2001 has advised that all companies should
mandatorily use electronic clearing service (ECS) facility, wherever
available. SEBI has also, vide its circular dated November 13,
2001 referred to above, advised companies to mandatorily print
the bank account details furnished by the depositories, on the
dividend warrants. This ensures that the dividend warrants, even
if lost or stolen, cannot be used for any purpose other than for
depositing the monies in the account specified on the dividend
warrants and ensures safety for the investors. However, members
who wish to receive dividend in an account other than the one
specified while opening the depository account, may notify their
DPs about any change in bank account details. Members are
requested to furnish complete details of their bank accounts
including MICR codes of their banks to their DPs.
Nomination fNomination fNomination fNomination fNomination facilitacilitacilitacilitacilityyyyy
Individual shareholders of physical shares can nominate
any person for the shares held by them. This will save
the nominee from going through the lengthy process of getting
the shares later on transmitted to his/her name. For further
details, shareholders may write to the RTA of the company
or visit the investor relations section at our website
www.reliancecapital.co.in.
SharSharSharSharShare tre tre tre tre transfansfansfansfansfererererer s s s s syyyyystststststememememem
Shareholders / investors are requested to send share transfer
related documents directly to our RTA whose address is given at
the beginning of this section. A Committee of executives of the
company is authorised to approve transfer of shares. If the transfer
documents are in order, the transfer of shares is registered within
7 days of receipt of transfer documents by our RTA.
Odd lOdd lOdd lOdd lOdd looooot shart shart shart shart shares scheme fes scheme fes scheme fes scheme fes scheme fororororor smal smal smal smal smallllll shar shar shar shar shareholdereholdereholdereholdereholdersssss
In view of the difficulty experienced by the shareholders of the
Company in selling their odd lot shares in the stock market and
to mitigate the hardships caused to them, Reliance Anil Dhirubhai
Ambani Group has framed a scheme for the purchase and disposal
of odd lot equity shares at the prevailing market rate price. The
scheme has been launched and is available to the shareholders
of Reliance Capital Limited who hold upto 49 shares in physical
form. The shareholders who wish to avail the above facility can
contact the RTA of the Company.
Group coming within the definition of ‘group’ as defined inGroup coming within the definition of ‘group’ as defined inGroup coming within the definition of ‘group’ as defined inGroup coming within the definition of ‘group’ as defined inGroup coming within the definition of ‘group’ as defined in
the Mthe Mthe Mthe Mthe Monopolies and Ronopolies and Ronopolies and Ronopolies and Ronopolies and Restricestricestricestricestrictivtivtivtivtive e e e e TTTTTrrrrrade Pade Pade Pade Pade Prrrrracacacacactictictictictices es es es es AAAAAccccct, 1969t, 1969t, 1969t, 1969t, 1969
(54 of 1969)(54 of 1969)(54 of 1969)(54 of 1969)(54 of 1969)
The following persons constitute the Group coming within the
definition of ‘group’ as defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive
Trade Practices Act, 1969 (54 of 1969), which exercises, or is
established to be in a position to exercise control directly or
indirectly, over the Company.
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Shareholding patternShareholding patternShareholding patternShareholding patternShareholding pattern
CategoryCategoryCategoryCategoryCategory As on 31-03-2010As on 31-03-2010As on 31-03-2010As on 31-03-2010As on 31-03-2010 As on 31-03-2009

No. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of shares  % % % % % No. of shares %
1. Promoters 13 24 82 27413 24 82 27413 24 82 27413 24 82 27413 24 82 274 53.9453.9453.9453.9453.94 13 13 82 274 53.49
2. Foreign holdings

A. Foreign holdings – GDRs 19 59 95219 59 95219 59 95219 59 95219 59 952 0.800.800.800.800.80 1 69 531 0.69
B. Direct By Foreign Companies 13 97513 97513 97513 97513 975 0.010.010.010.010.01 13 929 0.01
C. Individual and Others 13 52 26513 52 26513 52 26513 52 26513 52 265 0.550.550.550.550.55 12 70 923 0.52
D. Foreign Institutional Investors 5 02 70 5795 02 70 5795 02 70 5795 02 70 5795 02 70 579 20.4720.4720.4720.4720.47 5 01 82 165 20.43
Sub-totalSub-totalSub-totalSub-totalSub-total 5 35 96 7715 35 96 7715 35 96 7715 35 96 7715 35 96 771 21.8221.8221.8221.8221.82 5 31 58 548 21.64

3 Public Financial/ Development Institutions
and Central and State Government owned
Institutions holdings 94 89 39694 89 39694 89 39694 89 39694 89 396 3.863.863.863.863.86 84 36 281 3.43

4 Bank and Mutual Funds 22 26 48022 26 48022 26 48022 26 48022 26 480 0.910.910.910.910.91 15 88 577 0.65
5 General Public 4 78 37 8794 78 37 8794 78 37 8794 78 37 8794 78 37 879 19.4819.4819.4819.4819.48 51 08 67 120 20.79

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 24 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 800 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 24 56 32 800 100.00

Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, Smt Tina A. Ambani, Smt Kokila D
Ambani, Shri Jai Anmol Ambani, Master Jai Anshul Ambani,
AAA & Sons Enterprises Private Limited, AAA Advertisement
Private Limited, AAA Advisory Services Private Limited, AAA
Allied Services Private Limited, AAA Business Machines Private
Limited, AAA Cap Advisory Services Private Limited, AAA Capital
Consultants Private Limited, AAA Capital Finance Services Private
Limited, AAA Commercial Enterprises Private Limited, AAA
Communication Partners, AAA Communication Private Limited,
AAA Corporate Services Private Limited, AAA Corporation Private
Limited, AAA Electrical Power Development Private Limited,
AAA Engineering Services Private Limited, AAA Enterprises and
Ventures Private Limited, AAA Enterprises Partners, AAA Enterprises
Private Limited, AAA Entertainment Private Limited, AAA
Facilities Solutions Private Limited, AAA Finance Management
Private Limited, AAA Financial Services Private Limited, AAA
Global Ventures Private Limited, AAA Home Entertainment
Services Private Limited, AAA Illuminative Solutions Private
Limited, AAA Industrial Services Private Limited, AAA Industries
Private Limited, AAA Infoservices Private Limited, AAA Infra
Advising Services Private Limited, AAA Infrastructure Consulting
& Engineers Private Limited, AAA Infrastructure Finance
Management Private Limited, AAA Infrastructure Investments
Private Limited, AAA Infrastructure Solutions Private Limited,
AAA Integrated Services Private Limited, AAA International Capital
Private Limited, AAA Micro Services Private Limited, AAA Multi-
Technologies Private Limited, AAA Multivision Services Private
Limited, AAA Pivotal Enterprises Private Limited, AAA Power
Systems (Global) Private Limited, AAA Project Finance
Management Private Limited, AAA Project Ventures Holdings
Partners, AAA Project Ventures Partners, AAA Project Ventures
Private Limited, AAA Resources Private Limited, AAA Software
Technologies Private Limited, AAA Technical Services Private
Limited, AAA Telecom Holdings Private Limited, AAA Utility
Ventures Private Limited, Ace Industrial Services Private Limited,
Acerock Infrastructure & Consulting Private Limited, ADA
Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited, ADAE Global Private
Limited, Adlabs Distributors and Exhibitors Limited, Alpsoft
Techventures Private Limited, Ambani Enterprises Private Limited,
Ambani Industries Private Limited, Ambani International Private
Limited, Amulin Hydro Power Private Limited, Aricent
Commercial Services Private Limited, Atlanta Advisory Services
Private Limited, Atlantic Ventures Private Limited, Bharuch Power
Limited, Big Animation (India) Private Limited, Big Flicks Private
Limited, Big Synergy Media Limited, BSES Kerala Power Limited,
Chitrangi Power Private Limited, Coastal Andhra Power
Infrastructure Limited, Coastal Andhra Power Limited, Deltainfra
Technology Private Limited, Dhirubhai Ambani Enterprises Private
Limited, Dhwani Enterprises LLP, Digital Media Imaging Limited,
Emini Hydro Power Private Limited, Feathertop Corporate Services
Private Limited, Fidelity Shares and Securities Private Limited,
Gaylord Investments and Trading Private Limited, Guruvas

Commercials LLP, Guruvas Textiles Private Limited, Hansdhwani
Trading Company Private Limited, Hui Investments , Ikosel
Investments Limited, Jharkhand Integrated Power Limited, Jumbo
Mercantile Private Limited, Jump Games Private Limited, K D
Ambani Trust, Kalai Power Private Limited, KDA Enterprises Private
Limited, Krupa Commericals LLP, Lord Comtrade LLP,
Maharashtra Energy Generation Infrastructure Limited,
Maharashtra Energy Generation Limited, Microtech Development
Private Limited, Mihundon Hydro Power Private Limited,
Nationwide Communication Private Limited, Nationwide
Networks Technologies Private Limited , ND's Art World Private
Limited, Quadro Mercantile Private Limited, RCap Holdings
Partners, RCom Holdings Partners, Relcom Software Solutions
Private Limited, Reliance ADA Group Holdings Partners, Reliance
Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group (UK) Private Limited, Reliance
Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Investments (UK) Limited, Reliance Big
Broadcasting Private Limited, Reliance Big Entertainment Private
Limited, Reliance Big News Private Limited, Reliance Big Private
Limited, Reliance Media World Limited, Reliance Cementation
Private Limited, Reliance Coal Resources Private Limited, Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Communications
Limited, Reliance Energy Generation Limited, Reliance Energy
Limited, Reliance Energy Trading Limited, Reliance Enterprises
and Ventures Private Limited, Reliance Entertainment Ventures
Private Limited, Reliance Futura Limited, Reliance Goa and
Samalkot Limited, Reliance India Private Limited, Reliance
Infraprojects Limited, Reliance Infrastructure Limited, Reliance
Infratel Limited, Reliance Infraventures Limited, Reliance
Innoventures Partners, Reliance Innoventures Private Limited,
Reliance Limited, Reliance MediaWorks Limited, Reliance Natural
Resources Limited, Reliance Patalganga Power Limited, Reliance
Power International Sarl, Luxembourg, Reliance Power Limited,
Reliance Power Transmission Limited, Reliance Prima Limited,
Reliance Property Developers Limited, Reliance Telecom Limited,
RInfra Holdings Partners, Rosa Power Supply Company Limited,
RPower Holdings Partners, Sasan Power Infrastructure Limited,
Sasan Power Infraventures Private Limited, Sasan Power Limited,
Sealink Engineering Services Private Limited, Sealink Infra
Technology Private Limited, Sevenstar Corporate Services Private
Limited, Shreeji Comtrade LLP, Shreenathji Krupa Project
Management Private Limited, Shri j i Krupa Endeavour
Management Private Limited, Shrikrishna Tradecom LLP, Siyom
Hydro Power Private Limited, Solaris Information Technologies
Private Limited, Sonata Investments Limited, Standard
Management Services Private Limited, Tato Hyrdro Power Private
Limited, Telecom Infrastructure Finance Private Limited, Trans-
Americas Holding Private Limited, Trans-Atlantic Holdings Private
Limited, Trans-Pacific Advisory Services Private Limited, Trans-
Pacific Holdings Private Limited, Urthing Sobla Hydro Power
Private Limited, Vidarbha Industries Power Limited, Whitehills
Corporate Services Private Limited, Whitehills Mercantile Private
Limited, Zapak Digital Entertainment Limited

InInInInInvvvvvestestestestestororororor Inf Inf Inf Inf Informationormationormationormationormation
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Distribution of shareholdingDistribution of shareholdingDistribution of shareholdingDistribution of shareholdingDistribution of shareholding
Number of sharesNumber of sharesNumber of sharesNumber of sharesNumber of shares Number of shareholdersNumber of shareholdersNumber of shareholdersNumber of shareholdersNumber of shareholders TTTTToooootttttalalalalal shar shar shar shar shares as ones as ones as ones as ones as on Number of shareholders Total shares

as on 31.03.2010as on 31.03.2010as on 31.03.2010as on 31.03.2010as on 31.03.2010 31.03.201031.03.201031.03.201031.03.201031.03.2010 as on 31.03.2009 as on 31.03.2009
NumberNumberNumberNumberNumber %%%%% NumberNumberNumberNumberNumber %%%%% Number % Number %

Upto 500 1313131313 1313131313 669669669669669 99.4299.4299.4299.4299.42 22222 7676767676 8787878787 810810810810810 11.2711.2711.2711.2711.27 13 86 645 99.41 2 90 97 119 11.85
501 to 5000 77777 033033033033033 0.530.530.530.530.53 7979797979 0808080808 570570570570570 3.223.223.223.223.22 7 506 0.54 84 44 137 3.44
5001 to 100000 531531531531531 0.040.040.040.040.04 11111 0909090909 3333333333 363363363363363 4.454.454.454.454.45 585 0.04 1 23 26 433 5.02
100000 and above 128128128128128 0.010.010.010.010.01 1919191919 9191919191 0303030303 057057057057057 81.0681.0681.0681.0681.06 112 0.01 19 57 65 111 79.70
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 1313131313 2121212121 361361361361361 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 2424242424 5656565656 3232323232 800800800800800 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 13 94 848 100.00 24 56 32 800 100.00
Dematerialisation of SharesDematerialisation of SharesDematerialisation of SharesDematerialisation of SharesDematerialisation of Shares
The Company was among the first few companies to admit its shares to the depository system of National Securities Depository
Ltd. (NSDL) for dematerialization of shares. The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the company is
INE13A01015. The company was the first to admit its shares and go ‘live’ on to the depository system of Central Depository
Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) for dematerialization of shares. The equity shares of the company are compulsorily traded in
dematerialised form as mandated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
Status of dematerialisation of sharesStatus of dematerialisation of sharesStatus of dematerialisation of sharesStatus of dematerialisation of sharesStatus of dematerialisation of shares

Electronic holdingsElectronic holdingsElectronic holdingsElectronic holdingsElectronic holdings Physical holdingsPhysical holdingsPhysical holdingsPhysical holdingsPhysical holdings TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of %%%%% No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of %%%%% No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of %%%%%

BeneficialBeneficialBeneficialBeneficialBeneficial SharesSharesSharesSharesShares FFFFFoliosoliosoliosoliosolios SharesSharesSharesSharesShares ShareholdersShareholdersShareholdersShareholdersShareholders SharesSharesSharesSharesShares
OwnersOwnersOwnersOwnersOwners

7 64 723 23 90 56 546 97.32 5 56 638 65 76 254 2.68 13 21 361 24 56 32 800 100.00

Investors’ grievances attendedInvestors’ grievances attendedInvestors’ grievances attendedInvestors’ grievances attendedInvestors’ grievances attended
RRRRRecececececeiveiveiveiveiveeeeed fd fd fd fd frrrrromomomomom Received duringReceived duringReceived duringReceived duringReceived during Redressed duringRedressed duringRedressed duringRedressed duringRedressed during Pending as onPending as onPending as onPending as onPending as on

2009-20102009-20102009-20102009-20102009-2010 2008-2009 2009-20102009-20102009-20102009-20102009-2010 2008-2009 31.3.201031.3.201031.3.201031.3.201031.3.2010 31.3.2009
SEBI 7272727272 90 7272727272 90 NilNi lNi lNi lNi l Nil
Stock Exchanges 3838383838 42 3838383838 42 NilNi lNi lNi lNi l Nil
NSDL/CDSL 66666 10 66666 10 NilNi lNi lNi lNi l Nil
Direct from investors 152152152152152 1200 152152152152152 1 200 NilNi lNi lNi lNi l Nil
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 268268268268268 1 342 268268268268268 1 342 NilNi lNi lNi lNi l Nil
Analysis of grievancesAnalysis of grievancesAnalysis of grievancesAnalysis of grievancesAnalysis of grievances

2009-20102009-20102009-20102009-20102009-2010 2008-2009
NumbersNumbersNumbersNumbersNumbers PercentagePercentagePercentagePercentagePercentage Numbers Percentage

Non-receipt of dividends 199199199199199 74.2574.2574.2574.2574.25 1 196 89.12
Non-receipt of share certificates 5656565656 20.9020.9020.9020.9020.90 110 8.20
Others 1313131313 4.854.854.854.854.85 36 2.68
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 268268268268268 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 1 342 100.00
Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
1. Investors’ queries / grievances are normally attended within a period of 3 days from the date of receipt thereof, except in

cases involving external agencies or compliance with longer procedural requirements specified by the authorities concerned.
2. The shareholder base was 13,21,361     as of March 31, 2010 and 13,94,848     as of March 31, 2009.
3. All the queries and grievances received during the year have been redressed.
SharSharSharSharShareholdereholdereholdereholdereholdersssss’ Satisf’ Satisf’ Satisf’ Satisf’ Satisfacacacacaction Surtion Surtion Surtion Surtion Survvvvveeeeeyyyyy
The Company constantly endeavours to extend the best of facilities and services to shareholders and intends to further improve
the service standards. In response to the Shareholders’ Satisfaction Survey feedback forms mailed to our shareholders in 2009, the
Company received response from shareholders, results of which are summarised hereunder:
SrSrSrSrSr..... SatisfSatisfSatisfSatisfSatisfacacacacaction ltion ltion ltion ltion leeeeevvvvvelelelelel of of of of of s s s s sererererervicvicvicvicvices ines ines ines ines in % of total responses received% of total responses received% of total responses received% of total responses received% of total responses received
No.No.No.No.No. fffffololololollllllooooowing arwing arwing arwing arwing areeeeeas ras ras ras ras recececececeiveiveiveiveiveeeeeddddd

ExcellentExcellentExcellentExcellentExcellent GoodGoodGoodGoodGood NeedsNeedsNeedsNeedsNeeds InvalidInvalidInvalidInvalidInvalid TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
improvementimprovementimprovementimprovementimprovement

1 Response to queries/complaints 42.86 28.57 28.57 0.00 100.00
2 Your overall rating of our investor service 57.14 28.57 14.29 0.00 100.00
3 Presentation of information on company website 71.43 14.29 14.29 0.00 100.00
4 Quality & Contents of Annual Report 2008-09 57.14 14.29 28.57 0.00 100.00
Legal ProceedingsLegal ProceedingsLegal ProceedingsLegal ProceedingsLegal Proceedings
There are certain pending cases relating to disputes over title to shares, in which the Company is made a party. These cases are
however not material in nature.
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Stock Exchange listingsStock Exchange listingsStock Exchange listingsStock Exchange listingsStock Exchange listings
A.A.A.A.A. Stock Exchanges on which the shares of the company are listedStock Exchanges on which the shares of the company are listedStock Exchanges on which the shares of the company are listedStock Exchanges on which the shares of the company are listedStock Exchanges on which the shares of the company are listed

1.1.1.1.1. Bombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange Limited 2.2.2.2.2. National Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block,
Mumbai- 400 001. Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Telephone : 022-2272 1233 / 4 Mumbai 400 051.
Fax : 022-2272 1919 Telephone : 022-2659 8235 / 36
E-mail : corp.relations@bseindia.com Fax : 022-2659 8237 / 38
Website : www.bseindia.com E-mail : cmlist@nse.co.in

Website : www.nseindia.com
B.B.B.B.B. StStStStStockockockockock Ex Ex Ex Ex Exchangchangchangchangchange on we on we on we on we on which the GDRs ofhich the GDRs ofhich the GDRs ofhich the GDRs ofhich the GDRs of the C the C the C the C the Companompanompanompanompany ary ary ary ary are liste liste liste liste listeeeeeddddd C.C.C.C.C. DepositDepositDepositDepositDepositororororory banky banky banky banky bank f f f f fororororor GDR holder GDR holder GDR holder GDR holder GDR holdersssss

Luxembourg Stock ExchangeLuxembourg Stock ExchangeLuxembourg Stock ExchangeLuxembourg Stock ExchangeLuxembourg Stock Exchange Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas
Societe de la Bourse 60 Wall Street
De Luxembourg New York
Societe Anonyme New York - 10005
RC Luxembourg B 6222
BP 165 L - 2011 Luxembourg
Siege Social 11, Avenue De la Porte-Neuve

D.D.D.D.D. StStStStStockockockockock c c c c codes/ sodes/ sodes/ sodes/ sodes/ symbolymbolymbolymbolymbols fs fs fs fs fororororor equit equit equit equit equity shary shary shary shary shareseseseses
PhysicalPhysicalPhysicalPhysicalPhysical ElectronicElectronicElectronicElectronicElectronic

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 500111 INE 13A01015
National Stock Exchange of India Limited RELCAPITAL INE 13A01015

E.E.E.E.E. SecuritSecuritSecuritSecuritSecurity Cy Cy Cy Cy Codes ofodes ofodes ofodes ofodes of RCL RCL RCL RCL RCL GDRs GDRs GDRs GDRs GDRs
Master Rule 144A GDRsMaster Rule 144A GDRsMaster Rule 144A GDRsMaster Rule 144A GDRsMaster Rule 144A GDRs Master Regulation S GDRsMaster Regulation S GDRsMaster Regulation S GDRsMaster Regulation S GDRsMaster Regulation S GDRs

CUSIPISIN 75945L103US75945L1035 75945L202US75945L2025
Common Code 026469457 026470315
Note:Note:Note:Note:Note: The GDRs are admitted to listing on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the Euro
MTF market. The Rule 144A GDRs have been accepted for clearance and settlement through the facilities of DTC, New
York. The Regulation S GDRs have been accepted for clearance and settlement through the facilities of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg. The Rule 144A GDRs have been designated as eligible for trading on PORTAL.

An IndeAn IndeAn IndeAn IndeAn Index Scrip:x Scrip:x Scrip:x Scrip:x Scrip: Equity Shares of the Company are included in the Indices viz. NSE S&P CNX Nifty, NSE S&P CNX Defty, NSE
S&P CNX 500, BSE100, BSE200, BSE500, NSE S&P CNX 100, CNX Service Sector Index and MSCI India.
OutOutOutOutOutstststststanding GDRs ofanding GDRs ofanding GDRs ofanding GDRs ofanding GDRs of the c the c the c the c the companompanompanompanompanyyyyy, c, c, c, c, conononononvvvvvererererersion dsion dsion dsion dsion datatatatate and like and like and like and like and likelelelelely impacy impacy impacy impacy impact on equitt on equitt on equitt on equitt on equityyyyy
Outstanding GDRs as on March 31, 2010 represent 19 59 952 equity shares constituting 0.80 % of the paid up equity share
capital of the company
Equity historyEquity historyEquity historyEquity historyEquity history
Details of issue of equity shares in the last two decades.
SrSrSrSrSr..... DateDateDateDateDate PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararars ofs ofs ofs ofs of Issue / F Issue / F Issue / F Issue / F Issue / Forororororfffffeiteiteiteiteitururururureseseseses Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price No. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of shares CCCCCumulumulumulumulumulativativativativative e e e e TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
No.No.No.No.No. per equity shareper equity shareper equity shareper equity shareper equity share
1 5-3-1986 Shares issued upon incorporation Rs.10 7 000 7 000
2 21-6-1990 1st Public Issue Rs.10 1 99 93 000 2 00 00 000
3 28-8-1992 Equity shares issued upon amalgamation of - 18 70 000 2 18 70 000

Arasina Hotels Limited with the Company
4 10-2-1993 1st Rights Issue 1992 with a ratio of 1:1 Rs.40 2 18 77 500 4 37 47 500
5 18-7-1994 & Preferential allotment to promoters Rs.50 2 74 00 000 7 11 47 500

29-10-1994
6 20-1-1995 Public issue 1995, promoters/institutuions/ Rs.140 4 33 97 592 11 45 45 092

NRI’s etc.
7 17-2-1995 Rights Issue 1995 Rs.50 1 40 01 970 12 85 47 062
8 11-7-1995 to Allotment of rights kept in abeyance Rs.50 1 03 388 12 86 50 450

13-11-1997
9 4-11-1996 Forfeiture of equity shares relating to

public issues of 1990 and rights issue 1992 - (1 23 400) 12 85 27 050
10 27-4-2000 Forfeiture of equity shares relating to public - (12 61 455) 12 72 65 595

and rights issue 1995
11 27-4-2000 to Forfeited equity shares annulled - 40 649 12 73 06 244

29-7-2003

InInInInInvvvvvestestestestestororororor Inf Inf Inf Inf Informationormationormationormationormation
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InInInInInvvvvvestestestestestororororor Inf Inf Inf Inf Informationormationormationormationormation

SrSrSrSrSr..... DateDateDateDateDate PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararars ofs ofs ofs ofs of Issue / F Issue / F Issue / F Issue / F Issue / Forororororfffffeiteiteiteiteitururururureseseseses Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price No. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of shares CCCCCumulumulumulumulumulativativativativative e e e e TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
No.No.No.No.No. per equity shareper equity shareper equity shareper equity shareper equity share

12 21-7-2005 Preferential allotment to FIIs Rs.228 1 62 60 001 14 35 66 245
13 2-8-2005 Preferential allotment to promoters Rs.228 6 00 00 000 20 35 66 245
14 22-8-2005 Allotment to promoter upon conversion of Rs.228 38 00 000 20 73 66 245

warrants on preferential basis
15 31-3-2006 Allotment to promoter upon conversion of Rs.228 1 55 00 000 22 28 66 245

warrants on preferential basis
16 7-8-2006 Allotment pursuant to amalgamation - 6 11 56 521

7-8-2006 Less: Shares extinguished due to Reliance Capital - (6 00 89 966) 22 39 32 800
Ventures Limited merger with the Company

17 30-1-2007 Allotment to promoter upon conversion of Rs.228 2 17 00 000 24 56 32 800
warrants on preferential basis

StStStStStockockockockock P P P P Pricricricricrice and e and e and e and e and VVVVVolololololumeumeumeumeume
The Company’s equity shares are actively traded on the Indian Stock Exchanges.
Monthly high and low quotations as also the volume of shares traded on the Bombay and National Stock Exchanges.

Bombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange LimitedBombay Stock Exchange Limited National Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India LimitedNational Stock Exchange of India Limited
2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 HighestHighestHighestHighestHighest LowestLowestLowestLowestLowest VVVVVolololololumeumeumeumeume HighestHighestHighestHighestHighest LowestLowestLowestLowestLowest VVVVVolololololumeumeumeumeume

RRRRRs.s.s.s.s. RRRRRs.s.s.s.s. Nos.Nos.Nos.Nos.Nos. RRRRRs.s.s.s.s. RRRRRs.s.s.s.s. Nos.Nos.Nos.Nos.Nos.

April 582.00 346.50 40 25 15 66 164 581.90 346.00 99 96 95 93 000
May 972.00 530.00 46 05 01 47 132 972.90 530.00 1 15 85 65 85 000
June 1 066.00 855.00 49 19 51 97 711 1067.70 855.10 1 27 56 33 07 000
July 959.50 700.70 43 55 67 73 635 960.00 700.00 1 11 03 13 28 000
August 938.00 780.00 30 15 50 98 329 938.00 780.00 78 48 37 96 000
September 944.50 850.05 25 03 10 49 920 976.65 850.00 66 93 34 43 000
October 972.90 726.00 20 06 27 12 097 972.90 722.05 53 82 08 64 000
November 925.00 680.50 25 48 50 76 273 925.00 681.10 67 65 14 25 000
December 873.90 799.10 12 75 57 13 756 873.90 801.25 35 68 79 88 000
January 929.25 763.20 13 41 87 09 741 930.00 835.70 36 41 82 24 000
February 827.00 721.25 11 05 21 11 774 825.80 725.00 29 04 10 86 000
March 815.00 752.50 9 22 19 61 861 837.00 753.00 26 80 48 70 000

SharSharSharSharShare Pe Pe Pe Pe Pricricricricrice Pe Pe Pe Pe Perererererffffformancormancormancormancormance in ce in ce in ce in ce in comparison tomparison tomparison tomparison tomparison to bro bro bro bro broad basoad basoad basoad basoad baseeeeed indicd indicd indicd indicd indices - Bes - Bes - Bes - Bes - BSE SensSE SensSE SensSE SensSE Senseeeeex and NSE Nifx and NSE Nifx and NSE Nifx and NSE Nifx and NSE Niftttttyyyyy
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InInInInInvvvvvestestestestestororororor Inf Inf Inf Inf Informationormationormationormationormation

Depository servicesDepository servicesDepository servicesDepository servicesDepository services

For guidance on depository services, shareholders may write to the RTA of the Company or National Securities Depository Ltd.,
Trade World, A Wing, 4th and 5th Floors, Kamala Mills Compound, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013, Telephone: (022) 2499
4200, Facsimile: (022) 2497 2993 / 2497 6351, e-mail: info@nsdl.co.in, website: www.nsdl.com or Central Depository
Services (India) Ltd., Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 16th Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 023. Tel.: 022-2272 3333
Facsimile: (022) 2272 3199 / 2072, website: www.cdslindia.com, e-mail: investors@cdslindia.com

CCCCCommunicommunicommunicommunicommunication tation tation tation tation to membero membero membero membero membersssss

The quarterly financial results of the company were announced within a month of the end of the respective quarter during
the year under review. The company’s media releases and details of significant developments are also made available on the
website. These are published in leading newspapers, in addit ion to hosting them on the company’s website:
www.reliancecapital.co.in

SecrSecrSecrSecrSecretetetetetarialarialarialarialarial audit f audit f audit f audit f audit fororororor r r r r recececececonciliation ofonciliation ofonciliation ofonciliation ofonciliation of c c c c capitapitapitapitapitalalalalal

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has directed vide circular no. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-1 6/2002 dated December
31, 2002 that all issuer companies shall submit a certificate of capital integrity, reconciling the total shares held in both
the depositories, viz. NSDL and CDSL and in physical form with the total issued / paid up capital.

The said certificate, duly certified by a qualified chartered accountant is submitted to the stock exchanges where the
securities of the company are listed within 30 days of the end of each quarter and the certificate is also placed before the
Board of Directors of the Company.

KKKKKeeeeey Fy Fy Fy Fy Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial R R R R Reporeporeporeporeporting Datting Datting Datting Datting Dates fes fes fes fes fororororor the F the F the F the F the Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial     YYYYYeeeeeararararar (F (F (F (F (F.Y.Y.Y.Y.Y.) 2010-11.) 2010-11.) 2010-11.) 2010-11.) 2010-11

Unaudited results for the first quarter ended June 30, 2010 : On or before August 14, 2010

Unaudited results for the second quarter / half year ended September 30, 2010 : On or before November 14, 2010

Unaudited results for the third quarter ended December 31, 2010 : On or before February 14, 2011

Audited results for the financial year 2010-11 : On or before May 31, 2011

Any queries relating to the financial statementsAny queries relating to the financial statementsAny queries relating to the financial statementsAny queries relating to the financial statementsAny queries relating to the financial statements Investors’ correspondence may be addressed to theInvestors’ correspondence may be addressed to theInvestors’ correspondence may be addressed to theInvestors’ correspondence may be addressed to theInvestors’ correspondence may be addressed to the
of the company may be addressed to CFOof the company may be addressed to CFOof the company may be addressed to CFOof the company may be addressed to CFOof the company may be addressed to CFO CCCCCompliancompliancompliancompliancompliance Ofe Ofe Ofe Ofe Offfffficicicicicererererer

Shri Amit Bapna Shri V. R. Mohan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & Manager
Reliance Capital Limited Reliance Capital Limited
H Block, 1st Floor H Block, 1st Floor
Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City
Navi Mumbai 400 710 Navi Mumbai 400 710
Telephone: +91 22 3047 9400 Telephone: +91 22 3047 9800
Facsimile: +91 22 3032 7202 Facsimile: +91 22 3032 7202
Email: rcl.investor@relianceada.com Email: rcl.investor@relianceada.com

Plant LocationsPlant LocationsPlant LocationsPlant LocationsPlant Locations

The Company is engaged in the business of financial services and has no plant.
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AuditorsAuditorsAuditorsAuditorsAuditors’ ’ ’ ’ ’ Report on Financial StatementsReport on Financial StatementsReport on Financial StatementsReport on Financial StatementsReport on Financial Statements

TTTTTo,o,o,o,o,

The Members ofThe Members ofThe Members ofThe Members ofThe Members of
Reliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital Limited

We have audited the attached balance sheet of RRRRRelianceliancelianceliancelianceeeee
CCCCCapitapitapitapitapitalalalalal Limit Limit Limit Limit Limiteeeeeddddd ('the Company'), as at March 31, 2010 and
also the profit and loss account and cash flow statement for
the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibi l ity of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2003 ('the order') as amended, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section
227 of the Companies Act 1956 ('the Act'), we enclose
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to
above, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account, as required by
law, have been kept by the Company, so far as appears
from our examination of the books;

c) the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow
statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account
and cash flow statement dealt with by this report comply
with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section
(3C) of Section 211 of the Act.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the
directors as on March 31, 2010 and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors
of the Company are disqualified as on March 31, 2010
from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g)
of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Act;

f) in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to explanations given to us, the said financial
statements together with the notes thereon, give the
information required by the Act, in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2010;

(ii) in the case of the profit and loss account, of the
profit for the year ended on that date; and

(iii) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash
flow for the year ended on that date.

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No:101720W Firm Regn. No: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010 Dated: April 30, 2010
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Annexure to AuditorsAnnexure to AuditorsAnnexure to AuditorsAnnexure to AuditorsAnnexure to Auditors’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ReportReportReportReportReport

(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical
verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) As per information and explanation given to us,
during the year, the Company has not disposed
off any substantial part of fixed assets that would
affect the going concern.

(ii) The Company is a service company, primarily engaged
in lending and investing activities. Accordingly, it does
not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 4 (ii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted or
taken by the Company to/ from companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956

(a) During the year the Company has granted
unsecured demand loan amounting to Rs.102
crore to a one company covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Act. The
maximum amount outstanding during the year
was Rs.112.10 crore and the year end balance
of such loans was Rs.32.10 crore.  The Company
had given interest free loan in the past to a
company whose maximum balance and the year
end balance was Rs.229.25 crore.

(b) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms
and conditions on which loans have been granted
to the above mentioned companies are not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(c) The loans granted to the aforementioned
companies are repayable on demand. According
to the information and explanations given to us,
the borrowers have been regular in repaying in
the payment of interest, where applicable.

(d) There is no overdue amount of more than rupees
one lakh in respect of the above loans.

(e) The Company has not taken any loans, secured
or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraphs 4(iii)(f)
and 4(iii)(g) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to
us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature
of its business for the purchase of fixed assets and services
taken & rendered. We have not observed any continuing
failure to correct major weaknesses in internal controls.

(v) (a) According to information and explanations given
to us, we are of the opinion that the transactions
made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements
that needed to be entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions of purchase of goods & material and
sale of goods, materials & services made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangement required
to be entered in the register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
aggregating during the year to Rs.5,00,000/- or
more in respect of each party.

(vi) The Company has not accepted deposits from public
hence directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Section 58A and 58 AA or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
and rules framed there under are not applicable for the
year under audit.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

(viii) The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance
of cost records under Section 209(1) (d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 in respect of activities carried on
by the Company. Hence the provisions of clause 4 (viii)
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are
not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) According to the records of the Company, the
Company has been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Investor Education
Protection Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth
tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and
other statutory dues.
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For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No:101720W Firm Regn. No: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010 Dated: April 30, 2010

Annexure to AuditorsAnnexure to AuditorsAnnexure to AuditorsAnnexure to AuditorsAnnexure to Auditors’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ReportReportReportReportReport

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of such statutory dues were outstanding
as at March 31, 2010 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanation
given to us, there are no such statutory  dues,
which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute, except in respect of sales tax under
Gujrat Sales Tax Act, 1969 of Rs.4,75,916 for
the period 2001-02 which is pending before the
Gujarat Sales Tax Tribunal, Ahmedabad and sales
tax under Madhya Pradesh Sales Tax Act, 1969
of Rs.4,30,472 for the period 1996-97 which is
pending before Appellate Deputy Commissioner
of the Commercial Tax,  Indore  Division - I .

(x) The Company neither has accumulated losses nor has it
incurred any cash losses during the current financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and the information and
explanation given by management, we are of the
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or
debenture holders.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, adequate documents and
records have been maintained by the Company in respect
of loans and advances granted on the basis of security
by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund, a nidhi
or a mutual benefit society. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4 (xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2003 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) The Company has maintained proper records of
transactions and contracts in respect of trading in shares,
debentures, and other investment and timely entries
have been made therein.

(xv) The Company has given guarantees for loan taken by
others from banks or financial institutions. According to
the information and explanations given by the
management, in our opinion the terms and conditions
of the guarantees given by the Company for loans taken
by others from banks or financial institutions are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to
us, the term loans taken by the Company have been
applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(xvii) According to information and explanation given to us
and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of
the Company as at March 31 2010, no funds raised on
shor t-term basis have been used for long-term
investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment
of equity shares during the year to a company, covered
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, at price which is not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

(xix) The Company has created securities and /or charges in
respect of secured debentures issued and redeemed
during the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by way of
public issue during the year.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.
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 (Rs. in crore)

SCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULE As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at
 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

SOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDS
SharSharSharSharShareholdereholdereholdereholdereholdersssss’ F’ F’ F’ F’ Fundsundsundsundsunds
(a) Share Capital AAAAA 246.16246.16246.16246.16246.16 246.16
(b) Reserves and Surplus BBBBB 6 712.906 712.906 712.906 712.906 712.90 6 560.28

6 959.066 959.066 959.066 959.066 959.06 6 806.44
LLLLLoan Foan Foan Foan Foan Fundsundsundsundsunds
(a) Secured Loans CCCCC 6 522.026 522.026 522.026 522.026 522.02 4 937.04
(b) Unsecured Loans DDDDD 5 436.135 436.135 436.135 436.135 436.13 8 842.02

11 958.1511 958.1511 958.1511 958.1511 958.15 13 779.06
Deferred Tax Liability (net) 6.006.006.006.006.00 6.50
(Refer Note No. 15, Schedule “N”)

TTTTTOOOOOTTTTTALALALALAL 18 923.2118 923.2118 923.2118 923.2118 923.21 20 592.00

APPLAPPLAPPLAPPLAPPLICICICICICAAAAATITITITITION OF FON OF FON OF FON OF FON OF FUNDSUNDSUNDSUNDSUNDS
Fixed assetsFixed assetsFixed assetsFixed assetsFixed assets EEEEE
(a) Gross Block 211.20211.20211.20211.20211.20 351.63
(b) Accumulated Depreciation 125.69125.69125.69125.69125.69 252.69

(c) Net Block 85.5185.5185.5185.5185.51 98.94
(d) Capital Work-in-Progress 82.2582.2582.2582.2582.25 80.74

167.76167.76167.76167.76167.76 179.68
InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments FFFFF 10 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.04 8 746.49
Accrued Premium/Interest on Investments 587.48587.48587.48587.48587.48 328.10
(Refer Note No. 16, Schedule “N”)
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetets, Ls, Ls, Ls, Ls, Loans and oans and oans and oans and oans and AdAdAdAdAdvvvvvancancancancanceseseseses GGGGG
(a) Stock-in-Trade ----- 0.53
(b) Sundry Debtors 121.23121.23121.23121.23121.23 0.46
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 392.34392.34392.34392.34392.34 338.36
(d) Other Current Assets 101.87101.87101.87101.87101.87 152.77
(e) Loans and Advances 7 981.587 981.587 981.587 981.587 981.58 11 388.78

8 597.028 597.028 597.028 597.028 597.02 11 880.90
LLLLLess: Cess: Cess: Cess: Cess: Currurrurrurrurrent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Prrrrrooooovisionsvisionsvisionsvisionsvisions HHHHH
(a) Current Liabilities 970.19970.19970.19970.19970.19 415.94
(c) Provisions 208.27208.27208.27208.27208.27 236.24

1 178.461 178.461 178.461 178.461 178.46 652.18
Net Current Assets 7 418.567 418.567 418.567 418.567 418.56 11 228.72
Unamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised Expenditure IIIII 73.3773.3773.3773.3773.37 109.01

18 923.2118 923.2118 923.2118 923.2118 923.21 20 592.00

Significant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting Policies MMMMM

Notes to the AccountsNotes to the AccountsNotes to the AccountsNotes to the AccountsNotes to the Accounts NNNNN

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

As per our report of even date

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 101720W Firm Regn. No.: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768
Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board
Chairman Anil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. Ambani
Vice Chairman Amitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh Jhunjhunwala

Directors RRRRRajendrajendrajendrajendrajendra Pa Pa Pa Pa P. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chitalalalalaleeeee
C. PC. PC. PC. PC. P. . . . . JJJJJainainainainain
DrDrDrDrDr. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhusan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samal

Company Secretary & Manager VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan

Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010
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 (Rs. in crore)

 SCHEDULE SCHEDULE SCHEDULE SCHEDULE SCHEDULE  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10  2008-09

INCOMEINCOMEINCOMEINCOMEINCOME

Operating and Other Income JJJJJ 2 389.882 389.882 389.882 389.882 389.88 3 014.45

EXPENDITUREEXPENDITUREEXPENDITUREEXPENDITUREEXPENDITURE

Interest and Finance Charges KKKKK 1 259.601 259.601 259.601 259.601 259.60 1 236.75

Administrative and Other Expenses LLLLL 683.79683.79683.79683.79683.79 679.28

Depreciation and Amortisation 18.1618.1618.1618.1618.16 21.22

1 961.551 961.551 961.551 961.551 961.55 1 937.25

PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT BEF BEF BEF BEF BEFORE ORE ORE ORE ORE TTTTTAXAXAXAXAX 428.33428.33428.33428.33428.33 1 077.20

Provision for Taxation 89.4189.4189.4189.4189.41 123.68

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax ----- 2.50

(Writeback) / Provision for Deferred Tax (0.50)(0.50)(0.50)(0.50)(0.50) (17.00)

PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT     AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER TTTTTAXAXAXAXAX 339.42339.42339.42339.42339.42 968.02

Balance in Profit and Loss Account Brought Forward 1 920.521 920.521 920.521 920.521 920.52 1 429.72

PPPPPrrrrrofofofofofit it it it it AAAAAvvvvvailailailailailablablablablable fe fe fe fe fororororor     ApprApprApprApprAppropriationsopriationsopriationsopriationsopriations 2 259.942 259.942 259.942 259.942 259.94 2 397.74

APPROPRIAAPPROPRIAAPPROPRIAAPPROPRIAAPPROPRIATITITITITIONSONSONSONSONS

Proposed Dividend 159.66159.66159.66159.66159.66 159.66

Tax on Proposed Dividend 27.1427.1427.1427.1427.14 27.14

Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund 67.8867.8867.8867.8867.88 193.61

Transfer to General Reserve 33.9433.9433.9433.9433.94 96.81

Balance in Profit and Loss Account Carried Forward 1 971.321 971.321 971.321 971.321 971.32 1 920.52

2 259.942 259.942 259.942 259.942 259.94 2 397.74

Earning per Equity Share of Rs.10 each Fully Paid up

(Refer Note No. 14, Schedule “N”)

Basic (Rs.) 13.8213.8213.8213.8213.82 39.41

Diluted (Rs.) 13.8213.8213.8213.8213.82 39.41

Significant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting Policies MMMMM

Notes to the AccountsNotes to the AccountsNotes to the AccountsNotes to the AccountsNotes to the Accounts NNNNN

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

PPPPPrrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010

As per our report of even date

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 101720W Firm Regn. No.: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768
Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board
Chairman Anil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. Ambani
Vice Chairman Amitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh Jhunjhunwala

Directors RRRRRajendrajendrajendrajendrajendra Pa Pa Pa Pa P. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chitalalalalaleeeee
C. PC. PC. PC. PC. P. . . . . JJJJJainainainainain
DrDrDrDrDr. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhusan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samal

Company Secretary & Manager VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan

Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010
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 (Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010  March 31, 2009

Schedule “A”Schedule “A”Schedule “A”Schedule “A”Schedule “A”
Share CapitalShare CapitalShare CapitalShare CapitalShare Capital
AuthorisedAuthorisedAuthorisedAuthorisedAuthorised
30 00 00 000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 300.00300.00300.00300.00300.00 300.00
(Previous Year 30 00 00 000)
10 00 00 000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 100.00
(Previous Year 10 00 00 000)

400.00400.00400.00400.00400.00 400.00
Issued and SubscribedIssued and SubscribedIssued and SubscribedIssued and SubscribedIssued and Subscribed
24 69 77 006 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
(Previous Year 24 69 77 006) 246.98246.98246.98246.98246.98 246.98

PPPPPaid upaid upaid upaid upaid up
24 56 32 800 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
(Previous Year 24 56 32 800) 245.63245.63245.63245.63245.63 245.63
Add: Forfeited Shares (Amount originally 0.530.530.530.530.53 0.53
paid up on 13 44 206 Equity Shares
of Rs.10 Each)
(Previous Year 13 44 206)  246.16 246.16 246.16 246.16 246.16 246.16

246.16246.16246.16246.16246.16 246.16
Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
Of the above Equity Shares
i) In the year 1992-93, 18,70,000 shares were allotted to shareholders of Arasina Hotels Ltd. as fully paid-up pursuant to

the Scheme of Amalgamation and arrangement as sanctioned by the Gujarat High Court and Karnataka High Court without
payment being received in cash.

ii) In the year 2006-07, 10,66,555 shares were allotted to shareholders of Reliance Capital Ventures Ltd. as fully paid-up
pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat at
Ahmedbad and the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Mumbai, without payment being received in cash..

iii) AAA Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. which holds 10 64 14 206 shares (Previous Year 12 63 89 839 Shares), ceased to be the holding
company w.e.f. June 26, 2009

iv) AAA Infrastructure Consulting and Engineers Pvt. Ltd. holds 1 99 75 633 shares (Previous Year Nil).
v) Reliance Innoventures Pvt. Ltd., the holding company, holds 5,76,450 shares (Previous Year 5,76,450) w.e.f. June 26,

2009.

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

(Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010  March 31, 2009
Schedule “B”Schedule “B”Schedule “B”Schedule “B”Schedule “B”
Reserves and SurplusReserves and SurplusReserves and SurplusReserves and SurplusReserves and Surplus
Capital Reserve 6.436.436.436.436.43 6.43
Capital Redemption Reserve 10.1310.1310.1310.1310.13 10.13
Securities Premium Account 3 290.963 290.963 290.963 290.963 290.96 3 290.96
StStStStStatatatatatutututututororororory Ry Ry Ry Ry Resesesesesererererervvvvve Fe Fe Fe Fe Fund*und*und*und*und*

As per last Balance Sheet 815.17815.17815.17815.17815.17 621.56
Add: Amount transferred from Profit and Loss Account 67.8867.8867.8867.8867.88 193.61

883.05883.05883.05883.05883.05 815.17
General ReserveGeneral ReserveGeneral ReserveGeneral ReserveGeneral Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 517.07517.07517.07517.07517.07 420.26
Add: Amount transferred from Profit and Loss Account 33.9433.9433.9433.9433.94 96.81

551.01551.01551.01551.01551.01 517.07
Profit and Loss AccountProfit and Loss AccountProfit and Loss AccountProfit and Loss AccountProfit and Loss Account 1 971.321 971.321 971.321 971.321 971.32 1 920.52

6 712.906 712.906 712.906 712.906 712.90 6 560.28

* Created pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (Amendment) Act, 1997.
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(Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010  March 31, 2009

ScheduleScheduleScheduleScheduleSchedule “C”

Secured Loans
Non Convertible Debentures 3 882.083 882.083 882.083 882.083 882.08 1 181.90
From Banks

Long Term Loan 1 754.381 754.381 754.381 754.381 754.38 1 794.77
Cash Credit 785.26785.26785.26785.26785.26 1 010.29
Short Term Loan 100.30100.30100.30100.30100.30 950.08

2 639.942 639.942 639.942 639.942 639.94 3 755.14

6 522.026 522.026 522.026 522.026 522.02 4 937.04

ScheduleScheduleScheduleScheduleSchedule “D”
Unsecured Loans
From Banks

Short Term Loan 700.00700.00700.00700.00700.00 3 250.04
Long Term Loan 50.0050.0050.0050.0050.00 -

750.00750.00750.00750.00750.00 3 250.04
Body Corporate 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69 -
Commercial Paper 4 670.444 670.444 670.444 670.444 670.44 5 591.98

5 436.135 436.135 436.135 436.135 436.13 8 842.02

Notes :Notes :Notes :Notes :Notes :

 1. Non convertible debentures (NCDs) referred in Schedule “C” above are redeemable at par, in one or more installments, on
various dates with the earliest redemption being on April 8, 2010 and the last being on September 10, 2014. The NCDs
amounting to Rs.140 crore (Previous Year Rs.540 crore) are redeemable in the financial year 2010-11.

 a) NCDs amounting to Rs.265 crore (Previous Year Rs.380 crore) as referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by way
of first pari passu legal mortgage and charge over the premises situated at Avdesh House near Pritam Nagar, Ellis
bridge, Ahmedabad and additional first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on business receivable and loan
assets of the consumer finance division, against security not exceeding Rs.321.25 crore.

 b) NCDs amounting to Rs.3,450 crore (Previous Year Rs. Nil) as referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by way of first
pari passu legal mortgage and charge over the premises situated at Avdesh House near Pritam Nagar, Ellis bridge,
Ahmedabad and additional first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on business receivable and/or loan assets
of the Company or as may be decided by the Company, against security not exceeding Rs.3,712.50 crore.

 c) NCDs referred in Schedule “C” above includes Rs.167.08 crore (Previous Year Rs.26.90 crore) interest accrued thereon.

 2.  a) Long Term Loans referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by pari passu first charge on all present and future book
debts, receivables, bills, claims and loan assets of the Company’s consumer finance division.

 b) Long Term Loans amounting to Rs.515 crore (Previous Year Rs.598 crore) are payable within one year.

 3. Cash Credits amounting to Rs.785.26 crore (Previous Year Rs.1,010.29 crore) referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by
pari passu first charge on all present and future book debts (only performing assets), receivables and loan assets pertaining
only to the Company’s consumer finance division.

 4.  a) Short Term Loans amounting to Rs.100.30 crore (Previous Year Rs.950.08 crore) referred in Schedule “C” are secured
by way of pari passu first charge on all the book debts, outstandings, moneys receivables, bills, claims and loan assets
of the Company’s consumer finance division.

 b) Short Term Loans amounting to Rs.100.30 crore (Previous Year Rs.950.08 crore) are payable within one year.

 5. In respect of unsecured loan referred in Schedule “D” above, amount payable within one year is Rs.5,386.13 crore (Previous
Year Rs.8,842.02 crore)

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
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Reliance Capital Limited

(Rs. in crore)
FFFFFacacacacace e e e e VVVVVala la la la lue /ue /ue /ue /ue / QuantityQuantityQuantityQuantityQuantity VVVVVala la la la lueueueueue

Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price  As at As at As at As at As at As at As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at
(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.) March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,

20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009
Schedule “F”Schedule “F”Schedule “F”Schedule “F”Schedule “F”
IIIIInvestmentsnvestmentsnvestmentsnvestmentsnvestments
LLLLLong ong ong ong ong TTTTTerm Inerm Inerm Inerm Inerm Invvvvvestmentestmentestmentestmentestmentsssss
Government and other Securities - UnquotedGovernment and other Securities - UnquotedGovernment and other Securities - UnquotedGovernment and other Securities - UnquotedGovernment and other Securities - Unquoted
National Saving Certificates - ----- - 0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00
[Rs.45,000/- (Previous Year Rs.45,000/-)]
(Deposited with Sales Tax Department)

0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00
Other InvestmentsOther InvestmentsOther InvestmentsOther InvestmentsOther Investments
EEEEEquitquitquitquitquity Shary Shary Shary Shary Shares - Quoes - Quoes - Quoes - Quoes - Quottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Axsys Health Tech Ltd. 10 ----- 13 25 000 ----- 7.95
(Refer Note 3 below)
Aurionpro Solutions Ltd. 10 10 01 95510 01 95510 01 95510 01 95510 01 955 5 00 000 31.2031.2031.2031.2031.20 21.25
B.A.G Films and Media Ltd. 2 3 94 4003 94 4003 94 4003 94 4003 94 400 - 0.390.390.390.390.39 -
(Refer Note 5 below)
Celebrity Fashions Ltd. 10 11 58 37311 58 37311 58 37311 58 37311 58 373 11 58 373 14.5114.5114.5114.5114.51 14.51
D B Realty Ltd. 10 9 47 2039 47 2039 47 2039 47 2039 47 203 - 43.1043.1043.1043.1043.10 -
DLF Ltd. 2 3 00 0003 00 0003 00 0003 00 0003 00 000 - 12.5412.5412.5412.5412.54 -
EIH Ltd. 2 75 00 00075 00 00075 00 00075 00 00075 00 000 36 00 000 88.2788.2788.2788.2788.27 39.86
EMCO Ltd. 2 16 20 00016 20 00016 20 00016 20 00016 20 000 45 75 000 13.0113.0113.0113.0113.01 42.16
HBL Power Systems Ltd. 10 1 70 00 0001 70 00 0001 70 00 0001 70 00 0001 70 00 000 - 31.6631.6631.6631.6631.66 -
Hindalco Industries Ltd. 1 ----- 1 79 87 462 - 172.68
IBN18 Broadcast Ltd. 2 1 06 00 0001 06 00 0001 06 00 0001 06 00 0001 06 00 000 1 20 26 875 136.33136.33136.33136.33136.33 154.64
Indage Vintners Ltd. 10 9 16 0009 16 0009 16 0009 16 0009 16 000 - 7.707.707.707.707.70 -
Indiabulls Power Ltd. 10 20 00 00020 00 00020 00 00020 00 00020 00 000 - 9.009.009.009.009.00 -
INOX Leisure Ltd. 10 31 00 00531 00 00531 00 00531 00 00531 00 005 54 23 000 40.4540.4540.4540.4540.45 73.64
Jyoti Structures Ltd. 2 15 00 00015 00 00015 00 00015 00 00015 00 000 39 08 401 19.4419.4419.4419.4419.44 46.67
Kinetic Engineering Ltd. 10 7 15 0007 15 0007 15 0007 15 0007 15 000 7 15 000 12.7312.7312.7312.7312.73 12.73
Kothari Sugars & Chemicals Ltd. 10 34 12334 12334 12334 12334 123 - 0.270.270.270.270.27 -
(Refer Note 5 below)
KSK Energy Ventures Ltd. 10 14 19 00014 19 00014 19 00014 19 00014 19 000 - 24.9524.9524.9524.9524.95 -
Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Ltd. 10 30 00 00030 00 00030 00 00030 00 00030 00 000 30 00 000 55.0755.0755.0755.0755.07 55.07
Network18 Media & Investments Ltd. 5 52 30 00052 30 00052 30 00052 30 00052 30 000 48 77 686 162.72162.72162.72162.72162.72 157.15
OnMobile Global Ltd. 10 - 2 39 000 ----- 6.93
Padmalaya Telefilms Ltd. 10 5 11 0005 11 0005 11 0005 11 0005 11 000 - 2.062.062.062.062.06 -
(Refer Note 5 below)
Prime Focus Ltd. 10 17 39 00017 39 00017 39 00017 39 00017 39 000 18 82 260 51.6751.6751.6751.6751.67 55.93
Reliance Communications Ltd. 5 84 20 29584 20 29584 20 29584 20 29584 20 295 1 84 40 295 95.4695.4695.4695.4695.46 209.05
Reliance Industrial Infrastructure Ltd. 10 1 60 1001 60 1001 60 1001 60 1001 60 100 1 60 100 0.500.500.500.500.50 0.50
Reliance MediaWorks Ltd. (formerly Adlabs Films Ltd.) 5 81 05 00081 05 00081 05 00081 05 00081 05 000 29 55 000 213.43213.43213.43213.43213.43 43.46
(Refer Note 4 below)
Reliance Media World Ltd. 5 29 55 00029 55 00029 55 00029 55 00029 55 000 - 10.0610.0610.0610.0610.06 -
(Refer Note 4 below)
Reliance Natural Resources Ltd. 5 1 64 71 2951 64 71 2951 64 71 2951 64 71 2951 64 71 295 1 64 71 295 2.722.722.722.722.72 2.72
Spanco Ltd. 10 8 58 0008 58 0008 58 0008 58 0008 58 000 8 58 000 7.847.847.847.847.84 7.84
Sparsh BPO Services Ltd. 10 5 89 0105 89 0105 89 0105 89 0105 89 010 5 89 010 5.355.355.355.355.35 5.35
State Bank of India 10 ----- 16 00 000 ----- 383.26
TV Today Network Ltd. 5 81 00 00081 00 00081 00 00081 00 00081 00 000 69 18 527 101.97101.97101.97101.97101.97 88.45
Unitech Ltd. 2 5 00 0005 00 0005 00 0005 00 0005 00 000 5 00 000 8.198.198.198.198.19 8.19
Ventura Textiles Ltd. 10 12 87 50012 87 50012 87 50012 87 50012 87 500 12 87 500 5.925.925.925.925.92 5.92

1 208.511 208.511 208.511 208.511 208.51 1,615.911,615.911,615.911,615.911,615.91
Less: Provision for Dimunition in the Value of Investments 48.3148.3148.3148.3148.31 56.86

1 160.201 160.201 160.201 160.201 160.20 1 559.051 559.051 559.051 559.051 559.05

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
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Reliance Capital Limited

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
(Rs. in crore)

FFFFFacacacacace e e e e VVVVVala la la la lue /ue /ue /ue /ue / QuantityQuantityQuantityQuantityQuantity VVVVVala la la la lueueueueue
Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price  As at As at As at As at As at As at As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.) March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009

EEEEEquitquitquitquitquity Shary Shary Shary Shary Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed,d,d,d,d,FFFFFulululululllllly y y y y PPPPPaid-aid-aid-aid-aid-UUUUUppppp
Axsys Health Tech Ltd. 10 13 25 00013 25 00013 25 00013 25 00013 25 000 - 7.957.957.957.957.95 -
(Refer Note 3 below)
BLR Logistiks (I) Ltd. 10 ----- 32 12 212 ----- 30.30
Gini & Jony Ltd. 10 20 00 00020 00 00020 00 00020 00 00020 00 000 20 00 000 10.7010.7010.7010.7010.70 10.70
Global Wind Power Ltd. 10 14 40 00014 40 00014 40 00014 40 00014 40 000 14 40 000 7.207.207.207.207.20 7.20
GTFS Multi Services Ltd. 10 12 50 00012 50 00012 50 00012 50 00012 50 000 12 50 000 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 75.00
Himland Buildcon Pvt. Ltd. 1 8 5008 5008 5008 5008 500 - 42.5042.5042.5042.5042.50 -
KGS Developers Ltd. 10 63 04 10863 04 10863 04 10863 04 10863 04 108 63 04 108 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 75.00
KLT Automotive & Tubular Products Ltd. 10 5 25 0005 25 0005 25 0005 25 0005 25 000 5 25 000 11.2911.2911.2911.2911.29 11.29
Kothari Industrial Corporation Ltd. 10 3 93 8803 93 8803 93 8803 93 8803 93 880 - 0.720.720.720.720.72 -
(Refer Note 5 below)
Kumar Urban Development Ltd. 10 ----- 15 99 322 ----- 100.00
Menon and Menon Ltd. 10 3 90 0003 90 0003 90 0003 90 0003 90 000 3 90 000 6.056.056.056.056.05 6.05
Observer (India) Ltd. 10 23 20023 20023 20023 20023 200 23 200 0.020.020.020.020.02 0.02
Phi Management Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 10 4 00 0004 00 0004 00 0004 00 0004 00 000 4 00 000 0.400.400.400.400.40 0.40
Real Image Media Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 10 790790790790790 790 0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00
Reliance Life Insurance Company Ltd. 10 18 59 23 20018 59 23 20018 59 23 20018 59 23 20018 59 23 200 18 55 53 600 450.12450.12450.12450.12450.12 413.16
Reverse Logistics Company Pvt. Ltd. 10 16 54216 54216 54216 54216 542 - 5.225.225.225.225.22 -
Reliance Net Ltd. 10 5 26 4975 26 4975 26 4975 26 4975 26 497 3 55 000 0.530.530.530.530.53 0.36
Roseland Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 10 84 38 43084 38 43084 38 43084 38 43084 38 430 - 148.08148.08148.08148.08148.08 -
Southern Wind Farms Ltd. 10 22 18 72022 18 72022 18 72022 18 72022 18 720 22 18 720 7.997.997.997.997.99 7.99
Reliance Tech Services Pvt. Ltd. 10 1 0001 0001 0001 0001 000 1 000 0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00
Victory Transformers and Swithchgears Pvt. Ltd. 100 1 38 6391 38 6391 38 6391 38 6391 38 639 1 38 639 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 75.00
Viscount Management Services (Alpha) Ltd. 10 18 00018 00018 00018 00018 000 18 000 0.020.020.020.020.02 0.02
Viscount Management Services Ltd. 10 10 80010 80010 80010 80010 800 10 800 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.01

923.80923.80923.80923.80923.80 812.50812.50812.50812.50812.50
Less: Provision for Dimunition in the Value of Investments 8.678.678.678.678.67 -

915.13915.13915.13915.13915.13 812.50812.50812.50812.50812.50

PPPPPrrrrrefefefefeferererererencencencencence Share Share Share Share Shares - Quoes - Quoes - Quoes - Quoes - Quottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
5% Non Convertible Cumulative Preferece Shares of 150 6 75 3436 75 3436 75 3436 75 3436 75 343 6 75 343 10.1310.1310.1310.1310.13 10.13
Network18 Media & Investments Ltd.

10.1310.1310.1310.1310.13 10.1310.1310.1310.1310.13
Less: Provision for Dimunition in the Value of Investments 0.370.370.370.370.37 -

9.769.769.769.769.76 10.1310.1310.1310.1310.13

PPPPPrrrrrefefefefeferererererencencencencence Share Share Share Share Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
8% Redeemable and Optionally Convertible Preference Shares, 10 13 49613 49613 49613 49613 496 - 0.670.670.670.670.67 -
of Dhama Apparel Innovations Pvt. Ltd.
14% Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative Preference Shares 10 1 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 000 1 50 00 000 15.0015.0015.0015.0015.00 15.00
of Kinetic Engineering Ltd.
9% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 10 40 00 00040 00 00040 00 00040 00 00040 00 000 - 400.00400.00400.00400.00400.00 -
of India Best Buy Pvt. Ltd.
1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 10 5 64 0005 64 0005 64 0005 64 0005 64 000 5 64 000 56.4056.4056.4056.4056.40 56.40
of Phi Management Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
12% Non Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 1 1 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 000 - 1,000.001,000.001,000.001,000.001,000.00 -
of Reliance Big Entertainment Pvt. Ltd.
10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 10 10 00 00 00010 00 00 00010 00 00 00010 00 00 00010 00 00 000 10 00 00 000 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 100.00
of Reliance Money Infrastructure Ltd. (formerly Reliance Money Ltd.)
10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1 ----- 82 35 950 ----- 823.60
of Swan Finance Management Pvt. Ltd.
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
(Rs. in crore)

FFFFFacacacacace e e e e VVVVVala la la la lue /ue /ue /ue /ue / QuantityQuantityQuantityQuantityQuantity VVVVVala la la la lueueueueue
Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price  As at As at As at As at As at As at As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

(((((RRRRRs.s.s.s.s.))))) March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009

1% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1 3 72 67 5303 72 67 5303 72 67 5303 72 67 5303 72 67 530 1 89 40 000 372.68372.68372.68372.68372.68 189.40
of Viscount Management Services Ltd.
1% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1 5 26 25 3105 26 25 3105 26 25 3105 26 25 3105 26 25 310 2 52 55 000 526.25526.25526.25526.25526.25 252.55
of Viscount Management Services (Alpha) Ltd.
Series B- Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 10 7 89 9417 89 9417 89 9417 89 9417 89 941 7 89 941 6.686.686.686.686.68 6.68
of Real Image Media Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
Series A Preference Shares of Suvidha Infoserve Pvt. Ltd. 10 7 23 7987 23 7987 23 7987 23 7987 23 798 7 23 798 11.0411.0411.0411.0411.04 11.04
Series A Preference Shares of Yatra Online Inc. $0.0001 42 00 04242 00 04242 00 04242 00 04242 00 042 42 00 042 6.206.206.206.206.20 6.20
Series B Preference Shares of Yatra Online Inc. $0.0001 27 31 96027 31 96027 31 96027 31 96027 31 960 27 31 960 15.5215.5215.5215.5215.52 15.52
Series C Preference Shares of Yatra Online Inc. $0.0001 11 44 94611 44 94611 44 94611 44 94611 44 946 11 44 946 15.8815.8815.8815.8815.88 15.88
Series C Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 10 11 36 36411 36 36411 36 36411 36 36411 36 364 - 7.507.507.507.507.50 -
of Teslolve Service Pvt. Ltd.
9% Non Cumulative Redeemable Non Convertible Preference Shares 10 47 50 00047 50 00047 50 00047 50 00047 50 000 - 475.00475.00475.00475.00475.00 -
of Reliance Net Ltd.

3 008.823 008.823 008.823 008.823 008.82 1 492.27
Less: Provision for Dimunition in the Value of Investments 1.501.501.501.501.50 1.50

3 007.323 007.323 007.323 007.323 007.32 1 490.77

DebentDebentDebentDebentDebentururururures - Quoes - Quoes - Quoes - Quoes - Quottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
9.07% Rural Electrification Corporation Ltd Bond, 28-2-2018 1,000,000 ----- 750 - 75.00
9.50% NABARD Bond, 15-10-2012 1,000,000 ----- 150 - 15.00
9.24% Indian Overseas Bank Bonds 05-9-2021 1,000,000 310310310310310 - 32.0032.0032.0032.0032.00 -
8.70% Punjab & Sind Bank Bonds 11-4-2020 1,000,000 300300300300300 - 30.0030.0030.0030.0030.00 -
9.35% The Great Eastern Shipping Co.Ltd. Bonds 8-2-2019 1,000,000 750750750750750 - 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 -
8.90% UCO Bank Bonds 25-3-2025 1,000,000 370370370370370 - 37.0037.0037.0037.0037.00 -

174.00174.00174.00174.00174.00 90.00

DebentDebentDebentDebentDebentururururures - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Series DDB I - Non Secured Redeemable Non Interest Bearing $961.00 7 5247 5247 5247 5247 524 7 524 29.0129.0129.0129.0129.01 29.01
Non Convertible Deep Discount Bonds - Ammolite Holdings Ltd.
11% Secured Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Debentures 5,000,000 2020202020 20 10.6610.6610.6610.6610.66 10.66
Series A - Ventura Textiles Ltd.
12% Secured Optionally Fully Convertible Redeemable Debentures 5,000,000 2222222222 22 11.0011.0011.0011.0011.00 11.00
Series B - Ventura Textiles Ltd.
Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Unsecured Debentures 1,000 68 57 23068 57 23068 57 23068 57 23068 57 230 78 16 630 685.67685.67685.67685.67685.67 750.44
Viscount Management Services Ltd.
Zero Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Unsecured Debentures 1,000 89 87 21089 87 21089 87 21089 87 21089 87 210 1 05 54 710 898.63898.63898.63898.63898.63 997.81
Viscount Management Services (Alpha) Ltd.

1,634.971,634.971,634.971,634.971,634.97 1,798.92
Less: provision for dimunition in the value of investments 4.344.344.344.344.34 2.17

1,630.631,630.631,630.631,630.631,630.63 1,796.75

Subsidiary CompaniesSubsidiary CompaniesSubsidiary CompaniesSubsidiary CompaniesSubsidiary Companies
EEEEEquitquitquitquitquity Shary Shary Shary Shary Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Medybiz Pvt. Ltd. 10 24 74 00024 74 00024 74 00024 74 00024 74 000 24 74 000 4.334.334.334.334.33 4.33
Net Logistics Pvt. Ltd. 10 9 0009 0009 0009 0009 000 9 000 0.420.420.420.420.42 0.42
Reliance Alternative Investments Services Pvt. Ltd. 10 9 9999 9999 9999 9999 999 9 999 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.01
Reliance Capital Asset Management Ltd. 10 1 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 000 1 00 00 000 10.0010.0010.0010.0010.00 10.00
Reliance Capital Markets Pvt. Ltd. 10 52 50 00052 50 00052 50 00052 50 00052 50 000 52 50 000 5.285.285.285.285.28 5.28
Reliance Capital Research Pvt. Ltd. 10 10 00010 00010 00010 00010 000 10 000 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.01
Reliance Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. 10 50 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 000 50 00 000 5.005.005.005.005.00 5.00
Reliance Capital Trustee Company Ltd. 10 50 70050 70050 70050 70050 700 50 700 0.050.050.050.050.05 0.05
Reliance Capital (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. $1.00 11111 1 0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
(Rs. in crore)

FFFFFacacacacace e e e e VVVVVala la la la lue /ue /ue /ue /ue / QuantityQuantityQuantityQuantityQuantity VVVVVala la la la lueueueueue
Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price  As at As at As at As at As at As at As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.) March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009

Reliance Consumer Finance Pvt. Ltd. 10 50 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 000 20 00 000 5.005.005.005.005.00 2.00
Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Ltd. 10 50 00050 00050 00050 00050 000 50 000 0.050.050.050.050.05 0.05
Reliance Equities International Pvt. Ltd. 10 1 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 000 1 30 00 000 80.0080.0080.0080.0080.00 40.00
Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd. 10 11 09 29 26911 09 29 26911 09 29 26911 09 29 26911 09 29 269 10 87 86 412 977.00977.00977.00977.00977.00 767.00
Reliance Gilts Ltd. 10 70 00 70070 00 70070 00 70070 00 70070 00 700 70 00 700 7.007.007.007.007.00 7.00
Reliance Home Finance Pvt. Ltd. 10 3 00 00 0003 00 00 0003 00 00 0003 00 00 0003 00 00 000 1 00 00 000 30.0030.0030.0030.0030.00 10.00
Reliance Money Express Ltd. 10 1 38 13 1401 38 13 1401 38 13 1401 38 13 1401 38 13 140 1 38 13 140 24.9524.9524.9524.9524.95 24.95
Reliance Securities Ltd. 10 2 50 00 0002 50 00 0002 50 00 0002 50 00 0002 50 00 000 2 50 00 000 25.0625.0625.0625.0625.06 25.06
Reliance Venture Asset Management Pvt. Ltd. 10 10 00010 00010 00010 00010 000 10 000 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.01
(Formerly Reliance Technology Ventures Pvt. Ltd.)

1 174.171 174.171 174.171 174.171 174.17 901.17
PPPPPrrrrrefefefefeferererererencencencencence Share Share Share Share Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Reliance Securities Ltd. 10 15 00 00 00015 00 00 00015 00 00 00015 00 00 00015 00 00 000 15 00 00 000 150.00150.00150.00150.00150.00 150.00
8% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Reliance Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. 10 50 00050 00050 00050 00050 000 50 000 5.005.005.005.005.00 5.00
10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Reliance Money Express Ltd. 10 1 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 0001 50 00 000 1 50 00 000 15.0015.0015.0015.0015.00 15.00
8% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
of Reliance Consumer Finance Pvt. Ltd. 10 32 40 00032 40 00032 40 00032 40 00032 40 000 9 90 000 324.00324.00324.00324.00324.00 99.00
8% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
of Reliance Home Finance Pvt. Ltd. 10 26 60 00026 60 00026 60 00026 60 00026 60 000 9 10 000 266.00266.00266.00266.00266.00 91.00

760.00760.00760.00760.00760.00 360.00

Associate CompaniesAssociate CompaniesAssociate CompaniesAssociate CompaniesAssociate Companies
EEEEEquitquitquitquitquity Shary Shary Shary Shary Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Ammolite Holdings Ltd. $1.00 1 0001 0001 0001 0001 000 1 000 0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00
Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. 10 50 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 000 50 00 000 5.005.005.005.005.00 5.00
Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd. 10 50 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 00050 00 000 50 00 000 5.005.005.005.005.00 5.00
Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. 10 4 90 00 0004 90 00 0004 90 00 0004 90 00 0004 90 00 000 34 30 000 49.0049.0049.0049.0049.00 3.43

59.0059.0059.0059.0059.00 13.4313.4313.4313.4313.43

EEEEEquitquitquitquitquity Shary Shary Shary Shary Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Pd, Pd, Pd, Pd, Pararararartttttllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. 10 ----- 4 55 70 000 ----- 2.28

- 2.282.282.282.282.28

PPPPPrrrrrefefefefeferererererencencencencence Share Share Share Share Shares - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquoes - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
8% Cumulative Redeemable Non Convertible Preference Shares 10 1 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 0001 00 00 000 1 00 00 000 6.006.006.006.006.00 6.00
of Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd.
9% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 10 35 00 00035 00 00035 00 00035 00 00035 00 000 - 350.00350.00350.00350.00350.00 -
of Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd.
12% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 100 4 00 0004 00 0004 00 0004 00 0004 00 000 4 00 000 4.004.004.004.004.00 4.00
of Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd.

360.00360.00360.00360.00360.00 10.0010.0010.0010.0010.00

WWWWWarrarrarrarrarrantantantantants - Unquos - Unquos - Unquos - Unquos - Unquottttteeeeed, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fd, Fulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Global Wind Power Ltd. 10 65 00 00065 00 00065 00 00065 00 00065 00 000 65 00 000 32.5032.5032.5032.5032.50 32.50

32.5032.5032.5032.5032.50 32.5032.5032.5032.5032.50
WWWWWarrarrarrarrarrantantantantants - Unquos - Unquos - Unquos - Unquos - Unquottttteeeeed, Pd, Pd, Pd, Pd, Pararararartttttllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Aurionpro Solutions Ltd. 42.50 5 00 0005 00 0005 00 0005 00 0005 00 000 5 00 000 2.132.132.132.132.13 2.13
Kinetic Engineering Ltd. 154.44 6 00 0006 00 0006 00 0006 00 0006 00 000 6 00 000 9.279.279.279.279.27 9.27
Southern Wind Farms Ltd. 0.10 5 50 00 0005 50 00 0005 50 00 0005 50 00 0005 50 00 000 5 50 00 000 0.460.460.460.460.46 0.46
Textrade International Ltd. - 60 98560 98560 98560 98560 985 60 985 - -
(Refer Note 6 below)

11.8611.8611.8611.8611.86 11.5611.5611.5611.5611.56
Less: Provision for Dimunition in the Value of Investments 11.3911.3911.3911.3911.39 9.26

0.470.470.470.470.47 2.582.582.582.582.58
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(Rs. in crore)

FFFFFacacacacace e e e e VVVVVala la la la lue /ue /ue /ue /ue / QuantityQuantityQuantityQuantityQuantity VVVVVala la la la lueueueueue
Issue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue PriceIssue Price  As at As at As at As at As at As at As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.)(Rs.) March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009

InInInInInvvvvvestment in Festment in Festment in Festment in Festment in Fund - Unquound - Unquound - Unquound - Unquound - Unquottttteeeeed, d, d, d, d, FFFFFulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
The India Seed Investment Trust 100,000 500500500500500 - 5.005.005.005.005.00 -

5.005.005.005.005.00 -----

InInInInInvvvvvestment in Festment in Festment in Festment in Festment in Fund - Unquound - Unquound - Unquound - Unquound - Unquottttteeeeed, Pd, Pd, Pd, Pd, Pararararartttttllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
The India Seed Investment Trust 100,000 ----- 500 - 4.00
Reliance Alternative Investments Fund 1.5 20 00 00 00020 00 00 00020 00 00 00020 00 00 00020 00 00 000 - 30.0030.0030.0030.0030.00 -

30.0030.0030.0030.0030.00 4.00

Investment in unincorporated Joint VentureInvestment in unincorporated Joint VentureInvestment in unincorporated Joint VentureInvestment in unincorporated Joint VentureInvestment in unincorporated Joint Venture
KGS Developers Ltd 85.0085.0085.0085.0085.00 85.00
(Refer Note No. 17, Schedule “N”)

85.0085.0085.0085.0085.00 85.00

PPPPPass ass ass ass ass ThrThrThrThrThrough Cough Cough Cough Cough Cererererertiftiftiftiftificicicicicatatatatateseseseses 45.6845.6845.6845.6845.68 -
(Refer Note No. 2(b), Schedule “N”)

45.6845.6845.6845.6845.68 -

TOTAL LONG TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL LONG TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL LONG TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL LONG TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 9 448.869 448.869 448.869 448.869 448.86 7 170.16
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTSSHORT TERM INVESTMENTSSHORT TERM INVESTMENTSSHORT TERM INVESTMENTSSHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
MMMMMutututututualualualualual F F F F Funds - Quounds - Quounds - Quounds - Quounds - Quottttteeeeed*, d*, d*, d*, d*, FFFFFulululululllllly Py Py Py Py Paid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Upaid-Up
Reliance Mutual Fund - Liquidity Fund 10 49 35 20 73749 35 20 73749 35 20 73749 35 20 73749 35 20 737 75 90 75 534 684.00684.00684.00684.00684.00 1 005.35
LIC MF - Savings Plus Fund - Growth Option 10 6 83 26 4326 83 26 4326 83 26 4326 83 26 4326 83 26 432 19 96 08 187 100.01100.01100.01100.01100.01 275.00

784.01784.01784.01784.01784.01 1 280.35

SharSharSharSharShare in Pe in Pe in Pe in Pe in Pararararartnertnertnertnertnership Fship Fship Fship Fship Firmirmirmirmirm
Reliance Capital Partners Current Account 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17 295.98

443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17 295.98

TOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTSTOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 1 227.181 227.181 227.181 227.181 227.18 1 576.33

TOTAL INVESMENTSTOTAL INVESMENTSTOTAL INVESMENTSTOTAL INVESMENTSTOTAL INVESMENTS 10 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.04 8 746.49

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
1. The aggregate Value of Investments

As at March 31, 2010As at March 31, 2010As at March 31, 2010As at March 31, 2010As at March 31, 2010 As at March 31, 2009
BookBookBookBookBook     VVVVValalalalalueueueueue Market Value BookBookBookBookBook     VVVVValalalalalueueueueue Market Value

Quoted 2 127.972 127.972 127.972 127.972 127.97 2 079.54 2 939.532 939.532 939.532 939.532 939.53 2 398.72
Unquoted 8 548.078 548.078 548.078 548.078 548.07 - 5 806.965 806.965 806.965 806.965 806.96 -

2. The above investments includes Rs.336.44 crore (Previous Year Rs.NIL) of shares pledged towards security for Margin with
Brokers and on behalf of third parties.

3. In case of Axsys Health Tech Ltd, the shares of the company were delisted, hence, they have been included in Equity
Shares - Unquoted in the current year.

4. In terms of the scheme of demerger of Reliance MediaWorks Ltd. (formerly Adlabs Films Ltd.)
a) the Company has been allotted, 29,55,000 shares of Reliance Media World Ltd.
b) the above shares have been valued at 23.15% of the cost of Reliance MediaWorks Ltd. (formerly Adlabs Films Ltd.)

shares and consequently the value of Reliance MediaWorks Ltd. (formerly Adlabs Films Ltd.) shares have been reduced
to that extent.

5. During the year stock in trade held by the Company has been reclassified as investments at book value.
6. The Company has been allotted Warrants without paying any consideration at the time of allotment.

*For Mutual Funds, Net Asset Value is taken as Market Value.

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

(Rs. in crore)
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 (Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

Schedule “G”Schedule “G”Schedule “G”Schedule “G”Schedule “G”
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssetssetssetssetssets, Ls, Ls, Ls, Ls, Loans and oans and oans and oans and oans and AdAdAdAdAdvvvvvancancancancanceseseseses
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss
Stock-in-trade ----- 0.53
Sundry Debtors (Unsecured)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 53.3053.3053.3053.3053.30 -
Other Debts, considered good;
Subsidiaries 0.650.650.650.650.65 -

Others 67.2867.2867.2867.2867.28 0.46
121.23121.23121.23121.23121.23 0.46

Cash and Bank balances
Cash in hand 0.270.270.270.270.27 0.57

Balances with Scheduled Banks
In Current Accounts 226.82226.82226.82226.82226.82 337.79
In Fixed Deposit accounts (Refer Note No. 1 below) 165.25165.25165.25165.25165.25 -

392.34392.34392.34392.34392.34 338.36
Other Current Assets

Interest accrued from loans to:
Subsidiaries - 0.68
Associates - 8.53
Others 28.0728.0728.0728.0728.07 75.82

28.0728.0728.0728.0728.07 85.03
Assets Held for Sale 93.4693.4693.4693.4693.46 93.46

Less : Provision for Assets Held for Sale (Refer Note 2 below) 33.4633.4633.4633.4633.46 33.46
60.0060.0060.0060.0060.00 60.00

Repossessed Assets 19.3019.3019.3019.3019.30 12.30
Less : Provision for Repossessed Assets 5.505.505.505.505.50 4.56

13.8013.8013.8013.8013.80 101.87101.87101.87101.87101.87 7.74 152.77
615.44615.44615.44615.44615.44 492.12

Loans & AdvancesLoans & AdvancesLoans & AdvancesLoans & AdvancesLoans & Advances
Loans
(Refer Note 6 below)
Considered doubtful 264.10264.10264.10264.10264.10 293.28
Less : Provision for Non Performing Assets and Doubtful Debt 63.1663.1663.1663.1663.16 76.91

200.94200.94200.94200.94200.94 216.37
Considered Good

Portfolio Assignment 17.2217.2217.2217.2217.22 82.53
Subsidaries 99.8599.8599.8599.8599.85 168.83
Associates 27.8127.8127.8127.8127.81 483.43
Others 7 075.407 075.407 075.407 075.407 075.40 9 959.61

7 220.287 220.287 220.287 220.287 220.28 10 694.40
7 421.227 421.227 421.227 421.227 421.22 10 910.77

Advances recoverable in Cash or in kind or
for value to be received. (Refer Note 6 below)
Considered doubtful 79.7479.7479.7479.7479.74 58.82
Less : Provision for Non Performing Assets and Doubtful Debt 37.8437.8437.8437.8437.84 32.32

41.9041.9041.9041.9041.90 26.50
Considered Good
Subsidiaries 28.1428.1428.1428.1428.14 141.26
Associates ----- 0.11
Others 428.66428.66428.66428.66428.66 227.40

498.70498.70498.70498.70498.70 395.27

Deposits 29.9229.9229.9229.9229.92 56.32
Taxes Paid (Net) 31.7431.7431.7431.7431.74 26.42

61.6661.6661.6661.6661.66 82.74

7 981.587 981.587 981.587 981.587 981.58 11 388.78

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
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 (Rs. in crore)

As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

Schedule “H”Schedule “H”Schedule “H”Schedule “H”Schedule “H”

CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Prrrrrooooovisionsvisionsvisionsvisionsvisions
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilities

Sundry Creditors (Refer Note 1 below)
Due to Others 39.6439.6439.6439.6439.64 24.97
Due to Subsidiaries 2.682.682.682.682.68 2.99

Other Liabilities (Refer Note 2 below) 859.52859.52859.52859.52859.52 317.78
Interest Accrued but not due ----- 2.87
Security Deposit - Lease 61.6061.6061.6061.6061.60 61.60
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Refer Note 3 below)

Unclaimed Dividend 6.746.746.746.746.74 5.71
Unclaimed Refund 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.02

970.19970.19970.19970.19970.19 415.94
ProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisions

Provision for Leave Encashment 4.034.034.034.034.03 6.10
Provision for Standard Assets 17.4417.4417.4417.4417.44 43.34
Proposed Dividend 159.66159.66159.66159.66159.66 159.66
Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend 27.1427.1427.1427.1427.14 27.14

208.27208.27208.27208.27208.27 236.24

1,178.461,178.461,178.461,178.461,178.46 652.18
Schedule “I”Schedule “I”Schedule “I”Schedule “I”Schedule “I”

Unamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised Expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Unamortised DSA Commission 97.9897.9897.9897.9897.98 97.73
Add : Incurred during the year  35.8935.8935.8935.8935.89 47.97
Less : Amortised during the year  81.94 81.94 81.94 81.94 81.94  47.72

51.9351.9351.9351.9351.93  97.98
Unamortised Brokerage on Borrowings  11.0311.0311.0311.0311.03 -
Add : Incurred during the year  28.21 28.21 28.21 28.21 28.21 15.21
Less : Amortised during the year  17.80 17.80 17.80 17.80 17.80  4.18

 21.4421.4421.4421.4421.44 11.03

73.3773.3773.3773.3773.37 109.01
Notes :Notes :Notes :Notes :Notes :
1. Based on the information available, there are no dues outstanding which are to be disclosed, as per requirement of Micro,

Medium and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
2. Other liabilities includes the temporary overdrawn balances Rs.664.50 crore (Previous Year Rs.263.81 crore) are on account

of cheques issued but not presented for payment.
3. Investor Education and Protection Fund does not include any amounts, due and outstanding, to be deposited to the said

fund.

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the Bal the Bal the Bal the Bal the Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:

1. In respect of balances with Scheduled Banks in fixed deposit accounts, Rs.165.20 crore (Previous Year Rs.NIL) is kept
as cash collateral towards securitisation transaction with IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd. and Rs.12,500/- (Previous Year
Rs.12,500/-) is kept as deposit with sales tax authority.

2. Assets held for sale, represents aircarft, at written down value as on April 1, 2006, that was previously classifed as a fixed
asset.

3. Advances recoverable in cash or in kind includes Rs.275.19 crore (Previous Year Rs.60.30 crore) paid towards share application
money pending allotment.

4. Loan to others include Rs.0.05 crore due from manager / officer (Previous Year Rs.0.05 crore) [maximum balance outstanding
at any time during the year is Rs.0.05 crore (Previous Year Rs.0.05 crore)].

5. In the opinion of the management, loans and advances, other than doubtful, are considered as good and fully recoverable.

6. Out of total Loans & Advances of Rs.7,919.92 crore (Previous Year Rs.11,306.04 crore), Rs.5,119.15 crore (Previous Year
Rs.6,758.43 crore) is secured by way of hypothecation.
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the P the P the P the P the Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

 (Rs. in crore)

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

Schedule “J”Schedule “J”Schedule “J”Schedule “J”Schedule “J”

Operating IncomeOperating IncomeOperating IncomeOperating IncomeOperating Income

Interest and Finance Income onInterest and Finance Income onInterest and Finance Income onInterest and Finance Income onInterest and Finance Income on

Long Term Investments  467.26467.26467.26467.26467.26 217.08

(TDS Rs.3.44 crore (Previous Year Rs.1.92 crore))

Inter Corporate Loans  151.70151.70151.70151.70151.70 304.33

(TDS Rs.15.07 crore (Previous Year Rs.35.91 crore))

Others 10.8210.8210.8210.8210.82  629.78 629.78 629.78 629.78 629.78  39.58  560.99

(TDS Rs.0.60 crore (Previous Year Rs.16.81 crore))

From consumer Finance Business

Interest Income 1 006.781 006.781 006.781 006.781 006.78 1 156.31

(TDS Rs.15.96 crore (Previous Year Rs.13.55 crore))

Processing Fees  41.1741.1741.1741.1741.17 37.35

Less : Service Tax Recovered  3.84 3.84 3.84 3.84 3.84  37.33 37.33 37.33 37.33 37.33  3.49  33.86

Profit / (Loss) on sale of (Net)

Long Term Investments  315.53315.53315.53315.53315.53 1 146.24

Stock-in-trade / Short Term Investments  169.00169.00169.00169.00169.00 484.53484.53484.53484.53484.53 31.49 1 177.73

Dividends on

Long Term Investments 10.3010.3010.3010.3010.30 17.91
Stock-in-trade / Short Term Investments ----- 0.01

Premium on Loan Assignment and Securitisation
(Refer Note 2, Schedule “N”) 153.32153.32153.32153.32153.32 2.80
Depository Participant Transaction Charges  15.8515.8515.8515.8515.85 11.31
Other Operating Income  28.7328.7328.7328.7328.73  44.58 44.58 44.58 44.58 44.58  13.42  24.73

2 366.622 366.622 366.622 366.622 366.62 2 974.34

Other IncomeOther IncomeOther IncomeOther IncomeOther Income

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets ----- 0.01

Credit Balance / Excess Provision Written Back 15.5815.5815.5815.5815.58 31.65

Bad Debts Recovered 1.201.201.201.201.20 -

Rent 5.525.525.525.525.52 6.61

Miscellaneous Income 0.960.960.960.960.96 1.84

23.2623.2623.2623.2623.26 40.11

2 389.882 389.882 389.882 389.882 389.88 3 014.45
Schedule “K”Schedule “K”Schedule “K”Schedule “K”Schedule “K”

Interest and Finance ChargesInterest and Finance ChargesInterest and Finance ChargesInterest and Finance ChargesInterest and Finance Charges
Interest on

Debentures 342.07342.07342.07342.07342.07 120.09
Bank Loans - Long Term and Short Term 496.44496.44496.44496.44496.44 506.88
Bank Loans - Cash Credit 14.2514.2514.2514.2514.25 61.45
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO) - 7.80
Discount on Commercial Papers 403.38403.38403.38403.38403.38 540.53
Inter Corporate Deposits 0.690.690.690.690.69 -
Others 2.772.772.772.772.77 -

1 259.601 259.601 259.601 259.601 259.60  1 236.75
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the P the P the P the P the Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

 (Rs. in crore)

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedule “Le “Le “Le “Le “L”””””

Administrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other Expenses

Payments to and Provisions for Employees:

(Including Managerial Remuneration)

Salary and Bonus etc.  108.79108.79108.79108.79108.79 127.65

Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds  5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 9.42

Staff Welfare and other Amenities  7.35 7.35 7.35 7.35 7.35  121.64 121.64 121.64 121.64 121.64  12.01  149.08 149.08 149.08 149.08 149.08

Bank Charges  1.921.921.921.921.92 1.09

Lease Rentals  29.40 29.40 29.40 29.40 29.40 39.94

Rates and Taxes  5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 12.73

Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings  0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.02

Others 15.6415.6415.6415.6415.64 18.74

Electricity 2.752.752.752.752.75 4.32

Insurance 0.230.230.230.230.23 3.74

Travelling and Conveyance  6.79 6.79 6.79 6.79 6.79 14.99

Postage, Telegram and Telephones  5.545.545.545.545.54 9.38

Professional Fees  63.7163.7163.7163.7163.71 72.63

Auditors’ Remuneration (Refer Note No. 9, Schedule “N”)  0.66 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.66

Sales and Marketing Expenses  20.05 20.05 20.05 20.05 20.05 11.10

Employee Seminar and Training  0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.44

Donation 2.892.892.892.892.89 2.59

Directors’ Sitting Fees  0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.11

Brokerage on Borrowing (Refer Schedule “I”)  17.80 17.80 17.80 17.80 17.80 4.16

DSA Commision (Refer Schedule “I”)  81.94 81.94 81.94 81.94 81.94 47.72

Provision for NPA, Doubtful Debts and Balance Written off  256.26256.26256.26256.26256.26 136.22

(Refer Note 1 below)

Provision for Dimunition in the Value Investments  1.87 1.87 1.87 1.87 1.87 50.04

Provision for Repossessed Stock  0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 4.29

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 -

Loss on Sale of Repossessed Stock  10.08 10.08 10.08 10.08 10.08 5.82

Loss of Share in Partnership Firm  1.04 1.04 1.04 1.04 1.04 4.40

(Refer Note No. 8(i), Schedule “N”)

Loss on Securities / Commodities  7.01 7.01 7.01 7.01 7.01 36.38

Miscellaneous Expenses  28.38 28.38 28.38 28.38 28.38 47.69

562.15562.15562.15562.15562.15 530.20

683.79683.79683.79683.79683.79 679.28

Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:

1. Provision for NPA, Doubtful Debts and Bad Debts Written Off (Net) represents the following:

(Reversal)/Provision for NPA and Doubtful Debts (7.38)(7.38)(7.38)(7.38)(7.38) 88.40

(Reversal)/Provision for Standard Debts (25.90)(25.90)(25.90)(25.90)(25.90) 43.34

Bad Debts Written Off 289.54289.54289.54289.54289.54 4.48

256.26256.26256.26256.26256.26 136.22
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Notes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial Statements

Schedule “M”Schedule “M”Schedule “M”Schedule “M”Schedule “M”

Significant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting Policies

A.A.A.A.A. BackgroundBackgroundBackgroundBackgroundBackground

Reliance Capital Limited. (‘the Company’) is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’) as defined under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is principally engaged in lending and investing
activities.

B.B.B.B.B. Basis of preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of preparation of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable. The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupees rounded off to the nearest crore upto two decimal places.

The Company complies in all material respects, with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, asset classification
and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts and other matters, specified in the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) in terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007, as applicable to it.

C.C.C.C.C. Use of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the financial statements. Actual result could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates
is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

D.D.D.D.D. Revenue RecognitionRevenue RecognitionRevenue RecognitionRevenue RecognitionRevenue Recognition

i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account as it accrues except in the case of Non Performing Assets
(“NPAs”) where it is recognised, upon realisation.

ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

iii) Income from Investments

Profit earned from sale of securities is recognised on a trade date basis. The cost of securities is computed based on a
weighted average basis.

iv) Discount on investments

The difference between the acquisition cost and face value of debt instruments is recognised as interest income over the
tenor of the instrument.

v) Redemption Premium on Investments in Preference Shares

Redemption premium on investments in Preference shares is recognised as income over the tenor of the investment.

vi) Share of Profits or Losses in Partnership Firm

Share of profit/loss on share in partnership firm is accounted for once the amount of the share of profit/loss is
ascertained and credited/debited to the Company’s account in the books of the partnership firm.

vii) Loan Processing Fee Income

Loan processing fee income is accounted for upfront as and when it becomes due.

viii) Income from Assignment / Securitization

a) In case of assignment of loans, the assets are derecognized when all the rights, title, future receivables and
interest thereof along with all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the purchasers of assigned
loans. On de-recognition, the difference between book value of the loans assigned and consideration received, as
reduced by the estimated provision for loss/expenses and incidental expenses related to the transaction, is recognised
as gain or loss arising on assignment.
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Notes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial Statements

b) In case of securitization of loans, the transferred loans are de-recognised and gains/losses are accounted for only
if the Company surrenders the rights to benefits specified in the underlying securitized loan contract. In accordance
with the RBI guidelines for securitization of standard assets, which is effective from February 1, 2006, the
Company has recognised any loss arising from securitization immediately at the time of sale and premium arising
from securitization is amortized over the life of securities issued or to be issued by the special purpose vehicle to
which the assets are sold.

ix) Income from Derivatives

Gains or losses on derivative contracts are recognised on a settlement date basis.

E.E.E.E.E. Fixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all expenses incidental to the
acquisition of the fixed assets.

FFFFF..... Leased AssetsLeased AssetsLeased AssetsLeased AssetsLeased Assets

All assets given on finance lease on or before March 31, 2001 are capitalised as fixed assets and all assets given on finance
lease on or after April 1, 2001 are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment in the lease.

Initial direct costs in respect of leases are expensed in the year in which such costs are incurred.

G.G.G.G.G. Intangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible AssetsIntangible Assets

Intangible assets comprising of software purchased / developed and licensing costs are depreciated on straight line basis over
the useful life of the software up to a maximum of five years commencing from the month in which such software is first
installed.

H.H.H.H.H. Depreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation on fixed assets other than software development and licensing costs is provided as follows:

i) Assets for Own use : On Written Down Value method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956.

ii) Leased Assets : On Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies
Act, 1956.

iii) Leasehold Improvements : Amortised over the primary period of the lease on Straight Line Basis.

The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the day the asset is put to use and for any asset sold, till the date
of sale.

I .I .I .I .I . Impairment of AssetsImpairment of AssetsImpairment of AssetsImpairment of AssetsImpairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset
is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

J.J.J.J.J. InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments

Investments are classified as long term or current based on intention of the management at the time of purchase.

Current investments are valued, scrip wise, at cost or fair value, whichever is lower.

Long-term investments are carried at carrying cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined
separately for each individual investment.

K.K.K.K.K. Stock-in-tradeStock-in-tradeStock-in-tradeStock-in-tradeStock-in-trade

Securities held as stock-in-trade are valued scrip wise at weighted average cost or fair value, whichever is lower.

L.L.L.L.L. AAAAAssssssssssetetetetets Held fs Held fs Held fs Held fs Held fororororor Sal Sal Sal Sal Saleeeee

Assets held for sale are valued at cost or market value, whichever is lower.

M.M.M.M.M. Repossession of AssetsRepossession of AssetsRepossession of AssetsRepossession of AssetsRepossession of Assets

Assets repossessed against the settlement of loan are carried in the balance sheet at outstanding loan amount or market
value, whichever is lower. The difference between the outstanding loan amount and the market value is charged to Profit
and Loss Account in the year of repossession of assets.
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N.N.N.N.N. LLLLLoan Origination/oan Origination/oan Origination/oan Origination/oan Origination/AAAAAcccccquisition Cquisition Cquisition Cquisition Cquisition Costostostostost

The direct commission cost incurred for the loan origination is written off over the average tenure of the loan.

O.O.O.O.O. Security of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans Given

Housing loans / loans against property granted are secured by equitable registered mortgage of property and / or undertaking
to create a security. Secured loans in the nature of commercial vehicle, auto finance are secured against hypothecation of
respective vehicle.

PPPPP..... DiscDiscDiscDiscDiscount on Count on Count on Count on Count on Commerommerommerommerommercialcialcialcialcial P P P P Paperaperaperaperaper

The difference between the issue price and the redemption value of commercial papers is apportioned on time basis and
recognised as discounting expense.

Q.Q.Q.Q.Q. Employee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement Benefits

i) Provident Fund

Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, are charged to the
Profit and Loss Account.

ii) Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the
fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using
the Projected Accrued Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit Method), which recognises each period of service
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the
final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on
Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

iii) Leave Encashment

Leave encashment which is a defined benefit, is accrued for based on an actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date
carried out by an independent actuary.

iv) Compensated Absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence. The employees can carry forward a portion of
the unutilised accrued leave balance and utilise it in future periods. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the service that increases the entitlement. The Company
measures the expected cost of compensated absence as the amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.

R.R.R.R.R. Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOS”)Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOS”)Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOS”)Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOS”)Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESOS”)

The Employees Stock Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) provides for grant of equity shares of the Company to Directors
(including whole-time) and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Scheme provides that employees are
granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that vests in a graded manner. The options may be exercised
within a specified period. The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock-based employee compensation
plans. Compensation cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair market price of the underlying stock over the exercise
price on the grant date and is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a Straight Line Basis.

The fair market price is the latest closing price, immediately prior to the date of the Board of Directors meeting in which the
options are granted, on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are listed. If the shares are listed on more
than one stock exchange, then the stock exchange where there is highest trading volume on the said date, is considered.

S.S.S.S.S. FFFFForororororeign Ceign Ceign Ceign Ceign Currurrurrurrurrencencencencency y y y y TTTTTrrrrransansansansansacacacacactionstionstionstionstions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of the
transaction. Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Profit and
Loss Account.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.

TTTTT..... BorrBorrBorrBorrBorrooooowing Cwing Cwing Cwing Cwing Costostostostostsssss

Borrowing costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of fixed assets, till the time such assets are
ready for intended use, are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the year in which they are incurred. Brokerage costs directly attributable to a borrowing are expended over the tenure of
the borrowing.

U.U.U.U.U. Operating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating Leases

Lease payments for assets taken on an operating lease are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a
Straight Line Basis over the lease term.

VVVVV..... Earnings Per ShareEarnings Per ShareEarnings Per ShareEarnings Per ShareEarnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share
reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or
converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that reduce profit / loss per share
are included.

WWWWW. PPPPPrrrrrooooovisions fvisions fvisions fvisions fvisions fororororor Non P Non P Non P Non P Non Perererererffffforming orming orming orming orming AAAAAssssssssssetetetetets (NPs (NPs (NPs (NPs (NPA) and DoubtfA) and DoubtfA) and DoubtfA) and DoubtfA) and Doubtfululululul Debt Debt Debt Debt Debtsssss

Assets including loans and advances, receivables are identified as bad/ doubtful based on the duration of the delinquency.
The duration is set at appropriate levels for each product. NPA provisions are made based on the management’s assessment
of the degree of impairment and the level of provisioning meets the prudential norms prescribed by RBI.

X.X.X.X.X. TTTTTaaaaaxxxxxationationationationation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income tax
law), deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable
income for the period) and fringe benefit tax.

Deferred Taxation

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation
or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation
of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the
amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

Fringe Benefit Tax

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax has been recognised on the basis of applicable Fringe Benefit Tax on the taxable value of
chargeable expenses of the Company as prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

YYYYY..... PPPPPrrrrrooooovisions, Cvisions, Cvisions, Cvisions, Cvisions, Contingontingontingontingontingent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Contingontingontingontingontingent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there
will be outflow of resources and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if
it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which
the change the change occurs.

Notes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial Statements

Schedule “N”Schedule “N”Schedule “N”Schedule “N”Schedule “N”

1 Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.
2 a) The Company sells loans through securitisation and direct assignment. The information related to securitisation and

assignement made by the Company during the year, as an originator is given below:
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SecuritisationSecuritisationSecuritisationSecuritisationSecuritisation AssignmentAssignmentAssignmentAssignmentAssignment
OutsideOutsideOutsideOutsideOutside SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries OutsideOutsideOutsideOutsideOutside TTTTToooootttttalalalalal

Total number of loan assets Securitized / Assigned (Nos.) 33 31433 31433 31433 31433 314 21 24121 24121 24121 24121 241 17 78817 78817 78817 78817 788 72 34372 34372 34372 34372 343
(-) (2769) (-) (2769)

Total book value of loan assets Securitized / Assigned 1 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.16 2 512.362 512.362 512.362 512.362 512.36 1 241.541 241.541 241.541 241.541 241.54 5 003.065 003.065 003.065 003.065 003.06
(-) (197.21) (-) (197.21)

Sale consideration received for the Securitized / 1 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.16 2 531.012 531.012 531.012 531.012 531.01 1 376.211 376.211 376.211 376.211 376.21 5 156.385 156.385 156.385 156.385 156.38
Assigned assets (-) (200.00) (-) (200.00)
Net gain on account of Securitization / Assigned ----- 18.6518.6518.6518.6518.65 134.67134.67134.67134.67134.67 153.32153.32153.32153.32153.32

(-) (2.80) (-) (2.80)
Outstanding Credit Enhancement (Funded) 165.20165.20165.20165.20165.20 ----- ----- 165.20165.20165.20165.20165.20

(-) (-) (-) (-)
Outstanding Liquidity Facility ----- ----- ----- -----

(-) (-) (-) (-)
Net Outstanding Servicing Asset / (Liability) ----- (2.68)(2.68)(2.68)(2.68)(2.68) ----- (2.68)(2.68)(2.68)(2.68)(2.68)

(-) (-) (-) (-)

Note:Note:Note:Note:Note: Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures.

b) The Company invests in Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) and purchases loans through the direct assignment route. In
some of the securitisation transactions, the Company also has invested in the assets securitised by it, which, however,
is restricted to the maximum limit prescribed by RBI from time to time.

3 During the year the Company has entered into a agreement with AU Financiers (India) Pvt. Ltd. for loan assignment. As per
deed of assignment, for loans aggregating to Rs.8.16 crore (Previous year Rs.Nil) the Company has been assigned the right
to future receivables along with a power of attorney authorizing the Company, inter-alia, to obtain possession of the
property in case of default. The above loans are secured against hypothecation of underlying assets.

4 During the year, the company has sold the assets amounting to Rs.4.05 crore (Previous Year Rs.Nil) at cost. The same has
been been accquired in accordance with the requirement of RBI Circular: DBOD.NO.BP.BC.16/21.04.048/05-06 dated
July 13, 2005 on Guidelines on Puchase / Sale of Non Performing Assets.

5 Subsequent to the Balance sheet date, on April 26, 2010, the Company entered into business transfer agreement with its
subsidiaries i.e. Reliance Home Finance Private Limited (RHFPL) and Reliance Consumer Finance Private Limited (RCFPL)
(together referred to as ‘the purchasers’) to transfer the business of Consumer Finance Division (RCF) segment at book value
such that the entire economic risk and reward of the RCF segment passes to the purchasers from the commencement of
business on the value date i.e. April 1, 2010. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 293(1)(a) and Section 192A of the Act,
the Company is in the process of obtaining shareholders’ approval.
As per the business transfer agreement entered into with the purchasers, the Company has agreed to hold in trust for the
benefit of the purchasers any part of the assets and liabilities that has not been transferred to the purchasers on the value
date.
The assets and liabilities transferred to the purchasers as at April 1, 2010 are as follows :
Total Assets Rs.6,239.83 crore
Total Liabilities Rs.5,986.75 crore

6 During the year the Company has introduced Employee Stock Option Plan, under which it has granted 7,96,900 options
(3,99,900 options under Plan A and 3,97,000 options under Plan B) to the eligible employees of the Company as well
as employees of its Subsidiary Companies on the basis of their performance and other eligibility criteria. ESOS Plans are
administered through an ESOS Trust. The vesting of the options is on the expiry of one year and so on from the date of
grant as per Plan under the respective ESOS(s). In respect of Options granted, the accounting value of Options (based on
market price of the share on the date of the grant of the option) is accounted as deferred employee compensation, which
is amortised on a straight line basis over the vesting period. Each Option entitles the holder thereof to apply for and be
allotted/ transferred one Equity Share of the Company of Rs.10 each upon payment of the exercise price during the
exercise period. The Company has established a Trust for the implementation and management of ESOS for the benefit of
its present and future employees. Advance of Rs.96.41 crore (Previous year Rs.Nil) has been granted to the Trust. Rs.96.40
(Previous year Rs.Nil) has been utilised by the Trust for purchasing 11,00,000 (Previous year Nil) Equity Shares during the
period upto March 31, 2010.
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The fair value of the options granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes Model with the following
assumptions; the information covering stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the year end is as
follows:

PPPPPara ra ra ra rticulticulticulticulticula ra ra ra ra rsssss Plan APlan APlan APlan APlan A Plan BPlan BPlan BPlan BPlan B

VVVVVest 1est 1est 1est 1est 1 VVVVVest 2est 2est 2est 2est 2 VVVVVest 3est 3est 3est 3est 3 VVVVVest 4est 4est 4est 4est 4 VVVVVest 1est 1est 1est 1est 1 VVVVVest 2est 2est 2est 2est 2 VVVVVest 3est 3est 3est 3est 3 VVVVVest 4est 4est 4est 4est 4 VVVVVest 5est 5est 5est 5est 5

Date of GrantDate of GrantDate of GrantDate of GrantDate of Grant 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb- 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Feb-eb-eb-eb-eb-
20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010

Prices of the Underlying 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00
Stock (Rs.)

Continuous Risk-free 7.01% 7.10% 7.19% 7.27% 7.01% 7.10% 7.19% 7.27% 7.34%
Interest Rate

Exercise/Strike Price 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00

Volatility 64.04% 63.66% 62.60% 61.23% 64.04% 63.66% 62.60% 61.23% 59.56%

Time to Expiration (years) 5.50 6.00 6.50 7.00 5.50 6.00 6.50 7.00 7.50

Time to Expiration (days) 2,008 2,191 2,374 2,556 2,008 2,191 2,374 2,556 2,739

Expected Dividend (%) 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62%

Fair Value of Stock 510.00 527.00 540.00 551.00 510.00 527.00 540.00 551.00 559.00
Option (Rs.)

Proportion of Vest 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 40.00% 10.00% 10.00% 20.00% 20.00% 40.00%
WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeed d d d  d  AAAAAvvvvve re re re re ragagagagageeeee
FFFFFairairairairair     VVVVVala la la la lue (ue (ue (ue (ue (RRRRRs.s.s.s.s.))))) 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss Plan APlan APlan APlan APlan A Plan BPlan BPlan BPlan BPlan B

No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd
StockStockStockStockStock AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage StockStockStockStockStock AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage

OptionsOptionsOptionsOptionsOptions ExerciseExerciseExerciseExerciseExercise RemainingRemainingRemainingRemainingRemaining OptionsOptionsOptionsOptionsOptions ExerciseExerciseExerciseExerciseExercise RemainingRemainingRemainingRemainingRemaining
Price (Price (Price (Price (Price (RRRRRs.s.s.s.s.))))) CCCCControntrontrontrontracacacacactttttualualualualual Price (Price (Price (Price (Price (RRRRRs.s.s.s.s.))))) CCCCControntrontrontrontracacacacactttttualualualualual

LifLifLifLifLifeeeee LifLifLifLifLifeeeee
(in (in (in (in (in YYYYYeeeeeararararars)s)s)s)s) (in (in (in (in (in YYYYYeeeeeararararars)s)s)s)s)

Outstanding at the beginning
of the year Nil N.A N.A. Nil N.A. N.A.

Granted 399 900 536.00 5.50 to 7.00 397 000 546.00 5.50 to 7.50

Exercised Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A. N.A.

Lapsed / Forfeited Nil N.A N.A. Nil N.A. N.A.

Outstanding at the end of the year 399 900 536.00 5.50 to 7.00 397 000 546.00 5.50 to 7.50

Exercisable at end of the year 399 900 536.00 N.A. 397 000 546.00 N.A.

The Company has chosen to account for the Plan by the Intrinsic Value Method. The total expense recognised for the period
arising from stock option plan as per Intrinsic Value Method is Rs. Nil (Previouds Year Rs. Nil). Had the Company adopted the
Fair value Method, the net results for the period would have been lower by Rs.2.53 crore (net of tax saving Rs.2.11 crore)
and accordingly EPS (both Basic and Diluted) would have been lower by Rs.0.09.

7 Micro, small and medium enterprisesMicro, small and medium enterprisesMicro, small and medium enterprisesMicro, small and medium enterprisesMicro, small and medium enterprises
During the current year, the management has carried out the process of identification of enterprises, which have provided
goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of medium and small enterprises, as defined
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Based on the inputs received on above, there have
been no reporting cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such
payments.

8 The Company is a partner in the following firms
i) Reliance Capital Partners

a) The firm consists of following partners
i) Reliance Capital Limited
ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd.
iii) Shri Surendra Pipara

b) Profit Sharing Ratio:
The profit is distributed between the partners on the basis of the weighted average capital .
The Loss of Rs.1.04 crore is considered as Loss of the current financial year (Previous Year Loss of Rs.4.40 crore).

Notes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial Statements
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9. AuditAuditAuditAuditAuditorororororsssss’ R’ R’ R’ R’ Remuneremuneremuneremuneremuneration (eation (eation (eation (eation (exxxxxc lc lc lc lc luding Seruding Seruding Seruding Seruding Servicvicvicvicvice e e e e TTTTTaaaaax) inclx) inclx) inclx) inclx) includesudesudesudesudes
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
i) Audit Fees 0.640.640.640.640.64 0.64
ii) Tax Audit Fees 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.01
iii) Reimbursement of Out of Pocket Expenses 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.01

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 0.660.660.660.660.66 0.66

10. Managerial RemunerationManagerial RemunerationManagerial RemunerationManagerial RemunerationManagerial Remuneration
(a)(a)(a)(a)(a) RRRRRemuneremuneremuneremuneremuneration tation tation tation tation to Co Co Co Co Companompanompanompanompany Secry Secry Secry Secry Secretetetetetararararary & My & My & My & My & Managanaganaganaganagererererer

(included under the head “Payments to and Provisions for Employees”)
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
i) Salary 0.360.360.360.360.36 0.28
ii) Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund 0.050.050.050.050.05 0.05
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 0.410.410.410.410.41 0.33

Information relating to the payment to manager does not include payment for Gratuity and Leave Encashment
which is provided for employees on an overall basis.

(b)(b)(b)(b)(b) CCCCCommission tommission tommission tommission tommission to Non-Exo Non-Exo Non-Exo Non-Exo Non-Executivecutivecutivecutivecutive Dire Dire Dire Dire Dirececececectttttorororororsssss
(included under the head “Payments to and provisions for employees”)
The Company has taken the approval of the Central Government u/s 309(4) of the Companies Act, 1956 for
payment of Commission to Non Executive Directors upto 3% of the net profits calculated in accordance with the
provisions of section 198, 349 and 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 for a period of five years commencing
April 1, 2006.
Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
Profit before taxation 428.33428.33428.33428.33428.33 1077.20
Add: Depreciation as per accounts 18.1618.1618.1618.1618.16 21.22
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.830.830.830.830.83 (0.01)
Managerial Remuneration* 0.760.760.760.760.76 0.44

19.7519.7519.7519.7519.75 21.65
448.08448.08448.08448.08448.08 1,098.85

Less:
Depreciation as per Section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 18.1618.1618.1618.1618.16 21.22
Net Profit for the year 429.92429.92429.92429.92429.92 1077.63
Commission Restricted to (3%) 12.9012.9012.9012.9012.90 32.33
Commission to Non-Executive Directors 0.760.760.760.760.76 0.44

The Chairman has not accepted commission for the year under review.
* The Managerial Remuneration paid during the current year in relation to FY 2008-09 is Rs.0.60 crore as against
a provision of Rs.0.44 crore. Hence the total amount of Rs.0.76 crore in FY 2009-10 includes, the excess amount
paid over provision made in FY 2008-09 i.e. Rs.0.16 crore and also Rs.0.60 crore provision for FY 2009-10.

11. Employee benefitsEmployee benefitsEmployee benefitsEmployee benefitsEmployee benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan

Amount of Rs.4.22 crore (Previous Year : Rs.5.61 crore) is recognised as expense and included in “Employee costs”
referred to in Schedule ‘L’ in the Profit and Loss Account.

b) Defined Benefit Plan
The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the Profit and
Loss account, the fund status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan and leave
encashment plan.

ii) Reliance Capital Infrastructure Partners:
a) The firm consists of following partners:

i) Reliance Capital Limited
ii) Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
iii) Reliance Infraprojects Ltd.

b) Profit Sharing Ratio:
The profit is distributed between the partners on the basis of the weighted average capital.
The firm has not commenced operations during the year ended March 31, 2010 and there has been no contribution
of capital upto March 31, 2010.
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPPara ra ra ra rticulticulticulticulticula ra ra ra ra r GrGrGrGrGratatatatatuituituituituity Benefy Benefy Benefy Benefy Benefit Fit Fit Fit Fit Fundeundeundeundeundeddddd Leave EncashmentLeave EncashmentLeave EncashmentLeave EncashmentLeave Encashment
Benefit UnfundedBenefit UnfundedBenefit UnfundedBenefit UnfundedBenefit Unfunded

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
I .I .I .I .I . TTTTTablablablablable shoe shoe shoe shoe showing changwing changwing changwing changwing change ine ine ine ine in

Liability at the beginning of the period 1.831.831.831.831.83 1.52 6.106.106.106.106.10 5.70
Interest Cost 0.140.140.140.140.14 0.12 0.320.320.320.320.32 0.29
Current Service Cost 0.690.690.690.690.69 1.06 4.384.384.384.384.38 2.01
Benefit Paid (0.05)(0.05)(0.05)(0.05)(0.05) - (2.84)(2.84)(2.84)(2.84)(2.84) (3.76)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 0.290.290.290.290.29 (0.87) (3.93)(3.93)(3.93)(3.93)(3.93) 1.86
Liability at the end of the period 2.902.902.902.902.90 1.83 4.034.034.034.034.03 6.10

I I .I I .I I .I I .I I . TTTTTablablablablables ofes ofes ofes ofes of F F F F Fairairairairair     VVVVVala la la la lue ofue ofue ofue ofue of Pl Pl Pl Pl Plan an an an an AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period 2.982.982.982.982.98 2.69 ----- -
Expected return on Plan Assets 0.220.220.220.220.22 0.21 ----- -
Contributions 0.380.380.380.380.38 0.22 2.842.842.842.842.84 3.76
Benefit paid (0.05)(0.05)(0.05)(0.05)(0.05) - (2.84)(2.84)(2.84)(2.84)(2.84) (3.76)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets 0.230.230.230.230.23 (0.14) 0.000.000.000.000.00 -
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 3.763.763.763.763.76 2.98 0.000.000.000.000.00 -
Total Actuarial gain/(loss) to be recognized (0.06)(0.06)(0.06)(0.06)(0.06) 0.73 3.933.933.933.933.93 (1.86)

I I I .I I I .I I I .I I I .I I I . Actual return on Plan AssetsActual return on Plan AssetsActual return on Plan AssetsActual return on Plan AssetsActual return on Plan Assets
Expected return on Plan Assets 0.220.220.220.220.22 0.21 ----- -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets 0.230.230.230.230.23 (0.14) ----- -
Actual return on Plan Assets 0.450.450.450.450.45 0.07 ----- -

IIIIIVVVVV..... Amount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the period 2.902.902.902.902.90 1.83 4.034.034.034.034.03 6.10
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 3.763.763.763.763.76 2.98 0.000.000.000.000.00 -
Difference Funded status (0.86)(0.86)(0.86)(0.86)(0.86) (1.15) (4.03)(4.03)(4.03)(4.03)(4.03) (6.10)
Unrecognised Actual Gain / (Loss) ----- - ----- -
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (liability) (0.86)(0.86)(0.86)(0.86)(0.86) (1.15) (4.03)(4.03)(4.03)(4.03)(4.03) (6.10)

VVVVV..... Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss AccountExpenses recognised in the Profit and Loss AccountExpenses recognised in the Profit and Loss AccountExpenses recognised in the Profit and Loss AccountExpenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Current Service Cost 0.690.690.690.690.69 1.06 4.384.384.384.384.38 2.01
Interest Cost 0.140.140.140.140.14 0.12 0.320.320.320.320.32 0.29
Expected return on Plan Assets (0.22)(0.22)(0.22)(0.22)(0.22) (0.21) ----- -
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognized 0.060.060.060.060.06 (0.73) (3.93)(3.93)(3.93)(3.93)(3.93) 1.86
Expense recognised in Profit and Loss Account 0.670.670.670.670.67 0.24 0.770.770.770.770.77 4.16

VI .VI .V I .V I .V I . Amount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance SheetAmount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Opening Net Liability (1.15)(1.15)(1.15)(1.15)(1.15) (1.17) 6.106.106.106.106.10 5.70
Expense as above 0.670.670.670.670.67 0.24 0.770.770.770.770.77 4.16
Employers Contribution paid (0.38)(0.38)(0.38)(0.38)(0.38) (0.22) (2.84)(2.84)(2.84)(2.84)(2.84) (3.76)
Closing Net Liability (0.86)(0.86)(0.86)(0.86)(0.86) (1.15) 4.034.034.034.034.03 6.10

VII .VI I .VI I .VI I .VI I . AssumptionsAssumptionsAssumptionsAssumptionsAssumptions
Discount Rate 8.25%8.25%8.25%8.25%8.25% 7.50% 7.50%7.50%7.50%7.50%7.50% 7.00%
Rate of return on Plan Assets 8.25%8.25%8.25%8.25%8.25% 7.50% ----- -
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00%5.00%5.00%5.00%5.00% 5.00% 5.00%5.00%5.00%5.00%5.00% 5.00%

VIII .VI I I .VI I I .VI I I .VI I I . Experince AdjustmentExperince AdjustmentExperince AdjustmentExperince AdjustmentExperince Adjustment
Plan Assets 3.763.763.763.763.76 2.98 - -
Defined benefit obligations 2.902.902.902.902.90 1.83 - -
Amount not recognised as an Asset (limit in para 59(b)) 0.000.000.000.000.00 0.00 -  -
Surplus / (Deficit) 0.860.860.860.860.86 1.14 - -
Experience adjustment on Plan Assets 0.230.230.230.230.23 (0.40) - -
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities 0.580.580.580.580.58 (0.99) -  -

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors.
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General Descriptions of significant defined plans:

a) Gratuity Plan

i) Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death and permanent
disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 or as per the Company’s
Scheme whichever is more beneficial.

ii) During the year, entries pertaining to earlier years amounting to Rs.1.58 crore are rectified and contributions
amounting to Rs.0.38 crore are shown as expenses for the year.

b) Leave Plan

Encashment of leave can be availed by the employee for balance in the earned account as on January 1, 2009.
All carry forward earned leaves with a maximum limit of 10 Days, are available for availment but not for
encashment.

12.12.12.12.12. Segment reporting:Segment reporting:Segment reporting:Segment reporting:Segment reporting:

As per paragraph 4 of Accounting Standard (AS-17), on “Segment Reporting” notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules 2006, where a single financial report contains both consolidated financial statements and the separate
financial statements of the holding company, segment reporting needs to be presented only on the basis of consolidated
financial statements. In view of this, segment information has been presented at Note No.15 of Schedule ‘O’ of the
consolidated financial statements.

13.13.13.13.13. Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:

i )i )i )i )i ) Holding CHolding CHolding CHolding CHolding Companompanompanompanompanyyyyy

Reliance Innoventures Pvt. Ltd. (Holding Company w.e.f. June 26, 2009)

AAA Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. (Ceased to be Holding Company w.e.f. June 26, 2009)
i i)i i )i i )i i )i i ) Individual PromoterIndividual PromoterIndividual PromoterIndividual PromoterIndividual Promoter

Shri Anil D. Ambani, the person having control during the year.

i i i )i i i )i i i )i i i )i i i ) SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries

Reliance Capital Asset Management Ltd.

Reliance Capital Trustee Company Ltd.

Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd.

Reliance Gilts Ltd.

Reliance Capital Research Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Money Express Ltd.

Medybiz Pvt. Ltd.

Net Logistics Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Venture Asset Management Pvt. Ltd. (formerly Reliance Technology Ventures Pvt. Ltd.)

Reliance Capital Markets Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Asset Management (Mauritius) Ltd.

Reliance Asset Management (Malaysia) SDN BHD w.e.f. April 19, 2009.

Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Reliance Capital Asset Management (UK) Plc.

Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Ltd.

Reliance Consultants (Mauritius) Ltd.

Reliance Equities International Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Home Finance Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Capital Services Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Capital (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Reliance Consumer Finance Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Securities Ltd.

Reliance Commodities Ltd.
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Reliance Financial Ltd.

Reliance Alternative Investments Services Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Prime International Ltd.

Reliance Capital Pension Fund Ltd.

iv)iv)iv)iv)iv) PPPPPara ra ra ra rtnertnertnertnertnership fship fship fship fship fi rmirmirmirmirm

Reliance Capital Partners

Reliance Capital Infrastructure Partners

v)v)v)v)v) AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates

Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd.

Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd.

Ammolite Holdings Ltd.

Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd.

v i)v i)v i)v i)v i) FFFFFele le le le llllllooooow subw subw subw subw subsidiariessidiariessidiariessidiariessidiaries

Reliance Communications Ltd.

Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd.

Reliance Telecom Ltd.

Matrix Innovations Ltd.

Reliance Natural Resources Ltd.

Reliance WiMax Ltd.

Reliance Webstore Ltd.

Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

vi i)v i i )v i i )v i i )v i i ) Key management personnelKey management personnelKey management personnelKey management personnelKey management personnel

Shri V. R. Mohan - Company Secretary & Manager
vi i i )v i i i )v i i i )v i i i )v i i i ) TTTTTrrrrransansansansansacacacacactions during the ytions during the ytions during the ytions during the ytions during the yeeeeeararararar with r with r with r with r with re le le le le latatatatateeeeed pard pard pard pard partiestiestiestiesties

(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments
a) Subscribed / Purchased 673.00673.00673.00673.00673.00 ----- 393.29393.29393.29393.29393.29 ----- ----- 1,066.291,066.291,066.291,066.291,066.29

during the year (452.11) (-) (34.24) (-) (-) (486.35)
b) Balance as at 1,934.171,934.171,934.171,934.171,934.17 98.1898.1898.1898.1898.18 448.01448.01448.01448.01448.01 ----- ----- 2,480.362,480.362,480.362,480.362,480.36

March 31, 2010 (1261.17) (211.77) (54.72) (-) (-) (1527.66)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rtnertnertnertnertnership Cship Cship Cship Cship Currurrur rur rur rent ent ent ent ent AAAAAccccccccccountountountountountsssss
a) Contribution/(withdrawal) ----- ----- ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23 ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23

during the year (Net) (-) (-) (-) (191.59) (-) (191.59)
b) Loss of Par tnership firm ----- ----- ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04 ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04

during the year (-) (-) (-) (4.40) (-) (4.40)
c) Balance as at ----- ----- ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17 ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17

March 31, 2010 (-) (-) (-) (295.98) (-) (295.98)
Premium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestment ----- ----- 24.9524.9524.9524.9524.95 ----- ----- 24.9524.9524.9524.9524.95

(-) (-) (2.90) (-) (-) (2.90)
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
LoansLoansLoansLoansLoans

a) Given during the year 1,562.521,562.521,562.521,562.521,562.52 ----- 35.5635.5635.5635.5635.56 ----- ----- 1,598.081,598.081,598.081,598.081,598.08
(65.46) (-) (559.80) (-) (-) (625.26)

b) Returned during the year 1,631.501,631.501,631.501,631.501,631.50 ----- 491.18491.18491.18491.18491.18 ----- ----- 2,122.682,122.682,122.682,122.682,122.68
(15.02) (385.00) (641.55) (-) (-) (1041.57)

c) Balance as at March 31, 2010 99.8599.8599.8599.8599.85 ----- 27.8127.8127.8127.8127.81 ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05 127.71127.71127.71127.71127.71
(168.83) (-) (483.43) (-) (0.05) (652.31)

d) Assignment of Loans 2,531.012,531.012,531.012,531.012,531.01 ----- ----- ----- ----- 2,531.012,531.012,531.012,531.012,531.01
(200.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (200.00)

Sundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind
a) Balance as at March 31, 2010 28.7928.7928.7928.7928.79 7.027.027.027.027.02 ----- ----- ----- 35.8135.8135.8135.8135.81

(141.26) (7.17) (0.11) (-) (-) (148.54)
b) Interest receivable as at ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

March 31, 2010 (0.68) (-) (8.53) (-) (-) (9.21)
CCCCCurrurrur rur rur rent Liabil it iesent Liabil it iesent Liabil it iesent Liabil it iesent Liabil it ies
a) Sundry Creditors Balance 2.682.682.682.682.68 ----- ----- ----- ----- 2.682.682.682.682.68

as at March 31, 2010 (2.99) (0.13) (-) (-) (-) (3.12)
IncomeIncomeIncomeIncomeIncome
a) Interest & Finance Income (including 13.1113.1113.1113.1113.11 0.000.000.000.000.00 22.7422.7422.7422.7422.74 ----- ----- 35.8535.8535.8535.8535.85

Premium on Prefernce Shares) (13.06) (21.00) (41.78) (-) (-) (75.84)
b) Rent 0.670.670.670.670.67 4.414.414.414.414.41 ----- ----- ----- 5.085.085.085.085.08

(1.56) (4.41) (-) (-) (-) (5.97)
c) Front End Fees ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(-) (-) (1.25) (-) (-) (1.25)
d) Miscellaneous Income 0.160.160.160.160.16 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.160.160.160.160.16

*Previous Year Credit Balance (*) (-) (-) (-) (-) (*)
Written back Rs.36,871

e) Reimbursement of 12.1012.1012.1012.1012.10 2.402.402.402.402.40 0.050.050.050.050.05 ----- ----- 14.5514.5514.5514.5514.55
Expenditure (10.61) (2.41) (0.08) (-) (-) (13.10)

f) Premium on Loan 18.6518.6518.6518.6518.65 ----- ----- ----- ----- 18.6518.6518.6518.6518.65
Assignment (2.80) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2.80)

ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure
a) Rent 0.210.210.210.210.21 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.210.210.210.210.21

(0.79) (2.53) (-) (-) (-) (3.32)
b) Insurance 0.420.420.420.420.42 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.420.420.420.420.42

(0.49) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.49)
c) Payment to and provisions ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.410.410.410.410.41 0.410.410.410.410.41

for employees (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.33) (0.33)
d) Professional and 4.994.994.994.994.99 3.263.263.263.263.26 ----- ----- ----- 8.258.258.258.258.25

management fees (1.94) (1.37) (-) (-) (-) (3.31)
e) Repairs & Maintenance - Others ----- 4.954.954.954.954.95 ----- ----- ----- 4.954.954.954.954.95

(-) (6.38) (-) (-) (-) (6.38)
f) Brokerage paid during the year 4.684.684.684.684.68 ----- ----- ----- ----- 4.684.684.684.684.68

(2.47) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2.47)
g) Miscellaneous 8.398.398.398.398.39 0.010.010.010.010.01 ----- ----- ----- 8.408.408.408.408.40

(0.77) (0.05) (0.01) (-) (-) (0.83)
Contingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ity
a) Guarantees to Banks and 40.0040.0040.0040.0040.00 ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 ----- ----- 115.00115.00115.00115.00115.00

Financial Institutions on (290.00) (-) (75.00) (-) (-) (365.00)
behalf of third parties
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The nature and volume of material transactions for the year with above related par ties are as follows:
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments
a) Subscribed / Purchased during the year

i) Reliance General 210.00210.00210.00210.00210.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 210.00210.00210.00210.00210.00
Insurance Company Ltd. (159.99) (-) (-) (-) (-) (159.99)

ii) Reliance Consumer 228.00228.00228.00228.00228.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 228.00228.00228.00228.00228.00
Finance Pvt. Ltd. (101.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (101.00)

iii) Reliance Home 195.00195.00195.00195.00195.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 195.00195.00195.00195.00195.00
Finance Pvt. Ltd. (101.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (101.00)

iv) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 350.00350.00350.00350.00350.00 ----- ----- 350.00350.00350.00350.00350.00
(-) (-) (1.00) (-) (-) (1.00)

v) Reliance Asset Reconstruction ----- ----- 43.2943.2943.2943.2943.29 ----- ----- 43.2943.2943.2943.2943.29
Co. Ltd. (-) (-) (4.23) (-) (-) (4.23)

vi) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(-) (-) (29.01) (-) (-) (29.01)

b) Balance as at March 31, 2010
i) Reliance General 977.00977.00977.00977.00977.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 977.00977.00977.00977.00977.00

Insurance Company Ltd. (767.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (767.00)
ii) Reliance Communications Ltd. ----- 95.4695.4695.4695.4695.46 ----- ----- ----- 95.4695.4695.4695.4695.46

(-) (209.05) (-) (-) (-) (209.05)
iii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 361.00361.00361.00361.00361.00 ----- ----- 361.00361.00361.00361.00361.00

(-) (-) (11.00) (-) (-) (11.00)
iv) Reliance Asset Reconstruction ----- ----- 49.0049.0049.0049.0049.00 ----- ----- 49.0049.0049.0049.0049.00

Co. Ltd. (-) (-) (5.71) (-) (-) (5.71)
v) Reliance Consumer 329.00329.00329.00329.00329.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 329.00329.00329.00329.00329.00

Finance Pvt. Ltd. (101.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (101.00)
vi) Reliance Home 296.00296.00296.00296.00296.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 296.00296.00296.00296.00296.00

Finance Pvt. Ltd. (101.00 (-) (-) (-) (-) (101.00)
vii) Reliance Share & Stock ----- ----- 9.009.009.009.009.00 ----- ----- 9.009.009.009.009.00

Brokers Pvt. Ltd. (-) (-) (9.00) (-) (-) (9.00)
viii) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- ----- 29.0129.0129.0129.0129.01 ----- ----- 29.0129.0129.0129.0129.01

(-) (-) (29.01) (-) (-) (29.01)
ix) Reliance Securities Ltd. 175.06175.06175.06175.06175.06 ----- ----- ----- ----- 175.06175.06175.06175.06175.06

(175.06) (-) (-) (-) (-) (175.06)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rtnertnertnertnertnership Cship Cship Cship Cship Currurrur rur rur rent ent ent ent ent AAAAAccccccccccountountountountountsssss
a) Contribution /(withdrawal) during the year (Net)

i) Reliance Capital Par tners ----- ----- ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23 ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23
(-) (-) (-) (191.59) (-) (191.59)

b) Loss of Par tnership firm during the year
i) Reliance Capital Par tners ----- ----- ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04 ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04

(-) (-) (-) (4.40) (-) (4.40)
c) Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Capital Par tners ----- ----- ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17 ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17
(-) (-) (-) (295.98) (-) (295.98)

Premium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestmentPremium accrued on lnvestment
i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71 ----- ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
ii) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- ----- 9.249.249.249.249.24 ----- ----- 9.249.249.249.249.24

(-) (-) (2.90) (-) (-) (2.90)
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
ii) Reliance Capital Asset 0.650.650.650.650.65 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.650.650.650.650.65

Management Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
LoansLoansLoansLoansLoans
a) Given during the year

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 15.5615.5615.5615.5615.56 ----- ----- 15.5615.5615.5615.5615.56
(-) (-) (558.20) (-) (-) (558.20)

ii) Reliance Asset Reconstruction ----- ----- 20.0020.0020.0020.0020.00 ----- ----- 20.0020.0020.0020.0020.00
Co. Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

iii) Reliance Securities Ltd. 329.00329.00329.00329.00329.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 329.00329.00329.00329.00329.00
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

iv) Reliance 1,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.50 ----- ----- ----- ----- 1,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.50
Financial Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

b) Returned during the year
i) Reliance Communications ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (385.00) (-) (-) (-) (385.00)
ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 486.87486.87486.87486.87486.87 ----- ----- 486.87486.87486.87486.87486.87

(-) (-) (581.05) (-) (-) (581.05)
iii) Reliance Securities Ltd. 440.00440.00440.00440.00440.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 440.00440.00440.00440.00440.00

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
iv) Reliance Financial Ltd. 1,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.50 ----- ----- ----- ----- 1,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.501,087.50

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
c) Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Securities Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(111.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (111.00)

ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 12.1212.1212.1212.1212.12 ----- ----- 12.1212.1212.1212.1212.12
(-) (-) (483.43) (-) (-) (483.43)

iii) Reliance Asset Reconstruction ----- ----- 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69 ----- ----- 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69
Co. Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

iv) Reliance Gilts Ltd. 22.8022.8022.8022.8022.80 ----- ----- ----- ----- 22.8022.8022.8022.8022.80
(2.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2.00)

v) Reliance Equity 32.1032.1032.1032.1032.10 ----- ----- ----- ----- 32.1032.1032.1032.1032.10
Advisors (India) Ltd. (12.10) (-) (-) (-) (-) (12.10)

vi) Medybiz Pvt. Ltd. 10.0910.0910.0910.0910.09 ----- ----- ----- ----- 10.0910.0910.0910.0910.09
(7.87) (-) (-) (-) (-) (7.87)

vii) Reliance Capital 34.8634.8634.8634.8634.86 ----- ----- ----- ----- 34.8634.8634.8634.8634.86
Services Pvt. Ltd. (15.86) (-) (-) (-) (-) (15.86)

vii) Reliance Equities ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
International Pvt. Ltd. (20.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (20.00)

viii) Shri V. R. Mohan ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05 0.050.050.050.050.05
(-) (-) (-) (-) (0.05) (0.05)

d) Assignment of Loans
i) Reliance Home 1,365.031,365.031,365.031,365.031,365.03 ----- ----- ----- ----- 1,365.031,365.031,365.031,365.031,365.03

Finance Pvt. Ltd. (100.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (100.00)
ii) Reliance Consumer 1,165.981,165.981,165.981,165.981,165.98 ----- ----- ----- ----- 1,165.981,165.981,165.981,165.981,165.98

Finance Pvt. Ltd. (100.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (100.00)
Sundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind
a) Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Securities Ltd. 23.6923.6923.6923.6923.69 ----- ----- ----- ----- 23.6923.6923.6923.6923.69
(138.93) (-) (-) (-) (-) (138.93)

ii) Reliance General 4.334.334.334.334.33 ----- ----- ----- ----- 4.334.334.334.334.33
Insurance Company Ltd. (1.93) (-) (-) (-) (-) (1.93)

iii) Reliance Communications ----- 6.746.746.746.746.74 ----- ----- ----- 6.746.746.746.746.74
Infrastrcture Ltd. (-) (6.94) (-) (-) (-) (6.94)
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
b) Interest Receivable on above

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(-) (-) (8.53) (-) (-) (8.53)

ii) Reliance Equity ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
Advisors (India) Ltd. (0.26) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.26)

iii) Reliance Equities ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
International Pvt. Ltd. (0.42) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.42)

CCCCCurrurrur rur rur rent Liabil it iesent Liabil it iesent Liabil it iesent Liabil it iesent Liabil it ies
a) Sundry Creditors Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Equities ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
International Pvt. Ltd. (0.09) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.09)

ii) Reliance Home 1.991.991.991.991.99 ----- ----- ----- ----- 1.991.991.991.991.99
Finance Pvt. Ltd. (0.22) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.22)

iii) Reliance Consumer 0.690.690.690.690.69 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.690.690.690.690.69
Finance Pvt. Ltd. (2.68) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2.68)

iv) Reliance Infocomm ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. (-) (0.13) (-) (-) (-) (0.13)

IncomeIncomeIncomeIncomeIncome
a) Interest & Finance Income (including Premium on Prefernce Shares)

i) Reliance Securities Ltd. 6.286.286.286.286.28 ----- ----- ----- ----- 6.286.286.286.286.28
(11.17) (-) (-) (-) (-) (11.17)

ii) Reliance Financial Ltd. 2.392.392.392.392.39 ----- ----- ----- ----- 2.392.392.392.392.39
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

iii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71 ----- ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71
(-) (-) (37.69) (-) (-) (37.69)

iv) Reliance Communications ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (21.00) (-) (-) (-) (21.00)

v) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- ----- 6.346.346.346.346.34 ----- ----- 6.346.346.346.346.34
(-) (-) (2.90) (-) (-) (2.90)

vi) Reliance Equity 2.902.902.902.902.90 ----- ----- ----- ----- 2.902.902.902.902.90
Advisors (India) Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

b) Rent
i) Reliance Capital Asset 0.590.590.590.590.59 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.590.590.590.590.59

Management Ltd. (1.56) (-) (-) (-) (-) (1.56)
ii) Reliance Communications ----- 4.414.414.414.414.41 ----- ----- ----- 4.414.414.414.414.41

Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (4.41) (-) (-) (-) (4.41)
c) Front End Fees

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(-) (-) (1.25) (-) (-) (1.25)

d) Miscellaneous Income
i) Reliance General 0.160.160.160.160.16 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.160.160.160.160.16

Insurance Company Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
e) Reimbursement of Expenditure

i) Reliance General 7.357.357.357.357.35 ----- ----- ----- ----- 7.357.357.357.357.35
Insurance Company Ltd. (7.35) (-) (-) (-) (-) (7.35)

ii) Reliance Communications ----- 2.372.372.372.372.37 ----- ----- ----- 2.372.372.372.372.37
Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (2.41) (-) (-) (-) (2.41)

iii) Reliance Asset ----- ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05 ----- ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05
Reconstruction Co. Ltd. (-) (-) (0.09) (-) (-) (0.09)

iv) Reliance Capital Asset 2.372.372.372.372.37 ----- ----- ----- ----- 2.372.372.372.372.37
Management Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

f) Premium on Loan Assignment
i) Reliance Consumer 11.0411.0411.0411.0411.04 ----- ----- ----- ----- 11.0411.0411.0411.0411.04

Finance Pvt. Ltd. (2.22) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2.22)
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
ii) Reliance Home 7.617.617.617.617.61 ----- ----- ----- ----- 7.617.617.617.617.61

Finance Pvt. Ltd. (0.58) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.58)
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure
a) Rent

i) Reliance Communications ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (2.53) (-) (-) (-) (2.53)

ii) Reliance Capital Asset 0.210.210.210.210.21 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.210.210.210.210.21
Management Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

b) Insurance
i) Reliance General 0.420.420.420.420.42 ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.420.420.420.420.42

Insurance Company Ltd. (0.49) (-) (-) (-) (-) (0.49)
c) Payment to and provisions for employees

i) Shri V. R. Mohan ----- ----- ----- ----- 0.410.410.410.410.41 0.410.410.410.410.41
(-) (-) (-) (-) (0.33) (0.33)

d) Professional and Management fees
i) Reliance Venture Asset 4.994.994.994.994.99 ----- ----- ----- ----- 4.994.994.994.994.99

Management Pvt. Ltd. (1.26) (-) (-) (-) (-) (1.26)
ii) Reliance Communications ----- 2.012.012.012.012.01 ----- ----- ----- 2.012.012.012.012.01

Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (1.37) (-) (-) (-) (1.37)
iii) Reliance Tech Service Pvt. Ltd. ----- 1.251.251.251.251.25 ----- ----- ----- 1.251.251.251.251.25

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
e) Repairs & Maintenance – Others

i) Reliance Communications ----- 4.954.954.954.954.95 ----- ----- ----- 4.954.954.954.954.95
Infrastructure Ltd. (-) (6.10) (-) (-) (-) (6.10)

f) Brokerage paid during the year
i) Reliance Securities Ltd. 4.684.684.684.684.68 ----- ----- ----- ----- 4.684.684.684.684.68

(2.47) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2.47)
g) Miscellaneous expenses

i) Reliance Equities 7.867.867.867.867.86 ----- ----- ----- ----- 7.867.867.867.867.86
International Pvt. Ltd. (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Contingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ityContingent Liabil ity
a) Guarantees to Banks and Financial Institutions on behalf of third parties

i) Reliance Money 40.0040.0040.0040.0040.00 ----- ----- ----- ----- 40.0040.0040.0040.0040.00
Express Ltd. (40.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (40.00)

ii) Reliance Equities ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
International Pvt. Ltd. (200.00) (-) (-) (-) (-) (200.00)

iii) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 ----- ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00
(-) (-) (75.00) (-) (-) (75.00)

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
i) Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures.

ii) Expenses incurred towards public utilities services such as telephone and electricity charges have not been considered
for related party transaction.

iii) a) Previous year transactions with parties that have become related parties in the current year have been
included in the above mentioned table.

b) Previous year transactions with parties that have ceased to be related parties in the current year have been
excluded in the above mentioned table.

iv) In addition to the above, Director Sitting Fees of Rs.1,00,000. (Previous year Rs.80,000) has been paid to Shri Anil
Dhirubhai Ambani, an individual having significant influence.

v) The Company’s stake in Share Capital of Gini & Jony Ltd., Roseland Buildtech Pvt. Ltd., Victory Transformers &
Swithchgears Pvt. Ltd. is in excess of 20% each. These investments made by the Company are strategic in nature,
with an intention to sell these investments in the near future. The Company does not excercise any “Significant
Influence” on these companies, as defined by Accounting Standard (AS-18) on Related Party Disclosures as per
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006 hence the transactions with these parties are not considered for
Related Party Disclosures.
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1414141414 Basic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per share

The computation of earnings per share is set out below

(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

a) Amounts used as the numerators
Net Profit after tax 339.42339.42339.42339.42339.42 968.02
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders 339.42339.42339.42339.42339.42 968.02

b) Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 24 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 800 24 56 32 800
c) Basic earnings per share of face value Rs.10 each (Rs.) 13.8213.8213.8213.8213.82 39.41
d) Diluted earnings per share of face value Rs.10 each (Rs.) 13.8213.8213.8213.8213.82 39.41

1515151515 DefDefDefDefDeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed td td td td taaaaaxxxxxationationationationation

Deferred tax liability included in the balance sheet comprises the following

(Rs. in crore)

As AtAs AtAs AtAs AtAs At As At
PPPPPara ra ra ra rticulticulticulticulticula ra ra ra ra r March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

DefDefDefDefDeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed d d d d TTTTTaaaaax Libalitx Libalitx Libalitx Libalitx Libalityyyyy
Depreciation on Fixed Assets/Assets held for sale 27.5627.5627.5627.5627.56 28.43
Accrued Premium / Interest on Investments 5.435.435.435.435.43 -
Unamortised Expenses 24.9424.9424.9424.9424.94 37.07

57.9357.9357.9357.9357.93 65.50
DefDefDefDefDeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed d d d d TTTTTaaaaax x  x  x  x  AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss
Provision for Non Performing Assets/Diminution in the value of Assets & Investments 50.5550.5550.5550.5550.55 56.93
Provision for Leave Salary 1.381.381.381.381.38 2.07

51.9351.9351.9351.9351.93 59.00

Net DefNet DefNet DefNet DefNet Deferrerrerrerrerreeeeed d d d d TTTTTaaaaax Liabilitiesx Liabilitiesx Liabilitiesx Liabilitiesx Liabilities 6.006.006.006.006.00 6.50

1616161616 a) Accrued Premium / Interest on Investments includes Rs.24.95 crore due from Associates (Previous Year Rs.2.90 crore)
b) Accrued Premium / Interest on Investments amounting to Rs.45.31 crore are due within 1 Year. (Previous Year Rs.Nil)

1717171717 In the financial year 2008-09, the Company has entered into a joint venture with KGS Developers Ltd in respect of certain
real estate project devlopment, The Company has invested Rs.85 crore and is entitled to share the Profit / Loss equally.
The joint venture has not commenced operations during the year ended March 31, 2010.

1818181818 Disclosure of loans / advances and investments in its own shares by the listed companies, in its subsidiaries, associate etc.
(as certified by the management) as required by clause 32 of the Listing Agreement.

(Rs. in crore)

PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss Outstanding BalanceOutstanding BalanceOutstanding BalanceOutstanding BalanceOutstanding Balance Maximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstanding

March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,  March 31,
20202020201111100000 2009 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

i) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries
a) Reliance Gilts Ltd. 22.8022.8022.8022.8022.80 2.00 22.8022.8022.8022.8022.80 2.00
b) Medybiz Pvt. Ltd. 10.0910.0910.0910.0910.09 7.87 10.0910.0910.0910.0910.09 7.87
c) Reliance Venture Asset Management Pvt. Ltd. ----- - ----- 0.02
d) Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Ltd. 32.1032.1032.1032.1032.10 12.10 112.10112.10112.10112.10112.10 12.10
e) Reliance Equities International Pvt. Ltd. ----- 20.00 20.0020.0020.0020.0020.00 20.00
f) Reliance Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. 34.8634.8634.8634.8634.86 15.86 34.8634.8634.8634.8634.86 15.85
g) Reliance Securities Ltd. ----- 111.00 128.00128.00128.00128.00128.00 111.00
h) Reliance Financials Ltd. ----- - 1 000.001 000.001 000.001 000.001 000.00 -

ii) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates
a) Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd. ----- - ----- 31.49
b) Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69 - 20.0020.0020.0020.0020.00 -
c) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. 12.1212.1212.1212.1212.12 483.43 495.38495.38495.38495.38495.38 983.43

iii) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to fellow subsidiary
a) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. ----- - ----- 385.00

iv) Loans and advances in the nature of loans where there is
a) No repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven years 7.277.277.277.277.27 - 7.437.437.437.437.43 9.84
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss Outstanding BalanceOutstanding BalanceOutstanding BalanceOutstanding BalanceOutstanding Balance Maximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstandingMaximum Balance outstanding

March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,  March 31,
20202020201111100000 2009 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

b) No interest or interest below Section 372A of the
Companies Act, 1956.
1) Reliance Gilts Ltd. 22.8022.8022.8022.8022.80 2.00 22.8022.8022.8022.8022.80 2.00
2) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. 12.1212.1212.1212.1212.12 483.43 495.38495.38495.38495.38495.38 983.43
3) Reliance Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. 34.8634.8634.8634.8634.86 15.85 34.8634.8634.8634.8634.86 15.85
4) Loans to employees 10.0110.0110.0110.0110.01 - 27.7227.7227.7227.7227.72 9.84

(in ordinary course of business)

v) Loans and advances in nature of loans to firms /
companies in which directors are interested - - - -

vi) Investments by loanee in the shares of parent company and
subsidiary company, when the company has made a loan or
advance in the nature of loan No. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of sharesNo. of shares  Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

(R(R(R(R(Rs.)s.)s.)s.)s.)
a) Medybiz Pvt. Ltd. 1 000 10 000
b) Net Logistics Pvt. Ltd. (1 000) (10 000)

1919191919 Disclosure of details as required by Revised Para 13 of Non Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss Amount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount Outstanding Amount OverdueAmount OverdueAmount OverdueAmount OverdueAmount Overdue

March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,  March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20202020201111100000 2009 20202020201111100000 2009

1) Loans and advances availed by NBFC
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid
a) Debentures

(Other than falling within the meaning of
public deposits)
i) Secured 3 882.083 882.083 882.083 882.083 882.08 1 181.90 ----- -
ii) Unsecured ----- - - -

b) Deferred Credits ----- - - -
c) Term Loans

i) Secured 1,854.681,854.681,854.681,854.681,854.68 2,744.85 - -
ii) Unsecured 750.00750.00750.00750.00750.00 3,250.04 - -

d) Inter-corporate Loans and Borrowing 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69 - - -
e) Commercial Paper 4 670.444 670.444 670.444 670.444 670.44 5 591.98 - -
f) Other Loans (specify nature)

i) Cash Credit from banks 785.26785.26785.26785.26785.26 1 010.29 - -

(Rs. in crore)

PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss Amount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount Outstanding Amount Outstanding

March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20202020201111100000 2009

2) Break up of loans and advnaces including bills receivable
other than those included in (3) below (Gross Amount)
a) Secured 5 139.405 139.405 139.405 139.405 139.40 6 758.43
b) Unsecured 2 881.522 881.522 881.522 881.522 881.52 4 656.84

8 020.928 020.928 020.928 020.928 020.92 11 415.27

Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:
a) Housing loans / loans against property granted are secured by equitable registered mortgage of property and / or

undertaking to create a security.
b) Secured loans in the nature of commercial vehicle, auto finance are secured against hypothecation of respective

vehicle.
c) In case of loans & advances given in para(2) above, against which Provision for NPA & Doubtful Debts are Rs.101

crore (Previous year Rs.109.23 crore)
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(Rs. in crore)

PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss Amount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount OutstandingAmount Outstanding Amount Outstanding

March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,
20202020201111100000 2009

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and
Other assets counting towards AFC activities:
Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
1) Financial Lease (net of depreciation and lease adjustment)  ----- -
2) Operating Lease  -----  -

4) Break up of Investments (Amont net of provisions)
a) Current Investments

1) Quoted Shares
- Equity (Stock-in-trade)*  -----  0.53
- Preference -----  -
- Units of Mutual Fund  784.01784.01784.01784.01784.01  1 280.35

2) Unquoted Shares
Others
- Reliance Capital Partners current account 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17  295.98

b) Long Term Investments
1) Quoted Shares

- Equity 1 160.201 160.201 160.201 160.201 160.20  1 559.05
- Preference  9.76 9.76 9.76 9.76 9.76  10.13
- Debentures and Bonds  174.00 174.00 174.00 174.00 174.00  90.00
- Government Securities  - - - - -  -

2) Unquoted Shares
- Equity  2 148.30 2 148.30 2 148.30 2 148.30 2 148.30  1 729.38
- Preference  4 127.30 4 127.30 4 127.30 4 127.30 4 127.30  1 860.77
- Debentures and Bonds  1 630.631 630.631 630.631 630.631 630.63  1 796.75
- Units of Mutual Funds  35.0035.0035.0035.0035.00  4.00
- GOI Securities Rs.45,000 (Previous year Rs.45,000)  - - - - -  -
- Others
- Warrants  32.97 32.97 32.97 32.97 32.97  35.08
- Pass through Certificates  45.6845.6845.6845.6845.68  -
- Investments in Joint Venture  85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00  85.00

10 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.04  8 747.02

*During the year stock in trade held by the Company has been reclassified as investments at book value.

5)5)5)5)5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:
(Amount net of provisions)(Amount net of provisions)(Amount net of provisions)(Amount net of provisions)(Amount net of provisions)

(Rs. in crore)
SecuredSecuredSecuredSecuredSecured UnsecuredUnsecuredUnsecuredUnsecuredUnsecured TTTTToooootttttalalalalal

March31,March31,March31,March31,March31,  March31,  March31,March31,March31,March31,March31,  March31,  March31, March31, March31, March31, March31,  March31,
20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009 20102010201020102010 2009

a) Related parties

1) Subsidiaries  - - - - -  -  127.99 127.99 127.99 127.99 127.99  310.09  127.99127.99127.99127.99127.99  310.09
2) Companies in

the same group  - - - - -  -  - - - - -  - -  -
3) Other related

parties  - - - - -  - 27.8127.8127.8127.8127.81  483.54  27.81 27.81 27.81 27.81 27.81  483.54
b) Other than

related parties  5 119.155 119.155 119.155 119.155 119.15  6 758.43  2 644.97 2 644.97 2 644.97 2 644.97 2 644.97  3 753.98  7 764.127 764.127 764.127 764.127 764.12  10 512.41

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 5 119.155 119.155 119.155 119.155 119.15      6 758.43  2 800.77 2 800.77 2 800.77 2 800.77 2 800.77  4 547.61  7 919.92 7 919.92 7 919.92 7 919.92 7 919.92  11 306.04 11 306.04 11 306.04 11 306.04 11 306.04
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6)6)6)6)6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quotedInvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quotedInvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quotedInvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quotedInvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted
and unquoted excluding stock-in-trade)and unquoted excluding stock-in-trade)and unquoted excluding stock-in-trade)and unquoted excluding stock-in-trade)and unquoted excluding stock-in-trade)

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss MMMMMarkarkarkarkarket vet vet vet vet vala la la la lue / Fue / Fue / Fue / Fue / Fairairairairair v v v v vala la la la lueueueueue  Book value Book value Book value Book value Book value

or NAVor NAVor NAVor NAVor NAV (Net of provisions)(Net of provisions)(Net of provisions)(Net of provisions)(Net of provisions)
March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,  March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,

20202020201010101010 2009 20202020201111100000 2009
a)a)a)a)a) Related partiesRelated partiesRelated partiesRelated partiesRelated parties

1) Subsidiaries 1 934.171 934.171 934.171 934.171 934.17 1 261.17 1 934.171 934.171 934.171 934.171 934.17 1 261.17
2) Companies in the same group ----- 395.84 ----- 211.77
3) Associates 448.01448.01448.01448.01448.01 54.72 448.01448.01448.01448.01448.01 54.72

b)b)b)b)b) Other than related partiesOther than related partiesOther than related partiesOther than related partiesOther than related parties 8 245.438 245.438 245.438 245.438 245.43 6 493.95 8 293.868 293.868 293.868 293.868 293.86 7 218.83

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 10 627.6110 627.6110 627.6110 627.6110 627.61 8 205.68 10 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.04 8 746.49

7)7)7)7)7) OtherOtherOtherOtherOther inf inf inf inf informationormationormationormationormation
(Rs. in crore)

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010      March 31, 2009

a) Gross Non Performing Assets
1) Related Parties ----- -
2) Other than Related Parties 343.84343.84343.84343.84343.84 352.10

b) Net Non Performing Assets
1) Related Parties ----- -----
2) Other than Related Parties 242.84242.84242.84242.84242.84 242.87

c) Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Debt (Net of provision) 13.8013.8013.8013.8013.80 7.74

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
a) Companies in same group means companies under the same management as per section 370(1B) of the

Companies Act, 1956
b) In case of investments in unquoted shares, it is assumed that market value is same as book value.
c) The following have not being included in the above:

i) Capital contribution in Partnership Firm and unincorporated joint venture; and
ii) The Company’s stake in the Share Capital of Gini & Jony Ltd, Rose Land Buildtech Pvt. Ltd., and Victory

Transformers & Switchgears Pvt Ltd is in excess of 20% each. These investments made by the Company
are strategic in nature, with an intention to sell these investments in the near future and the Company
does not exercise any “Significant Influence” in these companies.

2020202020. DisclDisclDisclDisclDisclosurosurosurosurosure ofe ofe ofe ofe of det det det det detailailailailails as rs as rs as rs as rs as requirequirequirequirequireeeeed bd bd bd bd by Py Py Py Py Pararararara 5 ofa 5 ofa 5 ofa 5 ofa 5 of R R R R Resesesesesererererervvvvve Banke Banke Banke Banke Bank of of of of of India Cir India Cir India Cir India Cir India Circulculculculculararararar No RBI 2008-09/116 DNB No RBI 2008-09/116 DNB No RBI 2008-09/116 DNB No RBI 2008-09/116 DNB No RBI 2008-09/116 DNBS (PD).CS (PD).CS (PD).CS (PD).CS (PD).CC.C .C .C .C .
No. 125/03.05.002/2008-09.No. 125/03.05.002/2008-09.No. 125/03.05.002/2008-09.No. 125/03.05.002/2008-09.No. 125/03.05.002/2008-09.

I .I .I .I .I . Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (“CRAR”)Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (“CRAR”)Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (“CRAR”)Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (“CRAR”)Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (“CRAR”)

ItemsItemsItemsItemsItems March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

i) CRAR (%) 28.0328.0328.0328.0328.03 28.8728.8728.8728.8728.87
ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 28.0328.0328.0328.0328.03 28.8728.8728.8728.8728.87
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) ----- -
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II. Exposure to Real EstateExposure to Real EstateExposure to Real EstateExposure to Real EstateExposure to Real Estate
(Rs. in crore)

CategoryCategoryCategoryCategoryCategory 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

a) Direct Exposure
i) Residential Mortgage

Individual Housing Loan upto 15 lakh 95.5395.5395.5395.5395.53  321.56
Individual Housing Loan more than 15 lakh 661.86661.86661.86661.86661.86  1 877.43

ii) Commercial Real Estate  831.70 831.70 831.70 831.70 831.70  751.82
iii) Individual Housing Loan more than 15 lakh and

Other securitised exposure
Residential  - - - - -  -
Commercial  - - - - - -

b) Indirect Exposure
Fund Based and Non Fund based exposures on National 296.00296.00296.00296.00296.00  101.00
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

III. MMMMMatatatataturituriturituriturity paty paty paty paty pattttttern ofern ofern ofern ofern of ass ass ass ass asset and liabilities (At Booket and liabilities (At Booket and liabilities (At Booket and liabilities (At Booket and liabilities (At Book     VVVVValalalalalues)ues)ues)ues)ues)
(Rs. in crore)

1day to Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 3 Over 5 Total
30/31 days month to month to month to month to  year to year to year to

2 months  3 months  6 months  1 year  3 years 5 years
LiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilities
Borrowings from 310.85310.85310.85310.85310.85 27.5027.5027.5027.5027.50 59.9459.9459.9459.9459.94 64.7564.7564.7564.7564.75 1 221.301 221.301 221.301 221.301 221.30 3 026.593 026.593 026.593 026.593 026.59 366.33366.33366.33366.33366.33 ----- 5 077.265 077.265 077.265 077.265 077.26
bank (including (-) (500.04) (200.00) (600.47) (3 432.09) (2 272.58) (-) (-) (7 005.18)
NCD / CP)
Market Borrowings 765.23765.23765.23765.23765.23 348.99348.99348.99348.99348.99 198.22198.22198.22198.22198.22 1 955.251 955.251 955.251 955.251 955.25 1 497.511 497.511 497.511 497.511 497.51 2 006.002 006.002 006.002 006.002 006.00 109.69109.69109.69109.69109.69 ----- 6 880.896 880.896 880.896 880.896 880.89

(1 202.87) (698.57) (220.69) (1 833.64) (2 193.12) (454.90) (170.09) (-) (6 773.88)
AssetsAssetsAssetsAssetsAssets
Loans / Advances 407.19407.19407.19407.19407.19 122.35122.35122.35122.35122.35 895.00895.00895.00895.00895.00 687.30687.30687.30687.30687.30 1 278.481 278.481 278.481 278.481 278.48 1 939.201 939.201 939.201 939.201 939.20 926.29926.29926.29926.29926.29 1 664.111 664.111 664.111 664.111 664.11 7 919.927 919.927 919.927 919.927 919.92

(1 661.97) (931.59) (295.76) (700.65) (1 298.31) (3 060.75) (794.56) (2 562.45) (11 306.04)

Investments 1 953.981 953.981 953.981 953.981 953.98 ----- ----- 0.110.110.110.110.11 354.75354.75354.75354.75354.75 1 158.121 158.121 158.121 158.121 158.12 1 368.291 368.291 368.291 368.291 368.29 5 840.795 840.795 840.795 840.795 840.79 10 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.0410 676.04
(2 929.40) (-) (19.50) (2.13) (201.05) (391.30) (1 421.49) (3 781.61) (8 746.49)

All quoted investments have been included in 1 day to 30/31 days (one month) bucket considering its liquidity. All unquoted equity
shares/warrants including investment in subsidiaries have been included in ‘Over 5 years’

21. CCCCContingontingontingontingontingent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Commitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitments (As (As (As (As (As Cs Cs Cs Cs Cererererertiftiftiftiftifieieieieied bd bd bd bd by the My the My the My the My the Managanaganaganaganagement)ement)ement)ement)ement)
(Rs. in crore)

As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

CCCCContingontingontingontingontingent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilities
i) Guarantees to Banks and Financial Institutions 235.00235.00235.00235.00235.00 366.43

on behalf of Subsidiaries and Associates.
ii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 11.9511.9511.9511.9511.95 0.09

CCCCCommitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentsssss
iii) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

on capital account (net of advances) 27.1127.1127.1127.1127.11 23.09
iv) Uncalled amount on Investment 371.66371.66371.66371.66371.66 265.17

22. ExpenditExpenditExpenditExpenditExpenditururururure in Fe in Fe in Fe in Fe in Forororororeign Ceign Ceign Ceign Ceign Currurrurrurrurrencencencencencyyyyy
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

i) Travelling Expenses 0.560.560.560.560.56  0.04
ii) Donations 2.892.892.892.892.89  2.57
iii) Conference Expenses  - - - - -  0.52
iv) Professional Fees 4.134.134.134.134.13  4.86
v) Software 0.850.850.850.850.85  2.19
vi) License Fees 0.730.730.730.730.73 -
vi) Others 1.781.781.781.781.78  1.47
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23. VVVVValalalalalue ofue ofue ofue ofue of impor impor impor impor importtttts on C.I.Fs on C.I.Fs on C.I.Fs on C.I.Fs on C.I.F. basis in r. basis in r. basis in r. basis in r. basis in respecespecespecespecespect oft oft oft oft of

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

Capital goods 3.553.553.553.553.55 2.99

24. Earning in FEarning in FEarning in FEarning in FEarning in Forororororeign Ceign Ceign Ceign Ceign Currurrurrurrurrencencencencencyyyyy
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
Interest Income (Ammolite Holdings Ltd.) ----- 1.50

25. RRRRRemitemitemitemitemittttttancancancancance in Fe in Fe in Fe in Fe in Forororororeign Ceign Ceign Ceign Ceign Currurrurrurrurrencencencencency on acy on acy on acy on acy on accccccount ofount ofount ofount ofount of Dividend Dividend Dividend Dividend Dividend
The Company has paid dividend in respect of shares held by non residents on repatriation basis. This, inter-alia includes
portfolio investment and direct investment, where the amount is also credited to Non Resident External Account (NRE A/
c). The total amount remittable in this respect is specified below:

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

DividendDividendDividendDividendDividend
a) Number of Non Resident Shareholders 943943943943943 951
b) Number of Equity Shares held by them 51 65151 65151 65151 65151 651 52 129
c) (i) Amount of Dividend Paid (gross) (amount in Rs.) 335 733335 733335 733335 733335 733 2 86 708

(ii) Year to which Dividend Relates 2008-092008-092008-092008-092008-09 2007-08

26. Stock-in-tradeStock-in-tradeStock-in-tradeStock-in-tradeStock-in-trade

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss QUANTITY QUANTITY QUANTITY QUANTITY QUANTITY (in Nos.) VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE (Rs. in crore)
March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,  March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,

20202020201111100000 2009 20202020201111100000 2009
SharesSharesSharesSharesShares
Equity SharesEquity SharesEquity SharesEquity SharesEquity Shares
B.A.G Films and Media Ltd.  -----  394 400  -----  0.25
Kothari Industrial Corporation Ltd. (*Rs.1)  - - - - -  393 880  ----- #
Kothari Sugars and Chemicals Ltd.  - - - - -  34 123  -----  0.02
Padmalaya Telefilms Ltd.  - - - - -  511 000  -----  0.26
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal E E E E Equitquitquitquitquity Shary Shary Shary Shary Shareseseseses  *  1 333 403  -----  0.53

Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:
Above includes
#3,93,880 equity shares of Kothari Industrial Corporation Ltd. Delivered to the escrow agency, namely Axis Bank Ltd.
Pursuant to the Settlement Order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. The Settlement proceeds will be received upon
due completion of the process of the Order.
* During the year stock-in-trade held by the Company has been reclassified to investments at book value

27. PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararars in rs in rs in rs in rs in respecespecespecespecespect oft oft oft oft of opening st opening st opening st opening st opening stock, purock, purock, purock, purock, purchaschaschaschaschase, se, se, se, se, salalalalales and cles and cles and cles and cles and closing stosing stosing stosing stosing stockockockockock f f f f fororororor st st st st stockockockockock-in-tr-in-tr-in-tr-in-tr-in-trade.ade.ade.ade.ade.

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss QUANTITY QUANTITY QUANTITY QUANTITY QUANTITY (in Nos.) VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE (Rs. in crore)
March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,  March 31, March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31,March 31, March 31,

20202020201111100000 2009 20202020201111100000 2009
Opening StockOpening StockOpening StockOpening StockOpening Stock
Equity Shares 1,333,4031,333,4031,333,4031,333,4031,333,403 1,333,403  0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53
Preference Shares - - -
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 1,333,4031,333,4031,333,4031,333,4031,333,403 1,333,403 0.530.530.530.530.53
PurchasesPurchasesPurchasesPurchasesPurchases - - - -
Equity Shares - - - -
Preference Shares - - - -
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal  - - - -
Sales / Reclassification*Sales / Reclassification*Sales / Reclassification*Sales / Reclassification*Sales / Reclassification* 1,333,4031,333,4031,333,4031,333,4031,333,403 - 0.530.530.530.530.53 -
Equity Shares - - - -
Preference Shares - - - -
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal  - - - -
Closing StockClosing StockClosing StockClosing StockClosing Stock - - - -
Equity Shares - 1,333,403 - 0.53
Preference Shares - - - -
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal - 1,333,403 - 0.53
* During the year stock-in-trade held by the Company has been reclassified to investments at book value
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28. BalBalBalBalBalancancancancance Sheet e Sheet e Sheet e Sheet e Sheet AbAbAbAbAbstrstrstrstrstracacacacact and Ct and Ct and Ct and Ct and Companompanompanompanompanyyyyy’s Gener’s Gener’s Gener’s Gener’s Generalalalalal B B B B Business Pusiness Pusiness Pusiness Pusiness Prrrrrofofofofofililililileeeee

I.I .I .I .I . Registration DetailsRegistration DetailsRegistration DetailsRegistration DetailsRegistration Details

Registration No. : 1 6 5 6 4 5 State Code : 1 1

Balance Sheet Date : 3 1 0 3 2 0 1 0

II.II .II .II .II . Capital raised during the year (Capital raised during the year (Capital raised during the year (Capital raised during the year (Capital raised during the year (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. in thousand) in thousand) in thousand) in thousand) in thousand)

Public Issue : N  I L Rights Issue : N I L

Bonus Issue : N I L Private Placement : N I L

III.III.III.III.III.PPPPPosition ofosition ofosition ofosition ofosition of M M M M Mobilisobilisobilisobilisobilisation and Deplation and Deplation and Deplation and Deplation and Deploooooyment ofyment ofyment ofyment ofyment of F F F F Funds (unds (unds (unds (unds (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. in thous in thous in thous in thous in thousand)and)and)and)and)

Total Liabilities : 1 8 9 2 3 2 1 9 0 Total Assets : 1 8 9 2 3 2 1 9 0

SourSourSourSourSourccccces ofes ofes ofes ofes of F F F F Fundsundsundsundsunds ::::: ApplicApplicApplicApplicApplication ofation ofation ofation ofation of F F F F Fundsundsundsundsunds

Paid up Capital : 2 4 6 1 5 9 9 Net Fixed Assets : 1 6 7 7 6 4 8

Equity Warrants : N I L Investments : 1 0 6 7 6 0 4 0 3

Reserves & Surplus : 6 7 1 2 9 0 2 3 Net Current Assets : 7 4 1 8 5 5 3 2

Secured Loans : 6 5 2 2 0 2 3 0 Unamortised expenditure : 7 3 3 7 6 4

Unsecured Loans : 5 4 3 6 1 3 3 8 Accumulated Losses : N I L

Deferred Tax Liability : 6 0 0 0 0 Accured Premium on : 5 8 7 4 8 4 3
Investments

IIIIIVVVVV..... PPPPPerererererffffformancormancormancormancormance ofe ofe ofe ofe of C C C C Companompanompanompanompany (y (y (y (y (Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. in thous in thous in thous in thous in thousand)and)and)and)and)

Turnover : 2 3 8 9 8 7 6 1 Total Expenditure : 1 9 6 1 5 5 2 7

Profit Before Tax : 4 2 8 3 2 3 4 Profit After Tax : 3 3 9 4 1 7 5

Earning Per Share (Rs.) : Dividend Rate % : 6 5 . 0 0

Basic 1 3 . 8 2

VVVVV..... Generic NGeneric NGeneric NGeneric NGeneric Names ofames ofames ofames ofames of     ThrThrThrThrThree Pee Pee Pee Pee Principalrincipalrincipalrincipalrincipal P P P P Prrrrroducoducoducoducoducttttts / Sers / Sers / Sers / Sers / Servicvicvicvicvices ofes ofes ofes ofes of C C C C Companompanompanompanompany (as pery (as pery (as pery (as pery (as per monet monet monet monet monetararararary ty ty ty ty terms)erms)erms)erms)erms)

Item Code no. : Not applicable
(ITC Code)

Product Description I. Asset Financing

II. Lending

III. Investments
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CCCCCashflashflashflashflashflooooow Stw Stw Stw Stw Statatatatatement fement fement fement fement fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

A.A.A.A.A. CCCCCash Fash Fash Fash Fash Flllllooooows fws fws fws fws frrrrrom Operom Operom Operom Operom Operating ating ating ating ating AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities

Net PNet PNet PNet PNet Prrrrrofofofofofit befit befit befit befit befororororore te te te te taaaaax as perx as perx as perx as perx as per P P P P Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccountountountountount 428.33 1,077.20

Adjusted for

Prior period items - 0.46

Net prNet prNet prNet prNet profofofofofit befit befit befit befit befororororore te te te te taaaaax and priorx and priorx and priorx and priorx and prior period it period it period it period it period itemsemsemsemsems 428.33 1,077.66

Adjusted for

Depreciation 18.16 21.22

Bad Debts Written Off 289.54 4.48

(Reversal) / Provision for Non Performing,
Doubtful and Standard Assets (33.28) 131.74

Provision for Reposessed Stock 0.93 4.29

Provision for Dimunition in the Value of Investments 1.87 50.04

Provision for Gratuity / Leave Encashment 1.28 3.81

Credit Balance / Excess Provision Written Back (15.58) (31.65)

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.83 (0.01)

Amortisation of brokerage/ DSA commission 99.74 51.88

(Profit) / Loss Share in Partnership Firm 1.04 4.40

Investments

Interest (467.26) (217.08)

Dividend Income (10.30) (17.92)

(Profit) / Loss on sale of Investment (Net) (484.53) (1,177.73)

Interest Expenses 1,259.60 1,236.75

662.04 64.22

OperOperOperOperOperating Pating Pating Pating Pating Prrrrrofofofofofit befit befit befit befit befororororore we we we we working corking corking corking corking capitapitapitapitapitalalalalal chang chang chang chang changeseseseses 1,090.37 1,141.88

Adjusted for

Trade and other receivables 2,780.21 (695.03)

Proceeds from / (repyament of ) Short Term Borrowings (net) (4,707.73) 2,317.80

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 2,569.62 1,794.76

Deferred expenses (64.10) (63.18)

Trade payables 141.24 719.24 (687.56) 2,666.79

CCCCCash gash gash gash gash generenerenerenereneratatatatateeeeed fd fd fd fd frrrrrom Operom Operom Operom Operom Operationsationsationsationsations 1,809.61 3,808.67

Interest paid (963.08) (891.73)

Taxes paid (11.22) (974.30) (53.92) (945.65)

CCCCCash flash flash flash flash flooooows befws befws befws befws befororororore Pe Pe Pe Pe Priorriorriorriorrior P P P P Period Ieriod Ieriod Ieriod Ieriod Itttttemsemsemsemsems 835.31 2,863.02

Prior period item - (0.46)

Net cNet cNet cNet cNet cash fash fash fash fash frrrrrom / (usom / (usom / (usom / (usom / (useeeeed in) Operd in) Operd in) Operd in) Operd in) Operating ating ating ating ating AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities 835.31 2,862.56
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CCCCCashflashflashflashflashflooooow Stw Stw Stw Stw Statatatatatement fement fement fement fement fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010

As per our report of even date

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 101720W Firm Regn. No.: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768
Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board
Chairman Anil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. Ambani
Vice Chairman Amitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh Jhunjhunwala

Directors RRRRRajendrajendrajendrajendrajendra Pa Pa Pa Pa P. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chitalalalalaleeeee
C. PC. PC. PC. PC. P. . . . . JJJJJainainainainain
DrDrDrDrDr. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhusan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samal

Company Secretary & Manager VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan

Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

B.B.B.B.B. CCCCCash flash flash flash flash flooooows fws fws fws fws frrrrrom Inom Inom Inom Inom Invvvvvesting esting esting esting esting AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities

Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital Work in Progress (10.08)(10.08)(10.08)(10.08)(10.08) (92.01)

Sale of Fixed Assets 3.843.843.843.843.84 0.16

Purchase of Investments (5,668.17)(5,668.17)(5,668.17)(5,668.17)(5,668.17) (3,324.51)

Investment in Subsidiaries (673.00)(673.00)(673.00)(673.00)(673.00) (452.11)

Investment in Partnership Firm (Net) (148.23)(148.23)(148.23)(148.23)(148.23) (191.59)

Sale of Investments 4,490.404,490.404,490.404,490.404,490.40 2,190.40

Interest received 207.88207.88207.88207.88207.88 36.45

Dividend received 10.3010.3010.3010.3010.30 17.92

Short term investment (Net) 625.61625.61625.61625.61625.61 (1,049.21)

Net CNet CNet CNet CNet Cash fash fash fash fash frrrrrom / (usom / (usom / (usom / (usom / (useeeeed in) Ind in) Ind in) Ind in) Ind in) Invvvvvesting esting esting esting esting AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities (1,161.45)(1,161.45)(1,161.45)(1,161.45)(1,161.45) (2,864.50)

C.C.C.C.C. CCCCCash flash flash flash flash flooooows fws fws fws fws frrrrrom Fom Fom Fom Fom Financing inancing inancing inancing inancing AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities

Dividends Paid (185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77) (157.27)

Net CNet CNet CNet CNet Cash fash fash fash fash frrrrrom / (usom / (usom / (usom / (usom / (useeeeed in) Fd in) Fd in) Fd in) Fd in) Financing inancing inancing inancing inancing AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities (185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77) (157.27)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A + B + C )Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A + B + C )Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A + B + C )Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A + B + C )Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A + B + C ) (511.91(511.91(511.91(511.91(511.91) (159.21)

Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. Rs. Rs.

Opening balance of Cash and Cash equivalents 74.5574.5574.5574.5574.55 233.76

Closing balance of Cash and Cash equivalents* (437.36)(437.36)(437.36)(437.36)(437.36) 74.55

* Fixed Deposits with banks amounting to Rs.165.20 crore (Previous Year Rs. NIL) under lien, are not considered for Cash &
Cash Equivalents.
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TTTTTo,o,o,o,o,
The Board of Directors,The Board of Directors,The Board of Directors,The Board of Directors,The Board of Directors,
Reliance Capital Ltd.Reliance Capital Ltd.Reliance Capital Ltd.Reliance Capital Ltd.Reliance Capital Ltd.

We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of
RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Ce Ce Ce Ce Capitapitapitapitapitalalalalal Limit Limit Limit Limit Limiteeeeeddddd ('the Company') and its subsidiaries
and associates (as per the list appearing in Note No. 16 of
Schedule "O" of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements) (Collectively referred to as the 'Group') as at
March 31, 2010, the related consolidated profit and loss
account and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management
and have been prepared by the management on the basis of
separate financial statements and other financial information
regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

1. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

2. We did not audit the financial statements and financial
information of four subsidiaries including a partnership firm.
The financial statements of these subsidiaries including
partnership firm for the year ended March 31, 2010 have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it relates to
the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries
including a partnership firm, is based solely on these reports.
The attached consolidated financial statements include
total assets of Rs.459.19 crore as at March 31, 2010,
total revenues of Rs.24.78 crore and total cash inflows
amounting to Rs.6.89 crore in respect of the
aforementioned subsidiaries for the year then ended.

3. The financial statements and financial information of twelve
subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2010 have
been audited by one of the joint auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it
relates to the amounts included in respect of these
subsidiaries, is based solely on these reports. The attached
consolidated financial statements include total assets of
Rs.7,951.40 crore as at March 31, 2010, total revenues
of Rs.3,697.23 crore and total cash outflows amounting
to Rs.421.89 crore in respect of the aforementioned
subsidiaries for the year then ended.

4. We have relied on the unaudited financial statements
and financial information of three subsidiaries, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.110.59
crore as at March 31, 2010, total revenues of Rs.61.59
crore and total cash inflows amounting to Rs.44.75 crore
in respect of these subsidiaries for the year then ended.
These unaudited financial statements as approved by the
respective Board of Directors of the companies have been
furnished to us by the management of the Company,
and our report in so far as it relates to the amount included
in respect of the subsidiaries is based solely on such

approved unaudited financial statements and financial
information.

5. The financial statements and financial information of two
associates for the year ended March 31, 2010 have been
audited by one of the joint auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far it relates
to the amounts included in respect of the associate, is
based solely on the report.

6. The financial statements and financial information of one
associate company for the year ended March 31, 2010
has been audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it relates to
the amounts included in respect of the same associates,
is based solely on the report.

7. We have relied on the unaudited financial statement and
financial information of one associate company, whose
financial statements are approved by the respective Board
of Directors of the company has been furnished to us by
the management of the Company, and our report in so
far as it relates to the amount included in respect of
these associates is based solely on such approved unaudited
financial statements and financial information.

8. We report that the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by the Company's management in
accordance with the requirements of the Accounting
Standard (AS) - 21, "Consolidated Financial Statements"
and Accounting Standard (AS) - 23, "Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements", notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006.

9. Based on the audit as aforesaid, and on consideration of
the reports of other auditors and financial statements
approved by the Board of Directors as explained in
paragraphs 2,4,6 and 7 above, and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us, we are of the opinion that the said consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2010;

(ii) in the case of the consolidated profit and loss account,
of the consolidated results, of the operations of the
Group for the year then ended;  and

(iii) in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement,
of the consolidated cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended.

AuditAuditAuditAuditAuditorororororsssss’ ’ ’ ’ ’ RRRRReporeporeporeporeport on Ct on Ct on Ct on Ct on Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No:101720W Firm Regn. No: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010 Dated: April 30, 2010
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 (Rs. in crore)

SCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULE As atAs atAs atAs atAs at  As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

SOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDSSOURCES OF FUNDS
SharSharSharSharShareholdereholdereholdereholdereholdersssss’ F’ F’ F’ F’ Fundsundsundsundsunds
(a) Share Capital AAAAA 246.16246.16246.16246.16246.16 246.16
(b) Reserves and Surplus BBBBB 7 457.827 457.827 457.827 457.827 457.82 7 207.20

7 703.987 703.987 703.987 703.987 703.98 7 453.36
Minority Interests 93.7593.7593.7593.7593.75 83.26
LLLLLoan Foan Foan Foan Foan Fundsundsundsundsunds
(a) Secured Loans CCCCC 8 747.418 747.418 747.418 747.418 747.41 4 954.48
(b) Unsecured Loans DDDDD 5 938.925 938.925 938.925 938.925 938.92 9 152.61

14 686.3314 686.3314 686.3314 686.3314 686.33 14 107.09
Deferred Tax Liability - 4.46
(Refer Note No. 11, Schedule “O”)

22 484.0622 484.0622 484.0622 484.0622 484.06 21 648.1721 648.1721 648.1721 648.1721 648.17
APPLAPPLAPPLAPPLAPPLICICICICICAAAAATITITITITION OF FON OF FON OF FON OF FON OF FUNDSUNDSUNDSUNDSUNDS

GoodwillGoodwillGoodwillGoodwillGoodwill - -
Fixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed Assets EEEEE
(a) Gross Block 414.91414.91414.91414.91414.91 530.68
(b) Less: Accumulated Depreciation 245.25245.25245.25245.25245.25 326.62
(c) Net Block 169.66169.66169.66169.66169.66 204.06
(d) Capital Work-in-progress 88.8688.8688.8688.8688.86 84.70

258.52258.52258.52258.52258.52 288.76
InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments FFFFF 11 340.5911 340.5911 340.5911 340.5911 340.59 9 874.24
Deferred Tax Assets 39.7939.7939.7939.7939.79 -
(Refer Note No. 11, Schedule “O”)
Accrued Premium/Interest on InvestmentsAccrued Premium/Interest on InvestmentsAccrued Premium/Interest on InvestmentsAccrued Premium/Interest on InvestmentsAccrued Premium/Interest on Investments 632.40632.40632.40632.40632.40 328.10
(Refer Note No. 13, Schedule “O”)
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetets, Ls, Ls, Ls, Ls, Loans and oans and oans and oans and oans and AdAdAdAdAdvvvvvancancancancanceseseseses GGGGG
(a) Stock-in-trade 38.8038.8038.8038.8038.80 37.68
(b) Sundry Debtors 190.87190.87190.87190.87190.87 296.24
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 864.49864.49864.49864.49864.49 1 167.53
(d) Other Current Assets 103.74103.74103.74103.74103.74 112.92
(e) Loans and Advances 12 563.9112 563.9112 563.9112 563.9112 563.91 11 975.59

13 761.8113 761.8113 761.8113 761.8113 761.81 13 589.96
LLLLLess: Cess: Cess: Cess: Cess: Currurrurrurrurrent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Prrrrrooooovisionsvisionsvisionsvisionsvisions HHHHH
(a) Current Liabilities 2 698.922 698.922 698.922 698.922 698.92 1 609.47
(b) Provisions 936.04936.04936.04936.04936.04 936.44

3 634.963 634.963 634.963 634.963 634.96 2 545.91
Net Current Assets 10 126.8510 126.8510 126.8510 126.8510 126.85 11 044.05
Unamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised Expenditure IIIII 85.9185.9185.9185.9185.91 109.02
Miscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous Expenditure JJJJJ ----- 4.00
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

22 484.0622 484.0622 484.0622 484.0622 484.06 21 648.17
Significant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting Policies NNNNN
Notes on AccountsNotes on AccountsNotes on AccountsNotes on AccountsNotes on Accounts OOOOO
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

CCCCConsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Baled Baled Baled Baled Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010

As per our report of even date

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 101720W Firm Regn. No.: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768
Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board
Chairman Anil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. Ambani
Vice Chairman Amitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh Jhunjhunwala

Directors RRRRRajendrajendrajendrajendrajendra Pa Pa Pa Pa P. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chitalalalalaleeeee
C. PC. PC. PC. PC. P. . . . . JJJJJainainainainain
DrDrDrDrDr. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhusan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samal

Company Secretary & Manager VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan

Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010
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 (Rs. in crore)

SCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULESCHEDULE  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10  2008-09

INCOMEINCOMEINCOMEINCOMEINCOME
Operating and Other Income KKKKK 6 140.606 140.606 140.606 140.606 140.60 6 019.14

EXPENDITUREEXPENDITUREEXPENDITUREEXPENDITUREEXPENDITURE
Interest and Finance Charges LLLLL 1 332.401 332.401 332.401 332.401 332.40 1 263.84
Administrative and Other Expenses MMMMM 4 148.254 148.254 148.254 148.254 148.25 3 494.44
Depreciation 67.6367.6367.6367.6367.63 56.71
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off 4.004.004.004.004.00 -

5 552.285 552.285 552.285 552.285 552.28 4 814.99
PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT BEF BEF BEF BEF BEFORE ORE ORE ORE ORE TTTTTAXAXAXAXAX     AND MINORIAND MINORIAND MINORIAND MINORIAND MINORITTTTTYYYYY INTERE INTERE INTERE INTERE INTERESSSSSTTTTTSSSSS 588.32588.32588.32588.32588.32 1 204.15

Provision for Taxation 191.87191.87191.87191.87191.87 187.15
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax ----- 10.44
(Writeback) / Provision for Deferred Tax (42.72)(42.72)(42.72)(42.72)(42.72) (16.50)

PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT     AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER TTTTTAXAXAXAXAX     AND BEFAND BEFAND BEFAND BEFAND BEFORE MINORIORE MINORIORE MINORIORE MINORIORE MINORITTTTTYYYYY INTERE INTERE INTERE INTERE INTERESSSSSTTTTT 439.17439.17439.17439.17439.17 1 023.06
Prior Period Adjustment (Net) (1.40)(1.40)(1.40)(1.40)(1.40) -
(Refer Note No. 12, Schedule “O”)
Share of Minority Shareholders 10.3510.3510.3510.3510.35 7.84

PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT     AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER TTTTTAXAXAXAXAX     AND MINORIAND MINORIAND MINORIAND MINORIAND MINORITTTTTYYYYY INTERE INTERE INTERE INTERE INTERESSSSSTTTTT 430.22430.22430.22430.22430.22 1 015.22
Share of Profit in Associates 3.163.163.163.163.16 0.45

PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT     AFTER SHARE OF PROFIAFTER SHARE OF PROFIAFTER SHARE OF PROFIAFTER SHARE OF PROFIAFTER SHARE OF PROFITTTTT OF  OF  OF  OF  OF ASASASASASSOCIASOCIASOCIASOCIASOCIATETETETETESSSSS 433.38433.38433.38433.38433.38 1 015.67
(Short) / Excess Provision for Income Tax for earlier years 1.151.151.151.151.15 0.05

PROFIPROFIPROFIPROFIPROFITTTTT     AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER AFTER ADJUSADJUSADJUSADJUSADJUSTTTTTMENTMENTMENTMENTMENT F F F F FOR EARLOR EARLOR EARLOR EARLOR EARLIER IER IER IER IER YEARYEARYEARYEARYEAR 434.53434.53434.53434.53434.53 1 015.72
Balance in Profit and Loss Account brought forward 2 086.132 086.132 086.132 086.132 086.13 1 541.83
Amount Available for Appropriations 2 520.662 520.662 520.662 520.662 520.66 2 557.55

APPROPRIAAPPROPRIAAPPROPRIAAPPROPRIAAPPROPRIATITITITITIONSONSONSONSONS
Proposed Dividend 159.66159.66159.66159.66159.66 159.66
Corporate Dividend Tax 27.1427.1427.1427.1427.14 27.14
Transfer to Statutory/Specific Reserve Fund 71.3171.3171.3171.3171.31 193.61
Transfer to General Reserve 33.9433.9433.9433.9433.94 96.81
Balance in Profit and Loss Account carried forward 2 228.612 228.612 228.612 228.612 228.61 2 080.33
(Gross of Minority Interest of Rs.Nil
(Previous Year (Rs.5.80 crore))

2 520.662 520.662 520.662 520.662 520.66 2 557.55
Earning Per Share
(Refer Note No.10, Schedule “O”)
Basic 17.6417.6417.6417.6417.64 41.35
Diluted 17.6417.6417.6417.6417.64 41.35

Significant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting PoliciesSignificant Accounting Policies NNNNN
Notes on AccountsNotes on AccountsNotes on AccountsNotes on AccountsNotes on Accounts OOOOO
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account.

CCCCConsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Ped Ped Ped Ped Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

As per our report of even date

For CHACHACHACHACHATTTTTURURURURURVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAHVEDI & SHAH For B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & C B S R & Co.o.o.o.o.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 101720W Firm Regn. No.: 101248W

C. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. LalaC. D. Lala Akeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel MasterAkeel Master
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 35671 Membership No.: 046768
Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010

For and on behalf of the Board
Chairman Anil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. AmbaniAnil D. Ambani
Vice Chairman Amitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh JhunjhunwalaAmitabh Jhunjhunwala

Directors RRRRRajendrajendrajendrajendrajendra Pa Pa Pa Pa P. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chit. Chitalalalalaleeeee
C. PC. PC. PC. PC. P. . . . . JJJJJainainainainain
DrDrDrDrDr. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhus. Bidhubhusan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samalan Samal

Company Secretary & Manager VVVVV. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. M. R. Mohanohanohanohanohan

Mumbai
Dated: April 30, 2010
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Baled Baled Baled Baled Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

 (Rs. in crore)

As atAs atAs atAs atAs at  As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

SSSSSchedule “A”chedule “A”chedule “A”chedule “A”chedule “A”
Share CapitalShare CapitalShare CapitalShare CapitalShare Capital
Authorised:Authorised:Authorised:Authorised:Authorised:
30 00 00 000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 300.00300.00300.00300.00300.00 300.00
(Previous Year 30 00 00 000)))))
10 00 00 000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00 100.00
(Previous Year 1 00 00 000)

400.00400.00400.00400.00400.00 400.00
Issued and SubscribedIssued and SubscribedIssued and SubscribedIssued and SubscribedIssued and Subscribed
24 69 77 006 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
(Previous Year 24 69 77 006)

246.98246.98246.98246.98246.98 246.98
PPPPPaid upaid upaid upaid upaid up
24 56 32 800 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 245.63245.63245.63245.63245.63 245.63
(Previous Year 24 56 32 800) –
Add: Forfeited Shares (amount originally
paid up on 13 44 206 Equity Shares 0.530.530.530.530.53 0.53
(Previous Year 13 44 206)

246.16246.16246.16246.16246.16 246.16

246.16246.16246.16246.16246.16 246.16
Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
Of the above Equity Shares
i) In the year 1992-93, 18,70,000 shares were allotted to shareholders of Arasina Hotels Ltd. as fully paid-up pursuant to

the Scheme of Amalgamation and arrangement as sanctioned by the Gujarat High Court and Karnataka High Court without
payment being received in cash.

ii) In the year 2006-07, 10,66,555 shares were allotted to shareholders of Reliance Capital Ventures Ltd. as fully paid-up
pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat at
Ahmedbad and the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Mumbai.

iii) AAA Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. which holds 10 64 14 206 shares (Previous Year 12 63 89 839 Shares), ceased to be the holding
company w.e.f. June 26, 2009

iv) AAA Infrastructure Consulting and Engineers Pvt. Ltd. holds 1 99 75 633 shares (Previous Year Nil).
v) Reliance Innoventures Pvt. Ltd., the holding company, holds 5,76,450 shares (Previous Year 5,76,450), w.e.f. June 26,

2009.
Schedule “B”Schedule “B”Schedule “B”Schedule “B”Schedule “B”
Reserves and SurplusReserves and SurplusReserves and SurplusReserves and SurplusReserves and Surplus
Capital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 6.436.436.436.436.43 6.43
CCCCCapitapitapitapitapitalalalalal R R R R Resesesesesererererervvvvve on Ce on Ce on Ce on Ce on Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidation ofation ofation ofation ofation of Sub Sub Sub Sub Subsidiariessidiariessidiariessidiariessidiaries

As per last Balance Sheet 2.352.352.352.352.35 -
Add : Capital Reserve on Consolidation of Subsidiaries - 2.44
(Refer Note No.3, Schedule “O”) 2.352.352.352.352.35 2.44
Less : Goodwill as per last Balance Sheet -  0.09

2.352.352.352.352.35 2.35
Capital Redemption ReserveCapital Redemption ReserveCapital Redemption ReserveCapital Redemption ReserveCapital Redemption Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 11.0611.0611.0611.0611.06 11.06
Securities Premium AccountSecurities Premium AccountSecurities Premium AccountSecurities Premium AccountSecurities Premium Account

As per last Balance Sheet 3 758.273 758.273 758.273 758.273 758.27 3 758.27
Add: Premium on Issue of Shares ----- 25.99
Less: Minority Interests ----- 25.99

3 758.273 758.273 758.273 758.273 758.27 3 758.27
StStStStStatatatatatutututututororororory/Specify/Specify/Specify/Specify/Specific Ric Ric Ric Ric Resesesesesererererervvvvve Fe Fe Fe Fe Fund*und*und*und*und*

As per last Balance Sheet 815.17815.17815.17815.17815.17 621.35
Add: Amount Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 71.3171.3171.3171.3171.31 193.82
Add: Prior Period 1.001.001.001.001.00 -

887.48887.48887.48887.48887.48 815.17
FFFFForororororeign Ceign Ceign Ceign Ceign Currurrurrurrurrencencencencency y y y y TTTTTrrrrranslanslanslanslanslation Ration Ration Ration Ration Resesesesesererererervvvvveeeee

As per last Balance Sheet 7.587.587.587.587.58  4.10
Add: Addition during the year 2.032.032.032.032.03 3.73
Less: Minority Interests 0.140.140.140.140.14 0.25

9.479.479.479.479.47 7.58
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Baled Baled Baled Baled Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

 (Rs. in crore)

As atAs atAs atAs atAs at  As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedule “B”(Ce “B”(Ce “B”(Ce “B”(Ce “B”(Contontontontontd.)d.)d.)d.)d.)
General ReserveGeneral ReserveGeneral ReserveGeneral ReserveGeneral Reserve

As per last Balance sheet 520.21520.21520.21520.21520.21 420.28
Add: Amount Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 33.9433.9433.9433.9433.94 99.93

554.15554.15554.15554.15554.15 520.21
Profit & Loss AccountProfit & Loss AccountProfit & Loss AccountProfit & Loss AccountProfit & Loss Account

As per consolidated Profit & Loss Account 2 228.612 228.612 228.612 228.612 228.61 2 080.33
Less: Minority Interest ----- (5.80)

2 228.612 228.612 228.612 228.612 228.61 2 086.13
7 457.827 457.827 457.827 457.827 457.82 7 207.20

* Created pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (Amendment) Act, 1997/National Housing Bank Act, 1987.
Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:
1) Previous Year, Goodwill on consolidation of subsidiaries as per Balance Sheet has been reduced.

Schedule “C”Schedule “C”Schedule “C”Schedule “C”Schedule “C”
Secured LoansSecured LoansSecured LoansSecured LoansSecured Loans

Non Convertible Debentures 3 882.083 882.083 882.083 882.083 882.08 1 181.90
From Banks

Long Term Loan 3 979.773 979.773 979.773 979.773 979.77 1 794.76
Cash Credit 785.26785.26785.26785.26785.26 1 010.29
Short Term Loan 100.30100.30100.30100.30100.30 967.53

8 747.418 747.418 747.418 747.418 747.41 4 954.48

Schedule “D”Schedule “D”Schedule “D”Schedule “D”Schedule “D”
Unsecured LoansUnsecured LoansUnsecured LoansUnsecured LoansUnsecured Loans

From banks
Short Term Loan 700.00700.00700.00700.00700.00 3 250.51
Long Term Loan 50.0050.0050.0050.0050.00  -

750.00750.00750.00750.00750.00 3 250.51
Body Corporate 26.6626.6626.6626.6626.66  0.12
Commercial Paper 5 162.265 162.265 162.265 162.265 162.26 5 901.98

5 938.925 938.925 938.925 938.925 938.92 9 152.61
Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
1. Non convertible debentures (NCDs) referred in Schedule “C” above are redeemable at par, in one or more installments, on

various dates with the earliest redemption being on April 8, 2010 and the last being on September 10, 2014. The NCDs
amounting to Rs.140 crore (Previous Year Rs.540 crore) are redeemable in the financial year 2010-11.
a) NCDs amounting to Rs.265 crore (Previous Year Rs.380 crore) as referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by way

of first pari passu legal mortgage and charge over the premises situated at Avdesh House near Pritam Nagar, Ellis
bridge, Ahmedabad and additional first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on business receivable and loan
assets of the consumer finance division, not exceeding Rs.321.25 crore.

b) NCDs amounting to Rs.3,450 crore (Previous Year Rs.Nil) as referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by way of first
pari passu legal mortgage and charge over the premises situated at Avdesh House near Pritam Nagar, Ellis bridge,
Ahmedabad and additional first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on business receivable and/or loan assets
of the Company or as may be decided by the Company, not exceeding Rs.3,712.50 crore.

c) NCDs referred in Schedule “C” above includes Rs.167.08 crore (Previous Year Rs.26.90 crore) interest accrued thereon.
2. a) Long Term Loans referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by pari passu first charge on all present and future book

debts, receivables, bills, claims and loan assets of the Company’s consumer finance division other than below mentioned.
b) Long Term Loans referred in Schedule “C” amounting to Rs.0.40 crore (Previous Year Rs.0.48 crore) are secured against

vehicle purchased thereagainst.
c) Long Term Loans amounting to Rs.618.33 crore (Previous Year Rs.598 crore) are payable within one year.

3. Cash credits amounting to Rs.785.26 crore (Previous Year Rs.1,010.29 crore) referred in Schedule “C” above are secured by
pari passu first charge on all present and future book debts (only performing assets), receivables and loan assets pertaining
only to the Company’s consumer finance division.

4. a) Short Term Loans amounting to Rs.100.30 crore (Previous Year Rs.950.08 crore) referred in Schedule “C” are secured
by way of pari passu first charge on all the book debts, outstandings, moneys receivables, bills, claims and loan assets
of the Company’s consumer finance division.

b) Short Term Loans amounting to Rs.100.30 crore (Previous Year Rs.967.53 crore) are payable within one year.
5. In respect of unsecured loan referred in Schedule “D” above, amount payable within one year is Rs.5,888.92 crore (Previous

Year Rs.9,152.61 crore)
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Reliance Capital Limited
SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Baled Baled Baled Baled Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

 (Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at  As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
SchedSchedSchedSchedSchedule “F”ule “F”ule “F”ule “F”ule “F”
InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments

In Associates (Carrying Amount) 67.1967.1967.1967.1967.19 43.60
In Government and Other Securities 527.61527.61527.61527.61527.61 1 318.99
In Equity Shares 2 303.652 303.652 303.652 303.652 303.65 2 767.59
(Net of Provision for Diminution in the Value of Investment of
Rs.58.12 crore, Previous Year Rs.60.18 crore)
In preference Shares 4 339.614 339.614 339.614 339.614 339.61 1 515.89
(Net of Provision for Diminution in the Value of Investment of
Rs.1.87 crore, Previous Year Rs.1.50 crore)
In Others 4 102.534 102.534 102.534 102.534 102.53 4 228.17
(Net of Provision for Diminution in the Value of Investment of
Rs.15.73 crore, Previous Year Rs.11.44 crore)

11 340.5911 340.5911 340.5911 340.5911 340.59 9 874.24
SchedSchedSchedSchedSchedule “G”ule “G”ule “G”ule “G”ule “G”
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetets, Ls, Ls, Ls, Ls, Loans and oans and oans and oans and oans and AdAdAdAdAdvvvvvancancancancanceseseseses
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss

Stock-in-trade 38.8038.8038.8038.8038.80 37.68
(as certified by the Management)
Sundry Debtors (Unsecured)
- Considered Good 54.7354.7354.7354.7354.73 89.15
- Considered Doubtful 16.7016.7016.7016.7016.70 -
Other Debts, Considered Good  144.31 144.31 144.31 144.31 144.31 207.09
Less : Provision 24.8724.8724.8724.8724.87 -

190.87190.87190.87190.87190.87 296.24
Cash & Bank Balances
Cash and Cheques on hand  5.69 5.69 5.69 5.69 5.69 148.28
Balance with non scheduled banks in current accounts  0.150.150.150.150.15 22.11
Balances with Scheduled Banks
- In Current Accounts 586.24586.24586.24586.24586.24 954.31
- In Fixed Deposit Account 272.41272.41272.41272.41272.41 42.83

(Refer Note No. 1 given below)
864.49864.49864.49864.49864.49 1 167.53

Other Current Assets
Income Accrued on Investments 29.8429.8429.8429.8429.84 45.18
Asset Held for Sale 93.4793.4793.4793.4793.47 93.47
Less : Provision for Assets Held for Sale 33.4733.4733.4733.4733.47 33.47
(Refer Note No. 2 given below)

60.0060.0060.0060.0060.00 60.00

Repossessed Assets 19.4319.4319.4319.4319.43 12.30
Less : Provision for Repossessed Assets 5.535.535.535.535.53 4.56

13.9013.9013.9013.9013.90 7.74
103.74103.74103.74103.74103.74 112.92

1 197.901 197.901 197.901 197.901 197.90 1 614.37
Loans and AdvancesLoans and AdvancesLoans and AdvancesLoans and AdvancesLoans and Advances
Loan to Others

Considered Doubtful 266.71266.71266.71266.71266.71 337.10
Less:Provision for Non Performing Assets and Doubtful Debts 63.4363.4363.4363.4363.43 94.23

203.28203.28203.28203.28203.28 242.87
Considered Good
Portfolio Assignment 17.2217.2217.2217.2217.22 82.53
Loans to Associates 27.8127.8127.8127.8127.81 7.89
Others 10 101.4110 101.4110 101.4110 101.4110 101.41  10 615.63

10 349.7210 349.7210 349.7210 349.7210 349.72 10 948.92
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received
- Considered Doubtful 79.8979.8979.8979.8979.89 15.00
Less:Provision for Non Performing Assets and Doubtful Debts 38.0038.0038.0038.0038.00 15.00

41.8941.8941.8941.8941.89 -
41.8941.8941.8941.8941.89 -
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Reliance Capital Limited
SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Baled Baled Baled Baled Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

SchedSchedSchedSchedSchedululululule “G” (Ce “G” (Ce “G” (Ce “G” (Ce “G” (Contontontontontd.)d.)d.)d.)d.)
 (Rs. in crore)

As atAs atAs atAs atAs at  As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

- Considered Good 1 263.911 263.911 263.911 263.911 263.91 435.07
Due from other entities carrying on insurance business 639.71639.71639.71639.71639.71 411.87
Deposits 187.54187.54187.54187.54187.54  127.13
Income Tax (Net) 81.1481.1481.1481.1481.14  52.60

268.68268.68268.68268.68268.68 179.73

12 563.9112 563.9112 563.9112 563.9112 563.91 11 975.59

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
1.  (a) In respect of balances with Scheduled Banks in Fixed Deposit accounts, Rs.165.20 crore (Previous Year Rs.Nil) is kept

as cash collateral towards securitisation transaction with IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd. and Rs.12,500/- (Previous Year
Rs.12,500/-) is kept as deposit with sales tax authority.

 (b) In respect of balances with Scheduled Banks in Fixed Deposit accounts, Rs.0.10 crore (Previous Year Rs.0.10 crore) is
pledged with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. as deposit under Trade Gurantee Fund, Rs.1.95 crore (Previous Year
Rs.1.95 crore) with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. as Additional Base Capital, Rs.1.50 crore (Previous Year Rs.1.50
crore) with National Securities Clearing Corporation Ltd. as Cash Deposit and Rs.10.00 crore (Previous Year Rs.Nil) with
a Scheduled Bank against Overdraft facility.

2. Assets held for sale, represents aircarft, at written down value as on April 1, 2006, that was previously classified as a fixed
asset.

3. Advances recoverable in cash or in kind includes Rs.564.10 crore (Previous Year Rs.60.30 crore) paid towards share application
money pending allotment.

4. Loan to others include Rs.0.05 crore due from Manager / Officer (Previous Year Rs.0.05 crore) [maximum balance
outstanding at any time during the year is Rs.0.05 crore (Previous Year Rs.0.05 crore)]

5. In the opinion of the management, loans and advances, other than doubtful, are considered as good and fully recoverable.

Schedule “H”Schedule “H”Schedule “H”Schedule “H”Schedule “H”
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Pent Liabilities and Prrrrrooooovisionsvisionsvisionsvisionsvisions
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilities

Sundry Creditors
- Micro, Small, Medium Creditors ----- -

(Refer Note No. 1 given below)
- Others 656.33656.33656.33656.33656.33 433.59
Other Liabilities 1 076.751 076.751 076.751 076.751 076.75 474.25
(Refer Note No. 2 given below)
Claims Outstanding 897.49897.49897.49897.49897.49 631.58
(Includes Claims Related to IMTPIP of
Rs.486.60 crore, Previous Year Rs.279.22 crore)
Security Deposit - lease 61.6061.6061.6061.6061.60 61.92
Interest Accrued but not due ----- 2.40
Investor Education and Protection Fund
(Refer Note No.3 given below)
- Unclaimed Dividend 6.746.746.746.746.74 5.71
- Unclaimed Refund 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.02

2 698.922 698.922 698.922 698.922 698.92 1 609.47
ProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisions

Provision for Leave Encashment 12.7712.7712.7712.7712.77 23.24
Provision for Gratuity 0.320.320.320.320.32 0.07
Provision for Standard Debts 23.6823.6823.6823.6823.68 43.34
Provision for Unexpired Risk 712.47712.47712.47712.47712.47 682.99
Proposed Dividend on Shares 159.66159.66159.66159.66159.66 159.66
Provision for Dividend Tax 27.1427.1427.1427.1427.14 27.14

936.04936.04936.04936.04936.04 936.44

3 634.963 634.963 634.963 634.963 634.96 2 545.91
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 (Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at  As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

Schedule “I”Schedule “I”Schedule “I”Schedule “I”Schedule “I”
Unamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised ExpenditureUnamortised Expenditure
Unamortised DSA commission 97.9997.9997.9997.9997.99 97.73
Add: Incurred during the year 39.1639.1639.1639.1639.16 47.97
Less: Amortised during the year 82.0782.0782.0782.0782.07 47.71

55.0855.0855.0855.0855.08 97.99
Unamortised Brokerage on Borrowings 11.0311.0311.0311.0311.03 -
Add : Incurred during the year 38.4038.4038.4038.4038.40 15.21
Less: Amortised during the year 18.6018.6018.6018.6018.60 4.18

30.8330.8330.8330.8330.83 11.03

85.9185.9185.9185.9185.91 109.02
SCHEDULE “J”SCHEDULE “J”SCHEDULE “J”SCHEDULE “J”SCHEDULE “J”
Miscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous ExpenditureMiscellaneous Expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Preliminary Expenses 4.004.004.004.004.00 4.09
Add: Incurred during the year - (0.09)
Less: Written off during the year 4.004.004.004.004.00 -

----- 4.00

(Rs. in crore)

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

Schedule “K”Schedule “K”Schedule “K”Schedule “K”Schedule “K”

Operating and Other IncomeOperating and Other IncomeOperating and Other IncomeOperating and Other IncomeOperating and Other Income

Operating IncomeOperating IncomeOperating IncomeOperating IncomeOperating Income

Interest and Finance Income on :
Long Term Investments 587.43587.43587.43587.43587.43 326.49
Inter Corporate Loans 188.49188.49188.49188.49188.49 304.33
Others 60.2760.2760.2760.2760.27 43.21

836.19836.19836.19836.19836.19 674.03
From Consumer Finance Business :
Interest Income 1 079.621 079.621 079.621 079.621 079.62 1156.33
Processing Fees 45.5445.5445.5445.5445.54 38.04
Less : Service Tax Recovered 4.254.254.254.254.25 4.18

41.2941.2941.2941.2941.29 33.86

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Ped Ped Ped Ped Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Baled Baled Baled Baled Balancancancancance Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Me Sheet as at Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
1 Based on the information available, there are no dues outstanding which are to be disclosed, as per requirement of Micro,

Medium and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
2 Other Liabilities includes the temporary overdrawn balances Rs.793.83 crore (Previous Year Rs.337.79 crore) are basically

on account of Cheques Issued But Not Presented for Payment.
3 Investor Education and Protection Fund does not include any amounts, due and outstanding, to be deposited to the said

fund.
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SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Ped Ped Ped Ped Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedule “K” (Ce “K” (Ce “K” (Ce “K” (Ce “K” (Contontontontontd.)d.)d.)d.)d.)
(Rs. in crore)

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

Profit on Sale of (net):Profit on Sale of (net):Profit on Sale of (net):Profit on Sale of (net):Profit on Sale of (net):
Long Term Investments 344.17344.17344.17344.17344.17 1 176.44
Stock-in-trade/ Short Term Investment 170.04170.04170.04170.04170.04 36.23

514.21514.21514.21514.21514.21 1 212.67
Dividends on :Dividends on :Dividends on :Dividends on :Dividends on :
Long Term Investments 43.2743.2743.2743.2743.27 71.07
Stock-in-trade/ Short Term Investment 1.161.161.161.161.16  42.54

44.4344.4344.4344.4344.43 113.61
Premium Earned 1 978.301 978.301 978.301 978.301 978.30 1 911.44
Management and Advisory Fees 632.14632.14632.14632.14632.14 478.32
Sales 313.79313.79313.79313.79313.79 0.52
Brokerage and Commission Earned 241.23241.23241.23241.23241.23 162.21
Reinsurance Accepted 176.26176.26176.26176.26176.26 160.44
Trustee / Portfolio Management Fees 40.3040.3040.3040.3040.30 20.73
Margin on Sale of Foreign Currency 6.426.426.426.426.42 14.95
Exchange Difference (net) 1.551.551.551.551.55 7.86
Depository Participant Transaction Charges 15.8515.8515.8515.8515.85 11.31
Revenues from Specialty Services (net) 4.194.194.194.194.19 0.36
Premium on Loan Assignment and Securitisation 153.32153.32153.32153.32153.32 2.80
Other Operating Income 30.3330.3330.3330.3330.33 15.49

6 109.426 109.426 109.426 109.426 109.42 5 976.93
Other IncomeOther IncomeOther IncomeOther IncomeOther Income

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (net) ----- 0.01
Excess Provision written back 15.1315.1315.1315.1315.13 30.74
Credit Balance written back (net) 1.041.041.041.041.04 1.10
Rent 4.854.854.854.854.85 4.86
Bad Debts Recovered 1.201.201.201.201.20 -
Miscellaneous Income 8.968.968.968.968.96 5.50

31.1831.1831.1831.1831.18 42.21

6 140.606 140.606 140.606 140.606 140.60 6 019.14

ScheScheScheScheSchedulduldulduldule “Le “Le “Le “Le “L”””””

Interest & Finance ChargesInterest & Finance ChargesInterest & Finance ChargesInterest & Finance ChargesInterest & Finance Charges

InterestInterestInterestInterestInterest

Debentures 342.76342.76342.76342.76342.76 120.08

Term Loan 547.51547.51547.51547.51547.51 595.41

Discount on Commercial Papers 437.61437.61437.61437.61437.61 540.53

Collatalised Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO) ----- 7.81

Others 4.524.524.524.524.52 -

1 332.401 332.401 332.401 332.401 332.40 1 263.83
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(Rs. in crore)

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

Schedule “M”Schedule “M”Schedule “M”Schedule “M”Schedule “M”
Administrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other ExpensesAdministrative and Other Expenses

Payments to and Provisions for Employees -
(Including Managerial Remuneration)
Salary, Bonus etc. 491.09491.09491.09491.09491.09 493.79
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 20.1420.1420.1420.1420.14 22.06
Staff Welfare and Other Amenities 24.1224.1224.1224.1224.12 38.22

535.35535.35535.35535.35535.35 554.07
Bank Charges 8.188.188.188.188.18 4.29
Rent 110.37110.37110.37110.37110.37 96.67
Rates and Taxes 7.427.427.427.427.42 23.42
Repairs and Maintenance
Buildings  0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.42
Others 31.0831.0831.0831.0831.08 140.80
Electricity 6.946.946.946.946.94 7.77
Legal and Professional Fees 135.31135.31135.31135.31135.31 118.55
Membership and Subscription 8.288.288.288.288.28 7.55
Insurance 2.432.432.432.432.43 2.11
Travelling and Conveyance 24.2624.2624.2624.2624.26 41.06
Postage, Telegram and Telephones 97.6097.6097.6097.6097.60 102.58
Claims Incurred (net) 1 185.691 185.691 185.691 185.691 185.69 1 072.89
Premium Paid on Reinsurance Ceded 727.19727.19727.19727.19727.19 675.76
Commission and Brokerage Paid 199.79199.79199.79199.79199.79 75.63
Reserve for Unexpired Risk 29.4729.4729.4729.4729.47 10.70
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 0.970.970.970.970.97 -
Provision for Diminution in the Value of Investments (0.21)(0.21)(0.21)(0.21)(0.21) 60.16
Loss on Securities option Trading (net) 7.017.017.017.017.01  36.11
Auditor’s Remuneration 1.711.711.711.711.71 1.56
(Refer Note No.7, Schedule ”O“)
Directors’ Fees 0.440.440.440.440.44 0.33
Employee Seminar and Training 1.771.771.771.771.77 -
Donation 3.013.013.013.013.01 2.59
Marketing and Publicity Expenses 50.3150.3150.3150.3150.31 79.44
Provision for NPA, Doubtful Debts and Balances Written Off  303.88303.88303.88303.88303.88 143.06
(Refer Note No. 1 below)
Brokerage on Borrowings Amortised 18.6018.6018.6018.6018.60 4.18
Cost of Goods sold 313.15313.15313.15313.15313.15 -
DSA Commission Amortised 82.0782.0782.0782.0782.07 47.72
Provision for repossessed stock 0.960.960.960.960.96 4.29
Loss on Sale of repossessed stock 10.0810.0810.0810.0810.08  5.82
Loss of Share in Partnership Firm 1.041.041.041.041.04 4.40
(Refer Note No. 2(i), Schedule “O”)
Miscellaneous Expenses 243.74243.74243.74243.74243.74 170.51

3 612.903 612.903 612.903 612.903 612.90  2 940.37

4 148.254 148.254 148.254 148.254 148.25 3 494.44
Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:
1. Provision for NPA, Doubtful Debts and Bad Debts Written Off represents the following;

2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-092008-092008-092008-092008-09
 (Reversal) / Provision for NPA and Doubtful Debts 28.6228.6228.6228.6228.62 93.20
 (Reversal) / Provision for Standard Debts (25.90)(25.90)(25.90)(25.90)(25.90) 43.34
 Bad Debts Written Off 301.16301.16301.16301.16301.16 6.52

303.88303.88303.88303.88303.88 143.06

SchedulSchedulSchedulSchedulSchedules fes fes fes fes forming parorming parorming parorming parorming part oft oft oft oft of the C the C the C the C the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Ped Ped Ped Ped Prrrrrofofofofofit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Lit and Loss oss oss oss oss AAAAAccccccccccount fount fount fount fount fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararchchchchch 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010 31, 2010
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Schedule ‘N’Schedule ‘N’Schedule ‘N’Schedule ‘N’Schedule ‘N’
A.A.A.A.A. BackgroundBackgroundBackgroundBackgroundBackground

Reliance Capital Limited ('the Company') along with its subsidiaries and associates is a leading Non Banking Financial
Company ('NBFC'). The Group of companies ('the Group') is broadly engaged in lending, investing, asset management,
insurance and broking activities

B.B.B.B.B. PPPPPrinciplrinciplrinciplrinciplrinciples ofes ofes ofes ofes of C C C C Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidationationationationation
The consolidated financial statements relate to Reliance Capital Limited ('the Company'), its subsidiary companies including
partnership firm and its associates. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis;
i) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis

by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses.

ii) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's
stand-alone financial statements.

iii) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary companies over the net assets as on the date of
acquisition is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

iv) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its
assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss account
as the profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.

v) Minority interest's share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the
income of the Group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

vi) Minority interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated
balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company's shareholders.

vii) The financial statements of the Company and its associates have been combined on the basis of equity method,
whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost, identifying any goodwill / capital reserve arising at the time of
acquisition. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for post acquisition change in the Company's
share of net assets of the associate. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Company
and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company's interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are not
eliminated if and to the extent the cost of the transferred asset cannot be recovered. The consolidated statement
of profit and loss reflects the Company's share of operations of the associate.

C.C.C.C.C. Other Accounting PoliciesOther Accounting PoliciesOther Accounting PoliciesOther Accounting PoliciesOther Accounting Policies
i)i)i)i)i) Basis of Preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of Preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of Preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of Preparation of Financial StatementsBasis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on
the accrual basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable. The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to the nearest crore upto two decimal places.

ii)ii)ii)ii)ii) Use of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements.  The estimates and assumptions
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual result could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

iii)ii i)ii i)ii i)ii i) Revenue RecognitionRevenue RecognitionRevenue RecognitionRevenue RecognitionRevenue Recognition
a) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account as it accrues except in the case of non performing
assets ("NPAs") where it is recognised, upon realisation.

b) Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

c) Discount on Investments
The difference between the acquisition cost and face value of debt instruments is recognised as interest
income over the tenor of the instrument.

d) Redemption Premium on Investments in Preference Shares
Redemption premium on investments in preference shares is recognised as income over tenor of the investment.

e) Investment Management Fees
Investment management fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with Investment Management
Agreement and SEBI Regulations based on average assets under management (AUM).

f) Portfolio Management Fees
Portfolio Management fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with Portfolio Management
Agreement entered with respective clients.

g) Income from  Investment
i) Profit earned from sale of securities is recognised on trade date basis. The cost of securities is computed
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based on weighted average basis.
ii) Share of profits or losses in partnership firm :

Share of profit/loss in partnership firm is accounted for once the amount of the share of profit/loss is
ascertained and credited/debited to the Company's account in the books of the partnership firm.

iii) Loan processing fee income
Loan processing fee income is accounted for upfront as and when it becomes due.

iv) Income from assignment / securitization
In case of assignment of loans, the assets are derecognized when all the rights, title, future    receivables
and interest thereof along with all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the purchasers
of assigned loans / risks and rewards. On de-recognition, the difference between book value of the
receivables assigned and consideration received as reduced by the estimated provision for loss/expenses
and incidental expenses related to the transaction is recognised as gain or loss arising on assignment.
In case of securitization of loans, the transferred loans are de-recognised and gains/losses are accounted
for only if the company surrenders the rights to benefits specified in the underlying securitized loan
contract. In accordance with the RBI guidelines for securitization of standard assets, with effect from
February 1, 2006, the company accounts for any loss arising from securitization immediately at the
time of sale and premium arising from securitization is amortized over the life of securities issued or to
be issued by the special purpose vehicle to which the assets are sold. Income on retained interest in
securitised assets is booked on accrual basis.

v) Income from derivatives
Gains or losses on derivative contracts are recognised on settlement date basis.

h) Trusteeship Remuneration
Trusteeship remuneration income is recognised on the basis of the agreements entered into between the
settler and the trustee.

i) Premium
Premium is recognised as income over the contract period or the period of risk whichever is appropriate. Any
subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premium are recognised for in the year in which they occur.

j) Commission
i) Commission income on reinsurance cessions is recognised as income in the period in which reinsurance

premium is ceded.
ii) Profit commission under reinsurance treaties, wherever applicable, is recognised in the year of the final

determination of the profits and as intimated by reinsures.
iii) Commission income on money transfer services is recognised on rendering the service at contractual

rates
k) Reinsurance

i) Reinsurance is ceded in the year in which the risk commences and recognised over the contract period.
Any subsequent revision to refunds or cancellation of premiums, are recognised in the year in which
they occur.

ii) Reinsurance inward is accounted to the extent of the returns received from the reinsurers.
l) Premium Received in Advance

Premium received in advance represents premium received in respect of policies issued during the year, where
the risk commences subsequent to the balance sheet date.

m) Revenue on Foreign Exchange Transaction
Revenue on foreign exchange transactions is recognised at the time of purchase and sale. The income arising
from the buying and selling of foreign currencies has been included on the basis of margins achieved. Sales
incentive for sale of traveler's cheque and forex cards is recorded on accrual basis in accordance with term of
the underlying agreement.

n) Sales & Services
All Sales & Services are excluding the sales tax & service tax recovery.

o) Brokerage Income
Brokerage income is recognized net of service tax on the date of transaction.

p) Infrastructure and Resource Management Fees
Infrastructure and resource management services fees are recognised on accrual basis as per agreements with
the clients.

q) Online Access Fees:
Online access fees is recognized on straight line basis, based on the agreement with the clients

iv)iv)iv)iv)iv) Fixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed AssetsFixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all expenses incidental to
the acquisition of the fixed assets.
a) Leased Assets

All assets given on finance lease on or before March 31, 2001 are capitalised as Fixed Assets and all assets
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given on finance lease on or after April 1, 2001 are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net
investment in the lease.
Initial direct costs in respect of leases are expensed in the year in which such costs are incurred.

b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets comprising of software purchased / developed and licensing costs are depreciated on
straight line basis over the useful life of the software up to a maximum of five years commencing from the
month in which such software is first installed.

v)v)v)v)v) Depreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / AmortisationDepreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation on fixed assets other than software development and licensing costs is provided as follows:
a) Assets for Own Use: On Written Down Value method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule

XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, except for Reliance Gilts Limited, which are depreciated as per Straight Line
Method, at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. In case of
Medybiz Private Limited, computer is depreciated over three years and software is depreciated over two
years. In case of Net Logistics Private Limited, software is depreciated over useful life or over three years,
whichever is less.

b) Leased Assets: On Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956.

c) Leasehold Improvements: Amortised over the primary period of the lease on Straight Line Basis. In case of
Medybiz Private Limited, leasehold improvements are amortised over a period of three years.
The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the day the asset is put to use and for any asset sold, till
the date of sale.

vi)vi)vi)vi)vi) Impairment of AssetsImpairment of AssetsImpairment of AssetsImpairment of AssetsImpairment of Assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable
amount of the asset is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the profit and loss account. If at the balance
sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical
cost.

vii)vii)vii)vii)vii) InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments
Investments are classified as long term or current based on intention of the management at the time of purchase.
Current investments are valued, scrip wise, at cost or fair value, whichever is lower.
Long-term investments are carried at carrying cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined
separately for each individual investment.

viii)viii)viii)viii)viii) StStStStStockockockockock-in--in--in--in--in-TTTTTrrrrradeadeadeadeade
Securities held as stock-in-trade are valued scrip wise at weighted average cost or fair value, whichever is lower.

ix)ix)ix)ix)ix) AAAAAsssssssssset Held fet Held fet Held fet Held fet Held fororororor Sal Sal Sal Sal Saleeeee
Assets held for sale are valued at cost or market value whichever is lower.

x)x)x)x)x) Repossession of AssetsRepossession of AssetsRepossession of AssetsRepossession of AssetsRepossession of Assets
Assets repossessed against the settlement of loan are carried in the balance sheet at outstanding loan amount or
market value whichever is lower. The difference between the outstanding loan amount and the market value is
charged to profit and loss account in the year of repossession of assets.

xi)xi)xi)xi)xi) LLLLLoan Origination / oan Origination / oan Origination / oan Origination / oan Origination / AAAAAcccccquisition Cquisition Cquisition Cquisition Cquisition Costostostostost
The direct commission cost incurred for originating the loan is written off over the average tenure of the loan.

xii)xii)xii)xii)xii) Security of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans GivenSecurity of Loans Given
Housing loans / loans against property granted are secured by equitable registered mortgage of property and / or
undertaking to create a security. Secured loans in the nature of commercial vehicle, auto finance are secured
against hypothecation of respective vehicle.

xiii)xiii)xiii)xiii)xiii) ZZZZZererererero Co Co Co Co Coupon Instrumentoupon Instrumentoupon Instrumentoupon Instrumentoupon Instrument
The difference between the acquisition cost and the redemption value of commercial papers is apportioned on time
basis and recognised as discounting charge expense.

xiv)xiv)xiv)xiv)xiv) Employee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement BenefitsEmployee Retirement Benefits
i) Provident Fund

Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, are charged
to the profit and loss account.

ii) Gratuity
The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Accrued Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit Method), which
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recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market
yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

iii) Leave Encashment
Leave encashment which is a defined benefit, is accrued for based on an actuarial valuation at the balance
sheet date carried out by an independent actuary.

iv) Compensated Absences
The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence. The employees can carry forward a
portion of the unutilised accrued leave balance and utilise it in future periods. The Company records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the service that increases
the entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absence as the amount that
the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance
sheet date.

xv)xv)xv)xv)xv) Employee Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS")Employee Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS")Employee Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS")Employee Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS")Employee Stock Option Scheme ("ESOS")
The Employees Stock Option Scheme ("the Scheme") provides for grant of equity shares of the Company to
directors (including whole-time) and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Scheme provides that
employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that vests in a graded manner. The
options may be exercised within a specified period. The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for
its stock-based employee compensation plans. Compensation cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair
market price of the underlying stock over the exercise price on the grant date and is amortized over the vesting
period of the option on a straight line basis.
The fair market price is the latest closing price, immediately prior to the date of the Board of Directors meeting in
which the options are granted, on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are listed. If the shares
are listed on more than one stock exchange, then the stock exchange where there is highest trading volume on the
said date is considered.

xvi)xvi)xvi)xvi)xvi) FFFFForororororeign Ceign Ceign Ceign Ceign Currurrurrurrurrencencencencency y y y y TTTTTrrrrransansansansansacacacacactionstionstionstionstions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of
the transaction. Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
profit and loss account.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the yearend are restated at year end rates.

xvii)xvii)xvii)xvii)xvii) BorrBorrBorrBorrBorrooooowing Cwing Cwing Cwing Cwing Costostostostostsssss
Borrowing costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of fixed assets, till the time such
assets are ready for intended use, are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. Brokerage costs directly attributable to a borrowing
are expensed over the tenure of the borrowing.

xvii i)xvi i i)xvi i i)xvi i i)xvi i i) Operating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating LeasesOperating Leases
Lease payments for assets taken on an operating lease are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

xix)xix)xix)xix)xix) Earnings Per ShareEarnings Per ShareEarnings Per ShareEarnings Per ShareEarnings Per Share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / loss attributable to the equity shareholders for
the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares
were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the
year.
In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that reduce profit / loss
per share are included.

xx)xx)xx)xx)xx) PPPPPrrrrrooooovisions fvisions fvisions fvisions fvisions fororororor Non P Non P Non P Non P Non Perererererffffforming orming orming orming orming AAAAAssssssssssetetetetets and Doubtfs and Doubtfs and Doubtfs and Doubtfs and Doubtfululululul Debt Debt Debt Debt Debtsssss
Assets including loans and advances, receivables are identified as bad/ doubtful based on the duration of the
delinquency. The duration is set at appropriate levels for each product. NPA provisions are made based on the
management's assessment of the degree of impairment and the level of provisioning meets the prudential norms
prescribed by RBI.

xxi)xxi)xxi)xxi)xxi) TTTTTaaaaaxxxxxationationationationation
Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the
income tax law), deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting
income and taxable income for the period) and fringe benefit tax.
Deferred taxation
The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is
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unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there
is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and
written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be
realised.
Fringe benefit tax
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax has been recognised on the basis of applicable Fringe Benefit Tax on the taxable
value of chargeable expenses of the Company as prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

xxii)xxii)xxii)xxii)xxii) PPPPPrrrrrooooovisions, Cvisions, Cvisions, Cvisions, Cvisions, Contingontingontingontingontingent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Contingontingontingontingontingent ent ent ent ent AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss
The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
there will be outflow of resources and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A
disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources.  When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually
and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the
period in which the change occurs.

xxii i)xxii i)xxii i)xxii i)xxii i) Initial Issue Expenses of SchemesInitial Issue Expenses of SchemesInitial Issue Expenses of SchemesInitial Issue Expenses of SchemesInitial Issue Expenses of Schemes
Expenses relating to Initial Issue of Mutual Fund Schemes in excess of the entry load collected, as applicable, are
charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which such expenses are incurred.

xxiv)xxiv)xxiv)xxiv)xxiv) Preliminary ExpenditurePreliminary ExpenditurePreliminary ExpenditurePreliminary ExpenditurePreliminary Expenditure
In case of Reliance Gilts Limited, Preliminary expenses or pre-operative expenses are amortised over a period of five
years after the commencement of business.

xxv)xxv)xxv)xxv)xxv) Expenses of ManagementExpenses of ManagementExpenses of ManagementExpenses of ManagementExpenses of Management
Expense relating to insurance business is allocated on the basis of net premium written to the Revenue Account(s).
Expenses relating to investment activities are charged to the profit and loss account.

xxvi)xxvi)xxvi)xxvi)xxvi) FFFFFinancialinancialinancialinancialinancial Deriv Deriv Deriv Deriv Derivativativativativatives and Ces and Ces and Ces and Ces and Commoditommoditommoditommoditommodity Hey Hey Hey Hey Hedging dging dging dging dging TTTTTrrrrransansansansansacacacacactionstionstionstionstions
Financial Derivatives and Commodity Hedging transaction are accounted for on a mark to market basis. Payments
of margin requirements on this contract are recognised on the Balance Sheet.

xxvii)xxvii)xxvii)xxvii)xxvii) Claims IncurredClaims IncurredClaims IncurredClaims IncurredClaims Incurred
Claims incurred comprise claims paid, estimated liability for outstanding claims made following a loss occurrence
reported and estimated liability for claims Incurred  But Not Reported ('IBNR') and claims Incurred But Not Enough
Reported ('IBNER'). Further, claims incurred also include specific claim settlement costs such as survey/legal fees
and other directly attributable costs.
Claims reported and outstanding are provided net of estimated salvage and net of claims recoverable from reinsurer
/ coinsurer based on intimations received up to the date of Balance Sheet, survey reports, information provided by
insured, past experience and other applicable laws.
Claims outstanding include provision for claims incurred but not reported ('IBNR') and also for claims incurred but not
enough reported ('IBNER'). The said provision has been determined by Appointed Actuary, which is in accordance
with the accepted actuarial practice, requirements of Insurance Act, 1938, IRDA Regulations and the stipulations of
the Institute of Actuaries of India.

xxviii)xxviii)xxviii)xxviii)xxviii)RRRRResesesesesererererervvvvve fe fe fe fe fororororor Une Une Une Une Unexpirxpirxpirxpirxpireeeeed Rd Rd Rd Rd Riskiskiskiskisk
Reserve for unexpired risk is made on the amount representing that part of the net premium written which is
attributable to, and to be allocated to the succeeding accounting periods, subject to the provisions of Section 64V
(1) (ii) (b) of the Insurance Act, 1938. Reserve for unexpired risk is made at 100% of net premium for marine hull
business and 50% of net premium for other class of business except unexpired risk in Health segment.
In case of Health segment, the Reserve for Unexpired Risks is created at the end of the Accounting period based on
the 1/365 method as per IRDA Circular No. IRDA/F&A/CIR/49/Mar-09 dated March 24, 2009 and IRDA/F&I/
CIR/F&A/081/12/2009 dated December 17, 2009.

xxix)xxix)xxix)xxix)xxix) Premium DeficiencyPremium DeficiencyPremium DeficiencyPremium DeficiencyPremium Deficiency
Premium deficiency is recognised if the ultimate amount of expected net claim costs, related expenses and
maintenance costs exceeds the sum of related premium carried forward to subsequent accounting period as the
reserve for unexpired risk, Premium deficiency is calculated by line of business as per IRDA circular F&A/CIR/017/
May-04 dated May 18, 2004. The company considers maintenance as relevant costs incurred for ensuring claim
handling operations.

xxx)xxx)xxx)xxx)xxx) AAAAAcccccquisition Cquisition Cquisition Cquisition Cquisition Costostostostost
Acquisition costs are costs that vary with and are primarily related to acquisition of insurance contracts and are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

xxxi)xxxi)xxxi)xxxi)xxxi) FFFFFund Expensund Expensund Expensund Expensund Expenseseseseses
Expenses incurred (inclusive of advertisement/brokerage expenses) on behalf of Schemes / Fund are recognised to
the profit and loss account unless considered recoverable.
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1 Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.
2 The Company is a partner in the following firms:

i) Reliance Capital Partners:
a) The firm consists of following partners:

i) Reliance Capital Limited
ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd.
iii) Shri Surendra Pipara

b) Profit Sharing Ratio
The profit is distributed between the partners on the basis of the weighted average capital.
The Loss of Rs.1.04 crore is considered as Loss of the current financial year (Previous Year Loss of Rs.4.40 crore).

ii) Reliance Capital Infrastructure Partners:
a) The firm consists of following partners:

i) Reliance Capital Limited
ii) Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
iii) Reliance Infraprojects Ltd.

b) Profit Sharing Ratio:
The profit is distributed between the partners on the basis of the weighted average capital.
The firm has not commenced operations during the year ended March 31, 2010 and there has been no contribution
of capital upto March 31, 2010.

3 CCCCCapitapitapitapitapitalalalalal R R R R Resesesesesererererervvvvve on Ce on Ce on Ce on Ce on Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidation ofation ofation ofation ofation of Sub Sub Sub Sub Subsidiariessidiariessidiariessidiariessidiaries
The Company has acquired 100% holding in three subsidiaries during the FY 2008-09. On Consolidation of the above
subsidiaries, the Company has recognised capital reserve of Rs.2.44 crore.

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararar 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
Opening balance of (Goodwill) / Capital Reserve on consolidation of subsidiaries 2.352.352.352.352.35 (0.09)
Add : (Goodwill) / Capital Reserve on acquisition of subsidiaries ----- 2.44
Closing balance of (Goodwill) / Capital Reserves on consolidation of subsidiaries 2.352.352.352.352.35 2.35

4 a) The Company sells loans through securitisation and direct assignment. The information related to securitisation and
assignement made by the Company during the year, as an originator is given below:

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss SecuritisationSecuritisationSecuritisationSecuritisationSecuritisation AssignmentAssignmentAssignmentAssignmentAssignment TTTTToooootttttalalalalal
Total number of loan assets Securitized / Assigned (Nos.) 33 31433 31433 31433 31433 314 17,78817,78817,78817,78817,788 51 10251 10251 10251 10251 102

(-) - -
Total book value of loan assets Securitized / Assigned 1 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.16 1 241.541 241.541 241.541 241.541 241.54 2 490.702 490.702 490.702 490.702 490.70

(-) (-) (-)
Sale consideration received for the Securitized / Assigned assets 1 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.161 249.16 1 376.211 376.211 376.211 376.211 376.21 2 625.372 625.372 625.372 625.372 625.37

(-) (-) (-)
Net gain on account of Securitization / Assigned ----- 134.67134.67134.67134.67134.67 134.67134.67134.67134.67134.67

(-) (-) (-)
Outstanding Credit Enhancement (Funded) 165.20165.20165.20165.20165.20 ----- 165.20165.20165.20165.20165.20

(-) (-) (-)
Outstanding Liquidity Facility ----- ----- -----

(-) (-) (-)
Net Outstanding Servicing Asset / (Liability) ----- ----- -----

(-) (-) (-)
Note:Note:Note:Note:Note: Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures.
b) The Company invests in Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) and purchases loans through the direct assignment route. In

some of the securitisation transactions, the Company also has invested in the assets securitised by it, which, however,
is restricted to the maximum limit prescribed by RBI from time to time.

55555 Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP)Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP)Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP)Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP)Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
A)A)A)A)A) Reliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital LimitedReliance Capital Limited

During the year the Company has introduced Employee Stock Option Plan, under which it has granted 7,96,900
options (3,99,900 options under Plan A and 3,97,000 options under Plan B) to the eligible employees of the
Company as well as employees of its Subsidiary Companies on the basis of their performance and other eligibility

Schedule “O”Schedule “O”Schedule “O”Schedule “O”Schedule “O”
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criteria. ESOS Plans are administered through an ESOS Trust. The vesting of the options is on the expiry of one year and
so on from the date of grant as per Plan under the respective ESOS(s). In respect of Options granted, the accounting
value of Options (based on market price of the share on the date of the grant of the option) is accounted as deferred
employee compensation, which is amortised on a straight line basis over the vesting period. Each Option entitles the
holder thereof to apply for and be allotted/ transferred one Equity Share of the Company of Rs.10 each upon
payment of the exercise price during the exercise period.  The Company has established a Trust for the implementation
and management of ESOS for the benefit of its present and future employees. Advance of Rs.96.41 crore (Previous
year Rs.Nil) has been granted to the Trust. Rs.96.40 (Previous year Rs.Nil) has been utilised by the Trust for purchasing
11,00,000 (Previous year Nil) Equity Shares during the period upto March 31, 2010. The fair value of the options
granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes Model with the following assumptions; the
information covering stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the year end is as follows;

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss Plan APlan APlan APlan APlan A Plan BPlan BPlan BPlan BPlan B

Vest 1Vest 1Vest 1Vest 1Vest 1 Vest 2Vest 2Vest 2Vest 2Vest 2 Vest 3Vest 3Vest 3Vest 3Vest 3 Vest 4Vest 4Vest 4Vest 4Vest 4 Vest 1Vest 1Vest 1Vest 1Vest 1 Vest 2Vest 2Vest 2Vest 2Vest 2 Vest 3Vest 3Vest 3Vest 3Vest 3 Vest 4Vest 4Vest 4Vest 4Vest 4 Vest 5Vest 5Vest 5Vest 5Vest 5

Date of GrantDate of GrantDate of GrantDate of GrantDate of Grant 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb 1-F1-F1-F1-F1-Febebebebeb
20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010 20102010201020102010

Prices of the Underlying Stock (Rs.) 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00 790.00
Continuous Risk-free Interest Rate 7.01% 7.10% 7.19% 7.27% 7.01% 7.10% 7.19% 7.27% 7.34%
Exercise / Strike Price 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00
Volatility 64.04% 63.66% 62.60% 61.23% 64.04% 63.66% 62.60% 61.23% 59.56%
Time to Expiration (years) 5.50 6.00 6.50 7.00 5.50 6.00 6.50 7.00 7.50
Time to Expiration (days) 2,008 2,191 2,374 2,556 2,008 2,191 2,374 2,556 2,739
Expected Dividend (%) 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62% 0.62%
Fair Value of Stock Option (Rs.) 510.00 527.00 540.00 551.00 510.00 527.00 540.00 551.00 559.00
Proportion of Vest 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 40.00% 10.00% 10.00% 20.00% 20.00% 40.00%
WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeed d d d d AAAAAvvvvverererereragagagagage Fe Fe Fe Fe Fairairairairair     VVVVValalalalalue (Rs.)ue (Rs.)ue (Rs.)ue (Rs.)ue (Rs.) 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 536.00536.00536.00536.00536.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00 546.00546.00546.00546.00546.00

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss Plan APlan APlan APlan APlan A Plan BPlan BPlan BPlan BPlan B

No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd No. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. ofNo. of WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd
StockStockStockStockStock AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage StockStockStockStockStock AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage AverageAverageAverageAverageAverage

OptionsOptionsOptionsOptionsOptions ExerciseExerciseExerciseExerciseExercise RemainingRemainingRemainingRemainingRemaining OptionsOptionsOptionsOptionsOptions ExerciseExerciseExerciseExerciseExercise RemainingRemainingRemainingRemainingRemaining
Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.) CCCCControntrontrontrontracacacacactttttualualualualual Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.) CCCCControntrontrontrontracacacacactttttualualualualual

LifLifLifLifLife (in e (in e (in e (in e (in YYYYYeeeeeararararars)s)s)s)s) LifLifLifLifLife (in e (in e (in e (in e (in YYYYYeeeeeararararars)s)s)s)s)

Outstanding at the Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A. N.A.
beginning of the year
Granted 399,900 536.00 5.50 to 7.00 397,000 546.00 5.50 to 7.50
Exercised Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A. N.A.
Lapsed / Forfeited Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A. N.A.
Outstanding at the end of
the year 399,900 536.00 5.50 to 7.00 397,000 546.00 5.50 to 7.50
Exercisable at end of the year 399,900 536.00 N.A. 397,000 546.00 N.A.

The Company has chosen to account for the Plan by the Intrinsic Value Method. The total expense recognised for the
period arising from stock option plan as per Intrinsic Value Method is Rs. Nil (Previouds Year Rs. Nil).

B)B)B)B)B) Reliance Capital Asset Managemet Ltd (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Managemet Ltd (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Managemet Ltd (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Managemet Ltd (RCAM)Reliance Capital Asset Managemet Ltd (RCAM)

(i) Pursuant to the shareholder’s, resolution dated September 20, 2007, RCAM introduced the Employee Stock
Option Plan under which RCAM decided to grant, from time to time, options to the employees of the Company.
The grant of options to the employees under the ESOP scheme is on the basis of their performance and other
eligibility criteria.

(ii) On December 21 2007, RCAM issued a total of 200,000 equity shares at a price Rs.2,000 per equity share to
the Trust, Reliance Capital Asset Management Employee Benefit Trust.

(iii) All above options are planned to be settled in cash or equity at the time of exercise and have maximum period
of 5 years from the date of respective grants. The plan existing during the year is as follows:

NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss
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a)a)a)a)a) 2007 Plan2007 Plan2007 Plan2007 Plan2007 Plan

The option under this plan has an exercise price of Rs.2,000/- per share and vest on a graded basis as
follows:

VVVVVesting Pesting Pesting Pesting Pesting Perioderioderioderioderiod VVVVVesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheduldulduldulduleeeee

On completion of 3 Years 30%

On completion of 4 Years 30%

On completion of 5 Years 40%

b)b)b)b)b) 2008 Plan2008 Plan2008 Plan2008 Plan2008 Plan

The option under this plan has an exercise price of Rs.7,989/- per share and vest on a graded basis as
follows:

VVVVVesting Pesting Pesting Pesting Pesting Perioderioderioderioderiod VVVVVesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheduldulduldulduleeeee

On completion of 3 Years 30%

On completion of 4 Years 30%

On completion of 5 Years 40%

(iv) The information concerning stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the year-end is as
follows:

As of March 31, 2010As of March 31, 2010As of March 31, 2010As of March 31, 2010As of March 31, 2010 As of March 31, 2009As of March 31, 2009As of March 31, 2009As of March 31, 2009As of March 31, 2009

Shares in ThousandsShares in ThousandsShares in ThousandsShares in ThousandsShares in Thousands No of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stock WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd No of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stock WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd
optionsoptionsoptionsoptionsoptions averageaverageaverageaverageaverage optionsoptionsoptionsoptionsoptions averageaverageaverageaverageaverage

exerciseexerciseexerciseexerciseexercise exerciseexerciseexerciseexerciseexercise
Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)  Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.) Price (Rs.)

Number of shares under option:Number of shares under option:Number of shares under option:Number of shares under option:Number of shares under option:

2007 Plan 71,125 2,000 73,350 2,000

Outstanding at beginning of year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Granted NIL NIL NIL NIL

Cancelled or expired NIL NIL 2,225 NIL

Outstanding at the year end 71,125 2,000 71,125 2,000

Exercisable at end of year 71,125 2,000 71,125 2,000

2008 Plan 40,450 8,000 NIL NIL

Outstanding at beginning of year NIL NIL 40,450 8,000

Granted NIL NIL NIL NIL

Cancelled or expired NIL NIL NIL NIL

Outstanding at the year end 39,550 8,000 40,450 8,000

Exercisable at end of year 39,550 8,000 40,450 8,000

(v) The fair value of the options granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes model with the
following assumptions

YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende endeddddd YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende endeddddd
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009March 31, 2009March 31, 2009March 31, 2009March 31, 2009

Risk free interest rate 8% 8%

Expected life 7 Years 7 Years

Dividend yield 0% 0%

(vi) RCAM has chosen to account for the Plan by the Intrinsic Value Method. The total expense recognised for the
period arising from stock option plan as per intrinsic value method is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil).
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C)C)C)C)C) RRRRReliancelianceliancelianceliance Genere Genere Genere Genere Generalalalalal Insur Insur Insur Insur Insurancancancancance Ce Ce Ce Ce Companompanompanompanompany Lty Lty Lty Lty Ltd (RGICL)d (RGICL)d (RGICL)d (RGICL)d (RGICL)

RGICL had introduced the Employee Stock Option Plan during the F. Y. 2008-09 under which options were granted
to the employees of RGICL on the basis of their performance and other eligibility criteria. Accordingly, RGICL issued a
total of nil equity shares (Previous year 4,294,672 equity shares at a price of Rs.70 per equity share) to Reliance
General Insurance Employees’ Benefit Trust. These options are planned to be settled in cash or equity at the time of
exercise and have maximum period of 7 years from the date of respective grants. The plan existing during the year is
as follows:

Excercised Period On completion of 3 years 30%

On completion of 4 years 30%

On completion of 5 years 40%

The information covering stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the year end is as follows

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararar CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent YYYYYeeeeeararararar PPPPPrrrrreeeeevious vious vious vious vious YYYYYeeeeeararararar

No of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stock WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd No of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stockNo of stock WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeeddddd
optionsoptionsoptionsoptionsoptions  average average average average average averageaverageaverageaverageaverage optionsoptionsoptionsoptionsoptions  average average average average average averageaverageaverageaverageaverage

exerciseexerciseexerciseexerciseexercise remainingremainingremainingremainingremaining exerciseexerciseexerciseexerciseexercise remainingremainingremainingremainingremaining
Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.) contractualcontractualcontractualcontractualcontractual Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.)Price (Rs.) contractualcontractualcontractualcontractualcontractual

LifLifLifLifLife (in e (in e (in e (in e (in YYYYYeeeeeararararars)s)s)s)s) LifLifLifLifLife (in e (in e (in e (in e (in YYYYYeeeeeararararars)s)s)s)s)

Outstanding at beginning
of year 694,300 70 6.05 years Nil Nil

Granted Nil Nil 694,300 70

Exercised Nil Nil Nil Nil

Lapsed / Forfeited Nil Nil Nil Nil

Outstanding at the year end 694,300 70 4.46 years 694,300 70 6.05 years

Exercisable at end of year 694,300 70 694,300 70

The fair value of the options granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the
following assumptions

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende endeddddd YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende endeddddd
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009March 31, 2009March 31, 2009March 31, 2009March 31, 2009

Risk Free Interest Rate - 7.98%

Expected Life - 7 year

Volatility - -

Dividend yield - -

RGICL has chosen to account for the plan by Intrinsic Value Method. The total expense recognized for the year arising
from stock option plan as per intrinsic value method is Rs. Nil (Previous Year Nil)

D)D)D)D)D) Reliance Securities Ltd (RSL)Reliance Securities Ltd (RSL)Reliance Securities Ltd (RSL)Reliance Securities Ltd (RSL)Reliance Securities Ltd (RSL)

(i) Pursuant to the shareholder’s, resolution dated October 24, 2007, RSL introduced the Employee Stock Option
Plan under which the Company decided to grant, from time to time, options to the employees of RSL

(ii) On October 1 2009, RSL issued a total of 100,000 equity shares at a price Rs.50 per equity share to the;

Trust; Reliance ADA Group Trustees Private Limited as Trustees of Reliance Securities Limited Employee Benefit Trust.

(iii) All above options are planned to be settled in cash or equity at the time of exercise and have maximum period
of 5 years from the date of respective grants.

The plan existing during the year is as follows:

a) Employee Stock Option Plan Plan – IB, 2009 Plan

The option under this plan has an exercise price of Rs.50/- per share and vest on a graded basis as follows:

NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss
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VVVVVesting Pesting Pesting Pesting Pesting Perioderioderioderioderiod VVVVVesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheesting Scheduldulduldulduleeeee

On completion of 3 Years 30%

On completion of 4 Years 30%

On completion of 5 Years 40%

(iv) The information concerning stock options granted, exercised, forfeited and outstanding at the year-end is as
follows:

Share in ThousandsShare in ThousandsShare in ThousandsShare in ThousandsShare in Thousands As on March 31, 2010As on March 31, 2010As on March 31, 2010As on March 31, 2010As on March 31, 2010

Number ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber ofNumber of WWWWWeighteighteighteighteighteeeeed ad ad ad ad avvvvverererereragagagagageeeee
Stock OptionsStock OptionsStock OptionsStock OptionsStock Options exercise price (Rs.)exercise price (Rs.)exercise price (Rs.)exercise price (Rs.)exercise price (Rs.)

IB, 2009

Outstanding at the beginning of the Year NIL -

Granted 64,600 50

Exercised NIL -

Cancelled or Expired NIL -

Outstanding at the year end 64,600 50

Exercisable at end of year 64,600 50

(v) The fair value of the options granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes model with the
following assumptions

YYYYYeeeeeararararar ende ende ende ende ended Md Md Md Md Marararararchchchchch

Risk free interest rate 6.68%

Expected life 7 Years

Dividend yield 0%

(vi) RSL has chosen to account for the Plan by the Black-Scholes Method. The total expense recognized for the
period arising from stock option plan as per intrinsic value method is Rs.NIL.

6. PPPPPaaaaayment tyment tyment tyment tyment to and pro and pro and pro and pro and prooooovision fvision fvision fvision fvision fororororor empl empl empl empl emploooooyyyyyees inclees inclees inclees inclees include Mude Mude Mude Mude Managanaganaganaganagerialerialerialerialerial R R R R Remuneremuneremuneremuneremuneration bation bation bation bation by wy wy wy wy waaaaay ofy ofy ofy ofy of

(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

i) Salary 1.591.591.591.591.59 2.14
ii) Perquisities 0.140.140.140.140.14 0.15
iii) Contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund 0.150.150.150.150.15 0.15
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 1.881.881.881.881.88 2.44
Information relating to the payment to manager does not include payment for gratuity and leave encashment which is
provided for employees on an overall basis.

7. Auditors' Remuneration (excluding service tax) includesAuditors' Remuneration (excluding service tax) includesAuditors' Remuneration (excluding service tax) includesAuditors' Remuneration (excluding service tax) includesAuditors' Remuneration (excluding service tax) includes
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09

i) Audit Fees 1.571.571.571.571.57 1.49
ii) Tax Audit Fees 0.100.100.100.100.10 0.05
iii) Certification Charges 0.030.030.030.030.03 0.00
iv) Reimbursment of Out of Pocket Expenses 0.010.010.010.010.01 0.02

TTTTToooootttttalalalalal 1.711.711.711.711.71 1.56

NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss
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vi)vi)vi)vi)vi) TTTTTrrrrransansansansansacacacacactions during the ytions during the ytions during the ytions during the ytions during the yeeeeeararararar with r with r with r with r with relelelelelatatatatateeeeed pard pard pard pard partiestiestiestiesties
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTTooooottttta la la la la l
SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel
InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments
a) Subscribed / Purchased during the year ----- 393.29393.29393.29393.29393.29 ----- ----- 393.29393.29393.29393.29393.29

(-) (34.24) (-) (-) (34.24)
b) Balance as at March 31, 2010 98.1898.1898.1898.1898.18 448.01448.01448.01448.01448.01 ----- ----- 546.19546.19546.19546.19546.19

(211.77) (54.72) (-) (-) (266.49)
PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnership Cship Cship Cship Cship Currurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAccccccccccountountountountountsssss
a) Contribution /(withdrawal) during the year (Net) ----- ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23 ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23

(-) (-) (191.59) (-) (191.59)
b) Loss of Partnership firm during the year ----- ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04 ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04

(-) (-) (4.40) (-) (4.40)
c) Balance as at March 31, 2010 ----- ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17 ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17

(-) (-) (295.98) (-) (295.98)

8. CCCCContingontingontingontingontingent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Cent Liabilities and Commitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitments (As (As (As (As (As cs cs cs cs cererererertiftiftiftiftifieieieieied bd bd bd bd by the managy the managy the managy the managy the management)ement)ement)ement)ement) (Rs. in crore)

As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at
March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

CCCCContingontingontingontingontingent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilities

GrGrGrGrGross Non Poss Non Poss Non Poss Non Poss Non Perererererffffforming orming orming orming orming AAAAAssssssssssetetetetetsssss

i) Guarantees to Banks and Financial Institutions+ 289.51289.51289.51289.51289.51 558.43

ii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 12.9712.9712.9712.9712.97 3.29

CCCCCommitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentommitmentsssss

iii) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account (net of advances) 28.1828.1828.1828.1828.18 23.09

ii) Uncalled amount of Investments 371.72371.72371.72371.72371.72 265.17

+++++ On behalf of Company, subsidiaries and associates.

9. Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:Related party disclosures:
i )i )i )i )i ) Holding CHolding CHolding CHolding CHolding Companompanompanompanompanyyyyy

Reliance Innoventures Pvt. Ltd. (Holding Company w.e.f. June 26, 2009)
AAA Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. (Ceased to be Holding Company w.e.f. June 26, 2009)

i i)i i )i i )i i )i i ) Individual PromoterIndividual PromoterIndividual PromoterIndividual PromoterIndividual Promoter
Shri Anil D. Ambani, the person having control during the year.

ii i)ii i)ii i)ii i)ii i) AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates
Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd.
Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd.
Ammolite Holdings Limited
Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Limited

iv)iv)iv)iv)iv) FFFFFelelelelellllllooooow subw subw subw subw subsidiariessidiariessidiariessidiariessidiaries
Reliance Communications Limited
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited
Reliance Telecom Limited
Matrix Innovations Limited
Reliance Natural Resources Limited
Reliance WiMax Limited
Reliance Webstore Limited
Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

v)v)v)v)v) Key management personnelKey management personnelKey management personnelKey management personnelKey management personnel
a) Shri V. R. Mohan - Company Secretary & Manager
b) Smt Geeta Chandran - Manager - Reliance Capital Asset Management Ltd.
c) Shri K. A. Somasekharan - CEO & President - Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd.

NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss
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NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTTooooottttta la la la la l

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement
PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel

Premium Accrued on InvestmentPremium Accrued on InvestmentPremium Accrued on InvestmentPremium Accrued on InvestmentPremium Accrued on Investment ----- 24.9524.9524.9524.9524.95 ----- ----- 24.9524.9524.9524.9524.95
(-) (2.90) (-) (-) (2.90)

LoansLoansLoansLoansLoans
a) Given during the year ----- 35.5635.5635.5635.5635.56 ----- ----- 35.5635.5635.5635.5635.56

(-) (559.80) (-) (-) (559.80)
b) Returned during the year ----- 491.18491.18491.18491.18491.18 ----- ----- 491.18491.18491.18491.18491.18

(385.00) (641.55) (-) (-) (1026.55)
c) Balance as at March 31, 2010 ----- 27.8127.8127.8127.8127.81 ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05 27.8627.8627.8627.8627.86

(-) (483.43) (-) (0.05) (483.48)
Sundry Debtors / Advances Recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances Recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances Recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances Recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind
a) Balance as at March 31, 2010 7.027.027.027.027.02 ----- ----- ----- 7.027.027.027.027.02

(7.17) (0.11) (-) (-) (7.28)
b) Interest receivable as at March 31, 2010 ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(-) (8.53) (-) (0.01) (8.54)
Contingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent Liability
a) Sundry Creditors Balance as at March 31, 2010 ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(0.13) (-) (-) (-) (0.13)
IncomeIncomeIncomeIncomeIncome
a) Interest & Finance Income ----- 22.7422.7422.7422.7422.74 ----- ----- 22.7422.7422.7422.7422.74

(including Premium on Preference Shares) (21.00) (41.78) (-) (-) (62.78)
b) Rent 4.414.414.414.414.41 ----- ----- ----- 4.414.414.414.414.41

(4.41) (-) (-) (-) (4.41)
c) Front End Fees ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(-) (1.25) (-) (-) (1.25)
d) Reimbursement of Expenditure taken 1.461.461.461.461.46 0.050.050.050.050.05 ----- ----- 1.511.511.511.511.51

(2.41) (0.08) (-) (-) (2.49)
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure
a) Rent ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(2.53) (-) (-) (-) (2.53)
b) Payment to and provisions for employees ----- ----- ----- 1.881.881.881.881.88 1.881.881.881.881.88

(-) (-) (-) (2.44) (2.44)
c) Professional and management fees 3.263.263.263.263.26 ----- ----- ----- 3.263.263.263.263.26

(1.37) (-) (-) (-) (1.37)
d) Repairs & Maintenance - Others 4.954.954.954.954.95 ----- ----- ----- 4.954.954.954.954.95

(6.38) (-) (-) (-) (6.38)
e) Miscellaneous 0.010.010.010.010.01 ----- ----- ----- 0.010.010.010.010.01

(0.05) (0.01) (-) (-) (0.06)
Contingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent Liability
a) Guarantees to Banks and Financial ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 ----- ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00

Institutions on behalf of third parties (-) (75.00) (-) (-) (75.00)
The natThe natThe natThe natThe natururururure and ve and ve and ve and ve and volololololume ofume ofume ofume ofume of mat mat mat mat materialerialerialerialerial tr tr tr tr transansansansansacacacacactions ftions ftions ftions ftions fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar with abo with abo with abo with abo with abovvvvve re re re re relelelelelatatatatateeeeed pard pard pard pard parties arties arties arties arties are as fe as fe as fe as fe as fololololollllllooooowswswswsws

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTTooooottttta la la la la l

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement
PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel

InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments
a) Subscribed / Purchased during the year

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 350.00350.00350.00350.00350.00 ----- ----- 350.00350.00350.00350.00350.00
(-) (1.00) (-) (-) (1.00)

ii) Reliance Asset Reconstructions Co. Ltd. ----- 43.2943.2943.2943.2943.29 ----- ----- 43.2943.2943.2943.2943.29
(-) (4.23) (-) (-) (4.23)

iii)  Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(-) (29.01) (-) (-) (29.01)

b) Balance as at March 31, 2010
i) Reliance Communications Ltd. 95.4695.4695.4695.4695.46 ----- ----- ----- 95.4695.4695.4695.4695.46

(209.05) (-) (-) (-) (209.05)
ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 361.00361.00361.00361.00361.00 ----- ----- 361.00361.00361.00361.00361.00

(-) (11.00) (-) (-) (11.00)
iii) Reliance Asset Reconstructions Co. Ltd. ----- 49.0049.0049.0049.0049.00 ----- ----- 49.0049.0049.0049.0049.00

(-) (5.71) (-) (-) (5.71)
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NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTTooooottttta la la la la l

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement
PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel

iv) Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd. ----- 9.009.009.009.009.00 ----- ----- 9.009.009.009.009.00
(-) (9.00) (-) (-) (9.00)

v) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- 29.0129.0129.0129.0129.01 ----- ----- 29.0129.0129.0129.0129.01
(-) (29.01) (-) (-) (29.01)

PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnership Cship Cship Cship Cship Currurrurrurrurrent ent ent ent ent AAAAAccccccccccountountountountountsssss
a) Contribution /(withdrawal) during the year (Net)

i) Reliance Capital Partners ----- ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23 ----- 148.23148.23148.23148.23148.23
(-) (-) (191.59) (-) (191.59)

b) Loss of Partnership firm during the year
i) Reliance Capital Partners ----- ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04 ----- 1.041.041.041.041.04

(-) (-) (4.40) (-) (4.40)
c) Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Capital Partners ----- ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17 ----- 443.17443.17443.17443.17443.17
(-) (-) (295.98) (-) (295.98)

Premium accrued on InvestmentPremium accrued on InvestmentPremium accrued on InvestmentPremium accrued on InvestmentPremium accrued on Investment
i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71 ----- ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
ii) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- 9.249.249.249.249.24 ----- ----- 9.249.249.249.249.24

(-) (2.90) (-) (-) (2.90)
Loans to OthersLoans to OthersLoans to OthersLoans to OthersLoans to Others
a) Given during the year

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 15.5615.5615.5615.5615.56 ----- ----- 15.5615.5615.5615.5615.56
(-) (558.20) (-) (-) (558.20)

ii) Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. ----- 20.0020.0020.0020.0020.00 ----- ----- 20.0020.0020.0020.0020.00
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

b) Returned during the year
i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(385.00) (-) (-) (-) (385.00)
ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 486.87486.87486.87486.87486.87 ----- ----- 486.87486.87486.87486.87486.87

(-) (581.05) (-) (-) (581.05)
c) Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. ----- 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69 ----- ----- 15.6915.6915.6915.6915.69
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

ii) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 12.1212.1212.1212.1212.12 ----- ----- 12.1212.1212.1212.1212.12
(-) (483.43) (-) (-) (483.43)

Sundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in KindSundry Debtors / Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind
a) Balance as at March 31, 2010

i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. 6.746.746.746.746.74 ----- ----- ----- 6.746.746.746.746.74
(6.94) (-) (-) (-) (6.94)

b) Interest Receivable on above
i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

(-) (8.53) (-) (-) (8.53)
CCCCCurrurrurrurrurrent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilitiesent Liabilities
a) Sundry     Creditors

i) Reliance Infocomm Infractructure Pvt. Ltd, - - - - -
(0.13) (-) (-) (-) (0.13)

IncomeIncomeIncomeIncomeIncome
a) Interest & Finance Income

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71 ----- ----- 15.7115.7115.7115.7115.71
(-) (37.69) (-) (-) (37.69)

ii) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(21.00) (-) (-) (-) (21.00)

iii) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- 6.346.346.346.346.34 ----- ----- 6.346.346.346.346.34
(-) (2.90) (-) (-) (2.90)

b) Rent
i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. 4.414.414.414.414.41 ----- ----- ----- 4.414.414.414.414.41

(4.41) (-) (-) (-) (4.41)
c) Front End Fees

i) Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(-) (1.25) (-) (-) (1.25)
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NoNoNoNoNotttttes tes tes tes tes to the Co the Co the Co the Co the Consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Fed Fed Fed Fed Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial St St St St Statatatatatementementementementementsssss

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPPara ra ra ra rt icult icult icult icult icula ra ra ra ra rsssss FFFFFelelelelellllllooooowwwww AssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociatesAssociates PPPPPararararartnertnertnertnertnershipshipshipshipship KeyKeyKeyKeyKey TTTTTooooottttta la la la la l

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries FirmFirmFirmFirmFirm ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement
PersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnelPersonnel

d) Reimbursement of Expenditure taken.
i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. 1.431.431.431.431.43 ----- ----- ----- 1.431.431.431.431.43

(2.41) (-) (-) (-) (2.41)
ii) Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05 ----- ----- 0.050.050.050.050.05

(-) (0.08) (-) (-) (0.08)
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure
a) Rent

i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. ----- ----- ----- ----- -----
(2.53) (-) (-) (-) (2.53)

b) Payment to and provisions for employees
i) Shri V. R. Mohan ----- ----- ----- 0.410.410.410.410.41 0.410.410.410.410.41

(-) (-) (-) (0.33) (0.33)
ii) Smt Geeta Chandran ----- ----- ----- 0.450.450.450.450.45 0.450.450.450.450.45

(-) (-) (-) (0.45) (0.45)
iii) Shri K. A. Somasekharan ----- ----- ----- 1.021.021.021.021.02 1.021.021.021.021.02

(-) (-) (-) (1.66) (1.66)
c) Professional and Management fees

i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. 2.012.012.012.012.01 ----- ----- ----- 2.012.012.012.012.01
(1.37) (-) (-) (-) (1.37)

ii) Reliance Tech Service Pvt. Ltd 1.251.251.251.251.25 ----- ----- ----- 1.251.251.251.251.25
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

d) Repairs & Maintenance – Others
i) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Ltd. 4.954.954.954.954.95 ----- ----- ----- 4.954.954.954.954.95

(6.10) (-) (-) (-) (6.10)
Contingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent LiabilityContingent Liability
a) Guarantees to Banks and Financial Institutions on behalf of third parties

i) Ammolite Holdings Ltd. ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00 ----- ----- 75.0075.0075.0075.0075.00
(-) (75.00) (-) (-) (75.00)

Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:
i) Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures.
ii) Expenses incurred towards public utilities services such as telephone and electricity charges have not been considered for

related party transaction.
iii) a) Previous year transactions with parties that have become related parties in the current year have been included in

the above mentioned table.
b) Previous year transactions with parties that have ceased to be related parties in the current year have been

excluded in the above mentioned table.
iv) In addition to the above, Director Sitting Fees of Rs.1,00,000 (Previous year Rs.80,000) has been paid to

Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani, an individual having significant influence.
10. Basic and Diluted Earning per ShareBasic and Diluted Earning per ShareBasic and Diluted Earning per ShareBasic and Diluted Earning per ShareBasic and Diluted Earning per Share

The computation of earnings per share is set out below
(Rs. in crore)

PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 2009-102009-102009-102009-102009-10 2008-09
a) Amounts used as the numerators

Net Profit after tax 433.38433.38433.38433.38433.38 1 015.67
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders 433.38433.38433.38433.38433.38 1 015.67

b) Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 24 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 80024 56 32 800 24 56 32 800
c) Basic earnings per share of face value Rs.10 each (Rs.) 17.6417.6417.6417.6417.64 41.35
d) Diluted earnings per share of face value Rs.10 each (Rs.) 17.6417.6417.6417.6417.64 41.35

11. DefDefDefDefDeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed d d d d TTTTTaaaaaxxxxxationationationationation
Deferred Tax Liability included in the Balance Sheet comprises the following

(Rs. in crore)
As atAs atAs atAs atAs at As at

March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
DefDefDefDefDeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed td td td td taaaaax liabilitiesx liabilitiesx liabilitiesx liabilitiesx liabilities
Deferred Expenses / Accrued Premium 33.0733.0733.0733.0733.07 72.03
Others 4.114.114.114.114.11 5.20

37.1837.1837.1837.1837.18 77.23
DefDefDefDefDeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed td td td td taaaaax assx assx assx assx assetetetetetsssss
Provision for Non Performing Assets / Carry Forward or Unabsorbed Losses, Others 76.9776.9776.9776.9776.97 72.77
Net DefNet DefNet DefNet DefNet Deferrerrerrerrerreeeeed d d d d TTTTTaaaaax Liabilities / (Ax Liabilities / (Ax Liabilities / (Ax Liabilities / (Ax Liabilities / (Assssssssssetetetetets)s)s)s)s) (39.79)(39.79)(39.79)(39.79)(39.79) 4.46
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12 Prior period adjustment amounting to Rs.1.40 crore (Previous Year Rs. Nil) was due to the adjustments that arose on
completion of the audit of three associates in comparison to unaudited financials statements considered for consolidation in
the year ended March 31, 2009.

13 Accrued Premium / Interest on Investments amounting to Rs.45.31 crore are due within 1 Year. (Previous Year Rs. Nil)
14 Micro, small and medium enterprises:Micro, small and medium enterprises:Micro, small and medium enterprises:Micro, small and medium enterprises:Micro, small and medium enterprises:

During the current year, the management has carried out the process of identification of enterprises, which have provided
goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of medium and small enterprises, as defined
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Based on the inputs received on above, there have
been no reporting cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such
payments.

15 The GrThe GrThe GrThe GrThe Group is orgoup is orgoup is orgoup is orgoup is organisanisanisanisaniseeeeed intd intd intd intd into fo fo fo fo fololololollllllooooowing rwing rwing rwing rwing reporeporeporeporeportttttablablablablable se se se se segment regment regment regment regment refefefefeferrerrerrerrerreeeeed td td td td to in o in o in o in o in AAAAAccccccccccounting Stounting Stounting Stounting Stounting Standandandandandararararard (AS 17) “Segmentd (AS 17) “Segmentd (AS 17) “Segmentd (AS 17) “Segmentd (AS 17) “Segment
Reporting”Reporting”Reporting”Reporting”Reporting”

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticulararararar Finance &Finance &Finance &Finance &Finance & AssetAssetAssetAssetAsset GeneralGeneralGeneralGeneralGeneral CCCCConsumeronsumeronsumeronsumeronsumer OthersOthersOthersOthersOthers EliminationEliminationEliminationEliminationElimination TTTTToooootttttalalalalal

InvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestmentsInvestments ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement InsuranceInsuranceInsuranceInsuranceInsurance FinanceFinanceFinanceFinanceFinance

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue
External 1,167.571,167.571,167.571,167.571,167.57 646.02646.02646.02646.02646.02 2,384.882,384.882,384.882,384.882,384.88 1,325.181,325.181,325.181,325.181,325.18 616.95616.95616.95616.95616.95 ----- 6,140.606,140.606,140.606,140.606,140.60

(1875.21) (390.74) (2311.44) (1205.20) (236.55) (0.00) (6019.14)
Inter Segment 13.7713.7713.7713.7713.77 ----- 1.351.351.351.351.35 ----- 4.144.144.144.144.14 19.2619.2619.2619.2619.26 -----

(-) (1.75) (3.45) (-) (15.35) (20.55) (-)
TTTTToooootttttalalalalal R R R R Reeeeevvvvvenueenueenueenueenue 1,181.341,181.341,181.341,181.341,181.34 646.02646.02646.02646.02646.02 2,386.232,386.232,386.232,386.232,386.23 1,325.181,325.181,325.181,325.181,325.18 621.09621.09621.09621.09621.09 19.2619.2619.2619.2619.26 6,140.606,140.606,140.606,140.606,140.60

(1875.21) (392.49) (2314.89) (1205.20) (251.90) (20.55) (6019.14)
ResultsResultsResultsResultsResults
Segment Results - Profit/ 342.56342.56342.56342.56342.56 230.27230.27230.27230.27230.27 (90.55)(90.55)(90.55)(90.55)(90.55) 135.01135.01135.01135.01135.01 (27.43)(27.43)(27.43)(27.43)(27.43) 0.000.000.000.000.00 589.86589.86589.86589.86589.86
(Loss) before Tax (1037.51) (114.73) (-50.17) (92.15) (11.03) (0.00) (1205.25)
Unallocated ExpensesUnallocated ExpensesUnallocated ExpensesUnallocated ExpensesUnallocated Expenses 1.541.541.541.541.54

(1.10)
OtherOtherOtherOtherOther inf inf inf inf informationormationormationormationormation
Segment AssetsSegment AssetsSegment AssetsSegment AssetsSegment Assets 14,562.2514,562.2514,562.2514,562.2514,562.25 192.93192.93192.93192.93192.93 2,608.912,608.912,608.912,608.912,608.91 9,652.579,652.579,652.579,652.579,652.57 1,627.661,627.661,627.661,627.661,627.66 (2,500.47)(2,500.47)(2,500.47)(2,500.47)(2,500.47) 26,143.8526,143.8526,143.8526,143.8526,143.85

(13023.91) (98.03) (2198.49) (8885.84) (1727.31) (1857.70)(24075.88)
Unallocated Assets - - - - - - 46.55

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (5.18)

Segment Liabilities 7,377.037,377.037,377.037,377.037,377.03 184.01184.01184.01184.01184.01 1,817.741,817.741,817.741,817.741,817.74 8,066.348,066.348,066.348,066.348,066.34 931.37931.37931.37931.37931.37 (132.12)(132.12)(132.12)(132.12)(132.12) 18,244.3718,244.3718,244.3718,244.3718,244.37
(5,682.44) (55.38) (1567.75) (8482.86) (1174.73) (310.16)(16653.00)

Unallocated Liabilities ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- ----- 6.006.006.006.006.00
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (4.46)

Capital Expenditure 7.187.187.187.187.18 10.8110.8110.8110.8110.81 18.2818.2818.2818.2818.28 4.374.374.374.374.37 3.343.343.343.343.34 0.000.000.000.000.00 43.9843.9843.9843.9843.98
(6.95) (20.76) (20.65) (8.51) (3.64) (0.00) (60.51)

Depreciation 13.1913.1913.1913.1913.19 12.5612.5612.5612.5612.56 31.6431.6431.6431.6431.64 5.185.185.185.185.18 5.065.065.065.065.06 0.000.000.000.000.00 67.6367.6367.6367.6367.63
(13.57) (9.67) (22.93) (7.65) (2.89) (0.00) (56.71)

Non Cash Expenses
other than Depreciation 0.830.830.830.830.83 0.360.360.360.360.36 43.2343.2343.2343.2343.23 273.81273.81273.81273.81273.81 27.1427.1427.1427.1427.14 0.000.000.000.000.00 345.37345.37345.37345.37345.37

(189.25) (0.24) (10.70) (0.00) (18.03) (0.00) (218.22)

Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures.
Note:Note:Note:Note:Note:
i) As per Accounting Standard (AS-17) on “Segment Reporting”, notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules

2006, the Group has reported segment information on the consolidated basis including business conducted through its
subsidiaries.

ii) The reportable segments of Reliance Capital Group are further described below
a) Finanace & Investment - This includes the corporate lending and investment activities.
b) Asset Management - This includes the asset management activities including Mutual Fund and Portfolio Management

Services.
c) General Insurance - This includes the the general insurance business.
d) Consumer Finance - This includes the consumer finance and mortgage lending business.
e) Others

iii) Since all the operations of the Group are largely conducted within India, as such there is no separate reportable
geographical segment
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16 The list ofThe list ofThe list ofThe list ofThe list of sub sub sub sub subsidiaries/sidiaries/sidiaries/sidiaries/sidiaries/associatassociatassociatassociatassociates ces ces ces ces consideronsideronsideronsideronsidereeeeed in the cd in the cd in the cd in the cd in the consolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatateeeeed fd fd fd fd financialinancialinancialinancialinancial st st st st statatatatatementementementementements with theirs with theirs with theirs with theirs with their pr pr pr pr propoopoopoopoopotion oftion oftion oftion oftion of o o o o ownerwnerwnerwnerwner ship ship ship ship ship
are as underare as underare as underare as underare as under

NameNameNameNameName CCCCCountrountrountrountrountry ofy ofy ofy ofy of YYYYYeeeeeararararar Ending Ending Ending Ending Ending Proportion ofProportion ofProportion ofProportion ofProportion of
IncorporationIncorporationIncorporationIncorporationIncorporation ownership (interest)ownership (interest)ownership (interest)ownership (interest)ownership (interest)

List of SubsidiariesList of SubsidiariesList of SubsidiariesList of SubsidiariesList of Subsidiaries
Reliance Capital Asset Management Ltd. India March 31, 2010 93.37%
Reliance Capital Trustees Co. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance General Insurance Co. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 96.20%
Reliance Gilts Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Capital Research Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Venture Asset Management Pvt. Ltd.
(formerly Reliance Technology Ventures Pvt Ltd) India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Money Express Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Capital Markets Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Medybiz Pvt Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Net Logistics Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010  # 90.00%
Reliance Asset Management (Mauritius) Ltd. Mauritius March 31, 2010 93.37%
Reliance Asset Management (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Singapore March 31, 2010 93.37%
Reliance Capital Asset Management (UK) Ltd. United Kingdom March 31, 2010 93.37%
Reliance Asset Management (Malaysia) SDN BHD Malaysia March 31, 2010 93.37%
Relinace Capital Partners (Partnership Firm) India March 31, 2010 # #
Reliance Equity Advisors (India) Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Equities International Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Home Finance Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Consumer Finance Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Securities Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Commodities Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Financial Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Alternative Investments Services Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Prime International Ltd. India March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Capital Pension Fund Ltd. India March 31, 2010 93.37%
Reliance Capital (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore March 31, 2010 100.00%
Reliance Consultants (Mauritius) Ltd. Mauritius March 31, 2010 100.00%
List of AssociatesList of AssociatesList of AssociatesList of AssociatesList of Associates
Reliance Land Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 50.00%
Reliance Share & Stock Brokers Pvt. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 50.00%
Ammolite Holding Ltd. Bermuda March 31, 2010 * 50.00%
Reliance Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd. India March 31, 2010 49.00%

Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:Notes:
a) # Balance 10% ownership interest in Net Logistics Pvt Ltd is held by Medybiz Pvt Ltd
b) ## Proportion of ownership interest in Partnership firm is on the basis of weighted average capital
c) * The Financial statements of Ammolite Holdings Ltd., have been certified by the management
d) Wall Street Finance Limited has not been considered for consolidation as the company ceased to be an Associate of

Reliance Money Express Limited w.e.f. September 3, 2009.
e) Reliance Capital Infrastructure Partners has not commenced operations during the year ended March 31, 2010 and

there has been no contribution of capital upto March 31, 2010. Hence it has been not considered for consolidation.
17 The Investments of Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd, amounting to Rs.1665.54 crore (Previous Year Rs 1433.56

crore) have been accounted on held till maturity basis in accordance with the Insurance Regulatory & Development Act,
1999 and the regulations fram’ed thereunder read with relevent provisions of Insurance Act, 1938 and Companies Act,
1956.

18 The Company’s stake in the Share Capital of Gini & Jony Ltd, Rose Land Buildtech Private Ltd., and Victory Transformers &
Switchgears Pvt Ltd is in excess of 20% each. These investments made by the Company are strategic in nature, with an
intention to sell these investments in the near future.
a) In accordance with Para 7 of Accounting Standard (AS-23) on Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated

Financial Statements as per the Companies (Accounting Standard), Rules 2006, these investments have not been
accounted for as associates in the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

b) The Company does not have any “Significant Influence” on these companies, as defined by Accounting Standard (AS-
18) on Related Party Disclosures as per the Companies (Accounting Standard), Rules 2006 and hence the transaction
with these parties have not been considered for Related Party Disclosures.
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CCCCConsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidonsolidatatatatated Ced Ced Ced Ced Cashflashflashflashflashflooooow Stw Stw Stw Stw Statatatatatement fement fement fement fement fororororor the y the y the y the y the yeeeeeararararar ended M ended M ended M ended M ended Marararararch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010ch 31, 2010

(Rs. in crore)
PPPPParararararticulticulticulticulticularararararsssss 20020020020020099999-20-20-20-20-201010101010 2008-2009
A.A.A.A.A. CCCCCash flash flash flash flash flooooows fws fws fws fws frrrrrom Operom Operom Operom Operom Operating ating ating ating ating AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs.Rs. Rs. Rs.

Net PNet PNet PNet PNet Prrrrrofofofofofit befit befit befit befit befororororore te te te te taaaaaxxxxx 588.32588.32588.32588.32588.32 1,204.15
Adjusted for

Prior period expenses (1.40)(1.40)(1.40)(1.40)(1.40) 0.46
Depreciation 67.6367.6367.6367.6367.63 56.71
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off 4.004.004.004.004.00 -
Provision for Non Performing Assets / Doubtful Debts 2.722.722.722.722.72 131.84
Provision for Diminution in the Value of Assets ----- 4.70
Provision for Diminution in the Value of Investment (0.21)(0.21)(0.21)(0.21)(0.21) 60.16
Provision for Grauity/ Leave Encashment (10.22)(10.22)(10.22)(10.22)(10.22) 3.71
Provision for repossessed stock 0.970.970.970.970.97 4.29
Reserve for Unexpired Risks 29.4729.4729.4729.4729.47 -
Amortised DSA Commission 82.0782.0782.0782.0782.07 47.72
Amortised Brokerage on Borrowings 18.6018.6018.6018.6018.60 4.18
Balances written off 301.16301.16301.16301.16301.16 6.52
Excess provision/credit balance written back (16.17)(16.17)(16.17)(16.17)(16.17) (31.84)

Investments -
Interest (587.43)(587.43)(587.43)(587.43)(587.43) (326.49)

Dividend Income (44.43)(44.43)(44.43)(44.43)(44.43) (71.70)
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Investment (net) (514.21)(514.21)(514.21)(514.21)(514.21) (1,176.44)
Interest expenses 1,332.401,332.401,332.401,332.401,332.40 1,263.83
(Profit) / Loss on Partnership Firm 1.041.041.041.041.04 4.40
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (net) 0.970.970.970.970.97 666.96666.96666.96666.96666.96 (1.13) (19.08)

OperOperOperOperOperating Cating Cating Cating Cating Cash Fash Fash Fash Fash Flllllooooows befws befws befws befws befororororore we we we we working corking corking corking corking capitapitapitapitapitalalalalal chang chang chang chang changeseseseses 1,255.281,255.281,255.281,255.281,255.28 1,185.07
Adjusted for

Trade and other recievables (999.08)(999.08)(999.08)(999.08)(999.08) (1,341.27)
Inventories (1.12)(1.12)(1.12)(1.12)(1.12) (4.91)
Loan originating cost (77.56)(77.56)(77.56)(77.56)(77.56) (63.18)
Proceeds from/(repayment of) Short Term Borrowings (net) (4,178.92)(4,178.92)(4,178.92)(4,178.92)(4,178.92) 2,644.72
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 4,795.014,795.014,795.014,795.014,795.01 1,794.76
Trade payables 313.96313.96313.96313.96313.96 (147.71)(147.71)(147.71)(147.71)(147.71) 79.67 3,109.79

CCCCCash gash gash gash gash generenerenerenereneratatatatateeeeed fd fd fd fd frrrrrom operom operom operom operom operationsationsationsationsations 1,107.571,107.571,107.571,107.571,107.57 4,294.86
Interest paid (1,369.25)(1,369.25)(1,369.25)(1,369.25)(1,369.25) (918.73)
Taxes paid (123.20)(123.20)(123.20)(123.20)(123.20) (1,492.45)(1,492.45)(1,492.45)(1,492.45)(1,492.45) (150.53) (1,069.26)

CCCCCash Fash Fash Fash Fash Flllllooooows befws befws befws befws befororororore Pe Pe Pe Pe Priorriorriorriorrior period it period it period it period it period itemsemsemsemsems (384.87)(384.87)(384.87)(384.87)(384.87) 3,225.60
Prior period expense 1.401.401.401.401.40 (0.46)

Net Cash provided by Operating ActivitiesNet Cash provided by Operating ActivitiesNet Cash provided by Operating ActivitiesNet Cash provided by Operating ActivitiesNet Cash provided by Operating Activities (383.47)(383.47)(383.47)(383.47)(383.47) 3,225.14
B.B.B.B.B. CCCCCash Fash Fash Fash Fash Flllllooooows fws fws fws fws frrrrrom Inom Inom Inom Inom Invvvvvesting esting esting esting esting AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (42.99)(42.99)(42.99)(42.99)(42.99) 167.69
Sale of Fixed Assets 5.615.615.615.615.61 7.57
Purchase of Investments (13,852.71)(13,852.71)(13,852.71)(13,852.71)(13,852.71) (18,696.35)
Sale of Investments 12,980.2112,980.2112,980.2112,980.2112,980.21 15,990.42
Interest received 160.23160.23160.23160.23160.23 135.69
Dividend received 43.2743.2743.2743.2743.27 71.70

Net cash used in Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in Investing Activities (706.38)(706.38)(706.38)(706.38)(706.38) (2,323.28)
C.C.C.C.C. CCCCCash flash flash flash flash flooooows fws fws fws fws frrrrrom Fom Fom Fom Fom Financing inancing inancing inancing inancing AAAAAccccctivitiestivitiestivitiestivitiestivities

Issue / (redemption) of Share Capital ----- 30.06
Dividend paid (185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77) (157.27)

Net Cash provided / (used in) financing activitiesNet Cash provided / (used in) financing activitiesNet Cash provided / (used in) financing activitiesNet Cash provided / (used in) financing activitiesNet Cash provided / (used in) financing activities (185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77)(185.77) (127.21)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (1,275.62)(1,275.62)(1,275.62)(1,275.62)(1,275.62) 774.65
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,167.531,167.531,167.531,167.531,167.53 392.88
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period* (108.09)(108.09)(108.09)(108.09)(108.09) 1,167.53

* Fixed Deposits with banks amounting to Rs.178.75 crore (Previous Year Rs. NIL) under lien, are not considered for Cash & Cash Equivalents.

As per our report of even date
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PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL
Joint shareholders may obtain additional attendance slip at the venue.
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ATATATATATTENDTENDTENDTENDTENDANCE SLANCE SLANCE SLANCE SLANCE SLIPIPIPIPIP

Affix
Re. 1/-
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stamp

RRRRRegistegistegistegistegistererererereeeeed Ofd Ofd Ofd Ofd Offfffficicicicice:e:e:e:e: H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710

PROPROPROPROPROXXXXXYYYYY FORM FORM FORM FORM FORM

DP. Id* Master Folio No.

Client Id* No. of Share(s) held

Note: (1) The proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the aforesaid
meeting. The Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(2) Members holding shares under more than one folio may use photocopy of this Proxy Form for other folios.
The Company shall provide additional forms on request.

I/We..................................................................................................................................................................................................... ...of

being a member/members of Reliance Capital Ltd. hereby appoint....... ..........................................................................................

of .......................................................................................................................................................................................  or failing him

............................................................................................................ of .................................................................................................

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, September 28, 2010
at 12.00 noon or soon after conclusion of the annual general meeting of Reliance Power Ltd. convened on the same day,
whichever is later, at Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg, New Marine Lines, Mumbai 400 020 or at any
adjournment thereof.

Signed this .......................................... day of ............................................... 2010.

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

........... .......................................................................... TEAR HERE.........................................................................................

RRRRRegistegistegistegistegistererererereeeeed Ofd Ofd Ofd Ofd Offfffficicicicice:e:e:e:e: H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER

I hereby record my presence at the 24th Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, September 28, 2010 at 12.00 noon or soon after
conclusion of the annual general meeting of Reliance Power Ltd. convened on the same day, whichever is later, at Birla Matushri
Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg, New Marine Lines, Mumbai 400 020.

Signature of the shareholder or proxy
*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

DP. Id* Master Folio No.

Client Id* No. of Share(s) held
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